| n r | KOLKA | TC 0 4 - 110 | | | |
|--------|---|--|--|--|--|
| 1-4001 | In the Matter o | IN THE MATTER OF THE FILING BY f QWEST CORPORATION OF ITS NOTICE OF MODIFICATION TO THE STATEMENT OF GENERALLY AVAILABLE TERMS AND CONDITIONS (SGAT) EXHIBIT B, NOTICE OF QWEST'S CHANGES TO ITS PERFORMANCE ASSURANCE PLAN AND MOTION FOR TIER D E S I G N A T I O N, V O L U M E DIFFERENTIATED BENCHMARK AND MEASUREMENT STABILIZATION PERIOD FOR THE REVISED PID PO-20 | | | |
| | I | Public Utilities Commission of the State of South Dakota | | | |
| | DATE | MEMORANDA | | | |
| | $\frac{6}{24} \frac{04}{04}$ $\frac{7}{1} \frac{04}{04}$ | Tiled and Decketel; Welkly Filing; Alequement Stabilization Period delated to the the ised PTO, PO-20 (Espanded) Manual Service aller Entry; Alequement Stabilization Period Service PTO, PO-20 (Espanded) Manual Service aller Entry; | | | |
| | 11/4 04 | Docket Classe. | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| • | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | <u> </u> | | | | |

ļ

STATE PUBLISHING CO., PIERRE, SOUTH DAKOTA-SMEAD 62 SP14130

· . •

Melissa K. Thompson Senior Attorney 1801 California Street Suite 4900 Denver, CO 80202 303-672-2734 303-295-7069 (fax) melissa.thompson@gwest.com

TC04-110



RECEIVED

JUN 2 4 2004

June 23, 2004

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Pamela Bonrud, Executive Director Public Utilities Commission of the State of South Dakota 500 East Capitol Avenue Pierre, South Dakota 57501

RE: Notice of Modification to the SGAT, Notice of Qwest's Changes to its Performance Assurance Plan, and Motion for Tier Designation, Volume Differentiated Benchmark and Measurement Stabilization Period for the Revised PID PO-20

Dear Ms. Bonrud:

Please find enclosed for filing one original and 10 copies of Qwest Corporation's Notice of Modification to the SGAT, Notice of Qwest's Changes to its Performance Assurance Plan, and Motion for Tier Designation, Volume Differentiated Benchmark and Measurement Stabilization Period for the Revised PID PO-20.

Thank you for your help with this filing. Please contact me if you have any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Melissa K. Thompson

Encl.

cc: Colleen Sevold

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on this 23rd day of June, 2004, an original and ten (10) copies of QWEST CORPORATION'S NOTICE OF MODIFICATION TO THE STATEMENT OF GENERALLY AVAILABLE TERMS AND CONDITIONS ("SGAT") EXHIBIT B, NOTICE OF QWEST'S CHANGES TO ITS PERFORMANCE ASSURANCE PLAN AND MOTION FOR TIER DESIGNATION, VOLUME DIFFERENTIATED BENCHMARK AND MEASUREMENT STABILIZATION EPRIOD FOR THE REVISED PID PO-20 was forwarded via UPS Overnight, to the following:

> Pamela Bonrud, Executive Director South Dakota Public Utilities Commission 500 East Capitol Pierre, South Dakota 57501

Neto Cur

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

Qwest Corporation's Notice of Modification to the Statement of Generally Available Terms and Conditions ("SGAT") Exhibit B, Notice of Qwest's Changes to its Performance Assurance Plan and Motion for Tier Designation, Volume Differentiated Benchmark and Measurement Stabilization Period for the revised PID PO-20

TC 00-191 TC 01-165

RECEIVED

JUN 2 4 2004

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSIO

Qwest Corporation ("Qwest") submits an updated Exhibit B to the Statement of Generally Available Terms and Conditions ("SGAT"), which is the Performance Indicator Definitions ("PIDs"). Copies of updated Exhibit B are attached.¹ Qwest also submits its revised Qwest Performance Plan ("QPAP") for South Dakota to modify the QPAP, reflect changes from Long Term PID Administration ("LTPA") discussions as well as request determination regarding the tier designation, volume-differentiated benchmark, and measurement stabilization period related to the revised PID, PO-20 (Expanded) Manual Service Order Entry. Attached is the revised OPAP.²

In support of these notices and motion for approval, Qwest states as follows:

These submissions result from work during LTPA sessions where participants identified and agreed upon a number of modifications to the PIDs. Some of those modifications may impact the QPAP. The agreements were reached between Qwest and the CLECs in the LTPA

¹ Qwest is submitting "clean" and "red-lined" versions of Exhibit B, as modified.

 $^{^2}$ The QPAP can also be found as Exhibit K to the SGAT. Qwest submits a "clean" and redline version of the QPAP, as modified.

meetings from December 18, 2003 through March 25, 2004 and during the subsequent impasse process.

A. Changes to Exhibit B appearing in Version 7.1

 Version 7.1 of Exhibit B contains changes to PO-2, Electronic Flow-Through and PO-20, (Expanded) Manual Service Order Accuracy.

2. In LTPA, Qwest offered to begin reporting flow-through performance of UNE-P Centrex 21 on a combined basis with UNE-P POTs, which is an existing product category in PO-2. The issue was disputed by one CLEC in LTPA and the issue went to impasse. Recently, Qwest reached agreement with that CLEC and now submits this change as an agreed-upon change. Accordingly, Exhibit B has been updated to reflect that UNE-P POTs and UNE-P Centrex 21 will be reported in PO-2 on a combined basis.

3. Qwest is implementing the new PO-20 in four phases beginning with Phase 1 in May of 2004. Thus, Qwest will begin reporting results for this enhanced PO-20 with the May results on the July report. Qwest proposes that Phase 1 be subject to the QPAP beginning with August results that are reported in October and paid in November or what equates to three months later for the reasons contained below. Further, Qwest proposes that the existing PO-20 contained in Exhibit B-1 remain in effect in the QPAP until the enhanced PO-20 becomes subject to QPAP.

4. The current PO-20 contained in Exhibit B-1 describes a manual review of 11 fields on a sample of orders (approximately 900 orders per month) for four products. The expanded PO-20 includes: an electronic evaluation of the universe of eligible orders as well as an increase in the number of additional products and fields; and a "safety net" that encompasses both pre-completion and post-completion activities. The phased implementation schedule of fields reviewed has been agreed to by the participants of LTPA.

5. Specifically in Phase 1, Qwest will review and measure all service orders within the defined scope of PO-20, increasing the orders reviewed by approximately 1800% to more than 18,000 orders per month. During this phase, Qwest will move from a manual review to an automated review for specific fields. In addition, this phase will include in the measure certain escalation tickets related to service order errors that are opened by the CLEC with Qwest. Beginning with Phase 1, the enhanced PO-20 measures Resale POTS, UNE-P POTS, Resale Centrex 21, UNE-P Centrex 21, and eight unbundled loop types (Analog, non-loaded 2-wire, non-loaded 4-wire, DS1 Capable, DS3 Capable and higher, ADSL Compatible, XDSL-I Capable, and ISDN-BRI Capable).³ In terms of the number of fields reviewed, each phase adds new fields and field entry combinations. Phase 1 increases the number of fields that are reviewed by 164% over the current measurement. Additionally in this phase, Qwest begins reviewing the accuracy of 205 possible feature codes (universal service order codes – "USOCs") in the service and equipment ("S&E") section of the service order for the first time.

³ The current PO-20 measures Resale POTS, UNE-P POTS, and two unbundled loops types, analog and non-loaded 2-wire.

6. Phase 2 adds four additional fields and the evaluation of the accuracy of 29 floated⁴ fields after specified USOCs.

7. In Phase 3, Qwest adds the BLOCK field to the PO-20 review. This field establishes various blocking options on a line, such as long distance blocking or 976 blocking. Although it is a single field on the LSR, it can equate to multiple entries on the service order.

8. Qwest finishes the expansion of the automated portion of PO-20 in Phase 4 by adding four more fields to the review and completing the second stage of implementation for the BLOCK field. With implementation of this phase, the automated field-to-field comparison will evaluate 39 potential fields, 205 feature codes (USOCs), 29 feature detail codes and a multitude of combinations of these entries on all electronically-submitted manually-processed LSRs for the products and activity types specified in the definition.

B. Brief Explanation of certain Exhibit B modifications from Version 6.0 and 7.0 with no redline changes required in the QPAP

⁴ On the service order USOCs are entered to request specific products or services from Qwest. Floated fields (FIDs or Field Identifiers) are entered after these USOCs to provide additional information needed for the product. For example a TN (Telephone Number) or HTG (hunting) might be floated after a USOC requesting an inward line.

9. On January 29, 2004, the LTPA agreed to add two preorder transactions to PO-1, Pre-Order/Order Response Times: Connecting Facility Assignment and Meet Point Inquiry. These two transactions are identified as the 9th and 10th pre-order transactions. Benchmarks of 25 seconds and 30 seconds, respectively, were also agreed upon for these transactions.⁵ The QPAP does not require redline changes because PO-1 in South Dakota does not delineate each transaction.

10. The parties agreed on January 15, 2004, to add DS-1 level Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs-DS1) as a product group to PO-5, Firm Order Confirmations (FOCs) On Time.⁶ Therefore, activity for EELs-DS1 will be included in the reporting of PO-5B(b) and PO-5C(b). No QPAP changes are required since the product categories are not delineated separately.

11. Further, although several modifications were made to Exhibit B as a result of the parties' agreement to begin reporting EELs on a disaggregated basis, no changes to the QPAP are required.⁷ The aggregate category for EELs was removed from OP-3, OP-4, OP-6, MR-5, MR-6, MR-7, & MR-8. This aggregate category was replaced with the disaggregations of DS-0, DS-1 and DS-3. Agreement was reached to apply the EEL standards from the Colorado PAP; consequently, the standards that are applied to EELs

⁵ See LTPA Meeting Minutes for January 29, 2004.

⁶ See LTPA Meeting Minutes for January 15, 2004.

⁷ Please note that the same changes for EELs were made to MR-6, Mean Time to Restore as the other PIDs; however, MR-6D, -6E which contain the EEL disaggregations are not in the PAP.

DS-1 in the CPAP are applied to the PIDs OP-3, OP-4, OP-6A⁸, MR-5, MR-6, MR-7 and MR-8. A diagnostic standard was applied to EELs DS-0 and EELs DS-3 in the PIDs OP-3, OP-4, OP-6, MR-5, MR-6, MR-7 and MR-8.

12. Unlike EELs reporting, with regard to line splitting, the parties were able to reach agreement in several instances but remain at impasse in other instances. In the PID OP-3, Installation Commitments Met, LTPA agreed on March 25, 2004, that line splitting would be reported on a disaggregated basis with a 95% benchmark.⁹ Similarly, in OP-4, Installation Interval, LTPA agreed on March 25, 2004, that line splitting would be reported on a disaggregated basis with a benchmark of 3.3 days¹⁰ and in OP-6, Delayed Days, it was agreed that line splitting be reported on a disaggregated basis with a standard of parity with retail Qwest DSL.¹¹

13. With respect to MR-7 and line splitting, the parties agreed to report line splitting on a disaggregation basis and apply a standard of parity with Qwest DSL.¹²

14. LTPA agreed on January 15, 2004, to change the standard for line sharing in the OP-6 PID, Delayed Days from diagnostic to parity with retail Qwest DSL.¹³

⁸ OP-6B is diagnostic. OP-6B measures the average number of business days that service is delayed beyond the applicable due date for facility reasons attributed to Qwest.

See LTPA Meeting Minutes for March 25, 2004.

¹⁰ See LTPA Meeting Minutes for March 25, 2004.

¹¹ See LTPA Meeting Minutes for March 11-12, 2004.

¹² See LTPA Meeting Minutes for March 11-12, 2004.

¹³ See LTPA Meeting Minutes for January 15, 2004.

15. On February 19, 2004, the parties agreed to change the methodology by which results for MR-7, Repair Repeat Report Rate, are reported to more closely tie a repeated trouble report with the initial trouble report.¹⁴ Thus, to provide time to identify a repeat trouble report within 30 days of the initial trouble report, this PID will be reported one month in arrears (i.e., July's results would be reported in September).

16. Where the installation intervals for the wholesale product of DS-1 capable unbundled loops and the retail product of DS-1 capable loops are different, LTPA agreed on March 11th and 12th, 2004 to change the standard from parity to a benchmark of 5.5 days.¹⁵

C. QPAP changes resulting from Version 6.0 of Exhibit B

17. On February 17, 2004, Qwest filed Version 6.0 of the PIDs in Exhibit B, which took effect 60 days later. Among the changes, only two items in Version 6.0 require QPAP modifications.

18. The administrative changes and substantive change to GA-1 were negotiated with participating CLECs and State Commission State Staffs in the LTPA collaborative forum in the last quarter of 2003 and final agreement was reached on December 18, 2003.¹⁶ Because the administrative changes are not of a substantive nature, they do not alter any

¹⁴ See LTPA Meeting Minutes for February 19, 2004

¹⁵ See LTPA Meeting Minutes for March 11th and 12th, 2004.

¹⁶ See LTPA Meeting Minutes for December 18, 2003.

provisions in the QPAP or have any impact on Qwest's obligations under the QPAP. Therefore, the administrative changes filed in Version 6.0 require no changes be made to the QPAP.

19. However, the change to GA-1 Gateway Availability – IMA-GUI, does require a modification to the QPAP. The LTPA agreed to remove two subparts to GA-1 and replace them with another. Specifically, subparts GA-1B, ("Fetch-N-Stuff") and GA-1C ("Data Arbiter") were replaced with GA-1D ("SIA"). Fetch-N-Stuff and Data Arbiter were two components of the electronic gateways through which CLECs interact electronically with Qwest's Operational Support Systems ("OSS"). These components were retired in December, 2002 and replaced by a new component called SIA. During the conversion from Fetch-N-Stuff and Data Arbiter to SIA, Qwest reported gateway availability performance for all three components; however, after the retirement of the former two components, Qwest stopped reporting their performance, but continued reporting performance for SIA; Qwest continues to report on SIA today. During the conversion, GA-1D was monitored with respect to provisions under the QPAP and because SIA has never missed its standard, no QPAP payments arose; however, the QPAP requires that GA-1 be accordingly modified.

D. Additional QPAP Administrative Changes

20. In previous versions of the QPAP, the footnote "c" table reference for OP-3 referred to a non-existent footnote and has accordingly been deleted from the attached QPAP.

E. QPAP Changes resulting from Version 7.1 of Exhibit B

Since PO-2 does not appear in the QPAP, no changes are required or included. However, as to PO-20, Qwest requests that the Commission determine the appropriate tier designation, apply a low-volume-differentiated benchmark (to avoid requiring 100% perfect performance in any reporting period), and allow a maximum of a 3 month measurement stabilization period prior to each implementation phase. As support for these requests, Qwest states as follows:

21. The PO-20 modifications were discussed by the LTPA in one or more of the weekly LTPA sessions and numerous ad hoc meetings. A number of Staff from various state commissions attended those discussions as well. The parties agreed that these substantive changes would be submitted together after completion of the negotiation sessions, rather than individually as agreement was reached. The version of PO-20 included in the attached Exhibit B was circulated to the LTPA collaborative on June 8, 2004 with comments requested by June 16, 2004.¹⁷ This email contained the following language: "If comments are not received on or before June 16, 2004, the attached version will be included in Qwest's anticipated Exhibit B filings as the agreed upon PO-20." One

See the Qwest's email to the LTPA, dated June 8, 2004 at 4:43 PM (Denver time).

CLEC responded indicating they had no concern with the language. Qwest now submits the attached Exhibit B.

22. However, it should be noted that while the parties reached agreement in LTPA on the PID definition and implementation of the enhanced PO-20, the parties only briefly addressed its treatment in the QPAP during ad hoc meetings in March 2004. Therefore, Qwest requests that the enhanced PO-20 be assigned a tier designation of Tier 1 Low, no Tier 2; a low volume differentiated benchmark for a specific number of orders be applied; and that a maximum 3 month measurement stabilization period apply for each phase of implementation before the phase is subject to the QPAP.

23. Given the types of errors captured by PO-20 and the fact that customer impact may or may not result, the designation of Tier 1 low, and no Tier 2, appropriately reflects the importance of these types of errors. The majority of errors that PO-20 will capture are associated with feature-only activity. Feature only activity orders do not involve interconnection, switching of customers, collocation, or access to unbundled loops. Even though PO-20 measures orders for inward line activity as well as feature only activity, most of the errors on the competitively sensitive inward activity (and conversion activity) can be detected and corrected before the due date and thus, result in no end user impact. Appropriately, these types of activities have not risen to anything above a Tier 1 Low designation in any other measure.

24. Additionally, simply because a PO-20 error is identified does not mean that an end user customer will be impacted, or that the impact will necessarily translate to end user customer harm. In fact, PO-20 does not have the capacity to quantify the harm, if any, to an end user customer; it can only quantify the existence of error.

25. Finally, it must be noted that several of the errors that PO-20 is designed to capture will be captured in other PIDs. For example, if a service order error results in an installation problem on an inward-line order, either OP-5A – which measures the percentage of inward line service orders that are free of repair trouble reports -- could capture that condition or OP-5B – which measures the percentage of inward line service orders that are free of report the error. If the PO-20 error results in incorrect billing, that error will be reflected in BI-3A, billing accuracy results. In the preceding examples, in the case of OP-5A and BI-3A, Qwest is already subject to payments to CLECs for the perceived error.

26. Volume-Differentiated Benchmark: A different benchmark for low volumes of orders received is appropriate because Qwest would be held to a standard of perfection if a single order error would otherwise cause the benchmark to be missed. In this case, where the benchmark is otherwise 95%, when a CLEC's order volumes in a particular month are 20 orders or below, the standard should be, "no greater than one order in error." Failure to make this volume differentiation will mean that, for order volumes of 20 or fewer orders, Qwest could only satisfy the 95% benchmark if its performance were perfect on every order, which is not reasonable.

27. *Measurement Stabilization Period:* A "burn in" or measurement stabilization period is appropriate because past experience with respect to implementation of new measures demonstrates that Qwest will need time to test and make adjustments to its systems to ensure that the systems accurately report the measure. There are some elements of the reporting system that simply cannot be evaluated without being in active production. The enhancements and expansion of PO-20 requires systems changes that are not simple and essentially result in two performance measurements during the overlapping reporting timeframe. As a result, the second "new" PO-20 is appropriate for measurement stabilization consistent with Section 16.1 the QPAP, which states in pertinent part that:

...No new performance measurements shall be added to this QPAP that have not been subject to observation as diagnostic measurement for a period of 6 months....

With this filing and pursuant to section 16 of the QPAP, Qwest has modified the QPAP to reflect certain changes. The new PO-20 measurement reporting will begin with May results reported in July. During implementation of Phase 1, reporting will occur on the existing Exhibit B-1 and on the new PO-20 in Exhibit B, Version 7.1. Any required payments will be made under the existing Exhibit B-1 until such time as the measurement stabilization for Phase 1 on the new Exhibit B, Version 7.1 PO-20 has expired. Qwest will then make a compliance filing deleting Exhibit B-1 from its SGAT. Qwest requests that it be granted a maximum three month measurement stabilization for each Phase to adequately assess the measurement's reliability and validate results.

F. Conclusion

By making this filing, Qwest requests that the Commission approve the QPAP, as revised and modified, designate a tier for PO-20, establish a low-volume-differentiated benchmark for PO-20, and allow PO-20 a measurement stabilization for no more than three months with the implementation of each phase, meaning that Qwest will make any required payments for PO-20 on the prior phase, but under Exhibit B-1 for Phase 1 implementation, until the expiration of the measurement stabilization period.

Qwest requests that the Commission permit the permit the amended Exhibit B to go into effect no later than 60 days after submission in accordance with 47 U.S.C. § 252(f)(3) and, further, upon determination of the issues outlined above and upon a compliance filing by Qwest removing Exhibit B-1, supercede Exhibit B-1. In the interim, Qwest will report on the expanded PO-20 contained within Exhibit B; Qwest will also report and make payments on the existing PO-20 contained in Exhibit B-1 until such time as the Commission determines the appropriate tier designation, measurement stabilization period and whether a low volume differentiated benchmark should apply.

Further, Qwest requests that, pursuant to Section 16 of the QPAP, the changes shall automatically apply to all existing interconnection agreements that currently contain Exhibit B and the QPAP, Exhibit K as exhibits.

RESPECTFULLY submitted this ______ day of June, 2004.

QWEST COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION

By: <u>Melizeky They</u> Melissa K. Thompson, Senior Attorney

Melissa K. Thompson, Senior Attorney QWEST SERVICES CORPORATION 1801 California Street Denver, CO 80202 (303) 672-2734



Service Performance Indicator Definitions (PID)

14-State 271 PID Version 7.1

QWEST'S SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATOR DEFINITIONS (PID)

14-State 271 PID Version 7.1

Introduction

Qwest will report performance results for the service performance indicators defined herein. Qwest will report separate performance results associated with the services it provides to Competitive Local Exchange Carriers (CLECs) in aggregate (except as noted herein), to CLECs individually and, as applicable, to Qwest's retail customers in aggregate. Within these categories, performance results related to service provisioning and repair will be reported for the products listed in each definition. Reports for CLECs individually will be subject to agreements of confidentiality and/or nondisclosure.

The definitions in this version of the PID apply in the 14 states of Qwest's local service region: Arizona, Colorado, Idaho, Iowa, Minnesota, Montana, Nebraska, New Mexico, North Dakota, Oregon, South Dakota, Utah, Washington and Wyoming. Individual state Performance Assurance Plans may specify and apply state specific variations from the Performance Measure definitions and/or standards contained herein.

Qwest's Service Performance Indicator Definitions

Table of Contents

| ELECTRONIC GATEWAY AVAILABILITY1 |
|---|
| GA-1 – Gateway Availability – IMA-GUI1 |
| GA-2 – Gateway Availability – IMA-EDI1 |
| GA-3 – Gateway Availability – EB-TA1 |
| GA-4 – System Availability – EXACT1 |
| GA-6 – Gateway Availability – GUI Repair1 |
| GA-7 – Timely Outage Resolution following Software Releases1 |
| PRE-ORDER/ORDER1 |
| PO-1 – Pre-Order/Order Response Times1 |
| PO-2 – Electronic Flow-through1 |
| PO-3 – LSR Rejection Notice Interval1 |
| PO-4 – LSRs Rejected1 |
| PO-5 – Firm Order Confirmations (FOCs) On Time1 |
| PO-6 – Work Completion Notification Timeliness1 |
| PO-7 – Billing Completion Notification Timeliness1 |
| PO-8 – Jeopardy Notice Interval1 |
| PO-9 – Timely Jeopardy Notices1 |
| PO-15 – Number of Due Date Changes per Order1 |
| PO-16 – Timely Release Notifications1 |
| PO-19 – Stand-Alone Test Environment (SATE) Accuracy1 |
| PO-20 (Expanded) – Manual Service Order Accuracy1 |
| ORDERING AND PROVISIONING1 |
| OP-2 – Calls Answered within Twenty Seconds – Interconnect Provisioning Center1 |
| OP-3 – Installation Commitments Met1 |
| OP-4 – Installation Interval1 |
| OP-5 – New Service Quality1 |
| OP-6 – Delayed Days |
| OP-7 – Coordinated "Hot Cut" Interval – Unbundled Loop1 |
| OP-8 – Number Portability Timeliness1 |
| OP-13 – Coordinated Cuts On Time – Unbundled Loop1 |
| OP-15 – Interval for Pending Orders Delayed Past Due Date |
| OP-17 – Timeliness of Disconnects associated with LNP Orders |
| |
| MR-2 – Calls Answered within 20 Seconds – Interconnect Repair Center |
| MR-3 – Out of Service Cleared within 24 Hours |
| MR-4 – All Troubles Cleared within 48 nours |
| MR-5 – All Troubles Cleared within 4 nours1 |
| MR-6 – Mean Time to Restore |
| MR-7 – Repair Repeat Report Rate1 |
| NIK-8 – I rouble Hate |
| NIR-9 – Repair Appointments Met |
| MR-10 – Customer and Non-Qwest Related Trouble Reports |
| MIK-11 – LNP I rouble Reports Cleared within 24 Hours |
| BILLING |
| BI-1 – Lime to Provide Recorded Usade Records |

Table of Contents (continued)

| BI-2 – Invoices Delivered within 10 Days1 | |
|---|---|
| BI-3 – Billing Accuracy – Adjustments for Errors1 | |
| BI-4 – Billing Completeness1 | |
| DATABASE UPDATES1 | |
| DB-1 – Time to Update Databases 1 | |
| DB-2 – Accurate Database Updates 1 | |
| DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE | |
| DA-1 – Speed of Answer – Directory Assistance1 | |
| OPERATOR SERVICES 1 | |
| OS-1 – Speed of Answer – Operator Services1 | |
| NETWORK PERFORMANCE1 | Ļ |
| NI-1 – Trunk Blocking1 | |
| NP-1 – NXX Code Activation1 | |
| COLLOCATION1 | J |
| CP-1 – Collocation Completion Interval 1 | ļ |
| CP-2 – Collocations Completed within Scheduled Intervals1 | J |
| CP-3 – Collocation Feasibility Study Interval1 | I |
| CP-4 – Collocation Feasibility Study Commitments Met1 | I |
| DEFINITION OF TERMS1 | |
| GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS1 | l |
| APPENDIX A1 | j |

GA-1 – Gateway Availability – IMA-GUI

Purpose:

Evaluates the quality of CLEC access to the IMA-GUI electronic gateway and one associated system, focusing on the extent they are actually available to CLECs.

Description:

- GA-1A: Measures the availability of the IMA-GUI (Interconnect Mediated Access- Graphical User Interface), and reports the percentage of Scheduled Availability Time the IMA-GUI interface is available for view and/or input.
 - Scheduled Up Time hours for preorder, order, and provisioning transactions are based on the currently published hours of availability found on the following website: http://www.gwest.com/wholesale/cmp/ossHours.html.
- GA-1D: Measures the availability of the SIA system, which facilitates access for the IMA-GUI interface and the IMA-EDI interface (see GA-2), and reports the percentage of scheduled time the SIA system is available. Scheduled availability times will be no less than the same hours as listed for IMA-GUI and IMA-EDI.
- Time Gateway is Available to CLECs is equal to Scheduled Availability Time minus Outage Time.
- Scheduled Availability Time is equal to Scheduled Up Time minus Scheduled Down Time.
- Scheduled Down Time is time identified and communicated that the interface is not available due to maintenance and/or upgrade work. Notification of Scheduled Down Time for routine maintenance and/or upgrade work will be provided no less than 48 hours in advance.
- An outage is a critical or serious loss of functionality, attributable to the specified gateway or component (i.e., IMA-GUI, SIA), affecting Qwest's ability to serve its customers. An outage is determined by Qwest technicians through the use of verifiable data, collected from the affected customer(s) and/or from mechanized event management systems.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|---|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate results | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. Results will be reported as follows: GA-1A IMA Graphical User Interface Gateway GA-1D SIA system |

Formula:

([Number of Hours and Minutes Gateway is Available to CLECs During Reporting Period] + [Number of Hours and Minutes of Scheduled Availability Time During Reporting Period]) x 100

| Exclusions: None | | | | |
|----------------------|-----------|-----------|---------------|--|
| Product Reporting: N | None | Standard: | 99.25 percent | |
| Availability: | Available | Notes: | | |

GA-2 – Gateway Availability – IMA-EDI

Purpose:

Evaluates the quality of CLEC access to the IMA-EDI electronic gateway, focusing on the extent the gateway is actually available to CLECs.

Description:

Measures the availability of IMA-EDI (Interconnect Mediated Access - Electronic Data Interchange) interface and reports the percentage of scheduled availability time the IMA-EDI Interface is available for view and/or input. All times during which the interface is scheduled to be operating during the reporting period are measured.

- Scheduled Up Time hours for IMA-EDI based on the currently published hours of availability found on the following website: http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/cmp/ossHours.html. Time Gateway is Available to CLECs is equal to Scheduled Availability Time minus Outage Time.
- Scheduled Availability Time is equal to Scheduled Up Time minus Scheduled Down Time.
- Scheduled Down Time is time identified and communicated that the interface is not available due to maintenance and/or upgrade work. Notification of Scheduled Down Time for routine maintenance and/or upgrade work will be provided no less than 48 hours in advance.
- An outage is a critical or serious loss of functionality, attributable to the specified gateway or component (i.e., IMA-EDI), affecting Qwest's ability to serve its customers. An outage is determined by Qwest technicians through the use of verifiable data, collected from the affected customer(s) and/or from mechanized event management systems.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent | | |
|---|---|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. | | |
| aggregate results | (See GA-1D for reporting of SIA system availability.) | | |
| Formula: | | | |
| ([Number of Hours and Minutes Gateway is Available to CLECs During Reporting Period] ÷ [Number of Hours and Minutes of Scheduled Availability Time During Reporting Period]) x 100 | | | |
| Exclusions: None | | | |
| Product Reporting: None | Standard: 99.25 percent | | |
| Availability: Available | Notes: | | |

GA-3 – Gateway Availability – EB-TA

Purpose:

Evaluates the quality of CLEC access to the EB-TA interface, focusing on the extent the gateway is actually available to CLECs.

Description:

Measures the availability of EB-TA (Electronic Bonding – Trouble Administration) interface and reports the percentage of scheduled availability time the EB-TA Interface is available.

- Scheduled Up Time hours are based on the currently published hours of availability found on the following website: http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/cmp/ossHours.html.
- Time Gateway is Available to CLECs is equal to Scheduled Availability Time minus Outage Time.
- Scheduled Availability Time is equal to Scheduled Up Time minus Scheduled Down Time.
- Scheduled Down Time is time identified and communicated that the interface is not available due to maintenance and/or upgrade work. Notification of Scheduled Down Time for routine maintenance and/or upgrade work will be provided no less than 48 hours in advance.
- An outage is a critical or serious loss of functionality, attributable to the specified gateway or component (i.e., EB-TA), affecting Qwest's ability to serve its customers. An outage is determined by Qwest technicians through the use of verifiable data, collected from the affected customer(s) and/or from mechanized event management systems.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate results | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. |

Formula:

([Number of Hours and Minutes Gateway is Available to CLECs During Reporting Period] + [Number of Hours and Minutes of Scheduled Availability During Reporting Period]) x 100

| Exclusions: None | | | |
|----------------------------|-------------------------|--|--|
| Product Reporting: None | Standard: 99.25 percent | | |
| Availability: Available | Notes: | | |

GA-4 – System Availability – EXACT

Purpose:

Evaluates the quality of CLEC batch access to the EXACT electronic access service request system, focusing on the extent the system is actually available to CLECs.

Description:

Measures the availability of EXACT system and reports the percentage of scheduled availability time the EXACT system is available.

- Scheduled Up Time hours are based on the currently published hours of availability found on the following website: <u>http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/cmp/ossHours.html</u>.
- Time System is Available to CLECs is equal to Scheduled Availability Time minus Outage Time.
- Scheduled Availability Time is equal to Scheduled Up Time minus Scheduled Down Time.
- Scheduled Down Time is time identified and communicated that the system is not available due to maintenance and/or upgrade work. Notification of Scheduled Down Time for routine maintenance and/or upgrade work will be provided no less than 48 hours in advance.
- An outage is a critical or serious loss of functionality, attributable to the specified gateway or component (i.e., EXACT), affecting Qwest's ability to serve its customers. An outage is determined by Qwest technicians through the use of verifiable data, collected from the affected customer(s) and/or from mechanized event management systems.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate results | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. |
| | |

Formula:

([Number of Hours and Minutes EXACT is Available to CLECs During Reporting Period] ÷ [Number of Hours and Minutes of Scheduled Availability During Reporting Period]) x 100

| Exclusions: None | | |
|----------------------------|-----------|---------------|
| Product Reporting: None | Standard: | 99.25 percent |
| Availability: Available | Notes: | |

GA-6 – Gateway Availability – GUI -- Repair

Purpose:

Evaluates the quality of CLEC access to the GUI Repair electronic gateway, focusing on the extent the gateway is actually available to CLECs.

Description:

Measures the availability of the GUI (Graphical User Interface) repair electronic interface and reports the percentage of scheduled availability time the interface is available for view and/or input. All times during which the interface is scheduled to be operating during the reporting period are measured.

- Scheduled Up Time" hours are based on the currently published hours of availability found on the following website: http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/cmp/ossHours.html.
- Time Gateway is Available to CLECs is equal to Scheduled Availability Time minus Outage Time.
- Scheduled Availability Time is equal to Scheduled Up Time minus Scheduled Down Time.
- Scheduled Down Time is time identified and communicated that the interface is not available due to maintenance and/or upgrade work. Notification of Scheduled Down Time for routine maintenance and/or upgrade work will be provided no less than 48 hours in advance.
- An outage is a critical or serious loss of functionality, attributable to the specified gateway or component (i.e., GUI-Repair), affecting Qwest's ability to serve its customers. An outage is determined by Qwest technicians through the use of verifiable data, collected from the affected customer(s) and/or from mechanized event management systems.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent | |
|---|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate results | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. | |
| Formula: [Number of Hours and Minutes Gateway is Available to CLECs During Reporting Period ÷ Number of Hours and Minutes of Scheduled Availability Time During Reporting Period] x 100 | | |

| Exclusions: None | | | |
|----------------------------|-------------------------|--|--|
| Product Reporting: None | Standard: 99.25 percent | | |
| Availability: Available | Notes: | | |

GA-7 – Timely Outage Resolution following Software Releases

Purpose:

Measures the timeliness of resolution of gateway or system outages attributable to software releases for specified OSS interfaces, focusing on CLEC-affecting software releases involving the specified gateways or systems.

Description:

- Measures the percentage of gateway or system outages, which are attributable to OSS system software releases and which occur within two weeks after the implementation of the OSS system software releases, that are resolved ^{NOTE 1} within 48 hours of detection by the Qwest monitoring group or reporting by a CLEC/co-provider.
- Includes software releases associated with the following OSS interfaces in Qwest: IMA-GUI, IMA-EDI, and CEMR, Exchange Access, Control, & Tracking (EXACT)^{NOTE 2}, Electronic Bonding– Trouble Administration (EB -TA)
- An outage for this measurement is a critical or serious loss of functionality, attributable to the specified gateway or component, affecting Qwest's ability to serve its customers or data loss ^{NOTE 4} on the Qwest side of the interface. An outage is determined by Qwest technicians through the use of verifiable data, collected from the affected customer(s) and/or from mechanized event management systems.
- The outage resolution time interval considered in this measurement starts at the time Qwest's monitoring group detects a failure, or at the date/time of the first transaction sent to Qwest that cannot be processed (i.e. lost data), and ends with the time functionality is restored or the lost data is recovered.

| Reporting Period: Monthly | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---------------------------------------|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC Aggregate | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. |

Formula:

[(Total outages detected within two weeks of a Software Release that are resolved within 48 hours of the time Qwest detects the outage) \div (Total number of outages detected within two weeks of Software Releases resolved in the Reporting Period)] x 100

Exclusions:

- Outages in releases prior to any CLEC migrating to the release.
- Duplicate reports attributable to the same software defect.

| | | F | |
|-------------------------|--|---|--|
| Product Reporting: None | | Standards: | |
| | | Volume = 1-20: 1 miss | |
| | | Volume > 20: 95% | |
| Availability: | Notes: | | |
| _ | 1. "Resolved" mea | ns that service is restored to the reporting CLEC, as | |
| Available | experienced by | the CLEC. | |
| | 2. EXACT is a Telecordia system. Only releases for changes initiated by | | |
| | Qwest for hardware or connectivity will be included in this measurement. | | |
| | 3. Outages reported under EB-TA are the same as outages in MEDIACC. | | |
| | 4. For data loss to be considered for GA-7, a functional acknowledgement | | |
| | must have been provided for the data in question (e.g., EDI 997, LSR ID | | |
| | or trouble ticket | number). | |

PO-1 – Pre-Order/Order Response Times

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness of responses to specific preordering/ordering queries for CLECs through the use of Qwest's Operational Support Systems (OSS). Qwest's OSS are accessed through the specified gateway interface.

Description:

PO-1A & PO-1B:

Measures the time interval between query and response for specified pre-order/order transactions through the electronic interface.

- Measurements are made using a system that simulates the transactions of requesting preordering/ordering information from the underlying existing OSS. These simulated transactions are made through the operational production interfaces and existing systems in a manner that reflects, in a statistically-valid manner, the transaction response times experienced by CLEC service representatives in the reporting period.
- The time interval between query and response consists of the period from the time the transaction request was "sent" to the time it is "received" via the gateway interface.
- A query is an individual request for the specified type of information.

PO-1C:

r.

 Measures the percentage of all IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B transmitted in the reporting period that timeout before receiving a response.

PO-1D:

• Measures the average response time for a sampling of rejected queries across preorder transaction types. The response time measured is the time between the issuance of a pre-ordering transaction and the receipt of an error message associated with a "rejected query." A rejected query is a transaction that cannot be successfully processed due to the provision of incomplete or invalid information by the sender, which results in an error message back to the sender.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: |
|-----------------------------|--------------------------------|
| | PO-1A, PO-1B, & PO-1D: Seconds |
| | PO-1C: Percent |

PO-1 – Pre-Order/Order Response Times (continued)

| Reporting Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. Results are reported as follows: Comparisons: CLEC aggregate. CLEC aggregate. Pc-1A Pre-Order/Order Response Time for IMA-EDI Results are reported separately for each of the following transaction types: ^{NOTE 2} 1. Appointment Scheduling (Due Date Reservation, where appointment is required) 2. Service Availability Information 3. Facility Availability Information 3. Facility Availability Information 5. Facility Availability 4. Street Address Vailability Information 5. Facility Availability 5. Customer Service Records 6. Telephone Number 7. Loop Qualification Tools ^{NOTE 3} 8. Resale of Cwest DSL Qualification 8. Resale of Cwest DSL Qualification 9. Connecting Facility Assignment ^{NOTE 4} 10. Meet Point Inquiry ^{NOTE 6} 10. Meet Point Inquiry ^{NOTE 6} For PO-1A (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response for the specified transaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1A Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway in | | |
|--|-----------------|---|
| Comparisons: PO-1A Pre-Order/Order Response Time for IMA-GUI CLEC aggregate. PO-1A Pre-Order/Order Response Time for IMA-GUI Results are reported separately for each of the following transaction types: NOTE 2 1. Appointment Scheduling (Due Date Reservation, where appointment is required) 2. Service Availability Information 3. Facility Availability 4. Street Address Validation 5. Customer Service Records 6. Telephone Number 7. Loop Qualification Tools NOTE 3 8. Resale of Owest DSL Qualification 9. Connecting Facility Assignment NOTE 4 10. Meet Point Inquiry NoTE 5 8. Telephone Number For PO-1A (transactions via IMA-GUI), in addition to reporting total response time for each of the above transactions will be reported in two parts: (a) time to access the request screen, and (b) time to receive the response for the specified transaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. For PO-18 (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-10 will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Time | Reporting | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. Results are reported as follows: |
| CLEC aggregate. PC-1B Pre-Order/Order Response Time for IMA-EDI Results are reported separately for each of the following transaction types: ^{NOTE 2} 1. Appointment Scheduling (Due Date Reservation, where appointment is required) 2. Service Availability Information 3. Facility Availability 4. Street Address Validation 5. Customer Service Records 6. Telephone Number 7. Loop Qualification Tools ^{NOTE 3} 8. Resele of Owest DSL Qualification 9. Connecting Facility Assignment ^{NOTE 4} 10. Meet Point Inquiry ^{NOTE 5} For PO-1A (transactions via IMA-GUI), in addition to reporting total response time, response times for each of the above transactions will be reported in two parts: (a) time to access the request screen, and (b) time to receive the response for the specified transaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IM | Comparisons: | PO-1A Pre-Order/Order Response Time for IMA-GUI |
| Flesults are reported separately for each of the following transaction types: ^{Note A} 1. Appointment Scheduling (Due Date Reservation, where appointment is required) 2. Service Availability 4. Street Address Vailability 5. Customer Service Records 6. Telephone Number 7. Loop Qualification Tools ^{NOTE 4} 6. Connecting Facility Assignment ^{NOTE 4} 10. Meet Point Inquiry ^{NOTE 5} For PO-1A (transactions via IMA-GUI), in addition to reporting total response time, response for the specified transaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI Po-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rej | CLEC aggregate. | PO-1B Pre-Order/Order Response Time for IMA-EDI |
| Appointment Scheduling (Due Date Reservation, where appointment is required) Service Availability Information Facility Availability Information Street Address Validation Customer Service Records Telephone Number Loop Qualification Tools ^{NOTE 3} Resale of Qwest DSL Qualification Connecting Facility Assignment ^{NOTE 4} Meet Point Inquiry ^{NOTE 5} For PO-1A (transactions via IMA-GUI), in addition to reporting total response time, response times for each of the above transactions will be reported in two parts: (a) time to access the request screen, and (b) time to receive the response for the specified transaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1A & PO-1B = 2[(Query Response Date & Time) - (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-10 = 2[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) - | | Results are reported separately for each of the following transaction types: Note 2 |
| 2. Service Availability Information Facility Availability Street Address Validation | | 1. Appointment Scheduling (Due Date Reservation, where appointment is required) |
| 3. Facility Availability 4. Street Address Validation 5. Customer Service Records 6. Telephone Number NOTE 3 7. Loop Qualification Tools NOTE 3 7. Loop Qualification Tools NOTE 3 8. Resale of Qwest DSL Qualification 9. Connecting Facility Assignment NOTE 4 10. Meet Point Inquiry NOTE 5 For PO-1A (transactions via IMA-GUI), in addition to reporting total response time, response times for each of the above transactions will be reported in two parts: (a) time to access the request screen, and (b) time to receive the response for the specified transaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Pec-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Rejected Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) + (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = \$\sum_{1}(Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) | | 2. Service Availability Information |
| 4. Street Address Validation 5. Customer Service Records 6. Telephone Number 7. Loop Qualification Tools ^{NOTE 3} 8. Resale of Qwest DSL Qualification 9. Connecting Facility Assignment ^{NOTE 4} 10. Meet Point Inquiry ^{NOTE 6} For PO-1A (transactions via IMA-GUI), in addition to reporting total response time, response times for each of the above transactions will be reported in two parts: (a) time to access the request screen, and (b) time to receive the response tor the specified transaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: PO-1C Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI Rejected Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-10 P(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) PO-10 P(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) | | 3. Facility Availability |
| b. Customer Service Records 6. Telephone Number 8. Resale of Qwest DSL Qualification 9. Connecting Facility Assignment NOTE 4 10. Meet Point Inquiry NOTE 5 For PO-1A (transactions via IMA-GUI), in addition to reporting total response time, response times for each of the above transactions will be reported in two parts: (a) time to access the request screen, and (b) time to receive the response for the specified transaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI Rejected Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) + (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period) x 100 PO-1D = \$2[(Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) | | 4. Street Address Validation |
| b. Telephone Number 7. Loop Qualification Tools ^{NOTE 3} 8. Resale of Qwest DSL Qualification 9. Connecting Facility Assignment ^{NOTE 4} 10. Meet Point Inquiry ^{NOTE 5} For PO-1A (transactions via IMA-GUI), in addition to reporting total response time, response times for each of the above transactions will be reported in two parts: (a) time to access the request screen, and (b) time to receive the response for the specified transaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI Po-1A & PO-1B = \$2[(Query Response Date & Time) - (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1D = \$2[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) - (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Response Date & Time) - (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Regeness Date & Time) - (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) | | 5. Customer Service Records |
| Proceeding and the provided and the provided | | 6. Leiephone Number |
| b. Hesde 0 Owest DSL Qualification. Connecting Facility Assignment ^{NOTE 4} Meet Point Inquiry ^{NOTE 5} For PO-1A (transactions via IMA-GUI), in addition to reporting total response time, response times for each of the above transactions will be reported in two parts: (a) time to access the request screen, and (b) time to receive the response for the specified transaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI Formula: PO-1B = \$\square\$[(Query Response Date & Time) - (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1D = \$\square\$[(Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1D: PO-1D # \$\square\$[(Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions \$\square\$[PO-1D]; Rejected requests and errors PO-1D; | | 7. Loop Qualification Tools |
| 9. Connecting Pacinty Assignment 10. Meet Point Inquiry MOTEs* For PO-1A (transactions via IMA-GUI), in addition to reporting total response time, response times for each of the above transactions will be reported in two parts: (a) time to access the request screen, and (b) time to receive the response for the specified transaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1A & PO-1B = \$\sum_1(Query Response Date & Time) - (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) + (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = \$\sum_1(Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1B & Pointe Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1D: The out transactions PO-1D: The out transactions PO-1D: The out transactions PO-1D: The out transa | | 0. Connecting Easility Assignment ^{NOTE 4} |
| For PO-1A (transactions via IMA-GUI), in addition to reporting total response time, response times for each of the above transactions will be reported in two parts: (a) time to access the request screen, and (b) time to receive the response for the specified transaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1A & PO-1B = \$\mathbf{I}(Query Response Date & Time) - (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1B: \$\mathbf{C}[(Query Response Date & Time) - (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1B: \$\mathbf{R}[[endeted requeests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1D: | | 9. Connecting Facility Assignment 10. Moot Point Inquiry NOTE 5 |
| For PO-1A (transactions via IMA-GUI), in addition to reporting total response time, response times for each of the above transactions will be reported in two parts: (a) time to access the request screen, and (b) time to receive the response for the specified transaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI Rejected Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) + (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D \$\sum_{(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-10E PO-10E \$\sum_{(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + | | |
| For the transaction time above transactions will be reported in two parts: (a) time to access the request screen, and (b) time to receive the response for the specified transaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI 2. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI Formula: PO-1B = \$\sum_1(Query Response Date & Time) - (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) + (Number of RETM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = \$\sum_2[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) - (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions | | For PO-1A (transactions via IMA-GUI) in addition to reporting total response time |
| Poole in the store and the term of the store in the term of the section is the term of the section in the term of the section is the term of the section in the term of the section is the term of term of term of term of the section is the term of t | | response times for each of the above transactions will be reported in two parts: (a) time |
| Point ansaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI 2. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI 2. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI Formula: PO-1B = ∑[(Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) + (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = ∑[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1B = PO-1D = ∑[(Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: • Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: • Rejected requests and errors | | to access the request screen, and (b) time to receive the response for the specified |
| For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI Rejected Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) + (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = \$\Sum_2[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1D: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: | | transaction For PO-1A 6 Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen will be |
| For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI 2. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1A & PO-1B = Equation of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) + (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = \$\sum_2[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) - (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: • Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1D: • Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: • Rejected requests and errors | | reported. |
| For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI 2. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) + (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = \$\sum_2[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1B: PO-1B: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: = \$\sum_2[(Rejected query Response Poile = \$\sum_2[(Rejected requests and errors = \$\sum_2[(Rejected requests and er | | |
| number. PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI 2. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1A & PO-1B = Σ[(Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) + (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = Σ[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1B: PO-1C: Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1D: Timed out transactions PO-1D: Timed out transactions | | For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined |
| PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI 2. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI PO-1A & PO-1B = Σ[(Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) + (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = Σ[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1B: PO-1C: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: PO-1D: | | number. |
| PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI 2. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI Formula: PO-1A & PO-1B = [(Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) + (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = Σ[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1B: • Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1D: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: Cuery Submission Pate & Time) | | |
| Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI Formula: PO-1A & PO-1B [(Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] ÷ (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) ÷ (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D ∑[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] ÷ (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: Timed ext transactions | | PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: |
| 2. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI Formula: PO-1B = ∑[(Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) ÷ (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = ∑[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: Rejected requests and errors PO-1C: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: Timed and transactions | | 1. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI |
| PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI Formula: PO-1A & PO-1B = Σ[(Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] ÷ (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) ÷ (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = Σ[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: • Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: • Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: | | 2. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI |
| PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI Formula: PO-1A & PO-1B = Σ[(Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) + (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = Σ[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: • Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: • Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: • Timed out transactions | | |
| 1. Hejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI Formula: PO-1A & PO-1B = Σ[(Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) ÷ (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = Σ[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: | | PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: |
| Formula: PO-1A & PO-1B = Σ[(Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] ÷ (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) ÷ (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = Σ[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] ÷ (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: | | 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI |
| Pormula: PO-1A & PO-1B = Σ[(Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] ÷ (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) ÷ (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = Σ[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] ÷ (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: | | 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI |
| PO-1A & PO-1B = Σ[(Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] ÷ (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) ÷ (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = Σ[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] ÷ (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: Timed out transactions | Formula: | |
| PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) ÷ (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = Σ[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] ÷ (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: • Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: • Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: • Timed out transactions | PO-1A & PO-1B = | $\Sigma[(Query \text{ Hesponse Date & Time)} - (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Queries Submission Date & Time)]$ |
| PO-1C = [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) ÷ (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = Σ[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] ÷ (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: | | Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) |
| PO-10 = [[Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) ÷ (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-1D = Σ[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] ÷ (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: | | [Number of IPTM Queries measured by PQ-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving |
| PO-1D = Σ[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] ÷ (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: | - | (Number of INTM Queries Treasured by 1 O-TA & TD that Threout before receiving |
| PO-1D = Σ[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] ÷ (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: | | |
| Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: Timed out transactions | | Σ [(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + |
| Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: Timed out transactions | | (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM) |
| Exclusions: PO-1A & PO-1B: • Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: • Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: • Timed out transactions | | (Number of Hojeeted Query Hunductions Chinalated by https:// |
| PO-1A & PO-1B: Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: Timed out transactions | Exclusions: | |
| Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: Timed out transactions | PO-1A & PO-1B: | |
| PO-1C: • Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: Timed out transactions | Rejected reque | sts/errors. and timed out transactions |
| Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: Timed out transactions | PO-1C: | |
| PO-1D: | Rejected reque | sts and errors |
| Timed out transactions | PO-1D: | |
| Inned out transactions | Timed out trans | sactions |

PO-1 – Pre-Order/Order Response Times (continued)

| Product Beporting: None | Standards: | IMA-GUI | IMA-EDI |
|-------------------------|--|--------------------------------|----------------------|
| | Total Response Time: | | |
| | · | | |
| | 1. Appointment Scheduling | <10 seconds | <10 seconds |
| | 2. Service Availability | <25 seconds | <25 seconds |
| | Information | 1.6 | |
| | 3. Facility Availability | <25 seconds | <25 seconds |
| | 4. Street Address Validation | <10 seconds | <10 seconds |
| | 6 Telephone Number | <10 seconds | <10 seconds |
| | 7 Loop Qualification Tools | < 20 seconds ⁷ | < 20 seconds |
| | NOTE 3 | 2 20 0000100 | 200000000 |
| | 8. Resale of Qwest DSL | \leq 20 seconds ⁷ | ≤ 20 seconds |
| | Qualification | | C 05 |
| | 9. Connecting Facility Assignment | ≤ 25 seconds | ≤ 25 seconds |
| | 10. Meet Point Inquirv | < 30 seconds | < 30 seconds |
| | | | |
| | PO-1C-1 | 0.5 | 5% |
| | PO-1C-2 | 0.5 | 5% |
| | PO-1D-1 & 2 | Diagr | nostic |
| Availability: | Notes: | | |
| Available | 1. Rejected query types used in | PO-1D are those de | veloped for internal |
| | Qwest diagnostic purposes. | wently done menual | v are machanized |
| | 2. As additional transactions, ct | Inentity cone manuali | the above list of |
| | transactions, as applicable. | | |
| | 3. Results based on a weighted | l combination of ADSI | Loop Qualification |
| - - | and Raw Loop Data Tool. | | - |
| | 4. Results based on Connecting | g Facility Assignment | by Unit Query. |
| | 5. Results based on meet Point | Query, POTS Splitte | r option for Shared |
| | 100ps. 6 Times reflect non-complex se | arvicae including resi | dontial simple |
| | business, or POTS account. | Does not include AD | SL or accounts>25 |
| | lines. | | |
| · · · | 7. Benchmark applies to respon | nse time only. Reque | st time and Total |
| | time will also be reported. | · | |

PO-2 – Electronic Flow-through

Purpose:

Monitors the extent Qwest's processing of CLEC Local Service Requests (LSRs) is completely electronic, focusing on the degree that electronically-transmitted LSRs flow directly to the service order processor without human intervention or without manual retyping.

Description:

PO-2A - Measures the percentage of all electronic LSRs that flow from the specified electronic gateway interface to the Service Order Processor (SOP) without any human intervention.

• Includes all LSRs that are submitted electronically through the specified interface during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.

PO-2B – Measures the percentage of all flow-through-eligible LSRs ^{NOTE 1} that flow from the specified electronic gateway interface to the SOP without any human intervention.

Includes all flow-through-eligible LSRs that are submitted electronically through the specified interface during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level (per multi- state system serving the state).Results for PO-2A and PO-2B will be reported according to the gateway interface* used to submit the LSR:1LSRs received via IMA-GUI 22LSRs received via IMA-EDI |
| | *CO also reports an aggregate of IMA-GUI and IMA-EDI results. |

Formula:

- PO-2A = [(Number of Electronic LSRs that pass from the Gateway Interface to the SOP without human intervention) ÷ (Total Number of Electronic LSRs that pass through the Gateway Interface)] x 100
- PO-2B = [(Number of flow-through-eligible Electronic LSRs that actually pass from the Gateway Interface to the SOP without human intervention) ÷ (Number of flow-through-eligible Electronic LSRs received through the Gateway Interface)] x 100

Exclusions:

- Rejected LSRs and LSRs containing CLEC-caused non-fatal errors.
- Non-electronic LSRs (e.g., via fax or courier).
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.
- Duplicate LSR numbers. (Exclusion to be eliminated upon implementation of IMA capability to disallow duplicate LSR #'s.)
- Invalid start/stop dates/times.

PO-2 – Electronic Flow-through (continued)

| Product Reporting: | | Standards: | | |
|--------------------------------------|--|---|----------------------------|--|
| Resale | | PO-2A: | | |
| Unbundled Loops | (with or | CO: CO PO-2B benchmarks minus 1 | 0 percent NOTE 2 | |
| without Local Num | ber | All Other States: Diagnostic | | |
| Portability) | | NOTE 2 | | |
| Local Number Por | tability | PO-2B: 10722 | | |
| UNE-P (POTS) an | d UNE-P | | | |
| (Centrex 21) | | Resale: | 95% | |
| Line Sharing | | Unbundled Loops: | 85% | |
| | | LNP: | 95% | |
| | | UNE-P (POTS & Centrex 21): | 95% | |
| | | Line Sharing: | Diagnostic NOTE 3 | |
| Availability: | Notes: | | | |
| Available (except as | 1. The list of | of LSR types classified as eligible for flo | ow through is contained in | |
| follows): | the "LSR | s Eligible for Flow Through" matrix. Th | is matrix also includes | |
| | availabili | ty for enhancements to flow through. | Matrix will be distributed | |
| Combined reporting | through | he CMP process. | | |
| of UNE-P (POTS) | 2. In Colorado the standard for PO-2 is considered met if the standard for | | | |
| and UNE-P (Centrex | either PC | D-2A or PO-2B is met. For both PO-2A | and PO-2B, the | |
| 21) – beginning with | benchmark percentages shown apply to the aggregations of PO-2A-1 and | | | |
| Jul 04 data on the | PO-2A-2 | (i.e., the combined PO-2A result) and | of PO-2B-1 and PO-2B-2 | |
| Aug 04 report. | | combined PO-2B result). | | |
| | 3. I ne standard and tuture disaggregated reporting of the Line Sharing | | | |
| Line Sharing – | product i | s TBD, pending resolution of TRO issu | es. | |
| beginning with Jul 04 | | | | |
| data on the Aug 04 | | | | |
| report | | | | |

PO-3 – LSR Rejection Notice Interval

Purpose:

Monitors the timeliness with which Qwest notifies CLECs that electronic and manual LSRs were rejected.

Description:

Measures the interval between the receipt of a Local Service Request (LSR) and the rejection of the LSR for standard categories of errors/reasons.

- Includes all LSRs submitted through the specified interface that are rejected during the reporting period.
- Standard reasons for rejections are: missing/incomplete/mismatching/unintelligible information, duplicate request or LSR/PON (purchase order number), no separate LSR for each account telephone number affected, no valid contract, no valid end user verification, account not working in Qwest territory, service-affecting order pending, request is outside established parameters for service, and lack of CLEC response to Qwest question for clarification about the LSR.
- Included in the interval is time required for efforts by Qwest to work with the CLEC to avoid the necessity of rejecting the LSR.
- With hours: minutes reporting, hours counted are (1) business hours for manual rejects (involving human intervention) and (2) published Gateway Availability hours for auto-rejects (involving no human intervention). Business hours are defined as time during normal business hours of the Wholesale Delivery Service Centers, except for PO-3C in which hours counted are workweek clock hours. Gateway Availability hours are based on the currently published hours of availability found on the following website: http://www.gwest.com/wholesale/cmp/ossHours.html.

| Reporting Period: One month | | | |
|--|------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|---------------------------|
| | | PO-3A-1, PO-3B-1 & PO-3C - Hrs: Mins. | |
| | | PO-3A-2 & PO-3B-2 – Mins | s: Secs. |
| Reporting Comparisons: | Disaggregation Re | porting: | |
| CLEC aggregate and | Results for this indic | ator are reported according | to the gateway interface |
| individual CLEC results | used to submit the L | .SR: | |
| | • PO-3A-1, LSRs | received via IMA-GUI and re | ejected manually: |
| | Statewide | | |
| | • PO-3A –2, LSRs | received via IMA-GUI and a | auto-rejected: Region |
| | wide | | |
| | • PO-3B-1, LSRs | received via IMA-EDI and re | jected manually: |
| | Statewide | | , , |
| | PO-3B –2, LSRs | received via IMA-EDI and a | auto-rejected: Region |
| | wide | | , , |
| | PO-3C, LSBs re | ceived via facsimile: Statewi | ide |
| Formula: | ,, | | |
| Σ [/Date and time of Bejectic | on Notice transmittal) - | - (Date and time of LSB rec | eint)] + (Total number of |
| LSB Rejection Notifications) | in Notice transmittaly | | |
| Eon megeodon Notineationo/ | | | |
| Exclusions: | | | |
| Becords with invalid pro | duct codes | | |
| Records missing data es | contial to the calculat | ion of the measurement per | the PID |
| Duplicate LCD pumbers | Evolucion to bo olim | vinated upon implementation | of IMA conchility to |
| Duplicate LSR numbers | | inated upon implementation | or IMA capability to |
| uisallow duplicate Lon # | f 5.) | | |
| Invalid start/stop dates/times. Desclust Denesting: Not applicable (reported by Ctandarda) | | | |
| Product Reporting: Not ap | plicable (reported by | | |
| ordering interface). | | • PO-3A-1 and -3B-1: | ≤ 12 business hours |
| | | • PO-3A -2 and -3B -2: : | ≤ 18 seconds |
| | | • PO-3C: | ≤ 24 work week clock |
| | | | hours |
| Availability: | | Notes: | |
| Available | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |

PO-4 – LSRs Rejected

| 1 0-4 - Long nejected | | |
|--|--|--|
| Purpose: | | |
| Monitors the extent LSRs are rejected as a percentage of all LSRs to provide information to help | | |
| address potential issues that might be raised by the | indicator of LSR rejection notice intervals. | |
| Description: | | |
| Measures the percentage of LSRs rejected (re errors/reasons. | turned to the CLEC) for standard categories of | |
| Includes all LSRs submitted through the speci reporting period. | fied interface that are rejected or FOC'd during the | |
| Standard reasons for rejections are: missing duplicate request or LSR/PON (purchase or | y/incomplete/mismatching/unintelligible information; der number); no separate LSR for each account | |
| telephone number affected; no valid contract; n Qwest territory; service-affecting order pendi | no valid end user verification; account not working in ng; request is outside established parameters for | |
| service; and lack of CLEC response to Qwest of | uestion for clarification about the LSR. | |
| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent of LSRs | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and | Disaggregation Reporting: | |
| individual CLEC results | Results for this indicator are reported according to | |
| | the gateway interface used to submit the LSR: | |
| | PO-4A-1 LSRs received via IMA-GUI and | |
| | rejected manually – Region wide | |
| | PO-4A -2 LSRs received via IMA-GUI and | |
| | auto-rejected – Region wide | |
| | PO-4B-1 LSRs received via IMA-EDI and | |
| | rejected manually – Region wide | |
| | PO-4B -2 LSRs received via IMA-EDI and | |
| | auto-rejected – Region wide | |
| | PO-4C LSRs received via facsimile – | |
| | Statewide | |
| Formula: | | |
| [(Total number of LSRs rejected via the specified n | nethod in the reporting period) ÷ (Total of all LSRs | |
| that are received via the specified interface that we | re rejected or FOC'd in the reporting period)] x 100 | |

Exclusions:

- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.
- Duplicate LSR numbers. (Exclusion to be eliminated upon implementation of IMA capability to disallow duplicate LSR #'s.)

• Invalid start/stop dates/times.

| Product Reporting: Not applicable (reported by ordering interface). | Standard: Diagnostic |
|--|----------------------|
| Availability: | Notes: |
| Available | |
| | |
| | |

PO-5 – Firm Order Confirmations (FOCs) On Time

Purpose:

Monitors the timeliness with which Qwest returns Firm Order Confirmations (FOCs) to CLECs in response to LSRs/ASRs received from CLECs, focusing on the degree to which FOCs are provided within specified intervals.

Description:

Measures the percentage of Firm Order Confirmations (FOCs) that are provided to CLECs within the intervals specified under "Standards" below for FOC notifications.

- Includes all LSRs/ASRs that are submitted through the specified interface or in the specified manner (i.e., facsimile) that receive an FOC during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below. (Acknowledgments sent separately from an FOC (e.g., EDI 997 transactions are not included.)
- For PO-5A, the interval measured is the period between the LSR received date/time (based on scheduled up time) and Qwest's response with a FOC notification (notification date and time).
- For PO-5B, 5C, and 5D, the interval measured is the period between the <u>application date and time</u>, as defined herein, and Qwest's response with a FOC notification (notification date and time).
- "Fully electronic" LSRs are those (1) that are received via IMA-GUI or IMA-EDI, (2) that involve no manual intervention, and (3) for which FOCs are provided mechanically to the CLEC.
- "Electronic/manual" LSRs are received electronically via IMA-GUI or IMA-EDI and involve manual processing.
- "Manual" LSRs are received manually (via facsimile) and processed manually.
- ASRs are measured only in business days.
- LSRs will be evaluated according to the FOC interval categories shown in the "Standards" section below, based on the number of lines/services requested on the LSR or, where multiple LSRs from the same CLEC are related, based on the combined number of lines/services requested on the related LSRs.

| Reporting Period: One m | onth | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|---|---|
| | | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and individual CLEC results | Disaggregation Report serving the state). Results for this indicator • PO-5A:* FOC – PO-5A-1 IMA – PO-5A-2 IMA • PO-5B:* FOCs p – PO-5B-1 IMA – PO-5B-2 IMA • PO-5C:* FOCs p • PO-5D: FOCs p * Each of the PO-5A will be further disagg – (a) FOCs pro – (b) FOCs pro | ing: Statewide level (per multi-state system are reported as follows: Cs provided for <u>fully electronic</u> LSRs received via: -GUI -EDI rovided for <u>electronic/manual</u> LSRs received via: -GUI -EDI rovided for <u>manual</u> LSRs received via Facsimile. rovided for <u>Manual</u> LSRs received via Facsimile. rovided for ASRs requesting LIS Trunks. , PO-5B and PO-5C measurements listed above pregated as follows: vided for Resale services and UNE-P vided for Unbundled Loops and specified |
| | – (c) FOCs pro | vided for LNP |
| Formula: PO-5A = {[Count of LSRs for which the original FOC's "(FOC Notification Date & Time) - (LSR received date/time (based on scheduled up time))" is within 20 minutes] + (Total Number of original FOC Notifications transmitted for the service category in the reporting period)} x 100 | | |
| PO-5B, 5C, & 5D = {[Cour - (Application Da | it of LSRs/ASRs for which te & Time)" is within the int | the original FOC's "(FOC Notification Date & Time) ervals specified for the service category involved] |

+ (Total Number of original FOC Notifications transmitted for the service category in the reporting period)} x 100

PO-5 – Firm Order Confirmations (FOCs) On Time (continued)

Exclusions:

- LSRs/ASRs involving individual case basis (ICB) handling based on quantities of lines, as specified in the "Standards" section below, or service/request types, deemed to be <u>projects</u>.
- Hours on Weekends and holidays. (Except for PO-5A which only excludes hours outside the scheduled up time).
- LSRs with CLEC-requested FOC arrangements different from standard FOC arrangements.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.
- Duplicate LSR numbers. (Exclusion to be eliminated upon implementation of IMA capability to disallow duplicate LSR #'s.)
- Invalid start/stop dates/times.

Additional PO-5D exclusion:

• Records with invalid application or confirmation dates.

| Product Reporting: | Standards: | | |
|---|---|--|---------------------------------------|
| | For PO-5A (all): | 95% within 20 minutes NOTE 2 | 2 |
| For PO-5A, -5B and -5C: | • For PO-5B (all): | 90% within standard FOC in (specified below) | ntervals |
| (a) Resale services UNE-P (POTS) | For PO-5C (manual): | 90% within standard FOC in specified below PLUS 2 | tervals 24 hours ^{NOTE 3} |
| and UNE-P Centrex | For PO-5D (LIS Trunks): | 85% within eight business da | ays |
| and specified Unbundled Network | Standard FOC In | tervals for PO-5B and PO-50 | 2 |
| Elements. | Product Group NOTE 1 | | FOC Interval |
| (C) LNP | Resale | | |
| Ear PO 5D: US | Residence and Business POTS | 1-39 lines | |
| • FOLFO-5D. LIS Trunks | ISDN-Basic | 1-10 lines | |
| | Conversion As Is | | 24 hours |
| | Adding/Changing feature | Ires | |
| | Add primary directory I | isting to established loop | |
| | Add call appearance | | |
| | Centrex Non-Design | 1-19 lines | |
| | Centrex line feature change | es/adde/removale (all) | |
| | I NP | 1-24 lines | - |
| | Unbundled Loops | 1-24 loops | |
| | 2/4 Wire analog | | |
| | DS3 Capable | | |
| | Sub-loop | 1-24 sub-loops | |
| | [included in Product Repor | ting group (b)] | - |
| | Line Sharing/Line Splitting | 1-24 shared | |
| | [included in Product Repor | ting group (b)] loops | - |
| | Unbundled Network Element- | -Platform (UNE-P POTS) | |
| | | 1 – 39 lines | |
| | | | L |
PO-5 – Firm Order Confirmations (FOCs) On Time (continued)

| | | Resale | | | |
|-------|------------|-----------------------------|--|-----------------------|----------------|
| | | ISD | N-Basic | 1-10 lines | |
| | | _ | Conversion As Specified | | |
| | ì | _ | New Installs | | 48 hours |
| | | - | Address Changes | | ie neure |
| | | | Address Changes | | |
| | | - | Change to add Loop | | |
| | | ISD | N-PRI (Facility) | 1-3 | |
| | | PB | X | 1-24 trunks | |
| | | DS | 0 or Voice Grade Equivalent | 1-24 | |
| | | DS | 1 Facility | 1-24 | |
| | | DS | 3 Facility | 1-3 | |
| | | LNP | | 25-49 lines | |
| | ſ | Enhanc | ed Extended Loops (EELs) | | |
| | | [included | d in Product Reporting group (b)] | | |
| | | DS1 | 1-2 | 24 circuits | |
| | | Resale | | | |
| | | Cei | ntrex (including Centrex 21, Non-de | esign, | |
| | | | Centrex 21 Basic ISDN, Cent | rex-Plus, | |
| | | | Centron, Centrex Primes) | 1-10 lines | |
| | | _ | With Common Block Configuration | on required | - |
| | | _ | Initial establishment of Centrex C | CMS services | |
| | | _ | Tie lines or NARs activity | | |
| | | _ | Subsequent to initial Common B | lock | |
| | | - Station lines | | | |
| | | - Automatic Boute Selection | | 72 hours | |
| | | - Uniform Call Distribution | | | |
| | | | - Uniform Call Distribution | | |
| | | | - Additional numbers | | |
| | | | Centrex | 1-10 lines | |
| | | | Ventrex 21 | | |
| | | 2/4 wire Non-loaded | | | |
| | | 2/4 wire Non-loaded | | | |
| | | AD | SL compatible | | |
| · · · | | ISL | DN capable | | |
| | | XD | SL-I capable | | 1. |
| | | DS | 1 capable | | |
| | | Resale | N. PPI (Trupke) | 1-10 trunko | 06 hours |
| | | | -5D· | | 8 hueineee |
| | | | STrunks 1 | -240 trunk circuite | dave |
| | | | Notes: | | uuyo |
| | Availahle | | 1 I SBs with quantities above the | e hinhest number si | pecified for |
| | / Wallabie | | each product type are conside | red ICB | |
| | | | 2 Linbundled Loop with Escility (| Chack can be proce | eeod |
| | | | electronically bowover beau | lea this astagon alu | uave carrice o |
| | | | 70 hour EOC interval the EOC | regulte for this proc | vays cames a |
| | | | | results for this proc | |
| | | | | lectronically of PO-5 | of in received |
| | | | manually. | | |
| | | | 3. Unbundled Loop with Facility (| Uneck will not add a | in additional |
| | | | 24 hours to the 72-hour intervi | al it the LSR is subr | nitted |
| | | | manually. | | |

PO-6 – Work Completion Notification Timeliness

Purpose:

To evaluate the timeliness of Qwest issuing electronic notification at an LSR level to CLECs that provisioning work on all service orders that comprise the CLEC LSR have been completed in the Service Order Processor and the service is available to the customer.

Description:

PO-6A & 6B:

- Includes all orders completed in the Qwest Service Order Processor that generate completion notifications in the reporting period, subject to exclusions shown below.
- The start time is the date/time when the last of the service orders that comprise the CLEC LSR is
 posted as completed in the Service Order Processor.
- The end time is when the electronic order completion notice is made available (IMA-GUI) ^{NOTE 1} or transmitted (IMA-EDI) to the CLEC via the ordering interface used to place the local service request. The notification is transmitted at an LSR level when all service orders that comprise the CLEC LSR are complete.
- With hours: minutes reporting, hours counted are during the published Gateway Availability hours. Gateway Availability hours are based on the currently published hours of availability found on the following website: http://www.gwest.com/wholesale/cmp/ossHours.html.

| Reporting Period: | | Unit of Measure: | |
|---|--|--|----------|
| One month | | PO-6A - 6B: | Hrs:Mins |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and individual CLEC results. | Disaggregation Repor PO-6A Notices trar PO-6B Notices trar | ting: Statewide level. nsmitted via IMA-GUI nsmitted via IMA-EDI | |

Formula:

For completion notifications generated from LSRs received via IMA-GUI:

 $PO-6A = \Sigma((Date and Time Completion Notification made available to CLEC) - (Date and Time the last of the service orders that comprise the CLEC LSR is completed in the Service Order Processor)) + (Number of completion notifications made available in reporting period)$

For completion notifications generated from LSRs received via IMA-EDI:

 $PO-6B = \Sigma((Date and Time Completion Notification transmitted to CLEC) - (Date and Time the last of the service orders that comprise the CLEC LSR is completed in the Service Order Processor.)) + (Number of completion notifications transmitted in reporting period)$

Exclusions:

PO – 6A & 6B:

- Records with invalid completion dates.
- LSRs submitted manually (e.g., via facsimile).
- ASRs submitted via EXACT.

| Product Reportin | ng: | Standard: |
|-------------------------|---|--|
| PO – 6A & 6B A | gregate reporting for all products ordered through | 6 hours |
| IMA-GUI and, se | parately, IMA-EDI (see disaggregation reporting). | |
| Availability: | Notes: | |
| Available | The time a notice is "made available" via the IM a status update related to the completion notic database. When this occurs, the notice can be CLEC using the Status Updates window or by function. | A-GUI is the time Qwest stores e in the IMA Status Updates ∋ immediately viewed by the using the LSR Notice Inquiry |

PO-7 – Billing Completion Notification Timeliness

Purpose:

To evaluate the timeliness with which electronic billing completion notifications are made available or transmitted to CLECs, focusing on the percentage of notifications that are made available or transmitted (for CLECs) or posted in the billing system (for Qwest retail) within five <u>business days</u>.

Description:

<u>PO-7A & 7B</u>:

- This measurement includes all orders posted in the CRIS billing system for which billing completion notices are made available or transmitted in the reporting period, subject to exclusions shown below.
- Intervals used in this measurement are from the time a service order is completed in the SOP to the time billing completion for the order is made available or transmitted to the CLEC.
 - The time a notice is "made available" via the IMA-GUI consists of the time Qwest stores the completion notice in the IMA Status Updates database. When this occurs, the notice can be immediately viewed by the CLEC using the Status Updates window.
 - The time a notice is "transmitted" via IMA-EDI consists of the time Qwest actually transmits the completion notice via IMA-EDI. Applicable only to those CLECs who are certified and setup to receive the notices via IMA-EDI.
- The start time is when the completion of the service order is posted in the Qwest SOP. The end time is when, confirming that the order has been posted in the CRIS billing system, the electronic billing completion notice is made available to the CLEC via the same ordering interface (IMA-GUI or IMA-EDI) as used to submit the LSR.
- Intervals counted in the numerator of these measurements are those that are five business days or less.

<u>PO-7C</u>:

- This measurement includes all retail orders posted in the CRIS Billing system in the reporting period, subject to exclusions shown below.
- Intervals used in this measurement are from the time an order is completed in the SOP to the time it is posted in the CRIS billing system.
- The start time is when the completion of the order is posted in the SOP. The end time is when the order is posted in the CRIS billing system.
- Intervals counted in the numerator of this measurement are those that are five business days or less.

| Reporting Period: One month | | | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--|---|---|
| Reporting Comparisons: PO-7A and -7B: CLEC aggregate and individual CLEC results. PO-7C: Qwest retail results. | | Disaggregation PO-7A Notion PO-7B Notion PO-7C Billing | Reporting: Statewide level. ces made available via IMA-GUI ces transmitted via IMA-EDI ng system posting completions for Qwest Retail |
| Formula: For wholesale service orders Qwest generates for LSRs received via IMA: PO-7A = (Number of electronic billing completion notices in the reporting period made available within five business days of posting complete in the SOP) + (Total Number of electronic billing completion notices in the reporting period) PO-7B = (Number of electronic billing completion notices in the reporting period) Within five business days of posting complete in the SOP) + (Total Number of electronic billing completion notices in the reporting period) PO-7B = (Number of electronic billing completion notices in the reporting period transmitted within five business days of posting complete in the SOP) + (Total Number of electronic billing completion notices transmitted during the reporting period) | | | |
| For service or PO-7C = | ders Qwest generat (Total number of r period that were p posted in the CRIS | es for retail custo etail service order osted within 5 bus 5 billing system in | mers (i.e., the retail analogue for PO-7A & -7B): s posted in the CRIS billing system in the reporting siness days) ÷ (Total number of retail service orders the reporting period) |

PO-7 – Billing Completion Notification Timeliness (continued)

| Exclusions: PO-7A, 7B & 7C Services that are not billed through CRIS, e.g. Resale Frame Relay. Records with invalid completion dates. PO-7A & 7B LSRs submitted manually. ASRs submitted via EXACT. | | | | |
|---|--------|---|--|--|
| Product Reporting: Aggregate reporting for all products ordered through IMA- GUI and, separately, IMA-EDI (see disaggregation reporting). | | Standard: PO-7A and -7B: Parity with PO-7C | | |
| Availability: Available | Notes: | · | | |

PO-8 – Jeopardy Notice Interval

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness of jeopardy notifications, focusing on how far in advance of original due dates jeopardy notifications are provided to CLECs (regardless of whether the due date was actually missed).

Description:

Measures the average time lapsed between the date the customer is first notified of an order jeopardy event and the original due date of the order.

• Includes all orders completed in the reporting period that received jeopardy notifications.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Average Business days |
|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. (This measure is reported by jeopardy notification process as used for the categories shown under Product Reporting.) |

Formula:

 $[\Sigma(Date of the original due date of orders completed in the reporting period that received jeopardy notification – Date of the first jeopardy notification) + Total orders completed in the reporting period that received jeopardy notification]$

Exclusions:

- Jeopardies done after the original due date is past.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid due dates or <u>application dates</u>.
- Records with invalid completion dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

Product Reporting: Standards: A Non-Designed Services A Parity with Retail POTS B Unbundled Loops (with or without **B** Parity with Retail POTS Number Portability) C Parity with Feature Group D (FGD) services C LIS Trunks D Parity with Retail POTS D UNE-P (POTS) Notes: Availability: Available 1. For PO-8A and -D, Saturday is counted as a business day for all non-dispatched orders for Resale Residence, Resale Business, and UNE-P (POTS), as well as for the retail analogues specified above as standards. For dispatched orders for Resale Residence, Resale Business, and UNE-P (POTS) and for all other products reported under PO-8B and -8C, Saturday is counted as a business day when the service order is due on Saturday.

-.

| PO-9 – Timely Jeopardy Notices | | |
|--|---|--|
| Purpose: | | |
| When original due dates are missed, measures the extent to which Qwest notifies customers in | | |
| advance of jeopardized due dates. | | |
| Description: | | |
| Measures the percentage of late orders for which adv | ance jeopardy notification is provided. | |
| Includes all inward orders (Change, New, and Tra | ansfer order types) assigned a due date by | |
| Qwest and which are completed/closed in the rep | orting period that missed the original due date. | |
| Change order types included in this measuremen | t consist of all C orders representing inward | |
| activity. | | |
| Missed due date orders with jeopardy notification | s provided on or after the original due date is | |
| past will be counted in the denominator of the for | mula but will not be counted in the numerator. | |
| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent | |
| | | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC Disaggregat | ion Reporting: Statewide level. | |
| aggregate, individual CLEC and (This measur | e is reported by jeopardy notification process as | |
| Qwest Retail results used for the c | categories shown under Product Reporting.) | |
| Formula: | the second state of the second term of the second second fills at the second second second second second second | |
| [(I otal missed due date orders completed in the repo | rting period that received jeopardy notification in | |
| advance of original due date) ÷ (I otal number of miss | sed due date orders completed in the reporting | |
| period)] x 100 | | |
| P., Lastana | | |
| Exclusions: | | |
| • Orders missed for customer reasons. | | |
| Records with invalid product codes. | | |
| Records involving official company services. | | |
| Records with invalid due dates or <u>application dat</u> | <u>es</u> . | |
| Records with invalid completion dates. | | |
| Records with invalid product codes. | | |
| Records missing data essential to the calculation | of the measurement per the PID. | |
| | | |
| Product Reporting: | Standards: | |
| A Non-Designed Services | A Parity with Retail POTS | |
| B Unbundled Loops (with or without Number | B Parity with Retail POTS | |
| Portability) | C Parity with Easture Group D (ECD) Services | |
| | D Parity with Poteil POTS | |
| D UNE-P (PUTS) | | |
| Availability | Notes: | |
| Available | | |
| | | |
| | | |

PO-15 – Number of Due Date Changes per Order

Purpose:

| To evaluate the extent to which Qwest changes due dates on orders. | | | | |
|---|---------------------------------|---|--|--|
| Description: | | | | |
| Measures the average num | ber of Qwest due date | changes per order. | | |
| Includes all inward orders (Change, New, and Transfer order types) that have been assigned a due date in the reporting period subject to the exclusions below. Change order types for additional lines consist of all "C" orders representing <u>inward activity</u>. | | | | |
| Counts all due date cha date. | nges made for Qwest r | easons following assignment of the original due | | |
| Reporting Period: One mo | onth Unit of Me | asure: Average Number of Due Date Changes | | |
| Reporting Comparisons: | | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. | | |
| CLEC aggregate, individual retail results. | CLEC, and Qwest | | | |
| Formula: | | | | |
| Σ(Count of Qwest due date | e changes on all orders) | ÷ (Total orders in reporting period) | | |
| Exclusions: | \$ | | | |
| Customer requested du | ie date changes. | | | |
| Records involving offici | al company services. | | | |
| Records with invalid du | e dates or <u>application c</u> | ates. | | |
| Records with invalid pro | oduct codes. | | | |
| Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID. | | | | |
| Product Reporting: Standard: | | | | |
| None Diagnostic | | | | |
| Availability: | Notes: | | | |
| Available | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

PO-16- Timely Release Notifications

Purpose:

Measures the percent of release notifications for changes to specified OSS interfaces sent by Qwest to CLECs within the intervals and scope specified within the change management plan found on Qwest's Change Management Process, (CMP) website at http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/cmp/whatiscmp.html.

Description:

- Measures the percent of release notices that are sent by Qwest within the intervals/timeframes
 prescribed by the release notification procedure on Qwest's CMP website.
 - Release notices measured are:
 - Draft Technical Specifications (for App to App interfaces only);
 - Final Technical Specifications (for App to App interfaces only);
 - Draft Release Notices (for IMA-GUI interfaces only);
 - Final Release Notices (for IMA-GUI interfaces only); and
 - OSS Interface Retirement Notices. NOTE 2
 - For the following OSS interfaces:
 - IMA-GUI, IMA-EDI;
 - CEMR;
 - Exchange Access, Control, & Tracking (EXACT); NOTE 3
 - Electronic Bonding Trouble Administration (EB -TA); NOTE 4
 - IABS and CRIS Summary Bill Outputs; NOTE E
 - Loss and Completion Records; Note 5
 - New OSS interfaces (for introduction notices only.) NOTE 6
 - Also included are notifications for connectivity or system function changes to Resale Product Database.
 - Includes OSS interface release notifications by Qwest relating to the following products and service categories: LIS/Interconnection, Collocation, Unbundled Network Elements (UNE), Ancillary, and Resale Products and Services.
 - Includes OSS interface release notifications by Qwest to CLECs for the following OSS functions: Pre-Ordering, Ordering, Provisioning, Repair and Maintenance, and Billing.
 - Includes Types of Changes as specified in the "Qwest Wholesale Change Management Process Document" (Section 4 – Types of Changes).
 - Includes all OSS interface release notifications pertaining to the above OSS systems, subject to the exclusions specified below.
- Release Notifications sent on or before the date required by the CMP are considered timely. A release notification "sent date" is determined by the date of the e-mail sent by Qwest that provides the Release Notification.
- Release Notifications sent after the date required by the (CMP) are considered untimely. Release Notifications required but not sent are considered untimely.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---------------------------------------|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC Aggregate | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. |

Formula:

[(Number of required release notifications for specified OSS interface changes made within the reporting period that are sent on or before the date required by the change management plan (CMP) + Total number of required release notifications for specified OSS interface changes within reporting period)]x100

Exclusions:

- Changes to be implemented on an expedited basis (exception to OSS notification intervals) as mutually agreed upon by CLECs and Qwest through the CMP.
- Changes where Qwest and CLECs agree, through the CMP, that notification is unnecessary.

PO-16 Timely Release Notifications (continued)

| Product Reporting | : None | Standards: | |
|-------------------|--|--|---|
| | | Vol. 1-10: | No more than one |
| | | | untimely notification |
| | | Vol. > 10: | 92.5% timely notifications |
| Availability: | Notes: | | |
| Available | | | |
| | The Qwest Wholesale Chan intervals for release notificat documented in the change r | ige Management Process tions by type of notificatio management plan. | s Document specifies the n. These intervals are |
| | The documents described in Interfaces" of the "Qwest WI as "Initial Retirement Notice" | n section "9.0 – Retiremen holesale Change Manage " and "Final Retirement N | nt of Existing OSS ement Process Document" lotice." |
| | 3. EXACT is a Telecordia syste | em. Only release notifica | ations for changes initiated |
| | A EB-TA is the same system a | | u in this measurement. |
| | CRIS, IABS, and Loss and C documented in section 8.1 - Interface | Completions will adhere t - Changes to Existing Ap | o the notification intervals plication to Application |
| | The documents described in the "Qwest Wholesale Char Release Announcement and only), "Initial Interface Techn Interface Technical Specific (new GUI only). CMP notice in this measurement even th "Description" section of this not be added to the measur and retirement notifications change to the PID. The intervals used to deterr | n section "7.0 – Introducti nge Management Process d Preliminary Implementa nical Specification" (new J ations (new App to App o es for "Introduction of a N hough the new system is PID. However, once imp rement for purposes of me unless specifically incorp nine timeliness are based | on of New OSS Interface" of a Document" as "Initial ation Plan" (new App to App App to App only), "Final only), "Release Notification" lew OSS" are to be included not explicitly listed in the olemented, the system will easuring release, change porated as an authorized d on CMP guidelines. |

| valuates Qwest's ability to provide accurate pro the SATE and production environments and test | oduction-like tests to CLECs for testing new releases in ing between releases in the SATE environment. |
|--|--|
| escription: | |
| O-19A | |
| Measures the percentage of test transaction <i>EDI Data Document – for the Stand Alone T</i> in SATE at the time a new IMA Release is do occurs, measures the percentage of test tran the current IMA EDI Data Document-for the successfully executed in SATE during the be | s that conform to the test scenarios published in the <i>IMA</i> <i>Test Environment (SATE)</i> that are successfully executed eployed to SATE. In months where no release activity insactions that conform to the test scenarios published in Stand Alone Test Environment (SATE) that are etween-releases monthly performance test. |
| Includes one test transaction for each test so the Stand Alone Test Environment (SATE). | cenario published in the IMA EDI Data Document - for |
| Test transactions will be executed for each or scenarios for each of the current versions of <i>Environment (SATE)</i> . | of the IMA releases supported in SATE utilizing all test the IMA EDI Data Document – for the Stand Alone Test |
| The successful execution of a transaction is — The expected results of the test scenari Stand Alone Test Environment (SATE) | determined by the Qwest Test Engineer according to: io as described in the <i>IMA EDI Data Document – for the</i> and the EDI disclosure document. |
| The transactions strict adherence to bus Disclosure Documentation for each relevant to the strict structure of the structure of | siness rules published in Qwest's most current IMA EDI ase and the associated Addenda. NOTE 1 |
| For this measurement, Qwest will execute th Release related test transactions will be in SATE. These transactions will be executed being originally installed in SATE. This Window." | ne test transactions in the Stand-Alone Test Environment. executed when a full or point release of IMA is installed ecuted within five <u>business days</u> of the numbered release five-business day period will be referred to as the "Testing |
| Mid-release monthly performance test tr Testing Window for a release is complet the nearest working day to the 15th of th transactions are executed. | ransactions will be executed in the months when no ted. These transactions will be executed on the 15 th , or e month, in the months when no release related test |
| Test transaction results will be reported by r the release transactions or mid-release test | elease and included in the Reporting Period during which transactions are completed. |
| 'O-19B | |
| Validates the extent that SATE mirrors produce transactions that produce comparable result | uction by measuring the percentage of IMA EDI test is in SATE and in production. |
| Transactions counted as producing com data and fields as specified in the releas related to the IMA release being tested. | parable results are those that return correctly formatted se's EDI disclosure document and developer worksheets |
| Comparability will be determined by eva test transactions against the same data Supplementals, and returned as Overv | luating the data and fields in each EDI message for the and fields for Preorder queries, LSRs, and Besponses, Acknowledgements, Firm Order |
| Confirmations (FOCs) for flow-through e | eligible products, and rejects. |
| release. | uite of Product/Activity combinations. Owest's three |
| regions will be represented. | ctions (FOCs for flow-through products) are included |
| With respect to the comparability of the struct environments, this measurement focuses or content, per developer worksheets and EID notifications. | cture and content of results from SATE and production have a structure and the validity of the mapping examples distributed as part of release |
| Penarting Period | Unit of Measure: Porcent |
| PO-19A One month | |
| PO-19B: One month (for those months in | |

Qwest South Dakota SGAT Fourth Revision, Fourth Amended Exhibit B June 24, 2004 Page 25

PO-19 Stand-Alone Test Environment (SATE) Accuracy (continued)

| which release-related test transactions are completed) | |
|---|---|
| Reporting Comparisons: None | Disaggregation Reporting: PO-19A – Reported separately for each release tested in the reporting period PO-19B None |
| Formula: PO-19A [(Total number of successfully completed SA between-releases performance test completed transactions executed for each Software Rele the Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-19B [(Total number of completed IMA EDI test transproduce comparable results for each new may Period) ÷ (Total number of completed IMA EI each new major IMA Software Release comp | TE test transactions executed for a Software Release or ed in the Reporting Period) ÷ (Total number of SATE test ease or between-releases performance test completed in insactions executed in SATE and production that ajor IMA Software Release completed in the Reporting DI test transactions executed in SATE and production for oleted in the Reporting Period)] x 100 |
| Exclusions: For PO-19B: Transactions that fail due to the unavailability production environment) or a function in the validation query or CSR query) that is unsuce IMA-EDI (e.g., PREMIS or SIA). Transactions that fail because of differences an IMA candidate is implemented into IMA a an IMA candidate in a SATE release: e.g., the exclusion does not apply during reporting per production IMA and SATE | ty of a content item (e.g., TN exhaustion in SATE or the SATE or production environments (e.g., address ccessful due to an outage in systems that interface with a between the production and SATE results caused when and not SATE (i.e., where CMP decides not to implement the Reject Duplicate LSR candidate in IMA 12.0). This eriods in which there are no differences between |
| Product Reporting: None | Standard: PO-19A – 95% for each release tested |
| Availability: Available | Notes: 1. Transactions that are executed and found to have inconsistencies with the data and format rules will be corrected and rerun. Rerun volumes will not be counted in the denominator for PO-19. Such corrections and re-executions are intended to enforce strict adherence to business rules published in Qwest's most current IMA EDI Data and Disclosure Documents. 2. The product and activity combinations that make up the test decks for PO-19B will be updated after each major IMA software release and provided to CLECs with the publication of IMA EDI Draft Interface Technical Specifications for the next major IMA software release as defined in the CMP process. All combinations with EDI transaction volumes > 100 in the previous 12-month period will be included in the test, Qwest will run a query against IMA to determine which combinations meet the criteria for inclusion (i.e., volumes > 100). |

PO-19 Stand-Alone Test Environment (SATE) Accuracy (continued)

| 3. The intent of this provision is to avoid including the effects of circumstances beyond the SATE environment that could cause differences in SATE and production results that are not due to problems in mirroring production. For example, because of real-time data manipulation in production, an appointment availability query transaction in SATE will not return the same list of available appointments as in production. Available appointments in production are fully dependent on real-time activities that occur there, whereas available appointments in SATE are based on a pre- defined list that is representative of production. |
|---|
| |

PO-20 (Expanded) – Manual Service Order Accuracy

Purpose:

Evaluates the degree to which Qwest accurately processes CLECs' Local Service Requests (LSRs), which are electronically-submitted and manually processed by Qwest, into Qwest Service Orders, based on mechanized comparisons of specified LSR-Service Order fields and focusing on the percentage of manually-processed Service Orders that are accurate/error-free.

Description:

Measures the percentage of manually-processed Qwest Service Orders that are populated correctly, in specified data fields, with information obtained from CLEC LSRs.

- Includes only Service Orders created from CLEC LSRs that Qwest receives ^{NOTE 1} electronically (via IMA-GUI or IMA-EDI) and manually processes in the creation of Service Orders, regardless of flow through eligibility, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Includes only Service Orders, from the product reporting categories specified below, that request inward line or feature activity (Change, New, and Transfer order types), are assigned a due date by Qwest, and are completed/closed in the reporting period. Change Service Order types included in this measurement consist of all C orders with "I" and "T" action-coded line or feature USOCs.
- All Service Orders satisfying the above criteria and as specified in the Availability section below are evaluated in this measurement.
- An inward line Service Order will be classified as "accurate" and thus counted in the numerator in the formula below when the mechanized comparisons of this measurement determine that the fields specified in the Service Order Fields Evaluated section below (when the source fields have been properly populated on the LSR) are all accurate on the Service Order. An inward feature Service Order will be classified as "accurate" if the fields specified in the Service Order Fields Evaluated section below (when the source fields have been properly populated on the LSR) are all accurate on the Service Order and if no CLEC notifications to the call center have generated call center tickets coded to LSR/SO mismatch for that order.
 - Service Orders will be counted as being accurate if the contents of the relevant fields, as recorded in the completed Service Orders involved in provisioning the service, properly match or correspond to the information from the specified fields as provided in the latest version of associated LSRs.
 - Service orders generated from LSRs receiving a PIA (Provider Initiated Activity value will be counted as being accurate if each and every mismatch has a correct and corresponding PIA value.
 - Service Orders, including those otherwise considered accurate under the above-described mechanized field comparison, will not be counted as accurate if Qwest corrects errors in its Service Order(s) as a result of contacts received from CLECs no earlier than one business day prior to the original due date.

| Reporting Period: One month, reported in arrears (i.e., results first appear in reports one month later than results for measurements that are not reported in arrears), in order to exclude Service Orders that are the subject of call center tickets counted in OP-5B and OP-5T, as having new service problems attributed to Service Order errors. | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|---------------------------|
| Reporting Comparisons: | Disaggregation Reporting: |
| CLEC Aggregate and individual CLEC | Statewide Level |

Formula:

[(Number of accurate, evaluated Service Orders) + (Number of evaluated Service Orders completed in the reporting period)] x 100

| Exc | clusions: | | | | | |
|-----|---|--------|----------|-------------------------|-------------------|--|
| • | • Service Orders that are the subject of call center tickets counted in OP-5B and OP-5T as having new | | | | | |
| | service problems attributed to Service Order errors. | | | | | |
| ٠ | Cancelled Service Orders. | | | | | |
| ٠ | Service Orders that cannot be matched to a corre | spor | nding LS | SR | | |
| ٠ | Records missing data essential to the calculation | of th | e meas | urement per the PID. | | |
| Pro | duct Reporting: | | | Standard: | | |
| • | Resale and UNE-P (POTS and Centrex 21) | | | Benchmarks, as folic | ws: | |
| | | | | | | |
| ٠ | Unbundled Loops (Analog and Non-Loaded 2/4-w | ire, E | DS1 | | | |
| | Capable, DS3 and higher Capable, ADSL Compati | ible, | | | | |
| | XDSL-I Capable, ISDN-BRI Capable) | | | Phase 1 | 97% | |
| | | | | | 31 78 | |
| | | | | Phase 2 | 96% | |
| | | | | Phase 3 & beyond | 95% | |
| Av | ailability: | Not | tes: | | · | |
| • | Phase 0 – PO-20 (Old) (the first version using | 1. | To be i | ncluded in the measu | ement, Service | |
| | sampling of limited fields). (Available now) | | Orders | created from CLEC L | SRs must be | |
| • | Phase 1 ^{NOTE 2} – PO-20 (Expanded) Mechanized | | receive | ed and completed in th | e same version of | |
| | version (as defined herein). All qualifying orders | _ | IMA-G | UI or IMA-EDI. | | |
| | associated with initial LSRs received via IMA | | | 1: Consists of all man | ually-processed, | |
| | version 15.0 or higher beginning with May 2004 | | | ing Service Orders pei | product reporting | |
| | data reported in Jul 04. | | | ry specified above, fro | m throughout | |
| • | Phase 2 – Additional fields added. No later than | | Qwest | s 14-state local servic | e region. | |
| | Sep 04 results reported in Nov 04 | | | | | |
| • | Phase 3– Additional fields added. Targeted for | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| • | Phase 4 – Additional fields added. (Date TBD). | | | | | |

| | LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | | |
|------|---|--|---|--|
| | Phase 1 – (Effective with LSRs received beginning May 2004) | | | |
| | Mechani | zed comparison of | the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: | |
| Form | LSR Field Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: | |
| LSR | CCNA | Customer Carrier Name Abbreviation | CCNA field of LSR form compared to the RSID/ZCID field identifier in the Extended ID section of the Service Order. | |
| | PON | Purchase Order Number | PON field of LSR form compared to the PON field in Bill Section of the Service Order. | |
| | D/TSENT | Date and time sent | The D/TSENT field of LSR form from the Firm Order Manager, using applied business day cut-off rules and business typing rules, and compare to the APP (Application Date) used on the Service Order. | |
| | CHC | Coordinated Hot Cut Requested | Applies only to Unbundled Loop. Validate that the installation USOC used on the Service Order matches the Coordinated Cut request. (Evaluated in conjunction with the TEST field to determine correct USOC.) | |
| | TEST | Testing required | Applies only to Unbundled Loop. Validate that the installation USOC used on the Service Order matches the TEST request. (Evaluated in conjunction with the CHC field to determine correct USOC.) | |
| | NC | Network Channel Code | Applies only to Unbundled Loop. NC field on the LSR form compared to provisioning USOC for CKL1 on the Service Order. | |

| | LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | | |
|-------------------------|------------------------------------|--|--|--|
| | Phase 1 | - (Effective wit | h LSRs received beginning May 2004) | |
| | Mechani | zed comparison of | the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: | |
| Form | LSR Field Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: | |
| | NCI | Network Channel Interface Code | Applies only to Unbundled Loop NCI field on the LSR form compared to provisioning USOC for CKL1 on the Service Order. | |
| | SECNCI | Secondary Network Channel Interface Code | Applies only to Unbundled Loop orders. SECNCI field on the LSR form compared to the provisioning USOC for CKL2 on the Service Order. | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | PIC | InterLATA Pre- subscription Indicator Code | PIC field on Resale or Centrex form compared to PIC populated on the "I" or "T" action lines in the Service and Equipment section of the Service Order. <i>Note:</i> LSR PIC = None; S.O. PIC = None | |
| Resale or Centrex | | IntraLATA Pre- subscription Indicator Code | LPIC field on Resale or Centrex form compared to LPIC populated on the "I" or "T" action lines in the Service and Equipment section of the Service Order. <i>Note:</i> LSR LPIC = None; S.O. LPIC = 9199 LSR LPIC = DFLT; S.O. LPIC = 5123 | |
| | TNS | Telephone Numbers | Validate that all telephone numbers in the TNS fields in the Service Details section on the Resale or Centrex form requiring inward activity are addressed on the Service Order. | |
| Resale or Centrex | FA/ FEATURE | Feature Activity/Feature Codes | When the FA = N, T, V Validate line and feature USOCs provided in the FEATURE field on the Resale or Centrex form are addressed with "I" and/or "T" action lines on the Service Order. Note: Comparison will be based on the USOCs associated with line and feature activity listed in the PO-20 USOC List posted on Qwest's public website, on the web page containing the current PID www.qwest.com/wholesale/results). Qwest may add USOCs to the list, delete grand-fathered/ discontinued or obsolete USOCs, or update USOCs assigned to listed descriptions by providing notice in the monthly Summary of Notes and updating the list. | |

| LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | | | |
|--|---|--------------------------------------|--|--|
| | Phase 1 – (Effective with LSRs received beginning May 2004) | | | |
| Mechanized comparison of the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: | | | | |
| Form | LSR Field Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: | |
| LS | ECCKT | Exchange Company Circuit ID | Applies to LSRs with ACT = C (only when NC code has not changed, M, or T. | |
| | | | ECCKT field on the LS form compared to the CLS field in the Service and Equipment section of the Service Order. | |
| LS/ ` LSNP | CFA | Connecting Facility Assignment | CFA field on the LS or LSNP forms compared to the CFA field used in CKL1 of the Service Order. (Verbal acceptance of CFA changes will be FOC'd and PIA'd, which will account for the mismatch and eliminate it as an error in the PO-20 calculation. | |
| ectory Listings form ly for Local Main Listings) | LTY | Listing Type | LTY = 1 (Listed – appears in DA and the directory.) Validate that there is a LN in the List section of the Service Order. LTY = 2 (Non Listed – appears only in DA.) Validate that there is non listing instructions in the LN field in the List section of the Service Order. Central/Western Region: Validate that the left handed field is NLST and (NON-LIST) is contained in the NLST data field in the List section of the Service order. Eastern Region: Validate that the left handed field is NL and (NON LIST) is contained in the NL data field in the List section of the Service Order. LTY = 3 (Non Pub - does not appear in the directory and telephone number does not appear in DA.) Validate that there is non published instructions in the LN field in the List section of the Service Order. Central/Western Regions: Validate that the left handed field is NP and (NON-PUB) is contained in the NP data field in the List section of the Service Order. Eastern Region: Validate that the left handed field is NP and (NON-PUB) is contained in the NP data field in the List section of the Service Order. Eastern Region: Validate that the left handed field is NP and (NON-PUB) is contained in the NP data field in the List section of the Service Order. | |
| DL – Dir (Evaluated on | ΤΟΑ | Type of Account | Validate TOA entries (only reviewed when BRO field on DL form is not populated): TOA valid entries are B or RP Validate that there is a semi colon (;) within the LN in the List section of the Service Order. TOA valid entries are R or BP Validate that there is a comma (,) within the LN in the List section of the Service Order. Exception: When LSR-TOS = 3, TOA review is Not Applicable. Handled by Complex Listing Group. Requires separate Service Order. | |
| | DML | Direct Mail List | DML field = O on DL form; Service Order LN contains (OCLS). | |
| | NOSL | No Solicitation Indicator | Arizona Only NOSL field = Y on DL form; Service Order LN contains (NSOL) (OCLS). | |

| LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | | |
|--|-------------------|--|--|
| Phase 1 – (Effective with LSRs received beginning May 2004) | | | |
| Mechanized comparison of the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: | | | |
| Form | LSR Field Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: |
| | ТМКТ | Telemarketing | Colorado Only TMKT field = O on DL form; Service Order LN contains (OATD). When both the DML and the TMKT fields are populated, DML validation applies. |
| | LNLN and LNFN | Listed Name | LNLN and LNFN fields on DL form compared to the LN field in the List section of the Service Order. |
| | ADI | Address Indicator | ADI = O on DL form; Service Order LA contains (OAD). |
| | LAPR | Listed Address Number Prefix | LAPR field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. |
| | LANO | Listed Address Number | LANO field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. |
| | LASF | Listed Address Number Suffix | LASF field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. |
| | LASD | Listed Address Street Directional | LASD field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. |
| | LASN | Listed Address Street Name | LASN field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. |
| | LATH | Listed Address Street Type | LATH field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. |
| | LASS | Listed Address Street Directional Suffix | LASS field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. |
| | LALOC | Listed Address Locality | LALOC field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. |

| | Phase 2 – No later than Sep 04 results | | | |
|---------|--|--------------------------------------|---|--|
| | LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | | |
| | Mechan | ized comparison of | the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: | |
| Form | LSR Field | | | |
| Form | Code | LOR FIEID Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: | |
| LSR | DSPTCH | Dispatch | Limited to Unbundled Loops where $ACT = Z$ or V only. If DSPTCH field on the LSR form = Y, validate dispatch USOC in the Service and Equipment section of the Service Order. | |
| Centrex | LTC | Line Treatment Code | Applies only to Centrex 21 LTC field numeric value on the Centrex form compared to the data following the CAT field for the Line USOC on the Service Order. | |
| | COS | Class of Service - Qwest Specific | Applies only to Centrex 21. COS field of the Centrex form compared to the CS field in the ID section of the Service Order. | |

| Phase 2 – No later than Sep 04 results | | | |
|--|--------------------|--------------------|--|
| LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | | |
| | Mechani | zed comparison of | the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: |
| Form | LSR Field Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: |
| Resale or Centrex | FEATURE DETAILS | Feature Details | As specified in Appendix A of the 14 State Working PID. Comparison would be based on the fields associated with the USOC list referenced under Feature Activity in Phase 1 above. |
| | | Phase 3 – | Targeted for 1 st Quarter 05 |
| | | LSR-Servi | ce Order Fields Evaluated |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | Mechan | ized comparison of | the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: |
| Form | Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: |
| Resale or Centrex | BLOCK (Stage 1) | Blocking Type | For each LNUM provided in the Service Detail section of the Resale or Centrex form when BA = E: Note: The BLOCK field may have one or more alpha and/or numeric values per LNUM. This review will only validate based on BA/BLOCK fields and will not address blocking information provided in the "Remark" section on the LSR or the Feature Detail section of the LSR. The values listed below will be considered as follows: If BLOCK contains A, validate FID TBE A is present on the service order floated behind line USOC associated with the TNS for that LNUM. If BLOCK contains B, validate FID TBE B is present on the service order floated behind line USOC associated with the TNS for that LNUM. If BLOCK contains C, validate FID TBE C is present on the service order floated behind line USOC associated with the TNS for that LNUM. If BLOCK contains C, validate FID TBE C is present on the service order floated behind line USOC associated with the TNS for that LNUM. |

| | Phase 4 – Date TBD | | | |
|--|------------------------------------|----------------------------|---|--|
| | LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | | |
| | Mechan | zed comparison of | the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: | |
| F | LSR Field | | | |
| Form | Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: | |
| | DFDT | Desired Frame Due Time | Applicable only to orders for Resale and UNE-P (POTS and Centrex 21) DFDT field on the LSR form compared to the FDT field in the Extended ID section of the Service Order | |
| LSR | DDD | Desired Due Date | DDD field from the last FOC'd LSR compared to the original or last subsequent due date in the Extended ID section on the Service Order when no CFLAG/PIA is present on the FOC. (i.e. Evaluation includes recognition of valid differences between DDD and Service Order based on population of the CFLAG/PIA field on the LSRC (FOC)) | |
| Directory Listings form aluated only for | LTN | Listed Telephone Number | For Resale and UNE-P (POTS and Centrex 21): LTN field on the Listing form compared to the Main Account Number of the Service Order. For Unbundled Loop: LTN field on the Listing form compared to the TN floated after the LN in the Listing section of the Service Order. | |
| DL - 1 (Ev | LNPL | Letter Name Placement | LNPL field on the Listing form = L, validate that LN on the Service Order follows letter placement versus word placement. | |
| Resale or Centrex | FEATURE DETAILS | Feature Details | If CLECs propose additional FIDs for review, Qwest will undertake a feasibility evaluation. | |
| | BLOCK (Stage 2) | Blocking Type | If CLECs identify value in additional Blocking review, Qwest will undertake development. [Requirements to be developed] | |

Ordering and Provisioning

OP-2 – Calls Answered within Twenty Seconds – Interconnect Provisioning Center

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness of CLEC access to Qwest's interconnection provisioning center(s) and retail customer access to the Business Office, focusing on the extent calls are answered within 20 seconds. **Description:**

Measures the percentage of (Interconnection Provisioning Center or Retail Business Office) calls that are answered by an agent within 20 seconds of the first ring.

- Includes all calls to the Interconnect Provisioning Center/Retail Business Office during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Abandoned calls and busy calls are counted as calls which are not answered within 20 seconds.
- First ring is defined as when the customer's call is first placed in queue by the ACD (Automatic Call Distributor).
- Answer is defined as when the call is first picked up by the Qwest agent.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. |
| Formula: [(Total Calls Answered by Center within 20 seconds | s) ÷ (Total Calls received by Center)] x 100 |
| Exclusions: Time spent in the VRU Voice Response | se Unit is not counted. |
| Product Reporting: Not applicable | Standard: Parity |
| Availability: Available | Notes: |

OP-3 – Installation Commitments Met

Purpose:

Evaluates the extent to which Qwest installs services for Customers by the scheduled due date. **Description:**

Measures the percentage of orders for which the scheduled due date is met.

- All inward orders (Change, New, and Transfer order types) assigned a due date by Qwest and which are completed/closed during the reporting period are measured, subject to exclusions specified below. Change order types included in this measurement consist of all C orders representing <u>inward activity</u>. Also included are orders with customer-requested due dates longer than the standard interval.
- Completion date on or before the Applicable Due Date recorded by Qwest is counted as a met due
 date. The Applicable Due Date is the original due date or, if changed or delayed by the customer,
 the most recently revised due date, subject to the following: If Qwest changes a due date for Qwest
 reasons, the Applicable Due Date is the customer-initiated due date, if any, that is (a) subsequent to
 the original due date and (b) prior to a Qwest-initiated, changed due date, if any.

| Reporting Period: One month | | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|--|---|
| Reporting | Disaggregation Reporting: | Statewide level. |
| Comparisons: | Results for product/servi | ces listed in Product Reporting under "MSA-Type |
| CLEC aggregate, | Disaggregation" will be r | eported according to orders involving: |
| individual CLEC | OP-3A Dispatches | within MSAs; |
| and Qwest Retail | OP-3B Dispatches | outside MSAs; and |
| results | OP-3C No dispatch | es. |
| | Results for products/service Disaggregation" will be a | vices listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type disaggregated according to installations: |
| | OP-3D In Interval Z | one 1 areas; and |
| | OP-3E In Interval Zone 2 areas. | |
| Formula: | | |
| [(Total Orders completed in the reporting period on or before the Applicable Due Date) + (Total Orders | | |

Completed in the Reporting Period)] x 100

Exclusions:

- Disconnect, From (another form of disconnect) and Record order types.
- Due dates missed for standard categories of customer and non-Qwest reasons. Standard categories of customer reasons are: previous service at the location did not have a customer-requested disconnect order issued, no access to customer premises, and customer hold for payment. Standard categories of non-Qwest reasons are: Weather, Disaster, and Work Stoppage.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid due dates or application dates.
- Records with invalid completion dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

OP – 3 Installation Commitments Met (continued)

| Product Reporting: | Standards: | |
|---|--|--|
| MSA-Type Disaggregation - | | |
| Resale | | |
| Residential single line service | Parity with retail service | |
| Business single line service | Parity with retail service | |
| Centrex | Parity with retail service | |
| Centrex 21 | Parity with retail service | |
| DS0 (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| PBX Trunks (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Primary ISDN (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Basic ISDN (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Qwest DSL (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Parity with like retail service | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Parity with retail Centrex 21 | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Parity with retail Centrex | |
| Line Splitting | 95% | |
| Line Sharing | 95% | |
| Sub-Loop Unbundling | CO: 90% | |
| | All Other States: Diagnostic | |
| Zone-Type Disaggregation - | | |
| Resale | | |
| Primary ISDN (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Basic ISDN (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| DS0 (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| DS1 | Parity with retail service | |
| PBX Trunks (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Qwest DSL (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| DS3 and higher bit-rate services | Parity with retail service | |
| (aggregate) | | |
| Frame Relay | Parity with retail service | |
| LIS Trunks | Parity with Feature Group D (aggregate) | |
| Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UDI | T) | |
| UDIT – DS1 level | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line | |
| UDIT – Above DS1 level | Parity with retail Private Lines above DS1 level | |
| Dark Fiber – IOF | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Loops: | | |
| Analog Loop | 90% | |
| Non-loaded Loop (2-wire) | 90% | |
| Non-loaded Loop (4-wire) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line | |
| DS1-capable Loop | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line | |
| ISDN-capable Loop | Parity with retail ISDN BRI | |
| ADSL-gualified Loop | 90% | |
| Loop types of DS3 and higher bit-rates | Parity with retail DS3 and higher bit-rate Private | |
| (aggregate) | Line services (aggregate) | |
| Dark Fiber – Loop | Diagnostic | |
| Loops with Conditioning | 90% | |
| • E911/911 Trunks | Parity with retail E911/911 Trunks | |

OP – 3 Installation Commitments Met (continued)

| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS0 level) | | WA: 90% |
|--|--------|------------------------------|
| | | All Other States: Diagnostic |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS1 level) | | 90% |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS3 | | WA: 90% |
| level) | | All Other States: Diagnostic |
| Availability: | Notes: | |
| Available | | |

OP-4 – Installation Interval

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness of Qwest's installation of services for customers, focusing on the average time to install service.

Description:

Measures the average interval (in <u>business days</u>)^{NOTE 1} between the <u>application date</u> and the completion date for service orders accepted and implemented.

- Includes all inward orders (Change, New, and Transfer order types) assigned a due date by Qwest and which are completed/closed during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below. Change order types for additional lines consist of all C orders representing <u>inward activity</u>.
- Intervals for each measured event are counted in whole days: the application date is day zero (0); the day following the application date is day one (1).
- The Applicable Due Date is the original due date or, if changed or delayed by the customer, the most recently revised due date, subject to the following: If Qwest changes a due date for Qwest reasons, the Applicable Due Date is the customer-initiated due date, if any, that is (a) subsequent to the original due date and (b) prior to a Qwest-initiated, changed due date, if any.
- Time intervals associated with customer-initiated due date changes or delays occurring after the Applicable Due Date, as applied in the formula below, are calculated by subtracting the latest Qwest-initiated due date, if any, following the Applicable Due Date, from the subsequent customer-initiated due date, if any.

| Reporting Period | : One month | Unit of Measure: Average Business Days |
|---|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: State Results for product/services Disaggregation" will be report OP-4A Dispatches with OP-4B Dispatches outs OP-4C No dispatches. Results for products/services Disaggregation" will be disa OP-4D In Interval Zones OP-4E In Interval Zones | atewide level. Isted in Product Reporting under " <u>MSA</u> -Type orted according to orders involving: hin MSAs; side MSAs; and is listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type ggregated according to installations: <u>1</u> areas; and <u>2</u> areas. |

Formula:

 Σ [(Order Completion Date) – (Order Application Date) – (Time interval between the Original Due Date and the Applicable Date) – (Time intervals associated with customer-initiated due date changes or delays occurring after the Applicable Due Date)] + Total Number of Orders Completed in the reporting period

Explanation: The average installation interval is derived by dividing the sum of installation intervals for all orders (in business days)^{NOTE 1} by total number of service orders completed in the reporting period. **Exclusions:**

Exclusions:

- Orders with customer requested due dates greater than the current standard interval.
- Disconnect, From (another form of disconnect) and Record order types.
- Records involving official company services.
- · Records with invalid due dates or application dates.
- Records with invalid completion dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

OP-4 – Installation Interval (continued)

| Product Reporting: | Standards: | |
|---|---|--|
| MSA-Type Disaggregation - | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| Resale | | |
| Residential single line service | Parity with retail service | |
| Business single line service | Parity with retail service | |
| Centrex | Parity with retail service | |
| Centrex 21 | Parity with retail service | |
| DS0 (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| PBX Trunks (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Primary ISDN (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Basic ISDN (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Qwest DSL (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Parity with like retail service | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Parity with retail Centrex 21 | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Parity with retail Centrex | |
| Line Splitting | 3.3 days | |
| Line Sharing | 3.3 days | |
| Sub-Loop Unbundling | CO: 6 davs | |
| | All Other States: Diagnostic | |
| Zone-Type Disaggregation - | | |
| Resale | | |
| Primary ISDN (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Basic ISDN(designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| DS0 (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| DS1 | Parity with retail service | |
| PBX Trunks (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Qwest DSL (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| DS3 and higher bit-rate services | Parity with retail service | |
| (aggregate) | | |
| Frame Relay | Parity with retail service | |
| LIS Trunks | Parity with Feature Group D (aggregate) | |
| Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UI | ן ארגעריין ארגעריין ארג | |
| UDIT – DS1 level | Parity with DS1 Private Line Service | |
| UDIT – Above DS1 level | Parity with Private Lines above DS1 level | |
| Dark Fiber – IOF | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Loops: | | |
| Analog Loop | 6 days | |
| Non-loaded Loop (2-wire) | 6 days | |
| Non-loaded Loop (4-wire) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line | |
| DS1-capable Loop | Idaho, Iowa, Montana, Nebraska, North Dakota, Oregon, Wyoming: Parity with retail DS1 Private Line Arizona, Colorado, Minnesota, New Mexico, | |
| | South Dakota, Utah, Washington: 5.5 days | |
| | 6 days | |
| ADSL-qualified Loop | Davity with rotail DS2 and higher hit rate convicts | |
| Loop types of DS3 and higher bit-rates | ranty with retail DS3 and higher Dit-rate services | |
| | | |
| Loops with Conditioning | | |
| | 10 days | |

OP-4 – Installation Interval (continued)

| • E911/911 Trunks | | Parity with retail E911/911 Trunks |
|--|---|--|
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS0 level) | | Diagnostic |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS1 level) | | 6 days |
| Enhanced Extended Loop level) | os (EELs) – (DS3 | Diagnostic |
| Availability: | Notes: | |
| Available | For OP-4C, Satu Resale Residen as for the retail a other products u -4D, and -4E. S service order is According to this per successive of to the point whe that point, the A further changes Qwest-initiated of initiated due dat changes or dela subtracted as in are calculated a cases where mu stated method for of Qwest-initiated initiated due dat from each pairin summed and the result of this app are counted in th on intervals are | urday is counted as a business day for all orders for ce, Resale Business, and UNE-P (POTS), as well analogues specified above as standards. For all inder OP-4C and for all products under OP-4A, -4B, aturday is counted as a business day when the due or completed on Saturday. s definition, the Applicable Due Date can change, customer-initiated due date changes or delays, up n a Qwest-initiated due date change occurs. At pplicable Due Date becomes fixed (i.e., with no) as the date on which it was set prior to the first due date change, if any. Following the first Qwest- e change, any further customer-initiated due date tys are measured as time intervals that are dicated in the formula. These delay time intervals s stated in the description. (Though infrequent, in ultiple Qwest-initiated due date changes occur, the or calculating delay intervals is applied to each pair ad due date change and subsequent customer- te change or delay. The intervals thus calculated ing of Qwest and customer-initiated due dates are en subtracted as indicated in the formula.) The proach is that Qwest-initiated impacts on intervals he reported interval, and customer-initiated impacts not counted in the reported interval. |

OP-5 – New Service Quality

Purpose:

Evaluates the quality of ordering and installing new services (inward line service orders), focusing on the percentage of newly-installed service orders that are free of CLEC/customer-initiated trouble reports during the provisioning process and within 30 calendar days following installation completion, and focusing on the quality of Qwest's resolution of such conditions with respect to multiple reports.

Description:

Measures two components of new service provisioning quality (OP-5A and -5B) and also reports a combined result (OP-5T), as described below, each as a percentage of all inward line service orders completed in the reporting period that are free of CLEC/customer-reported provisioning and repair trouble reports, as described below. Also measures the percentage of all provisioning and repair trouble reports that constitute multiple trouble reports for the affected service orders. (OP-5R)

- Orders for new services considered in calculating all components of this performance indicator are all inward line service orders completed in the reporting period, including Change (C-type) orders for additional lines/circuits, subject to exclusions shown below. Change order types considered in these measurements consist of all C orders representing inward activity.
- Orders for new service installations include conversions (Retail to CLEC, CLEC to CLEC, and same CLEC converting between products).
- Provisioning or repair trouble reports include both out of service and other service affecting conditions, such as features on a line that are missing or do not function properly upon conversion, subject to exclusions shown below.

OP-5A: New Service Installation Quality Reported to Repair

- Measures the percentage of inward line service orders that are free of repair trouble reports NOTE 2 within 30 calendar days of installation completion, subject to exclusions below.
- Repair trouble reports are defined as CLEC/customer notifications to Qwest of out-of-service and
 other service affecting conditions for which Qwest opens repair tickets in its maintenance and repair
 management and tracking systems ^{NOTE 3} that are closed in the reporting period or the following
 month, ^{NOTE 4} subject to exclusions shown below.
- Qwest is able to open repair tickets for repair trouble reports received from CLECs/customers once the service order is completed in Qwest's systems.

OP-5B: New Service Provisioning Quality

- Measures the percentage of inward line service orders that are free of provisioning trouble reports during the provisioning process and within 30 calendar days of installation completion, subject to exclusions shown below.
- Provisioning trouble reports are defined as CLEC notifications to Qwest of out of service or other service affecting conditions that are attributable to provisioning activities, including but not limited to LSR/service order mismatches and conversion outages. For provisioning trouble reports, Qwest creates call center tickets in its call center database. Subject to exclusions shown below, call center tickets closed in the reporting period or the following month ^{NOTE 4} are captured in this measurement. Call center tickets closed to Network reasons will not be counted in OP-5B when a repair trouble report for that order is captured in OP-5A.

OP-5T: New Service Installation Quality Total

 Measures the percentage of inward line service orders that are free of repair or provisioning trouble reports during the provisioning process and within 30 calendar days of installation completion, subject to exclusion shown below.

OP-5R: New Service Quality Multiple Report Rate

- Evaluates the quality of Qwest's responses to repair and provisioning trouble reports for inward line service orders completed in the reporting period. This measurement reports, for those service orders that were *not* free of repair or provisioning trouble reports in OP-5A or OP-5B, the percentage of trouble reports affecting the same service orders that were followed by additional repair and provisioning trouble reports, as specified below.
- Measures the percentage of all repair and provisioning trouble reports considered in OP-5A and OP-5B that are additional repair or provisioning trouble reports received by Qwest for the same service order during the provisioning process or within 30 calendar days following installation

OP-5 – New Service Quality (continued)

completion.

 Additional repair or provisioning trouble reports are defined as all such reports that are received following the first report (whether the first report is represented by a call center ticket or a repair ticket) relating to the same service order during the provisioning process or within 30 calendar days following installation completion. In all cases, the trouble reports counted are those that are defined for OP-5A and OP-5B above.

| Reporting Period: One month, reported in arrears | (i.e., results first appear | Unit of Measure: | | | |
|---|--------------------------------------|-----------------------------------|--|--|--|
| in reports one month later than results for measurements that are not Percent | | | | | |
| reported in arrears), in order to cover the 30-day pe | eriod following installation. | | | | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, | Disaggregation Reportin | ig: Statewide level | | | |
| individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | | | | | |
| Formulas: | | | | | |
| OP-5A = (Number inward line service orders comp | pleted in the reporting period | d – Number of inward line | | | |
| service orders with any repair trouble rep | <u>oorts</u> as specified above) ÷ (| Number of inward line service | | | |
| orders completed in the reporting period) |) x 100 | | | | |
| OD FD (Number of inword line convice orders of | - maletad in the reportion of | riad Number of inverse line | | | |
| OP-5D = (Number of inward line service orders co | Simpleted in the reporting pe | nod – Number of Inward line | | | |
| service orders with any provisioning trout | Die reports as specified abo | ve) ÷ (Number of Inward line | | | |
| service orders completed in the reporting | j pendu) x 100 | | | | |
| OP-5T = $($ [Number of inward line service orders co | ompleted in the reporting pe | riod] – Number of inward line | | | |
| service orders with repair or provisioning | trouble reports as defined | above under OP-5A or OP-5B. | | | |
| as applicable) ÷ (Number of inward line s | service orders completed in | the reporting period) x 100 | | | |
| | | | | | |
| OP-5R = (Number of all repair and provisioning tro | uble reports, relating to inwa | ard line service orders closed in | | | |
| the reporting period as defined above un | der OP-5A or OP-5B, that c | onstitute additional repair and | | | |
| provisioning trouble reports, within 30 calendar days following the installation date + Number of all | | | | | |
| repair and provisioning trouble reports re | lating to inward line service | orders closed In the reporting | | | |
| period, as defined above under OP-5A o | r OP-5B) x 100 | | | | |
| Exclusions: | | | | | |
| Applicable to OP-5A, OP-5T and OP-5R: | | | | | |
| Repair trouble reports attributable to CLEC or a | coded to non-Qwest reason | s as follows: | | | |
| For products measured from MTAS data, r | epair trouble reports coded | to disposition codes for: | | | |
| Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant; Tro | puble Beyond the Network I | nterface; and Miscellaneous - | | | |
| Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider); and | | | | | |
| Reports from other than the CLEC/customer that result in a charge if dispatched. | | | | | |
| For products measured from WFA (Workfc | orce Administration) data, re | pair reports coded to codes for: | | | |
| Carrier Action (IEC); Customer Provide | ed Equipment (CPE); Comm | nercial power failure; Customer | | | |
| requested service order activity; and C |)ther non-Qwest. | | | | |
| - Repair reports coded to disposition codes for referral to another department (i.e., for non-repair ticket | | | | | |
| resolutions of non-installation-related problems, except cable cuts, which are not excluded). | | | | | |
| Applicable to OP-5B, OP-5T and OP-5R only: | | - | | | |
| Provisioning trouble reports attributable to CLE | C or non-Qwest causes. | | | | |

 Call center tickets relating to activities that occur as part of the normal process of conversion (i.e., while Qwest is actively and properly engaged in process of converting or installing the service). Provisioning trouble reports involving service orders that, at the time of the calls, have fallen out for manual handling and been disassociated from the related service order, as applicable, will be considered as not in the normal process of conversion and will not be excluded.

Applicable to OP-5A, OP-5B, OP-5T and OP-5R:

- Repair or provisioning trouble reports related to service orders captured as misses under measurements OP-13 (Coordinated Cuts Timeliness) or OP-17 (LNP Timeliness).
- Subsequent repair or provisioning trouble reports of any trouble on the installed service before the original repair or provisioning trouble report is closed.
- Service orders closed in the reporting period with App Dates earlier than eight months prior to the

OP-5 – New Service Quality (continued)

beginning of the reporting period.

- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Disconnect, From (another form of disconnect) and Record order types. When out of service or service
 affecting problems are reported to the call center on conversion and move requests, the resulting call
 center ticket will be included in the calculation of the numerator in association with the related inward
 order type even when the call center ticket reflects the problem was caused by the Disconnect or From
 order.

• Records involving official Qwest company services.

| Re | cords missing data essential to the | calculation o | f the measurement as defined herein. |
|-----|-------------------------------------|---------------|--|
| Pro | duct Reporting Categories: | Standards: | |
| • | As specified below – one | OP-5A: | Parity with retail service |
| | percentage result reported for | OP-5B: | Diagnostic for six months following first reporting. After |
| | each bulleted category under | | six months Benchmark (TBD) |
| | the sub-measurements shown. | OP-5T: | Diagnostic |
| | | OP-5R: | Diagnostic for six months following first reporting. |
| | | | Possible standard (TBD) |
| | | (Where pari | ty comparisons involve multiple service varieties in a |
| | | product cate | egory, weighting based on the retail analogue volumes may |
| | | be used if n | ecessary to create a comparison that is not affected by |
| | | different pro | portions of wholesale and retail analogue volumes in the |
| | | same report | ing category.) |

OP- 5 - New Service Quality (continued)Product Reporting:Standards:

| 2 | du | ct | Re | ро | rtin | g: | |
|---|----|----|----|----|------|----|--|

-----_

| (Product categories may be combined as agreed upon by the parties in Long-Term PID Administration) | | | |
|--|---|---------------------------------|--------------|
| (i foundit categories may be com | OP-5A | OP-5B | OP-5T & |
| | | | <u>OP-5R</u> |
| Resale | | | |
| Residential single line | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| service | | | Ū |
| Business single line | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| service | | | _ |
| Centrex | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| Centrex 21 | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| PBX Trunks | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| Basic ISDN | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| Qwest DSL | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| Primary ISDN | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| DS0 | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| DS1 | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| DS3 and higher bit- | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| rate services | | | |
| (aggregate) | | | |
| Frame Relay | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| Unbundled Network | Parity with like retail | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| Element – Platform | service | | |
| (UNE-P) (POTS) | | | |
| Unbundled Network | Parity with retail Centrex | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| Element – Platform | 21 | | |
| (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | | | |
| Unbundled Network | Parity with retail Centrex | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| Element – Platform | | | |
| (UNE-P) (Centrex) | | | |
| Line Splitting | Diagnostic | Diagnostic | Diagnostic |
| Line Sharing | Parity with retail RES & | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| | BUSPOTS | | |
| Sub-Loop Unbundling | Diagnostic | Diagnostic | Diagnostic |
| Unbundled Loops: | | | I |
| Analog Loop | Parity with retail Res & | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| | Bus POTS with dispatch | | |
| Non-loaded Loop (2- | Parity with retail ISDN | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| wire) | BRI | | |
| Non-loaded Loop (4- | Parity with retail DS1 | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark IBD | Diagnostic |
| wire) | | | |
| DS1-capable Loop | Parity with retail DS1 | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| ISDN-capable Loop | BRI | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| ADSL-qualified Loop | Parity with retail Qwest DSL with dispatch | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| Loop types of DS3 and | Parity with retail DS3 | 6 mo, Diagnostic: Benchmark TRD | Diagnostic |
| higher bit-rates | and higher bit-rate | | |
| (aggregate) | services (aggregate) | | |
| Dark Fiber - Loop | Diagnostic | Diagnostic | Diagnostic |

.

OP-5 – New Service Quality (continued)

| | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
|--|---------------|---|--|-----------------------------------|
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS0 level) | | Diagnostic until volume | Diagnostic until volume criteria are | Diagnostic |
| | 5101) | | | |
| Enhanced Exter | ded Loops | Parity with retail DS1 | 6 mo Diagnostic: Benchmark | Diagnostic |
| (FFLs) = (DS1)k | | Private Line | TBD | Diagnostic |
| Enhanced Exter | dod Loope | Diagnostic until volume | Diagnostic until volumo critoria aro | Diagnostia |
| Enhanced Exter (EELs) - (above | | criteria are met | mot | Diagnostic |
| | 001 | chiena are met | met | |
| | | I | | |
| Reported under OF | -5A and un | der OP-5R (per OP-5A spe | ecifications): | |
| | | OP-5A | OP-5B | |
| LIS Trunks | | Parity with Feature | Diagnostic | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| | | Group D (aggregate) | Diagnostio | |
| Unbundled Dedicate | d Interoffice | Transport (UDIT) | | |
| | | Parity with Betail Private | Diagnostic | <u></u> |
| | very | Lines (DS1) | Diagnostic | |
| | | Parity with Betail Private | Diagnostic | |
| | DOT Levely | Lines (Above DS1 Jevel) | Diagnostic | |
| Dark Fiber - I(| | Diagnostic | Diagnostia | |
| | ر م | Parity with Potail | Diagnostic | |
| | .5 | F011/011 Trunke | Diagnostic | |
| Availability: | Notes: | | | ····· |
| Avanability. | 1 The en | ecified Change order types | representing inward activity evolute (| bongo |
| | orders | that do not involve installati | on of lines (in both wholesale and rote | vil rogulta) |
| Available | Specifi | ically this measurement doe | s not include changes to existing lines | |
| | numbo | cally this measurement doe | s not include changes to existing lines | , such as |
| | 2 Includi | ng consideration of report r | onair traubla raparta (i.a., additional ra | norte of |
| | z. moudu | related to the same newly | installed line/aircuit that are reasized a | ports of |
| | nrocod | ling ropair roport is closed a | nd within 20 days following installation | |
| | comple | ation) to complete the deter | mination of whother the newly installation | lino/oirouit |
| | was tro | suble free within 30 days of | installation | |
| | 3 Owest | 's repair management and t | racking systems consist of WEA (Mor | Eoroo |
| | Admin | istration) MTAS (Maintonar | acking systems consist of WIA (WOR | |
| | | sor repair evetome if any (| a applicable to obtain the repair report | n), and t data for |
| | this ma | asurement Not included a | re Call Contor Database systems sup | norting coll |
| | center | s in logging calls from custo | more regarding problems or other ing | uring call |
| | OP-5B | k = 100000000000000000000000000000000000 | mers regarding problems of other inqu | ines (see |
| UP-5B and UP-51). | | | o the period of a few business days (tr | voicelly four |
| | or five |) afterward up to the time w | ben Owest pulls the repair data to be | vpically lour |
| | proces | sing results for this measur | amont | J11 1 |
| | 5 Include | e renair and provisioning tr | ouble reports generated by now proce | ecos that |
| | | ade or supplement existing | processes for submitting repair and a | ooto inal |
| | trouble | reports as specified in Own | processes for submitting repair and pro- | edures |
| | 6 For pu | rooses of calculating OP_5F | a call center ticket for multiple order | e with |
| | provici | oning trouble reports will re- | sult in all orders reporting trouble sour | |
| | | $O_{\rm P}$ $S_{\rm R}$ If a rapair trauble | report(a) is reactived for the same and | uny as a |
| | | r of orders sounded as a mi | neport(s) is received for the same orde | is, lite |
| | | number of orders with rese | in troubles sounted as a miss in OD 5 | le reduced |
| | | will be counted on a partir | n noubles counted as a miss in OP-5A | ۰. |
| | | win be counted on a per lic | NGI VQƏIƏ. | |
| | | | | |

OP-6 – Delayed Days

Purpose:

Evaluates the extent Qwest is late in installing services for customers, focusing on the average number of days that late orders are completed beyond the committed due date.

Description:

OP-6A – Measures the average number of <u>business days</u>^{NOTE 1} that service is delayed beyond the Applicable Due Date for non-facility reasons attributed to Qwest.

• Includes all inward orders (Change, New, and Transfer order types) that are completed/closed during the reporting period, later, due to non-facility reasons, than the Applicable Due Date recorded by Qwest, subject to exclusions specified below.

OP-6B – Measures the average number of business days ^{NOTE 1} that service is delayed beyond the Applicable Due Date for facility reasons attributed to Qwest.

 Includes all inward orders (Change, New, and Transfer order types) that are completed/closed during the reporting period later due to facility reasons than the original due date recorded by Qwest, subject to exclusions specified below.

For both OP-6A and OP-6B:

- · Change order types for additional lines consist of "C" orders representing inward activity.
- The Applicable Due Date is the original due date or, if changed or delayed by the customer, the most recently revised due date, subject to the following: If Qwest changes a due date for Qwest reasons, the Applicable Due Date is the customer-initiated due date, if any, that is (a) subsequent to the original due date and (b) prior to a Qwest-initiated, changed due date, if any.
- Time intervals associated with customer-initiated due date changes or delays occurring after the Applicable Due Date, as applied in the formula below, are calculated by subtracting the latest Qwestinitiated due date, if any, following the Applicable Due Date, from the subsequent customer-initiated due date, if any.

| Reporting Period: One month | | Unit of Measure: Average Business Days | |
|--|--|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. Results for products/services listed under Product Reporting under "<u>MSA</u>-type Disaggregation" will be reported for OP-6A and OP-6B according to orders involving: Dispatches within MSAs; Dispatches outside MSAs; and No dispatches. Results for products/services listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type Disaggregation" will be disaggregated according to installations: In <u>Interval Zone 1</u> areas; and In <u>Interval Zone 2</u> areas. | | |
| Formula: OP-6A = ∑[(Actual Completion Date of late order for non-facility reasons) – (Applicable Due Date of late order) – (Time intervals associated with customer-initiated due date changes or delays occurring after the Applicable Due Date)] ÷ (Total Number of Late Orders for non-facility reasons completed in the reporting period) | | | |
| OP-6B = ∑[(Actual Completion Date of late order for facility reasons) – (Applicable Due Date of late order)] – (Time intervals associated with customer-initiated due date changes or delays occurring after the Applicable Due Date) ÷ (Total Number of Late Orders for facility reasons completed in the reporting period) | | | |

OP-6 – Delayed Days (continued)

Exclusions:

- Orders affected only by delays that are solely for customer and/or CLEC reasons.
- Disconnect, From (another form of disconnect) and Record order types.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid due dates or <u>application dates</u>.
- Records with invalid completion dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

 Product Reporting:

 Standards:

| MAC | A-Type Disaggregation | | |
|----------|--|---|--|
| | | 1 | |
| - | Desidential single line convice | Parity with ratail parviag | |
| | | Parity with retail service | |
| | | Parity with retail service | |
| | | Parity with retail service | |
| | | Parity with retail service | |
| | DSU (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| | Primany ISDN (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| | | Parity with retail service | |
| | Owest DSL (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| | | Parity with like retail convice | |
| • | Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Parity with like retail service | |
| • | Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Parity with retail Centrex 21 | |
| • | Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Parity with retail Centrex | |
| • | Line Splitting | Parity with retail Qwest DSL | |
| • | Line Sharing | Parity with retail Qwest DSL | |
| • | Sub-Loop Unbundling | Diagnostic | |
| Zo | ne-type Disaggregation - | 1 | |
| • | Resale | | |
| | Primary ISDN (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| | Basic ISDN (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| | DS0 (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| | DS1 | Parity with retail service | |
| | PBX Trunks (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| | Qwest DSL (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| | DS3 and higher bit-rate services | Parity with retail service | |
| L | (aggregate) | | |
| | Frame Relay | Parity with retail service | |
| • | LIS Trunks | Parity with Feature Group D (aggregate) | |
| • | Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UDI | T) | |
| | UDIT – DS1 level | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line- Service | |
| | UDIT – Above DS1 level | Parity with retail Private Line- Services above DS1 level | |
| | Dark Fiber – IOF | Diagnostic | |
| • | Unbundled Loops: | | |
| | Analog Loop | Parity with retail Res and Bus POTS with dispatch | |
| | Non-loaded Loop (2-wire) | Parity with retail ISDN BRI | |
| | Non-loaded Loop (4-wire) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line | |
| | DS1-capable Loop | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line | |
| | ISDN-capable Loop | Parity with retail ISDN BRI | |
| | ADSL-gualified Loop | Parity with retail Qwest DSL, with dispatch | |
| | Loop types of DS3 and higher bit-rates | Parity with retail DS3 and higher bit-rate Private | |
| | (aggregate) | Line services (aggregate) | |

OP-6 – Delayed Days (continued)

| Dark Fiber – Loop | | Diagnostic |
|--|--|---|
| • E911/911 Trunks | | Parity with retail E911/911 Trunks |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS0 level) | | Diagnostic |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS1 level) | | OP-6A: Parity with retail DS1 Private Line OP-6B: Diagnostic |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS3 level) | | Diagnostic |
| Availability: | Notes: | |
| Availability. Available | Notes: For OP-6A-3 and OP-6B-3, Saturday is counted as a business day for all orders for Resale Residence, Resale Business, and UNE-P (POTS), as well as for the retail analogues specified above as standards. For all other products under OP-6A-3 and OP-6B-3, and for all products under OP-6A-1, -6A-2, -6A-4, -6A-5, -6B-1, -6B-2, - 6B-4, and -6B-5, Saturday is counted as a business day when the service order is due or completed on Saturday. According to this definition, the Applicable Due Date can change, per successive customer-initiated due date changes or delays, up to the point when a Qwest-initiated due date change occurs. At that point, the Applicable Due Date becomes fixed (i.e., with no further changes) as the date on which it was set prior to the first Qwest-initiated due date change, if any. Following the first Qwest-initiated due date change, any further customer-initiated due date changes or delays are measured as time intervals that are subtracted as indicated in the formula. These delay time intervals are calculated as stated in the description. (Though infrequent, in cases where multiple Qwest- initiated due date change occur, the stated method for calculating delay intervals is applied to each pair of Qwest-initiated due date change and subsequent customer-initiated due date change or delay. The intervals thus calculated from each pairing of Qwest and customer-initiated due dates are summed and then subtracted as indicated in the formula.) The result of this approach is that Qwest- initiated impacts on intervals are counted in the reported interval, and customer-initiated impacts on intervals are not counted in the reported interval. | |

OP-7 – Coordinated "Hot Cut" Interval – Unbundled Loop

Purpose: Evaluates the duration of completing coordinated "hot cuts" of unbundled loops, focusing on the time actually involved in disconnecting the loop from the Qwest network and connecting/testing the loop. Description: Measures the average time to complete coordinated "hot cuts" for unbundled loops, based on intervals beginning with the "lift" time and ending with the completion time of Qwest's applicable tests for the loop. Includes all coordinated hot cuts of unbundled loops that are completed/closed during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below. • "Hot cut" refers to moving the service of existing customers from Qwest's switch/frames to the CLEC's equipment, via unbundled loops, that will serve the customers. • "Lift" time is defined as when Qwest disconnects the existing loop. "Completion time" is defined as when Qwest completes the applicable tests after connecting the loop to the CLEC. Reporting Period: One month Unit of Measure: Hours and Minutes Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and individual CLEC results Formula: \sum [Completion time – Lift time] + (Total Number of unbundled loops with coordinated cutovers completed in the reporting period) **Exclusions:** Time intervals associated with CLEC-caused delays. Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID. • Invalid start/stop dates/times or invalid scheduled date/times. Product Reporting: Coordinated Unbundled Standard: Loops - Reported separately for: CO: 1 hour All Other States: Diagnostic in light of OP-13 Analog Loops (Coordinated Cuts On Time) All other Loop Types Availability: Notes: Available

OP-8 – Number Portability Timeliness

Purpose:

| Evaluates the timeliness of cutovers of local number portability (LNP). | | | |
|---|--|--|--|
| Description: OP-8B – LNP Timeliness with Loop Coordination (percent): Measures the percentage of coordinated LNP triggers set prior to the scheduled start time for the loop. All orders for LNP coordinated with unbundled loops that are completed/closed during the reporting period are measured, subject to exclusions specified below. OP-8C – LNP Timeliness without Loop Coordination (percent): Measures the percentage of LNP triggers set prior to the Frame Due Time or scheduled start time for the LNP cutover as applicable. All orders for LNP for which coordination with a loop was not requested that are completed/closed during the reporting period are measured (including standalone LNP coordinated with other than Qwest-provided Unbundled Loops and non-coordinated, standalone LNP), subject to exclusions specified below. For purposes of these measurements (OP-8B and -8C), "trigger" refers to the "10-digit unconditional trigger" or Line Side Attribute (LSA) that is set or translated by Qwest. "Scheduled start time" is defined as the confirmed appointment time (as stated on the FOC), or a newly negotiated time. In the case of LNP cutovers coordinated with loops, the scheduled time used in this measurement will be no later than the "lay" time for the loop. | | | |
| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent of triggers set on time | | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and individual CLEC results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. | | |
| (Total Number of LNP activations coordinated with unbundled loops completed)] x 100 OP-8C = [(Number of LNP triggers set before the Frame Due Time or Scheduled Start Time) ÷ (Total Number of LNP activations without loop cutovers completed)] x 100 | | | |
| Exclusions: CLEC-caused delays in trigger setting. LNP requests that do not involve automatic triggers (e.g., DID lines without separate, unique telephone numbers and Centrex 21). LNP requests for which the records used as sources of data for these measurements have the following types of errors: Records with no PON (purchase order number) or STATE. Records where triggers cannot be set due to switch capabilities. Records with invalid due dates, <u>application dates</u>, or start dates. Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID. Invalid start/stop dates/times or invalid frame due or scheduled date/times. | | | |
| Product Reporting: None | Standard: 95% | | |
| Availability: Available | Notes: | | |

٦
OP-13 – Coordinated Cuts On Time – Unbundled Loop

Purpose:

Evaluates the percentage of coordinated cuts of unbundled loops that are completed on time, focusing on cuts completed within one hour of the committed order due time and the percent that were started without CLEC approval.

Description:

- Includes all LSRs for coordinated cuts of unbundled loops that are completed/closed during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- OP-13A Measures the percentage of LSRs (CLEC orders) for all coordinated cuts of unbundled loops that are started and completed on time. For coordinated loop cuts to be counted as "on time" in this measurement, the CLEC must agree to the start time, and Qwest must (1) receive verbal CLEC approval before starting the cut or lifting the loop, (2) complete the physical work and appropriate tests, (3) complete the Qwest portion of any associated LNP orders and (4) call the CLEC with completion information, all within one hour of the time interval defined by the committed order due time.
- OP-13B Measures the percentage of all LSRs for coordinated cuts of unbundled loops that are actually started without CLEC approval.
- "Scheduled start time" is defined as the confirmed appointment time (as stated on the FOC), or a newly negotiated appointment time.
- The "committed order due time" is based on the number and type of loops involved in the cut and is calculated by adding the applicable time interval from the following list to the scheduled start time:
 - Analog unbundled loops:

| 1 to 16 lines: | 1 Hour |
|-----------------|----------|
| 17 to 24 lines: | 2 Hours |
| 25+ lines: | Project* |

All other unbundled loops:

| 1 to 5 lines: | ์ 1 Hour |
|-----------------|----------|
| 6 to 8 lines: | 2 Hours |
| 9 to 11 lines: | 3 Hours |
| 12 to 24 lines: | 4 Hours |
| 25+ lines: | Project* |

*For <u>Projects</u> scheduled due dates and scheduled start times will be negotiated between CLEC and Qwest, but no committed order due time is established. Therefore, projects are not included in OP-13A (see exclusion below).

- "Stop" time is defined as when Qwest notifies the CLEC that the Qwest physical work and the appropriate tests have been successfully accomplished, including the Qwest portion of any coordinated LNP orders.
- Time intervals following the scheduled start time or during the cutover process associated with customer-caused delays are subtracted from the actual cutover duration.
- Where Qwest's records of completed coordinated cut transactions are missing evidence of CLEC approval of the cutover, the cut will be counted as a miss under both OP-13A and OP-13B.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|---|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and individual CLEC results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. Results for this measurement will be reported according to: OP-13A Cuts Completed On Time OP-13B Cuts Started Without CLEC Approval |

OP-13 – Coordinated Cuts On Time – Unbundled Loop (continued)

| Formula: OP-13A = [(Count of LSRs for Coordinated Unbundled Loop cuts completed "On Time") ÷ (Total Number of LSRs for Coordinated Unbundled Loop Cuts completed in the reporting period)] x 100 | | |
|---|---|--|
| OP-13B = [(Count of LSRs for Coordinated Unbundled Loop cuts whose actual start time occurs without CLEC approval) ÷ (Total Number of LSRs for Coordinated Unbundled Loop Cuts completed in the reporting period)] x 100 | | |
| Exclusions: Applicable to OP-13A: Loop cuts that involve CLEC-requested non-standard methodologies, processes, or timelines. | | |
| OP-13A & OP-13B: Records with invalid completion dates. Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID which are not otherwise designated to be "counted as a miss". Invalid start/stop dates/times or invalid scheduled date/times. Projects involving 25 or more lines. | | |
| Product Reporting: Coordinated Unbundled Loops – Reported separately for: Analog Loops | Standards: OP-13A: AZ: 90 Percent or more | |
| All Other Loops | All Other States: 95 Percent or more OP-13B: Diagnostic | |
| Availability: Notes: Available | | |

OP-15 – Interval for Pending Orders Delayed Past Due Date

Purpose:

Evaluates the extent to which Qwest's pending orders are late, focusing on the average number of days the pending orders are delayed past the Applicable Due Date, as of the end of the reporting period.

Description:

OP-15A – Measures the average number of <u>business days</u> that pending orders are delayed beyond the Applicable Due Date for reasons attributed to Qwest.

- Includes all pending inward orders (Change, New, and Transfer order types) for which the Applicable Due Date recorded by Qwest has been missed, subject to exclusions specified below. Change order types included in this measurement consist of all "C" orders representing <u>inward activity</u>.
- The Applicable Due Date is the original due date or, if changed or delayed by the customer, the most
 recently revised due date, subject to the following: If Qwest changes a due date for Qwest reasons, the
 Applicable Due Date is the customer-initiated due date, if any, that is (a) subsequent to the original due
 date and (b) prior to a Qwest-initiated, changed due date, if any. NOTE 1
- Time intervals associated with customer-initiated due date changes or delays occurring after the Applicable Due Date, as applied in the formula below, are calculated by subtracting the latest Qwestinitiated due date, if any, following the Applicable Due Date, from the subsequent customer-initiated due date, if any.

OP-15B – Reports the number of pending orders measured in the numerator of OP-15A that were delayed for Qwest facility reasons.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: OP-15A – Average Business Days ^{NOTE 2} OP-15B – Number of orders pending facilities | |
|---|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC, Qwest retail | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide | |

Formula:

- OP-15A = ∑[(Last Day of Reporting Period) (Applicable Due Date of Late Pending Order) (Time intervals associated with customer-initiated due date changes or delays occurring after the Applicable Due Date)] + (Total Number of Pending Orders Delayed for Qwest reasons as of the last day of Reporting Period)
- OP-15B = Count of pending orders measured in numerator of OP-15A that were delayed for Qwest facility reasons

- Disconnect, From (another form of disconnect) and Record order types.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid due dates or application dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

| Product Reporting: | Standards: OP-15B = diagnostic only | |
|---|---|--|
| | <u>FULOF-15A</u> . | |
| Residential single line convice | Disgnastia (Evastation: Davity with wetail as is a) | |
| Pusinoso single line service | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| | | |
| PBX Trunk | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| Basic ISDN | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service | |
| Qwest DSL | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| Primary ISDN | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| DS0 | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| DS1 | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| DS3 and higher bit-rate services (aggregate) | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| Frame Relay | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail Centrex 21) | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail Centrex) | |
| Line Splitting | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail Qwest DSL) | |
| Line Sharing | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail Qwest DSL) | |
| Sub-Loop Unbundling | Diagnostic | |
| LIS Trunks | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with Feature Group D | |
| | (aggregate)) (separately reported) | |
| Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UD | IT) | |
| UDIT – DS1 level | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with DS1 Private | |
| | Line- Service) | |
| UDIT – Above DS1 level | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with Private Line- | |
| | Services above DS1 level) | |
| Dark Fiber – IOF | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Loops: | | |
| Analog Loop | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail Res and | |
| | Bus POTS with dispatch) | |
| Non-loaded Loop (2-wire) | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail ISDN BBI) | |
| Non-loaded Loop (4-wire) | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail DS1) | |
| DS1-capable Loop | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail DS1) | |
| ISDN-capable Loop | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with ISDN-BRI) | |
| ADSL-qualified Loop | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail Owest DSI | |
| | with dispatch) | |
| Loop types of DS3 or higher bit rate | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail DS3 and | |
| (aggregate) | higher bit-rate services (aggregate) | |
| Dark Fiber – Loop | Diagnostic | |
| • E911/911 Trunks | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail E911/911 Trunks) | |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) | Diagnostic | |

OP-15 – Interval for Pending Orders Delayed Past Due Date (continued)

OP-15 – Interval for Pending Orders Delayed Past Due Date (continued)

| Availability: | Notes: |
|---------------|---|
| Available | According to this definition, the Applicable Due Date can change, per successive customer-initiated due date changes or delays, up to the point when a Qwest-initiated due date change occurs. At that point, the Applicable Due Date becomes fixed (i.e., with no further changes) as the date on which it was set prior to the first Qwest-initiated due date change, if any. Following the first Qwest-initiated due date change, any further customer-initiated due date changes or delays are measured as time intervals that are subtracted as indicated in the formula. These delay time intervals are calculated as stated in the description. (Though infrequent, in cases where multiple Qwest-initiated due date changes occur, the stated method for calculating delay intervals is applied to each pair of Qwest-initiated due date change and subsequent customer-initiated due date change or delay. The intervals thus calculated from each pairing of Qwest and customer-initiated due dates are summed and then subtracted as indicated in the formula.) The result of this approach is that Qwest-initiated impacts on intervals are counted in the reported interval. |
| | 2. For OP-15A, Saturday is counted as a business day for all non-dispatched orders for Resale Residence, Resale Business, and UNE-P (POTS), as well as for non-dispatched orders in the retail analogues specified above as standards. For all other non-dispatched products and for all dispatched products under OP-15A, Saturday is not counted as a business day. |

OP-17 – Timeliness of Disconnects associated with LNP Orders

Purpose:

Evaluates the quality of Qwest completing LNP telephone number porting, focusing on the degree to which porting occurs without implementing associated disconnects before the scheduled time/date.

Description:

OP-17Å

- Measures the percentage of all LNP telephone numbers (TNs), both stand alone and associated with loops, that are ported without the incidence of disconnects being made by Qwest before the scheduled time/date, as identified by associated qualifying trouble reports.
 - Focuses on disconnects associated with timely CLEC requests for delaying the disconnects or no requests for delays.
 - The scheduled time/date is defined as 11:59 p.m. on (1) the due date of the LNP order recorded by Qwest or (2) the delayed disconnect date requested by the CLEC, where the CLEC submits a timely request for delay of disconnection.
 - A CLEC request for delay of disconnection is considered timely if received by Qwest before 8:00 p.m. MT on the current due date of the LNP order recorded by Qwest.

OP-17B

- Measures the percentage of all LNP telephone numbers (TNs), both stand alone and associated with loops, that are ported without the incidence of disconnects being made by Qwest before the scheduled time/date, as identified by associated qualifying trouble reports.
 - Includes only disconnects associated with untimely CLEC requests for delaying the disconnects.
 - A CLEC request for delay of disconnection is considered "untimely" if received by Qwest after 8:00 p.m. MT on the current due date of the LNP order recorded by Qwest and before 12:00 p.m. MT (noon) on the day after the current due date.
- Disconnects are defined as the removal of switch translations, including the 10-digit trigger.
- Disconnects that are implemented early, and thus counted as a "miss" under this measurement, are those that the CLEC identifies as such to Qwest via trouble reports, within four calendar days of the actual disconnect date, that are confirmed to be caused by disconnects being made before the scheduled time.
- Includes all CLEC orders for LNP TNs completed in the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|-------------------------------------|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC Aggregate and Individual CLEC | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide |
| | |

Formula:

[(Total number of LNP TNs ported pursuant to orders completed in the reporting period – Number of TNs with qualifying trouble reports notifying Qwest that disconnection before the scheduled time has occurred) + Total Number of LNP TNs ported pursuant to orders completed in the reporting period] x 100

OP-17 – Timeliness of Disconnects associated with LNP Orders (continued)

Exclusions:

OP-17A only

• Trouble reports notifying Qwest of early disconnects associated with situations for which the CLEC has failed to submit timely requests to have disconnects held for later implementation.

OP-17A & B

- Trouble reports not related to valid requests (LSRs) for LNP and associated disconnects.
- LNP requests that do not involve automatic triggers (e.g., DID lines without separate, unique TNs, and Centrex 21).
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared, closed or due dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

OP-17B only

• Trouble reports notifying Qwest of early disconnects associated with situations for which the CLEC did not submit its untimely requests by 12:00 p.m. MT (noon) on the day after the LNP due date to have disconnects held for later implementation.

| Product Reporting: LNP | Standards: OP-17A – 98.25% OP-17B – Diagnostic only, in light of its measuring only requests for delay of disconnect that are defined as untimely. |
|----------------------------|--|
| Availability: Available | Notes: |

Maintenance and Repair

MR-2 – Calls Answered within 20 Seconds – Interconnect Repair Center

| Evaluates Customer access to Qwest's Interconnection and/or Retail Repair Center(s), focusing on the number of calls answered within 20 seconds. | on | |
|--|------|--|
| the number of calls answered within 20 seconds. | | |
| | | |
| Description: | | |
| Measures the percentage of Interconnection and/or Retail Repair Center calls answered within | n 20 | |
| seconds of the first ring. | | |
| Includes all calls to the Interconnect Repair Center during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below. | | |
| First ring is defined as when the customer's call is first placed in queue by the ACD (Automatic Call Distributor). | | |
| Answer is defined as when the call is first picked up by the Qwest agent. | | |
| Abandoned calls and busy calls are counted as calls which are not answered within 20 secon | ds. | |
| Reporting Period: One month Unit of Measure: Percent | | |
| | | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. | | |
| | | |
| [(Total Calls Answered by Center within 20 seconds) - (Total Calls received by Center)] x 100 | | |
| | | |
| Exclusions: Time spent in the VRLL (Voice Response Unit) is not counted | | |
| | | |
| Product Reporting: None Standard: Parity | | |
| | | |
| Availability: Notes: | | |
| Available | | |
| | | |

MR-3 – Out of Service Cleared within 24 Hours

Purpose:

Evaluates timeliness of repair for specified services, focusing on trouble reports where the out-ofservice trouble reports were cleared within the standard estimate for specified services (i.e., 24 hours for out-of-service conditions).

Description:

Measures the percentage of out of service trouble reports, involving specified services, that are cleared within 24 hours of receipt of trouble reports from CLECs or from retail customers.

- Includes all trouble reports, closed during the reporting period, which involve a specified service that is out-of-service (i.e., unable to place or receive calls), subject to exclusions specified below.
- Time measured is from date and time that Qwest is first notified of the trouble by CLEC to date and time trouble is cleared.

| Reporting Period: (| One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: 3 Results for product/servic Disaggregation" will be dis reports involving: MR-3A Dispatches w MR-3B Dispatches of MR-3C No dispatche Results for products/servi Disaggregation" will be dia MR-3D In Interval Zo MR-3E In Interval Zo | Statewide level. Estatewide level. Estatewide level. Estatewide in Product Reporting under " <u>MSA</u> -Type Saggregated and reported according to trouble within MSAs; utside MSAs; and s. ces listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type saggregated according to trouble reports involving: <u>ne 1</u> areas; and <u>ne 2</u> areas. |

Formula:

[(Number of Out of Service Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period that are cleared within 24 hours) ÷ (Total Number of Out of Service Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period)] x 100

- Trouble reports coded as follows:
 - For products measured from MTAS data (products listed for MSA-type disaggregation), trouble reports coded to disposition codes for: Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant; Trouble Beyond the Network Interface; and Miscellaneous – Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider).
 - For products measured from WFA (Workforce Administration) data (products listed for Zonetype disaggregation) trouble reports coded to trouble codes for Carrier Action (IEC) and Customer Provided Equipment (CPE).
- Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed.
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Time delays due to "no access" are excluded from repair time for products/services listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type Disaggregation".
- For products measured from MTAS data (products listed for MSA-type disaggregation), trouble reports involving a "no access" delay.
- Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

MR-3 – Out of Service Cleared within 24 Hours (Continued)

| Product Reporting: | Standards: |
|---|--|
| MSA-Type Disaggregation - | |
| Resale | |
| Residential single line service | Parity with retail service |
| Business single line service | Parity with retail service |
| Centrex | Parity with retail service |
| Centrex 21 | Parity with retail service |
| PBX Trunks | Parity with retail service |
| Basic ISDN | Parity with retail service |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Parity with appropriate retail service |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Parity with retail Centrex 21 |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Parity with retail Centrex |
| Line Splitting | TBD |
| Line Sharing | CO: Parity with Qwest DSL |
| | All Other States: Parity with RES and BUS POTS |
| Sub-Loop Unbundling | CO: Parity with retail ISDN-BRI |
| | All Other States: Diagnostic |
| Zone-type Disaggregation - | |
| Resale | |
| Qwest DSL | Parity with retail service |
| Unbundled Loops | |
| Analog Loop | Parity with retail Res and Bus POTS |
| Non-loaded Loop (2 wire) | Parity with retail ISDN-BRI |
| ISDN-capable Loop | Parity with ISDN-BRI |
| ADSL-qualified Loop | Parity with retail Qwest DSL |
| Availability: Available | Notes: |

MR-4 – All Troubles Cleared within 48 hours

Purpose:

Evaluates timeliness of repair for specified services, focusing on trouble reports of all types (both out of service and service affecting) and on the number of such trouble reports cleared within the standard estimate for specified services (i.e., 48 hours for service-affecting conditions).

Description:

Measures the percentage of trouble reports, for specified services, that are cleared within 48 hours of receipt of trouble reports from CLECs or from retail customers.

- Includes all trouble reports, closed during the reporting period, which involve a specified service, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Time measured is from date and time that Qwest is first notified of the trouble by CLEC to date and time trouble is cleared.

| Reporting Period: | One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|--|---|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: S Results for product/servic Disaggregation" will be dis reports involving: MR-4A Dispatches w MR-4B Dispatches o MR-4C No dispatche Results for products/servi Disaggregation" will be di MR-4D In Interval Zo MR-4E In Interval Zo | Statewide level. es listed in Product Reporting under " <u>MSA</u> -Type saggregated and reported according to trouble ithin MSAs; utside MSAs; and s. ces listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type saggregated according to trouble reports involving: <u>ne 1</u> areas; and <u>ne 2</u> areas |

Formula:

[(Total Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period that are cleared within 48 hours) \div (Total Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period)] x 100

- Trouble reports coded as follows:
 - For products measured from MTAS data (products listed for MSA-type disaggregation), trouble reports coded to disposition codes for: Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant; Trouble Beyond the Network Interface; and Miscellaneous – Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider).
 - For products measured from WFA (Workforce Administration) data (products listed for Zonetype disaggregation) trouble reports coded to trouble codes for Carrier Action (IEC) and Customer Provided Equipment (CPE).
- Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed.
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Time delays due to "no access" are excluded from repair time for products/services listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type Disaggregation".
- For products measured from MTAS data (products listed for MSA-type disaggregation), trouble reports involving a "no access" delay.
- Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

MR-4 – All Troubles Cleared within 48 Hours (Continued)

| Product Reporting: | Standards: |
|---|--|
| MSA-Type Disaggregation - | |
| Resale | |
| Residential single line service | Parity with retail service |
| Business single line service | Parity with retail service |
| Centrex | Parity with retail service |
| Centrex 21 | Parity with retail service |
| PBX Trunks | Parity with retail service |
| Basic ISDN | Parity with retail service |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Parity with appropriate retail service |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Parity with retail Centrex 21 |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Parity with retail Centrex |
| Line Splitting | TBD |
| Line Sharing | Parity with RES and BUS POTS |
| Sub-Loop Unbundling | Diagnostic |
| Zone-Type Disaggregation - | |
| Resale | |
| Qwest DSL | Parity with retail service |
| Unbundled Loops: | |
| Analog Loop | Parity with retail Res and Bus POTS |
| Non-loaded Loop (2 wire) | Parity with retail ISDN-BRI |
| ISDN-capable Loop | Parity with retail ISDN-BRI |
| ADSL-qualified Loop | Parity with retail Qwest DSL |
| Availability: Available | Notes: |

MR-5 – All Troubles Cleared within 4 hours

Purpose:

Evaluates timeliness of repair for specified services, focusing on all trouble reports of all types (including out of service and service affecting troubles) and on the number of such trouble reports cleared within the standard estimate for specified services (i.e., 4 hours).

Description:

Measures the percentage of trouble reports for specified services that are cleared within 4 hours of receipt of trouble reports from CLECs or from retail customers.

- Includes all trouble reports, closed during the reporting period, which involve a specified service, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Time measured is from date and time that Qwest is first notified of the trouble by CLEC to date and time trouble is cleared.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|---|
| Reporting Comparisons: | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. |
| CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | Results for listed products will be disaggregated according to trouble reports: |
| | MR-5A In Interval Zone 1 areas; and |
| | MR-5B In <u>Interval Zone 2</u> areas. |

Formula:

[(Number of Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period that are cleared within 4 hours) ÷ (Total Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period)] x 100

- Trouble reports coded as follows:
 - For products measured using WFA (Workforce Administration) data (products listed for Zonetype disaggregation) trouble reports coded to trouble codes for Carrier Action (IEC) and Customer Provided Equipment (CPE).
- Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed.
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Time delays due to "no access" are excluded from repair time.
- Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete.
- Records involving official company services.
- · Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

MR-5 – All Troubles Cleared within 4 hours (continued)

| Product Reporting: | Standards: |
|--|---|
| Zone-Type Disaggregation - | - |
| Resale | |
| Primary ISDN | Parity with retail service |
| DS0 | Parity with retail service |
| DS1 | Parity with retail service |
| DS3 and higher bit-rate services | Parity with retail service |
| Erame Belay | Parity with retail service |
| LIS Trunks | Parity with Feature Group D (aggregate) |
| Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UDI | T) |
| UDIT – DS1 level | Parity with DS1 Private Line Service |
| UDIT – Above DS1 level | Parity with Private Line Services above DS1 level |
| Unbundled Loops: | |
| Non-loaded Loop (4-wire) | Parity with retail DS1 |
| DS1-capable Loop | Parity with retail DS1 |
| Loop types of DS3 and higher bit-rates (aggregate) | Parity with retail DS3 and higher bit-rate services (aggregate) |
| • E911/911 Trunks | Parity with retail E911/911 Trunks |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS0 level) | Diagnostic |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS1 level) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS3 level) | Diagnostic |
| Availability: | Notes: |
| Available | |
| | |
| | |

MR-6 – Mean Time to Restore

Purpose:

Evaluates timeliness of repair, focusing how long it takes to restore services to proper operation. **Description:**

Measures the time actually taken to clear trouble reports.

- Includes all trouble reports closed during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Includes customer direct reports, customer-relayed reports, and test assist reports that result in a trouble report.
- Time measured is from date and time that Qwest is first notified of the trouble by CLEC to date and time trouble is cleared.

| Reporting Period: | One month Unit of Measure: Hours and Minutes | |
|-------------------|---|--|
| Reporting | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. | |
| Comparisons: | Results for product/services listed in Product Reporting under "MSA-Type | |
| CLEC aggregate, | Disaggregation" will be reported according to trouble reports involving: | |
| individual CLEC | MR-6A Dispatches within MSAs; | |
| and Qwest Retail | MR-6B Dispatches outside MSAs; and | |
| results | MR-6C No dispatches. | |
| | Results for products/services listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type | |
| | Disaggregation" will be disaggregated according to trouble reports involving: | |
| | MR-6D In Interval Zone 1 areas; and | |
| | MR-6E In Interval Zone 2 areas. | |

Formula:

 \sum [(Date & Time Trouble Report Cleared) – (Date & Time Trouble Report Opened)] ÷ (Total number of Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period)

- Trouble reports coded as follows:
 - For products measured from MTAS data (products listed for MSA-type disaggregation), trouble reports coded to disposition codes for: Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant; Trouble Beyond the Network Interface; and Miscellaneous – Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider).
 - For products measured from WFA (Workforce Administration) data (products listed for Zonetype disaggregation) trouble reports coded to trouble codes for Carrier Action (IEC) and Customer Provided Equipment (CPE).
- Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed.
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Time delays due to "no access" are excluded from repair time for products/services listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type Disaggregation".
- For products measured from MTAS data (products listed for MSA-type disaggregation), trouble reports involving a "no access" delay.
- Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

MR-6 – Mean Time to Restore (Continued)

| Product Reporting: | | Standards: |
|---------------------------|--|--|
| MSA-Type Disaggregation - | | |
| ٠ | Resale | |
| | Residential single line service | Parity with retail service |
| | Business single line service | Parity with retail service |
| | Centrex | Parity with retail service |
| | Centrex 21 | Parity with retail service |
| | PBX Trunks | Parity with retail service |
| | Basic ISDN | Parity with retail service |
| • | Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Parity with like retail service |
| • | Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Parity with retail Centrex 21 |
| • | Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Parity with retail Centrex |
| ٠ | Line Splitting | TBD |
| • | Line Sharing | CO: Parity with Qwest DSL |
| | | All Other States: Parity with RES and BUS POTS |
| • | Sub-Loop Unbundling | CO: Parity with retail ISDN-BRI |
| | · | All Other States: Diagnostic |
| <u>Z</u> | one-Type Disaggregation - | |
| • | Resale | |
| | Qwest DSL | Parity with retail service |
| | Primary ISDN | Parity with retail service |
| | DS0 | Parity with retail service |
| | DS1 | Parity with retail service |
| | DS3 and higher bit-rate services | Parity with retail service |
| | (aggregate) | |
| - | Frame Relay | Parity with retail service |
| • | | Parity with Feature Group D (aggregate) |
| • | Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UDI | |
| | | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| | | Parity with retail Private Lines above DS1 level |
| | Dark Fiber – IOF | Diagnostic |
| • | Unbundled Loops: | |
| | Analog Loop | Parity with retail Res and Bus POTS |
| | Non-loaded Loop (2-wire) | Parity with retail ISDN BRI |
| | INON-IOAded LOOP (4-WIRe) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| | | Parity with retail US1 Private Line |
| | | Parity with retail ISDN BHI |
| | | Parity with retail QWest DSL |
| 1 | Loop types of DS3 and higher bit-rates | Line services (aggregate) |
| | | |
| | E011/011 Trupko | Parity with retail F011/011 Trunks |
| ⊢ | Earlyar Hulliks | |
| • | level) | |
| • | Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS1 level) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| • | Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS3 level) | Diagnostic |

| Millo Mean Thic to Restore (Continued) | |
|--|--------|
| Availability: | Notes: |
| Available | |

MR-6 – Mean Time to Restore (Continued)

MR-7 – Repair Repeat Report Rate

Purpose:

Evaluates the accuracy of repair actions, focusing on the number of <u>repeated trouble reports</u> received for the same line/circuit within a specified period (30 calendar days).

Description:

Measures the percentage of trouble reports that are repeated within 30 days on end user lines and circuits.

- Includes all trouble reports closed during the reporting period that have a repeated trouble report received within thirty (30) days of the initial trouble report for the same service (regardless of whether the report is about the same type of trouble for that service), subject to exclusions specified below.
- In determining same service Qwest will compare the end user telephone number or circuit access code of the initial trouble reports closed during the reporting period with reports received within 30 days of when the initial trouble report closed.
- Includes reports due to Qwest network or system causes, customer-direct and customer-relayed reports.
- The 30-day period applied in the numerator of the formula below is from the date and time that the initial trouble report is closed to the date and time that the next, or "repeat" trouble report is received (i.e., opened).

| Reporting Period: One month, reported in | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--------------------------|
| arrears (i.e., results first appear in reports one | · • |
| month later than results for measurements that | |
| are not reported in arrears), in order to cover the | |
| 30-day period following the initial trouble report. | |

| Reporting | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. | | |
|---------------------|---|--|--|
| Comparisons: | Results for product/services listed in Product Reporting under "MSA-Type | | |
| CLEC | Disaggregation" will be reported according to trouble reports involving: | | |
| aggregate, | MR-7A Dispatches within MSAs; | | |
| individual | MR-7B Dispatches outside MSAs; and | | |
| CLEC and | MR-7C No dispatches. | | |
| Qwest Retail | Results for products/services listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type | | |
| results | Disaggregation" will be disaggregated according to trouble reports involving: | | |
| | MR-7D In Interval Zone 1 areas; and | | |
| | MR-7E In Interval Zone 2 areas. | | |

Formula:

[(Total trouble reports closed within the reporting period that had a repeated trouble report received within 30 calendar days of when the initial trouble report closed) \div (Total number of Trouble Reports Closed in the reporting period)] x 100

- Trouble reports coded as follows:
 - For products measured from MTAS data (products listed for MSA-type disaggregation), trouble reports coded to disposition codes for: Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant; Trouble Beyond the Network Interface; and Miscellaneous – Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider).
 - For products measured from WFA (Workforce Administration) data (products listed for Zonetype disaggregation) trouble reports coded to trouble codes for Carrier Action (IEC) and Customer Provided Equipment (CPE).
- Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed.
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.

MR-7 – Repair Repeat Report Rate (Continued)

- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
 Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

| D | Theory of the second and the calculation of the measurement per the FID. | | |
|--|--|--|--|
| <u> </u> | Dauci nepoliting: | Stanualus: | |
| IVIS | SA- I ype Disaggregation - | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| ٠ | Resale | | |
| | Residential single line service | Parity with retail service | |
| | Business single line service | Parity with retail service | |
| | Centrex | Parity with retail service | |
| | Centrex 21 | Parity with retail service | |
| | PBX Trunks | Parity with retail service | |
| | Basic ISDN | Parity with retail service | |
| • | Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Parity with like retail service | |
| • | Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Parity with retail Centrex 21 | |
| • | Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE- P) (Centrex) | Parity with retail Centrex | |
| • | Line Splitting | Parity with Qwest Retail DSL | |
| ٠ | Line Sharing | AZ & CO: Parity with Qwest Retail DSL | |
| | | All Other States: Diagnostic Comparison with Qwest Retail DSL | |
| • | Sub-Loop Unbundling | CO: Parity with Retail ISDN-BRI | |
| | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | All Other States: Diagnostic | |
| Zo | one-Type Disaggregation - | | |
| ٠ | Resale | | |
| | Qwest DSL | Parity with retail service | |
| | Primary ISDN | Parity with retail service | |
| | DS0 | Parity with retail service | |
| | DS1 | Parity with retail service | |
| | DS3 and higher bit-rate services (aggregate) | Parity with retail service | |
| | Frame Relay | Parity with retail service | |
| • | LIS Trunks | Parity with Feature Group D (aggregate) | |
| • | Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UDI | T) | |
| | UDIT – DS1 level | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line | |
| ┢── | UDIT – Above DS1 level | Parity with retail Private Lines above DS1 level | |
| <u> </u> | Dark Fiber – IOF | Diagnostic | |
| | Linbundled Loops: | I | |
| ŀ | Analog Loop | Parity with retail Res and Bus POTS | |
| | Non-loaded Loop (2-wire) | Parity with retail ISDN BRI | |
| <u> </u> | Non-loaded Loop (2-wire) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line | |
| | | Parity with rotail DS1 Private Line | |
| | | Parity with retail DOT FIVALE LINE | |
| - | | | |
| <u> </u> | ADSL-qualified Loop | Parity with retail Qwest DSL | |
| Loop types of DS3 and higher bit-rates | | Parity with retail US3 and higher bit-rate Private | |
| | (aggregate) | Line services (aggregate) | |
| | Dark Fiber – Loop | Diagnostic | |
| | E911/911 Trunks | Parity with retail E911/911 Trunks | |

MR-7 – Repair Repeat Report Rate (Continued)

| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS0 level) | Diagnostic |
|---|-------------------------------------|
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS1 level) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS3 level) | Diagnostic |
| Availability: Targeted availability with July 2004 results reported in September 2004 | Notes: |

MR-8 – Trouble Rate

Purpose:

Evaluates the overall rate of trouble reports as a percentage of the total installed base of the service or element.

Description:

Measures trouble reports by product and compares them to the number of lines in service.

- Includes all trouble reports closed during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Includes all applicable trouble reports, including those that are out of service and those that are only service-affecting.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. |
| | |

Formula:

[(Total number of trouble reports closed in the reporting period involving the specified service grouping) \div (Total number of the specified services that are in service in the reporting period)] x 100

- Trouble reports coded as follows:
 - For products measured from MTAS data, trouble reports coded to disposition codes for: Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant; Trouble Beyond the Network Interface; and Miscellaneous
 Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider).
 - For products measured from WFA data trouble reports coded to trouble codes for Carrier Action (IEC) and Customer Provided Equipment (CPE).
- Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed.
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

(beunitrool) Aate (continued)

| | <u><u> 9</u>IGRIIBVA</u> |
|--|--|
| Notes: | :VilidaliavA |
| | |
| | (Ievel) |
| Diagnostic | Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS3 |
| | (Iəvəl |
| Parity with retail DS1 Private Line | Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS1 |
| | jevel) |
| Diagnostic | Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS0 |
| Parity with retail E911/911 Trunks | • E911/911 Trunks |
| Diagnostic | Dark Fiber – Loop |
| (aggregate) | (aggregate) |
| Parity with retail DS3 and higher bit-rate services | Loop types of DS3 and higher bit-rates |
| Parity with retail Owest DSL | dood beitilsup-JSUA |
| Parity with retail ISDN BHI | ISUN-capable Loop |
| | |
| | INON-IOSAGED LOOD (4-WIFE) |
| | INON-IOSOGED LOOP (2-WIFE) |
| | |
| | |
| ວມຮຸດມຸດິຍຸດ | |
| | |
| | |
| Land the second se | |
| | ICI I Inpundiad Dedicated Interoffice Transport |
| Parity with Feature Group D (aggrege) | sydnin T SI 1 • |
| All Other States: Diagnostic | |
| CO: Parity with retail ISDN-BRI | prilbuidul 1 000 l-du2 • |
| | |
| SUB har 210 Him vitre States and BLS and BLS | |
| CO: Parity with Owest DSI | |
| | pritting ani le |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | Platform(UNE-P) (Centrex) |
| Parity with retail Centrex | Inpundied Metwork Flement – |
| | (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) |
| Parity with retail Centrex 21 | Inpundied Wetwork Element – Platform |
| | (UNE-P) (POTS) |
| Parity with like retail service | Unbundled Network Element – Platform |
| Parity with retail service | Viela Pierce Pie |
| | (addregate) |
| Parity with retail service | DS3 and higher bit-rate services |
| Parity with retail service | |
| Parity with retail service | 0SD |
| Parity with retail service | Primary ISDN |
| Parity with Qwest DSL service | Qwest DSL |
| Parity with retail service | Basic ISDN |
| Parity with retail service | PBX Trunks |
| Parity with retail service | Centrex 21 |
| Parity with retail service | Centrex |
| Parity with retail service | Business single line service |
| Parity with retail service | Residential single line service |
| | • Resale |
| Standards: | Product Reporting: |

MR-9 – Repair Appointments Met

Purpose:

Evaluates the extent to which Qwest repairs services for Customers by the appointment date and time. **Description:**

Measures the percentage of trouble reports for which the appointment date and time is met.

- Includes all trouble reports closed during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Time measured is from date and time that Qwest is first notified of the trouble by CLEC to date and time trouble is cleared.

| Reporting Period: One m | onth | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|---|---|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Report Results for listed se according to trouble MR-9A Dispatc MR-9B Dispatc MR-9C No disp | ing: Statewide level. rvices will be disaggregated and reported reports involving: nes within <u>MSAs;</u> nes outside MSAs; and atches. |
| [(Total Trouble Reports Cleared by appointment date and time) + (Total Trouble Reports Closed in the Reporting Period)] x 100 | | |
| Exclusions: Trouble reports coded as follows: For products measured from MTAS data, trouble reports coded to disposition codes for: Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant; Trouble Beyond the Network Interface; and Miscellaneous Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider). Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed. Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes. Time delays due to "no access" are excluded from repair time by using the rescheduled appointment time to determine if the repair appointment is met. Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete. Records with invalid trouble receipt dates. Records with invalid cleared or closed dates. Records with invalid product codes. | | |
| Product Reporting: Resale: Residential single Business single lir Centrex Centrex 21 PBX Trunks Basic ISDN Unbundled Eleme (POTS) | line service ne service nts – Platform (UNE-P) | Standard: Parity |
| Availability: Avail | able | Notes: |

MR-10 – Customer and Non-Qwest Related Trouble Reports

Purpose:

Evaluates the extent that trouble reports were customer related, and provides diagnostic information to help address potential issues that might be raised by the core maintenance and repair performance indicators.

Description:

Measures the percentage of all trouble reports that are attributed to the customer as a percentage of all trouble reports resolved during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below. Includes trouble reports closed during the reporting period coded as follows:

- For products measured from MTAS data, trouble reports coded to disposition codes for: Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant, Trouble Beyond the Network Interface; and Miscellaneous Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider) and trouble reports involving a "no access" delay for <u>MSA</u> type disaggregated products.
- For products measured from WFA (Workforce Administration) data trouble reports coded to trouble codes for Carrier Action (IEC) and Customer Provided Equipment (CPE).

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. |

Formula:

[(Number of Trouble Reports coded to disposition codes specified above) + (Total Number of Trouble Reports Closed in the Reporting Period)] x 100

- Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.
- Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete.

MR-10 Customer and Non-Qwest Related Trouble Reports (continued)

| Product Reporting: | Standards: | |
|---|------------|--|
| Resale | | |
| Residential single line service | Diagnostic | |
| Business single line service | Diagnostic | |
| Centrex | Diagnostic | |
| Centrex 21 | Diagnostic | |
| PBX Trunks | Diagnostic | |
| Basic ISDN | Diagnostic | |
| Qwest DSL | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Diagnostic | |
| Resale | | |
| Primary ISDN | Diagnostic | |
| DS0 | Diagnostic | |
| DS1 | Diagnostic | |
| DS3 and higher bit-rate services (aggregate) | Diagnostic | |
| Frame Relay | Diagnostic | |
| LIS Trunks | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UDIT | | |
| UDIT – DS1 level | Diagnostic | |
| UDIT – Above DS1 level | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Loops: | | |
| Analog Loop | Diagnostic | |
| Non-loaded Loop (2-wire) | Diagnostic | |
| Non-loaded Loop (4-wire) | Diagnostic | |
| DS1-capable Loop | Diagnostic | |
| ISDN-capable Loop | Diagnostic | |
| ADSL-qualified Loop | Diagnostic | |
| Loop types of DS3 and higher bit-rates (aggregate) | Diagnostic | |
| • E911/911 Trunks | Diagnostic | |
| Availability: Available | Notes: | |

MR-11 – LNP Trouble Reports Cleared within 24 Hours

Purpose:

Evaluates timeliness of clearing LNP trouble reports, focusing on the degree to which residence and business, disconnect-related, out-of-service trouble reports are cleared within four business hours and all LNP-related trouble reports are cleared within 48 hours.

Description:

- MR-11A: Measures the percentage of specified LNP-only (i.e., not unbundled-loop), residence and business, out-of-service trouble reports that are cleared within four business hours of Qwest receiving these trouble reports from CLECs.
 - Includes only trouble reports that are received on or before the currently-scheduled due date
 of the actual LNP-related disconnect time/date, or the next <u>business day</u>, that are confirmed
 to be caused by disconnects being made before the scheduled time, and that are closed
 during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- MR-11B: Measures the percentage of specified LNP-only trouble reports that are cleared within 48 hours of Qwest receiving these trouble reports from CLECs.
 - Includes all LNP-only trouble reports, received within four calendar days of the actual LNPrelated disconnect date and closed during the reporting period.
- The "currently-scheduled due date/time" is the original due date/time established by Qwest in response to CLEC/customer request for disconnection of service ported via LNP or, if CLEC submits to Qwest a timely or untimely request for delay of disconnection, it is the CLEC/customer-requested later date/time.
- A request for delay of disconnection is considered timely if received by Qwest before 8:00 p.m. MT on the due date that Qwest has on record at the time of the request.
- A request for delay of disconnection is considered untimely if received by Qwest after 8:00 p.m. MT on the due date and before 12:00 p.m. MT (noon) on the day after the due date
- Time measured is from the date and time Qwest receives the trouble report to the date and time trouble is cleared.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC Aggregate and Individual CLEC | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level (all are "non-dispatched"). |

Formula:

- MR-11A = [(Number of specified out-of-service LNP-only Trouble Reports, for LNP-related troubles confirmed to be caused by disconnects, that Qwest executed before the currently-scheduled due date/time, that were closed in the reporting period and cleared within four business hours) ÷ (Total Number of specified out of service LNP-only Trouble Reports for LNP-related troubles confirmed to be caused by disconnects that Qwest executed before the currently-scheduled due date/time, that were closed in the reporting period] x 100
- MR-11B = [(Number of specified LNP-only Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period that were cleared within 48 hours) ÷ (Total Number of specified LNP-only Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period)] x 100

MR-11 – LNP Trouble Reports Cleared within 24 Hours (Continued)

- Trouble reports attributed to customer or non-Qwest reasons
- Trouble reports not related to valid requests (LSRs) for LNP and associated disconnects.
- Subsequent trouble reports of LNP trouble before the original trouble report is closed.
- For MR-11B only: Trouble reports involving a "no access" delay.
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

| Product Reporting: LNP | Standards: |
|------------------------|--|
| | MR-11A: |
| | If OP-17 result meets its standard, the MR-11A standard is Diagnostic. If OP-17 result does not meet its standard, the MR-11A standard is as follows: |
| | For 0-20 trouble reports*: No more than 1 ticket cleared in > four business hours |
| | For > 20 trouble reports*: The lesser of 95% or Parity with MR-3C results for Retail Residence and Business |
| | <u>MR-11B</u> : |
| | For 0-20 trouble reports**: No more than 1 ticket cleared > 48 hours For > 20 trouble reports**: The lesser of 95% or Parity with MR-4C results for Retail Residence and Business |
| | * Based on MR-11A denominator. |
| | ** Based on MR-11B denominator. |
| Availability: | Notes: |
| Available | |

Billing

BI-1 – Time to Provide Recorded Usage Records

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness with which Qwest provides recorded daily usage records to CLECs.

Description:

Measures the average time interval from date of recorded daily usage to date usage records are transmitted or made available to CLECs as applicable.

- BI-1A Measures recorded daily usage for UNEs and Resale and includes industry standard electronically transmitted usage records for feature group switched access,^{NOTE 1} local measured usage, local message usage, toll usage, and local exchange service components priced on a per-use basis, subject to exclusions specified below.
- BI-1B Measures the percent of recorded daily usage for Jointly provided switched access provided within four days. This includes usage created by the CLEC and Qwest or IXC providing access, usually via 2-way Feature Group X trunk groups for Feature Group A, Feature Group B, Feature Group D, Phone to Phone IP Telephony, 8XX access, and 900 access and their successors or similar Switched Access services.
- BI-1C Provides separate reporting for two elements captured in BI-1A above, as follows:
 - BI-1C-1 Measures recorded daily usage for UNEs and Resale and includes industry standard electronically transmitted usage records for feature group switched access, subject to exclusions specified below.
 - BI-1C-2 Measures recorded daily usage for UNEs and Resale and includes industry standard electronically transmitted usage records for local measured usage, local message usage, toll usage, and local exchange service components priced on a per-use basis, subject to exclusions specified below.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: |
|--|--|
| | BI-1A, BI-1C-1, BI-1C-2: Average Business Days |
| | BI-1B: Percent |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, | Disaggregation Reporting: State level. |
| individual CLECs, and Qwest Retail results | |
| Formula: | |
| BI-1A, BI-1C-1, BI-1C-2 (for specified products & re | cords) = \sum (Date Record Transmitted or made |
| available - Date Usage Recorded) + (Total | number of records) |
| | , |
| BI-1B = [(# of daily usage records for Jointly provide | ed switched access sent within four days) ÷ (Total |
| daily usage records for Jointly provided swi | itched access in the report period)] x 100 |
| | |
| Exclusions: | |
| Instances where the CLEC requests other than | daily usage transmission or availability. |
| Duplicate records. | · · · |
| Product Reporting: | Standards: |
| UNEs and Resale | BI-1A: Parity with Qwest retail. |
| Jointly-provided Switched Access | BI-1B: 95% within 4 business days |
| | BI-1C-1, BI-1C-2: Diagnostic Comparison with the |
| | Qwest Retail results used in standard for |
| | BI-1A |
| | |
| Availability: | Notes: |
| Available | 1. "Feature group switched access" includes all |
| | type 110XXX detail records for Feature |
| | Groups A, B, C, and D. |
| | |

BI-2 – Invoices Delivered within 10 Days

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness with which Qwest delivers industry standard electronically transmitted bills to CLECs, focusing on the percent delivered within ten calendar days.

Description:

Measures the percentage of invoices that are delivered within ten days, based on the number of days between the bill date and bill delivery.

 Includes all industry standard electronically transmitted invoices for local exchange services and toll, subject to exclusions specified below.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|---------------------------------------|
| Reporting Comparisons: Combined Qwest Retail/CLEC results (Parity by design) | Disaggregation Reporting: State level |

Formula:

[(Count of Invoices for which Bill Transmission Date to Bill Date is ten calendar days or less) \div (Total Number of Invoices)] x 100

- Bills transmitted via paper, magnetic tape, CD-ROM, diskette.
- Records with missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

| Product Reporting:UNEs and Resale | Standard: Parity by design. |
|--|--------------------------------|
| Availability: Available | Notes: |

BI-3 – Billing Accuracy – Adjustments for Errors

Purpose:

Evaluates the accuracy with which Qwest bills CLECs, focusing on the percentage of billed revenue adjusted due to errors.

Description:

Measures the billed revenue minus amounts adjusted off bills due to errors, as a percentage of total billed revenue.

- Both the billed revenue and amounts adjusted off bills due to error are calculated from bills rendered in the reporting period.
- "Amounts adjusted off bills due to errors" is the sum of all bill adjustments made in the reporting period that involve, either in part or in total, adjustment codes related to billing errors. (Each adjustment thus qualifying is added to the sum in its entirety.)

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|---|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLECs, and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: State level. |
| Formula: $[\Sigma(Total Billed Revenue Billed in Reporting Period Billed Revenue billed in Reporting Period)] x 100$ | Amounts Adjusted Off Bills Due to Errors) ÷ (Total |
| Exclusions: BI-3A - UNEs and Resale – None BI-3B - Reciprocal Compensation Minutes of Use errors in return of minutes of use | Billing adjustments as a result of CLEC-caused |
| Product Reporting: BI-3A - UNEs and Resale BI-3B - Reciprocal Compensation Minutes of Use (MOU) | Standards: BI-3A – UNEs and Resale: Parity with Qwest retail bills. BI-3B – Reciprocal Compensation (MOU) – 95% |
| Availability: Available | Notes: |

BI-4 – Billing Completeness

Purpose:

- UNEs and Resale Evaluates the completeness with which Qwest reflects non-recurring and recurring charges associated with completed service orders on the bills.
- Reciprocal Compensation Minutes of Use (MOU) Evaluates the completeness with which Qwest reflects the revenue for Local Minutes of Use associated with CLEC local traffic over Qwest's network on the bills.

Description:

BI-4A – UNEs and Resale: Measures the percentage of non-recurring and recurring charges associated with completed service orders appear on the correct bill.*

BI-4B – Reciprocal Compensation (MOU): Measures the percentage of revenue associated with local minutes of use appearing on the correct (current) bill.*

* Correct bill = next available bill

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|---|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLECs, and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. |
| Individual CLECs, and Qwest Retail results Formula: BI-4A – UNEs and Resale = [∑(Count of service orders with non-recurring and recurring charges associated with completed service orders on the bills that are billed on the correct bill ÷ total count of service orders with non-recurring and recurring charges associated with completed service orders and recurring charges associated with completed service orders billed on the bill)] x 100 | |
| BL4B Regimerant Company MOUL $= 15/(\text{Rev})$ | anue for Local Minutes of Lise billed on the correct* |

BI-4B – Reciprocal Compensation MOU = $\sum (\text{Revenue for Local Minutes of Use billed on the correct*} bill + Total revenue for Local Minutes of Use collected during the month)] x 100$

| Exclusions: None | |
|--|---|
| Product Reporting: UNEs and Resale Reciprocal Compensation (MOU) | Standards: BI-4A - UNEs and Resale: Parity with Qwest Retail bills. BI-4B - Reciprocal Compensation (MOU): 95% |
| Availability: Available | Notes: |

Database Updates

DB-1 – Time to Update Databases

Evaluates the time required for updates to the databases of E911, LIDB, and Directory Builder.

Purpose:

Description:

- Measures the average time required to update the databases of E911, LIDB, and Directory Builder.
- Includes all database updates as specified under Disaggregation Reporting completed during • the reporting period.
- For DB-1A the time to update the E911 database is provided by the third party vendor that • performs the update. The elapsed time is captured automatically by the database system. There are no "individual E911 database update records" provided with which to measure the database update process.
- The numerator of DB-1A is calculated by multiplying the vendor-calculated results (Average Minutes in Process Time) by the denominator (Count of records Processed). This method produces a result from the vendor data that is the same as that which would be produced by totalling the update times from individual E911 database update records.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: |
|---|--|
| | E911 – Hrs: Mins. |
| · | LIDB & Directory Listings – Seconds |
| Reporting Comparisons: | Disaggregation Reporting: |
| DB-1A - E911: Combined results for Qwest Retail | DB-1A: E911 for Qwest Retail and Reseller |
| and Reseller CLEC Aggregate; | CLEC-State level |
| DB-1B - LIDB: Combined results for all Qwest | DB-1B: LIDB for Qwest Retail, Reseller CLEC |
| Retail, Reseller CLEC and Facilities Based CLEC | and Facilities Based CLEC – Multi |
| updates; | state region-wide level |
| DB-1C-1 - Listings: Combined results for all | DB-1C-1: Listings for all Provider types including |
| Provider types including Qwest Retail, Reseller | Qwest Retail, Reseller CLEC, and |
| CLEC, and Facilities Based CLEC, ILEC and | Facilities Based CLEC, ILEC and |
| Unknown Provider, Electronically Submitted, | Unknown Provider, Electronically |
| Electronically Processed updates. NOTE 1 | Submitted, Electronically Processed- |
| | Sub-region applicable to state |
| | |

Formula:

 Σ [(Date and Time of database update for each database update as specified under Disaggregation Reporting in the reporting period) – (Date and Time of submissions of data for entry into the database for each database update as specified under Disaggregation Reporting in the reporting period)] + Total database updates as specified under Disaggregation Reporting completed in the reporting period

Exclusion:

Invalid start/stop dates/times.

DB-1 – Time to Update Databases (continued)

| Product Reporting: Not applicable (Reported by | / database type) | Standards: DB-1A-E911: Parity by design DB-1B-LIDB: Parity by design DB-1C-1 - Listings: Parity by design |
|---|--|---|
| Availability: Available | Notes: Because they cannot be separated, results for Qwest Retail, Reseller CLEC, Facilities-based CLECs, ILEC and Unknown Provider updates are reported combined within these disaggregations. | |

DB-2 – Accurate Database Updates

Purpose:

Evaluates the accuracy of database updates completed without errors in the reporting period.

Description:

- Measures the percentage of database updates completed without errors in the reporting period.
- Includes all database updates as specified under Disaggregation Reporting completed during the reporting period.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: | Disaggregation Reporting: |
| DB-2C-1 Listings – Combined results for all | DB-2C-1, Listings for Qwest Retail, Reseller |
| Qwest Retail, Reseller CLEC and Facilities- | CLEC, and Facilities-Based CLEC Electronically |
| Based CLEC Electronically Submitted, | Submitted, Electronically Processed updates: |
| Electronically Processed updates | Statewide |

Formula:

[Total database updates as specified under Disaggregation Reporting completed without errors in the reporting period \div Total database updates as specified under Disaggregation Reporting completed in the reporting period] x 100

Exclusions:

Invalid start/stop dates/times.

| Product Reporting: Not applicable (Reported by c | latabase type) | Standards: DB-2C-1 – Listings: Parity by design ^{NOTE 1} |
|---|--|---|
| Availability: Available | Notes: 1. Qwest retail and Facilities-based Processed cann reported combin | Reseller CLECs are parity by design. Because CLEC Electronically Submitted, Electronically ot be separated out from Reseller CLECs they are ed within this disaggregation. |

DA-1 – Speed of Answer – Directory Assistance

Purpose:

Evaluates timeliness of customer access to Qwest's Directory Assistance operators, focusing on how long it takes for calls to be answered.

Description:

Measures the average time following first ring until a call is first picked up by the Qwest agent/system to answer Directory Assistance calls.

- Includes all calls to Qwest directory assistance during the reporting period.
- Because a system (electronic voice) prompts for city, state, and listing requested before the actual
 operator comes on the line, the first ring is defined as when the voice response unit places the call
 into queue.
- Measurements are taken by sampling calls from the network queue at 10-second intervals. A count of calls in the queue is taken for every sampling event (10-second snapshot), and this count is multiplied by 10 to get a measurement of waiting intervals.
- Using this method, calls that enter the queue after a sample is taken but exit before the next sample is taken are not counted, i.e., are effectively counted as a zero interval. However, this situation is offset by calls that enter just prior to a sampling time, but exit before the next sampling time, and which are counted as 10 seconds. The call intervals shorter than 10 seconds that are counted as 10 seconds are offset by those calls shorter than 10 seconds that are not counted.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Seconds |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: Results for Qwest and all CLECs are combined. | Disaggregation Reporting: Sub-region applicable to state |
| Formula: $\Sigma[(Date and Time of Call Answer) – (Date and Time of First Ring)] + (Total Calls Answered by Center)$ | |
| Exclusions: Abandoned Calls are not included in the total number of calls answered by the center. | |
| Product Reporting: None | Standard: Parity by design |
| Availability: Available | Notes: |

OS-1 – Speed of Answer – Operator Services

Purpose:

Evaluates timeliness of customer access to Qwest's operators, focusing on how long it takes for calls to be answered.

Description:

Measures the time following first ring until a call is answered by the Qwest agent.

- Includes all calls to Qwest's operator services during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Measurements are taken by sampling calls from the network queue at 10-second intervals. A count of calls in the queue is taken for every sampling event (10-second snapshot), and this count is multiplied by 10 to get a measurement of waiting intervals.
- Using this method, calls that enter the queue after a sample is taken but exit before the next sample is taken are not counted, i.e., are effectively counted as a zero interval. However, this situation is offset by calls that enter just prior to a sampling time, but exit before the next sampling time, and which are counted as 10 seconds. The call intervals shorter than 10 seconds that are counted as 10 seconds are offset by those calls shorter than 10 seconds that are not counted.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Seconds |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: Qwest and all CLECs are aggregated in a single measure. | Disaggregation Reporting: Sub-region applicable to state |
| Formula: | |

Σ[(Date and Time of Call Answer) – (Date and Time of First Ring)] ÷ (Total Calls Answered by Center)

Exclusions: Abandoned Calls are not included in the total number of calls answered by the center.

| Product Reporting: None | Standard: Parity by design |
|----------------------------|----------------------------|
| Availability: Available | Notes: |
Network Performance

NI-1 – Trunk Blocking

Purpose:

Evaluates factors affecting completion of calls from Qwest end offices to CLEC end offices, compared with the completion of calls from Qwest end offices to other Qwest end offices, focusing on average busy-hour blocking percentages in interconnection or interoffice final trunks.

Description:

Measures the percentage of trunks blocking in interconnection and interoffice final trunks.

• Includes blocking percentages on all direct final and alternate final interconnection and interoffice trunk groups that are in service during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.

NI-1 – Trunk Blocking (Continued)

- Trunk groups recently activated that have not been in service for a full "20-high-day, busy hour" review period.
- Toll trunks, non-final trunks, and trunks that are not connected to the public switched network.
- One-way trunks originating at CLEC end offices.
- Qwest official services trunks, local interoffice operator and directory assistance trunks, and local interoffice 911/E911 trunks.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

| Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID. | | or the measurement per the PID. | | |
|---|---|--|--|--|
| Product Reporting: | | Standards: | | |
| LISTrunks | | Where NI-1A ≤ 1%: | 1 % | |
| | | Where NI-1A > 1%: | Parity with Qwest Interoffice Trunks to tandems | |
| | | Where NI-1B ≤ 1%: | 1 % | |
| | | Where NI-1B > 1%: | Parity with Qwest Interoffice Trunks to end offices | |
| | | NI-1C and NI-1D: | Diagnostic NOTE 5 | |
| Availability: | Notes: | | | |
| Availability: Available | Notes: 1. Qwest uses determined within 20 da (b) notify Qw routing prob the CLEC w 2. The TGSR-r the month ir group exclud 20-day perio to the next r issuing a su that, for its c 3. CLEC delay later. a) Qwest-in requests measured b) Qwest-in not be co mutually c) CLEC de contribute CLEC de 4. The limitation of time that facilities nee a) Given that exclusion b) Neverthe available limitation provide fa forecasts standard c) This limit with issue | TGSRs to notify CLEC to be persistent. To re- ys ASRs to provide ne- vest within 20 days that lems are causing the b- ill undertake its own re- related exclusion is app of which the above-spec- ded in one month will r bod following a TGSR en- nonth for the same true bsequent TGSR, wher own reasons, it plans to s are reflected by CLE itiated due date delays to delay due dates, sh- ment. itiated due date change ounted as a CLEC dela agreed-upon. lays (e.g., "customer n- e to a Qwest-established lay in this measurement on on part (3) of this ex- treats the unforecasted eded. at forecast advance inter- to to apply for no longer eless, this limitation to to sooner and, if so, redu- recognizes that, abser- acilities for the ASR, all s. NI-1C and NI-1D will to be applied. at for may change dep es of interconnection for | So when trunk blocking exceeds standard thresholds or is spond properly to TGSRs, a CLEC must (a) submit cessary trunk augmentations to avoid further blocking, t it is initiating a Trouble Report where Qwest traffic blocking referenced by the TGSR, or (c) notify Qwest that -routing of traffic within 20 days to alleviate the blocking. oblied in the month in which the TGSR is issued and in ified 20-day response period ends. Thus, any trunk to the excluded in the next month, unless there is (a) a hds in that month, (b) there is another TGSR applicable hk group or (c) an exception documented, in lieu of e the CLEC's response to the previous TGSR indicated to take no action at any time to augment the trunk group. C-initiated order supplements that move the due date , including supplements made pursuant to Qwest all not be counted as CLEC delays in this es to earlier dates that the CLEC does not meet shall y in this measurement unless the earlier dates were ot ready" in advance of a due date) that do not ed due date being missed shall not be counted as a nt. clusion is intended to bound its applicability to a period d ASR as if it were, in effect, the first forecast for the ervals are currently six months, this provision allows the than that period of time. he exclusion also recognizes that facilities may become uces the limitation accordingly. In that context, this nt a CLEC forecast, Qwest still retains a responsibility to though in a longer timeframe than for ASRs covered by be reported for information purposes only, with no | |
| | applied | • | • • • | |
| | upplieu. | ····· | | |

NP-1 – NXX Code Activation

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness of Qwest's NXX code activation prior to the LERG effective date or by the "revised" effective date, as set forth herein.

Description:

- NP-1A: Measures the percentage of NXX codes activated in the reporting period that are actually loaded and tested prior to the LERG effective date or the "revised" date, subject to exclusions shown below.
- NP-1B: Measures the percentage of NXX codes activated in the reporting period that are delayed beyond the LERG date or "revised" date due to Qwest-caused Interconnection facility delays, subject to exclusions shown below. Included among activations counted as a Qwest delay in this sub-measurement are cases in which "2-6 codes" ^{NOTE 1} associated with the Qwest interconnection facilities are provided late by Qwest to the CLEC.
- Qwest must receive complete and accurate routing information required for code activation, which includes but is not limited to "2-6 codes" for all interconnection trunk groups associated with the activation no less than 25 days prior to the LERG Due Date or Revised Due Date.
- The "revised" date, for purposes of this measurement, is a CLEC-initiated renegotiation of the activation effective date that is no less than 25 days after Qwest receives complete and accurate routing information required for code activation, which includes but is not limited to "2-6 codes" for all interconnection trunk groups associated with the activation.
- The NXX code activation notice is provided by the LERG (Local Exchange Routing Guide) to Qwest.
- NXX code activation is defined as complete when all translations associated with the new NXX are complete by 11:59 p.m. of the day prior to the date identified in the LERG or the "revised" date (if different than the LERG date).
- The NXX code activation completion process includes testing, including calls to the test number when provided.

| Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide. |
|--------------------------------------|
| |

Formula:

- NP-1A = [(Number of NXX codes loaded and tested in the reporting period prior to the LERG effective date or the "revised" date) + (Number of NXX codes loaded and tested in the reporting period)] x 100
- NP-1B = [(Number of NXX codes loaded and tested in the reporting period that were delayed past the LERG effective date or "revised" date affected by Qwest Interconnection Facility Delays) ÷ (Number of NXX codes loaded and tested in the reporting period, including NXX codes loaded and tested in the reporting period that were delayed past the LERG effective date or the "revised" date due to Interconnection Facility Delays)] x 100

Exclusions:

NP-1A:

 NXX code activations completed after the LERG date or "revised" date due to delays in the installation of Qwest provided interconnection facilities associated with the activations.

NP-1A and NP-1B:

- NXX codes with LERG dates or "revised" dates resulting in loading intervals shorter than industry standard (currently 45 calendar days).
- NXX codes where QWEST received complete and accurate routing information required for code activations less than 25 days prior to the LERG due date or Revised due date.

NP-1 – NXX Code Activation (continued)

| Product Reporting: None | Standards: | | |
|-------------------------|---|--|--|
| | NP-1A: Parity | | |
| | NP-1B: Diagnostic | | |
| Availability: | Notes: | | |
| Available | "2-6 codes" are industry-standard designators for local interconnection trunk groups, consisting of 2 alpha letters and six numeric digits. Only Qwest-provided interconnection facilities are noted in this exclusion, because delays related to facilities provided by CLECs or others are accounted for by revising the due date. | | |

Collocation

CP-1 – Collocation Completion Interval

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness of Qwest's installation of collocation arrangements for CLECs, focusing on the average time to complete such arrangements.

Description:

Measures the interval between the Collocation Application Date and Qwest's completion of the collocation installation.

- Includes all collocations of types specified herein that are assigned a <u>Ready for Service (RFS) date</u> by Qwest and completed during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Collocation types included are: physical cageless, physical caged, shared physical caged, physicalline sharing, cageless-line sharing, and virtual.
- The Collocation Application Date is the date Qwest receives from the CLEC a complete and valid application for collocation. In cases where the CLEC's collocation application is received by Qwest on a weekend or holiday, the Collocation Application Date is the next <u>business day</u> following the weekend or holiday.
- Major Infrastructure Modifications include conditioning the collocation space, obtaining permits, and installing DC power plant, standby generators, heating, venting or air conditioning equipment.
- Completion of the collocation installation is the date on which the requested collocation arrangement is "Ready For Service" as defined in the Definition of Terms section herein.
- <u>Establishment of RFS Dates</u>: RFS dates are established according to intervals specified in interconnection agreements. Where an interconnection agreement does not specify intervals, or where the CLEC requests, RFS dates are established as follows:
 - Collocation Applications with Timely Quote Acceptance and, for Virtual Collocations, also with Timely Equipment Ready – for collocation applications where the CLEC accepts the quote in seven or fewer calendar days after the quote date and, for virtual collocations, where the CLEC provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest 53 calendar days or less after the Collocation Application Date, the RFS date shall be:
 - Forecasted Collocations: 90 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date for collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - <u>Unforecasted Collocations</u>: 120 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date for collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - Collocation Applications with Late Quote Acceptance and, for Virtual Collocations, also
 with Timely Equipment Ready for collocation applications where the CLEC accepts the quote
 in eight or more calendar days after the quote date and, for virtual collocations, where the CLEC
 provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest 53 calendar days or less after the Collocation
 Application Date, the RFS date shall be:
 - Forecasted Collocations: 90 calendar days after the quote acceptance date for collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - <u>Unforecasted Collocations</u>: 120 calendar days after the quote acceptance date for collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - Virtual Collocation Applications with Timely Quote Acceptance and Late Equipment Ready

 for virtual collocation applications where the CLEC (1) accepts the quote in seven or fewer calendar days after the quote date and (2) provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest more than 53 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date, the RFS date shall be:
 - Forecasted Collocations: 45 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - Unforecasted Collocations: 75 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for

CP-1 – Collocation Completion Interval (continued)

collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.

- Virtual Collocation Applications with Late Quote Acceptance and Late Equipment Ready for virtual collocation applications where the CLEC (1) accepts the quote in eight or more calendar days after the quote date and (2) provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest more than 53 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date, the RFS date shall be:
 - Forecasted Collocations: 45 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - <u>Unforecasted Collocations</u>: 75 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
- <u>All Collocations (physical, virtual, forecasted, or unforecasted) requiring Major</u> <u>Infrastructure Modifications</u>: the later of (1) up to 150 calendar days (as specified in the quote) after the Collocation Application Date, or (2) for virtual collocations, 45 days following the date equipment to be collocated is provided to Qwest for collocations in which Major Infrastructure Modifications are required. Qwest will provide to the CLEC, as part of the quotation, the need for, and the duration of, such extended intervals.
- When a CLEC submits six (6) or more Collocation applications in a one-week period in any state, completion intervals will be individually negotiated. These collocation arrangements will be included in CP-1A, -1B, or -1C according to the interval criteria specified below for these measurements.
- Where there is a CLEC-caused delay, the RFS Date is rescheduled
- RFS dates may be extended beyond the above intervals for CLEC reasons, or for reasons beyond Qwest's control, but not for Qwest reasons.
- Where CLECs do not accept the quote within thirty days of the quote date, the application is considered expired.
- **CP-1A** Measures collocation installations for which the scheduled interval from Collocation Application Date to RFS date is 90 calendar days or less.
- **CP-1B** Measures collocation installations for which the scheduled interval from Collocation Application Date to RFS date is 91 to 120 calendar days.
- **CP-1C** Measures collocation installations for which the scheduled interval from Collocation Application Date to RFS date is 121 to 150 calendar days.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Calendar Days | | | |
|--|--------------------------------------|--|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and individual CLEC results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide. | | | |
| Formula: (for CP-1A, CP-1B and CP-1C) | | | | |
| Σ[(Collocation Completion Date) – (Complete Application Date)] ÷ (Total Number of Collocations | | | | |
| Completed in Reporting Period) | | | | |

CP-1 – Collocation Completion Interval (continued)

Exclusions:

- CP-1A: CLEC collocation applications with RFS dates yielding scheduled intervals longer than 90 calendar days from Collocation Application Date to RFS date.
- CP-1B: CLEC collocation applications with RFS dates yielding scheduled intervals shorter than 91 calendar days or longer than 120 calendar days from Collocation Application Date to RFS date.
- CP-1C: CLEC collocation applications with RFS dates yielding scheduled intervals shorter than 121 calendar days or longer than 150 calendar days from Collocation Application Date to RFS date.

| Cancelled or expired applications. | | | |
|------------------------------------|---|---|--|
| Product Reporting: None | | Standards: | |
| | | CP-1A: 90 calendar days | |
| | | CP-1B: 120 calendar days | |
| | | CP-1C: 150 calendar days | |
| Availability: | Notes: | | |
| Available | Collocations covere additional types of c will be included in th collocation (such as considered for eithe measurements, afte collocation types be experience from firs reporting (i.e., cons | d by this measurement are central office related. As central office collocation are defined and offered, they his measurement. Non-central office-based types of remote collocation and field connection points) will be re inclusion in this measurement, or in new, separate er the terms, conditions, and processes for such come finalized, accepted, mature (i.e., six months of t installations), and ordered in volumes warranting istently more than two per month in any state). | |

CP-2 – Collocations Completed within Scheduled Intervals

Purpose:

Evaluates the extent to which Qwest completes collocation arrangements for CLECs within the standard intervals or intervals established in interconnection agreements.

Description:

Measures the percentage of collocation applications that are completed within standard intervals, including intervals set forth in interconnection agreements.

- Includes all collocations of types specified herein that are assigned a <u>Ready for Service Date RFS date</u> by Qwest and that are completed within the reporting period, including those with CLEC-requested RFS dates longer than the standard interval and those with extended RFS dates negotiated with the CLEC (including supplemented collocation orders that extend the RFS date) subject to exclusions specified below. Collocation types included are: physical cageless, physical caged, shared physical caged, physical-line sharing, cageless-line sharing, and virtual.
- The Collocation Application Date is the date Qwest receives from the CLEC a complete and valid application for collocation. In cases where the CLEC's collocation application is received by Qwest on a weekend or holiday, the Collocation Application Date is the next <u>business day</u> following the weekend or holiday.
- Major Infrastructure Modifications are defined as conditioning the collocation space, obtaining permits, and installing DC power plant, standby generators, heating, venting or air conditioning equipment.
- A collocation arrangement is counted as met under this measurement if its RFS date is met.
- <u>Establishment of RFS Dates</u>: RFS dates are established as follows, except where interconnection agreements require different intervals, in which case the intervals specified in the interconnection agreements apply:
 - Collocation Applications with Timely Quote Acceptance and, for Virtual Collocations, also with Timely Equipment Ready for collocation applications where the CLEC accepts the quote in seven or fewer calendar days after the quote date and, for virtual collocations, where the CLEC provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest 53 calendar days or less after the Collocation Application Date, the RFS date shall be:
 - Forecasted Collocations: 90 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date for physical collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - <u>Unforecasted Collocations</u>: 120 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date for physical collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - Collocation Applications with Late Quote Acceptance and, for Virtual Collocations, also with Timely Equipment Ready for collocation applications where the CLEC accepts the quote in eight or more calendar days after the quote date and, for virtual collocations, where the CLEC provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest 53 calendar days or less after the Collocation Application Date, the RFS date shall be:
 - Forecasted Collocations: 90 calendar days after the quote acceptance date for collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - <u>Unforecasted Collocations</u>: 120 calendar days after the quote acceptance date for collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - Virtual Collocation Applications with Timely Quote Acceptance and Late Equipment Ready for virtual collocation applications where the CLEC (1) accepts the quote in seven or fewer calendar days after the quote date and (2) provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest more than 53 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date, the RFS date shall be:
 - Forecasted Collocations: 45 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - <u>Unforecasted Collocations</u>: 75 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - Virtual Collocation Applications with Late Quote Acceptance and Late Equipment Ready for

CP-2 - Collocations Completed within Scheduled Intervals (continued)

virtual collocation applications where the CLEC (1) accepts the quote in eight or more calendar days after the quote date and (2) provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest more than 53 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date, the RFS date shall be:

- Forecasted Collocations: 45 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
- <u>Unforecasted Collocations</u>: 75 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
- <u>All Collocations (physical, virtual, forecasted, or unforecasted) requiring Major Infrastructure</u> <u>Modifications</u>: the later of (1) up to 150 calendar days (as specified in the quote) after the Collocation Application Date, or (2) for virtual collocations, 45 calendar days following the date equipment to be collocated is provided to Qwest for collocations in which Major Infrastructure Modifications are required. Qwest will provide to the CLEC, as part of the quotation, the need for, and the duration of, such extended intervals.
- When a CLEC submits six (6) or more Collocation applications in a one-week period in any state, completion intervals will be individually negotiated. These collocation arrangements will be included in CP-2A, -2B, or -2C according to the criteria specified below for these measurements.
- Where there is a CLEC-caused delay, the RFS Date is rescheduled.
- Where CLECs do not accept the quote within thirty calendar days of the quote date, the application is considered expired.
- **CP-2A Forecasted Collocations**: Measures collocation installations for which CLEC provides a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
- **CP-2B** Non-Forecasted and Late Forecasted Collocations: Measures collocation installations for which CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
- CP-2C All Collocations requiring Major Infrastructure Modifications and Collocations with intervals longer than 120 days: Measures all collocation installations requiring Major Infrastructure Modifications and collocations for which the RFS date is more than 120 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and individual CLEC results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. |
| Formula: (for CP-2A, CP-2B and CP-2C) [(Count of Collocations for which the RFS is met) ÷ (To Period)] x 100 | otal Number of Collocations Completed in the Reporting |
| Exclusions: RFS dates missed for reasons beyond Qwest's control. Cancelled or expired requests. | |

| Product Reporting: None | Standards: | | | |
|-------------------------|------------|--------------|-----|--|
| | | CP-2A & -2B: | 90% | |
| | | CP-2C: | 90% | |

CP-2 – Collocations Completed within Scheduled Intervals (continued)

| Availability: | Notes: |
|---------------|---|
| Available | Collocations covered by this measurement are central office related. As additional types of central office collocation are defined and offered, they will be included in this measurement. Non-central office-based types of collocation (such as remote collocation and field connection points) will be considered for either inclusion in this measurement, or in new, separate measurements, after the terms, conditions, and processes for such collocation types become finalized, accepted, mature (i.e., six months of experience from first installations), and ordered in volumes warranting reporting (i.e., consistently more than two per month in any state). |

CP-3 – Collocation Feasibility Study Interval

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness of the Qwest sub-process function of providing a collocation feasibility study to the CLEC.

Description:

Measures average interval to respond to collocation studies for feasibility of installation.

- Includes feasibility studies, for collocations of types specified herein that are completed in the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below. Collocation types included are: physical cageless, physical caged, shared physical caged, physical-line sharing, cageless-line sharing, and virtual.
- Interval begins with the Collocation Application Date and ends with the date Qwest completes the Feasibility Study and provides it to the CLEC.
- The Collocation Application Date is the date Qwest receives from the CLEC a complete application for collocation. In cases where the CLEC's application for collocation is received by Qwest on a weekend or holiday, the Collocation Application Date is the next <u>business day</u> following the weekend or holiday.

| i lonoming the needed a e | | | |
|---|---|--|--|
| Reporting Period: One month | | Unit of Measure: Calendar Days | |
| Reporting Comparisons: C individual CLEC results | LEC aggregate and | Disaggregati | on Reporting: Statewide level. |
| Formula: | | League 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 | |
| Σ[(Date Feasibility Study pro | vided to CLEC) - (Dat | e Qwest receiv | es CLEC request for Feasibility |
| Study)] ÷ (Total Feasibility S | tudies Completed in th | e Reporting Pe | riod) |
| CLEC-caused delays of, than ten calendar days f date. | or CLEC requests for rom Collocation Applic | feasibility study ation Date to se | / completions resulting in greater cheduled feasibility study completion |
| Product Reporting: None | | Standard: | 10 calendar days or less |
| Availability: | Notes: | | |
| Available | Collocations covered by this measurement are central office related. As additional types of central office collocation are defined and offered, they will be included in this measurement. Non-central office-based types of collocation (such as remote collocation and field connection points) will be considered for either inclusion in this measurement, or in new, separate measurements, after the terms, conditions, and processes for such collocation types become finalized, accepted, mature (i.e., six months of experience from first installations), and ordered in volumes warranting reporting (i.e., | | |

consistently more than two per month in any state).

CP-4 – Collocation Feasibility Study Commitments Met

Purpose:

Evaluates the degree that Qwest completes the sub-process function of providing a collocation feasibility study to the CLEC as committed.

Description:

Measures the percentage of collocation feasibility studies for installations that are completed within the Scheduled Interval

- The Scheduled Interval is ten calendar days from the Collocation Application Date or, if interconnection agreements call for different intervals, within intervals specified in the agreements, or if otherwise delayed by the CLEC, the interval resulting from the delay.
- Includes all feasibility studies for collocations of types specified herein, that are completed in the reporting period. Collocation types included are: physical cageless, physical caged, shared physical caged, physical-line sharing, cageless-line sharing, and virtual.
- Considers the interval from the Collocation Application Date to the date Qwest completes the Feasibility Study and provides it to the CLEC.
- The Collocation Application Date is the date Qwest receives from the CLEC a complete application for collocation. In cases where the CLEC's application for collocation is received by Qwest on a weekend or holiday, the Collocation Application Date is the next <u>business day</u> following the weekend or holiday.
- Subject to superceding terms in the CLEC's interconnection agreement, when a CLEC submits six

 (6) or more Collocation applications in a one-week period in any state, feasibility study intervals
 will be individually negotiated and the resulting intervals used instead of ten calendar days in this
 measurement.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and individual CLEC results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. |

Formula:

[(Total Applicable Collocation Feasibility studies completed within Scheduled Intervals) ÷ (Total applicable Collocation Feasibility studies completed in the reporting period)] x 100

Exclusions: None

| Product Reporting: None | | Standard: | 90 percent or more |
|----------------------------|--|---|---|
| Availability: Available | Notes: 1. Collocation related. A defined an Non-centric collocation either inclime measurer such colloc six monthic volumes v per monthic | ons covered by thi As additional types and offered, they w ral office-based ty n and field conne- usion in this meas nents, after the te bocation types beco s of experience fr warranting reportion in any state). | s measurement are central office s of central office collocation are vill be included in this measurement. pes of collocation (such as remote ction points) will be considered for surement, or in new, separate rms, conditions, and processes for ome finalized, accepted, mature (i.e., rom first installations), and ordered in ng (i.e., consistently more than two |

DEFINITION OF TERMS

Application Date (and Time) – The date (and time) on which Qwest receives from the CLEC a complete and accurate local service request (LSR) or access service request (ASR) or retail order, subject to the following:

- For the following types of requests/orders, the application date (and time) is the start of the next business day:
 - (1) LSRs and ASRs received after 3:00PM MT for Designed Services and Local Number Portability (except non-designed, flow-through LNP).
 - (2) Retail orders received after 3:00 PM local time for Designed Services.
 - (3) LSRs received after 7:00PM MT for POTS Resale (Residence and Business), Non-Design Resale Centrex, non-designed UNE-P, Unbundled Loops, and non-designed, flow-through LNP.
 - (4) Retail orders for comparable non-designed services cannot be received after closing time, so the cutoff time is essentially the business office closing time.
- For all types of orders that are received from Friday at 7:00 PM MT through Sunday, or on holidays, and do not flow through, the application date (and time) is the next, non-weekend business day.

Automatic Location Information (ALI) – The feature of E911 that displays at the Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) the street address of the calling telephone number. This feature requires a data storage and retrieval system for translating telephone numbers to the associated address. ALI may include Emergency Service Number (ESN), street address, room or floor, and names of the enforcement, fire and medical agencies with jurisdictional responsibility for the address. The Management System (E911) database is used to update the Automatic E911 Location Information databases.

Bill Date – The date shown at the top of the bill, representing the date on which Qwest begins to close the bill.

Blocking – Condition on a telecommunications network where, due to a maintenance problem or an traffic volumes exceeding trunking capacity in a part of the network, some or all originating or terminating calls cannot reach their final destinations. Depending on the condition and the part of the network affected, the network may make subsequent attempts to complete the call or the call may be completely blocked. If the call is completely blocked, the calling party will have to re-initiate the call attempt.

Business Day – Workdays that Qwest is normally open for business. Business Day = Monday through Friday, excluding weekends and Qwest published Holidays including New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas. Individual measurement definitions may modify (typically expanding) this definition as described in the Notes section of the measurement definition.

Cleared Trouble Report – A trouble report for which the trouble has been cleared, meaning the customer is "back in service".

Closed Trouble Report – A trouble report that has been closed out from a maintenance center perspective, meaning the ticket is closed in the trouble reporting system following repair of the trouble.

Code Activation (Opening) – Process by which new NPA/NXXs (area code/prefix) is defined, through software translations to network databases and switches, in telephone networks. Code activation (openings) allow for new groups of telephone numbers (usually in blocks of 10,000) to be made available for assignment to an ILEC's or CLEC's customers, and for calls to those numbers to be passed between carriers.

Common Channel Signaling System 7 (CCSS7) – A network architecture used to for the exchange of signaling information between telecommunications nodes and networks on an out-of-band basis. Information exchanged provides for call set-up and supports services and features such as CLASS and database query and response.

Common Transport – Trunk groups between tandem and end office switches that are shared by more than one carrier, often including the traffic of both the ILEC and several CLECs.

Completion – The time in the order process when the service has been provisioned and service is available.

Qwest South Dakota SGAT Fourth Revision, Fourth Amended Exhibit B June 24, 2004 Page 101

Completion Notice – A notification the ILEC provides to the CLEC to inform the CLEC that the requested service order activity is complete.

Coordinated Customer Conversion -- Orders that have a due date negotiated between the ILEC, the CLEC, and the customer so that work activities can be performed on a coordinated basis under the direction of the receiving carrier.

Customer Requested Due Date – A specific due date requested by the customer which is either shorter or longer than the standard interval or the interval offered by the ILEC.

Customer Trouble Reports – A report that the carrier providing the underlying service opens when notified that a customer has a problem with their service. Once resolved, the disposition of the trouble is changed to closed.

Dedicated Transport – A network facility reserved to the exclusive use of a single customer, carrier or pair of carriers used to exchange switched or special, local exchange, or exchange access traffic.

Delayed Order – An order which has been completed after the scheduled due date and/or time.

Directory Assistance Database – A database that contains subscriber records used to provide live or automated operator-assisted directory assistance. Including 411, 555-1212, NPA-555-1212.

Directory Listings – Subscriber information used for DA and/or telephone directory publishing, including name and telephone number, and optionally, the customer's address.

DS-0 – Digital Service Level 0. Service provided at a digital signal speed commonly at 64 kbps, but occasionally at 56 kbps.

DS-1 – Digital Service Level 1. Service provided at a digital signal speed of 1.544 Mbps.

DS-3 – Digital Service Level 3. Service provided at a digital signal speed of 44.736 Mbps.

Due Date – The date provided on the Firm Order Confirmation (FOC) the ILEC sends the CLEC identifying the planned completion date for the order.

End Office Switch – A switch from which an end users' exchange services are directly connected and offered.

Final Trunk Groups – Interconnection and interoffice trunk groups that do not overflow traffic to other trunk groups when busy.

Firm Order Confirmation (FOC) – Notice the ILEC sends to the CLEC to notify the CLEC that it has received the CLECs service request, created a service order, and assigned it a due date.

Flow-Through –The term used to describe whether a LSR electronically is passed from the OSS interface system to the ILEC legacy system to automatically create a service order. LSRs that do not flow through require manual intervention for the service order to be created in the ILEC legacy system.

Interval Zone 1/Zone 2 – Interval Zone 1 areas are wire centers for which Qwest specifies shorter standard service intervals than for Interval Zone 2 areas.

Installation – The activity performed to activate a service.

Installation Troubles – A trouble, which is identified after service order activity and installation, has completed on a customer's line. It is likely attributable to the service activity (within a defined time period).

Interconnection Trunks – A network facility that is used to interconnect two switches generally of different local exchange carriers

Inward Activity – Refers to all orders for new or additional lines/circuits. For change order types, additional lines/circuits consist of all C orders with "I" and "T" action coded line/circuit USOCs that represent new or additional lines/circuits, including conversions from retail to CLEC and CLEC to CLEC.

Jeopardy – A condition experienced in the service provisioning process which results potentially in the inability of a carrier to meet the committed due date on a service order

Jeopardy Notice – The actual notice that the ILEC sends to the CLEC when a jeopardy has been identified.

Lack of Facilities – A shortage of cable facilities identified after a due date has been committed to a customer, including the CLEC. The facilities shortage may be identified during the inventory assignment process or during the service installation process, and typically triggers a jeopardy.

Local Exchange Routing Guide (LERG) – A Bellcore master file that is used by the telecom industry to identify NPA-NXX routing and homing information, as well as network element and equipment designations. The file also includes scheduled network changes associated with activity within the North American Numbering Plan (NANP).

Local Exchange Traffic – Traffic originated on the network of a LEC in a local calling area that terminates to another LEC in a local calling area.

DEFINITION OF TERMS (continued)

Local Number Portability (formerly defined under Permanent Number Portability and also known as – Long Term Number Portability) – A network technology which allows end user customers to retain their telephone number when moving their service between local service providers. This technology does not employ remote call forwarding, but actually allows the customer's telephone number to be moved and redefined in the network of the new service provider. The activity to move the telephone number is called "porting."

Local Service Request (LSR) – Transaction sent from the CLEC to the ILEC to order services or to request a change(s) be made to existing services.

MSA/Non-MSA – Metropolitan Statistical Area is a government defined geographic area with a population of 50,000 or greater. Non-Metropolitan Statistical Area is a government defined geographic area with population of less than 50,000. Qwest depicts MSA Non-MSA based on NPA NXX. Where a wire center is predominantly within an MSA, all lines are counted within the MSA.

Mechanized Bill – A bill that is delivered via electronic transmission.

NXX, NXX Code or Central Office Code – The three digit switch entity indicator that is defined by the "D", "E", and "F" digits of a 10-digit telephone number within the NANP. Each NXX Code contains 10,000 station numbers.

Plain Old Telephone Service (POTS) – Refers to basic 2-wire, non-complex analog residential and business services. Can include feature capabilities (e.g., CLASS features).

Projects – Service requests that exceed the line size and/or level of complexity which would allow for the use of standard ordering and provisioning processes. Generally, due dates for projects are negotiated, coordination of service installations/changes is required and automated provisioning may not be practical.

Query Types – Pre-ordering information that is available to a CLEC that is categorized according to standards issued by OBF and/or the FCC.

Ready For Service (RFS) – The status achieved in the installation of a collocation arrangement when all "operational" work has been completed. Operational work consists of the following as applicable to the particular type of collocation:

- Cage enclosure complete;
- DC power is active (including fuses available, BDFB [Battery Distribution Fuse Board] in place, and cables between the CLEC and power terminated);
- Primary AC outlet in place;
- Cable racking and circuit terminations are complete (e.g. fiber jumpers placed between the Outside Plant Fiber Distribution Panel and the Central Office Fiber Distribution Panel serving the CLEC). and
- The following items complete, subject to the CLEC having made required payments to Qwest (e.g., final payment): (If the required CLEC payments have not been made, the following items are not required for RFS):
 - Key turnover made available to CLEC.
 - APOT/CFA complete, as defined/required in the CLEC's interconnection agreement and
 - Basic telephone service and other services and facilities complete, if ordered by CLEC in time to be provided on the scheduled RFS date (per Qwest's published standard installation intervals for such telephone service).

Ready for Service Date (RFS date) – The due date assigned to a collocation order (typically determined by regulatory rulings, contract terms, or negotiations with CLEC) to indicate when collocation installation is scheduled to be ready for service, as defined above.

Reject – A status that can occur to a CLEC submitted local service request (LSR) when it does not meet certain criteria. There are two types of rejects: (1) syntax, which occur if required fields are not included in the LSR; and (2) content, which occur if invalid data is provided in a field. A rejected service request must be corrected and re-submitted before provisioning can begin.

Repeat Report – Any trouble report that is a second (or greater) report on the same telephone number/circuit ID and at the same premises address within 30 days. The original report can be any category, including excluded reports, and can carry any disposition code.

Service Group Type – The designation used to identify a category of similar services, .e.g., UNE loops.

Service Order – The work order created and distributed in ILECs systems and to ILEC work groups in response to a complete, valid local service request.

Service Order Type – The designation used to identify the major types of provisioning activities associated with a local service request.

Standard Interval – The interval that the ILEC publishes as a guideline for establishing due dates for provisioning a service request. Typically, due dates will not be assigned with intervals shorter than the standard. These intervals are specified by service type and type of service modification requested. ILECs publish these standard intervals in documents used by their own service representatives as well as ordering instructions provided to CLECs in the Qwest Standard Interval Guidelines.

Subsequent Reports – A trouble report that is taken in relation to a previously-reported trouble prior to the date and time the initial report has a status of "closed."

Tandem Switch – Switch used to connect and switch trunk circuits between and among Central Office switches.

Time to Restore – The time interval from the receipt, by the ILEC, of a trouble report on a customer's service to the time service is fully restored to the customer.

Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) – Combinations of network elements, including both new and conversions, involving POTS (i.e., basic services providing dial tone).

Unbundled Loop - The Unbundled Loop is a transmission path between a Qwest Central Office Distribution Frame, or equivalent, and the Loop Demarcation Point at an end user premises. Loop Demarcation Point is defined as the point where Qwest owned or controlled facilities cease, and CLEC, end user, owner or landlord ownership of facilities begins.

Usage Data – Data generated in network nodes to identify switched call data on a detailed or summarized basis. Usage data is used to create customer invoices for the calls.

GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS

| ACRONYM | DESCRIPTION | |
|---------|--|--|
| ACD | Automatic Call Distributor | |
| ADSL | Asymmetric Digital Subscriber Line | |
| ALI | Automatic Line Information (for 911/E911 systems) | |
| ASR | Service Request (processed via Exact system) | |
| BRI | Basic Rate Interface (type of ISDN service) | |
| CABS | Carrier Access Billing System | |
| СКТ | Circuit | |
| CLEC | Competitive Local Exchange Carrier | |
| CO | Central Office | |
| CPE | Customer Premises Equipment | |
| CRIS | Customer Record Information System | |
| CSR | Customer Service Record | |
| DA | Directory Assistance | |
| DB | Decibel | |
| DB | Database | |
| DS0 | Digital Service 0 | |
| DS1 | Digital Service 1 | |
| DS3 | Digital Service 3 | |
| E911 MS | E911 Management System | |
| EAS | Extended Area Service | |
| EB-TA | Electronic Bonding – Trouble Administration | |
| EDI | Electronic Data Interchange | |
| EELS | Enhanced Extended Loops | |
| ES | Emergency Services (for 911/E911) | |
| FOC | Firm Order Confirmation | |
| GUI | Graphical User Interface | |
| HDSL | High-Bit-Rate Digital Subscriber Line | |
| HICAP | High Capacity Digital Service | |
| IEC | Interexchange Carrier | |
| ILEC | Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier | |
| INP | Interim Number Portability | |
| IOF | Interottice Facilities (refers to trunk facilities located between | |
| | Qwest central offices) | |
| ISDN | Integrated Services Digital Network | |
| IMA | | |
| | Local Access Transport Area | |
| LEHG | Local Exchange Houting Guide | |
| | Line identification Database | |
| | Local Interconnection Service Trunks | |
| | Long Terri Number Portability | |
| | | |
| N, I, C | Service Order Types N (new), T (to or transfer), C | |
| | (cnange) | |
| | North American Numbering Plan | |
| | Number Dertehility Administration Conter | |
| NPAU | Number Portability Administration Center | |
| | | |
| I ORF | Ordering and Billing Forum | |

GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS (continued)

| ACRONYM | DESCRIPTION | |
|---------|---|--|
| OOS | Out of service (type of trouble condition) | |
| OSS | Operations Support Systems | |
| PBX | Private Branch Exchange | |
| PON | Purchase Order Number | |
| POTS | Plain Old Telephone Service | |
| PRI | Primary Rate Interface (type of ISDN service) | |
| RFS | Ready for Service (refers to collocation installations) | |
| SIA | SAAFE (Strategic Application Architecture Framework and | |
| | Environment) Information Access | |
| SOP | Service Order Processor | |
| SOT | Service Order Type | |
| SS7 | Signaling System 7 | |
| STP | Signaling Transfer Point | |
| TN | Telephone Number | |
| UDIT | Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport | |
| UNE | Unbundled Network Element | |
| UNE-P | Unbundled Network Element – Platform | |
| VRU | Voice Response Unit | |
| WFA | Work Force Administration | |
| XDSL | (x) Digital Subscriber Line. (The "x" prefix refers to DSL generically. An "x" replaced by an "A" refers to Asymmetric DSL and by an "H" refers to High-bit-rate DSL) | |

APPENDIX A

PO-20 Feature Detail Fields

Feature Detail

Resale and UNE-P (POTS and Centrex 21):

CFN

Validate the call forwarding TN

CFNB

Validate the call forwarding TN

CFND

Validate the call forwarding TN

RCYC

FID associated with a call forwarding don't answer USOC that determines how many rings before the call forwards to the TN provided with the CFN or CFND FIDs.

HLN (HLA Hot Line)

FID associated with the USOC HLA (which is on our USOC list to validate.) The Hot Line feature call forwards automatically to a pre-programmed number. This TN is provided following the HLN FID. The data provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR will be validated against the HLN FID on the service order to determine whether the FID is present and the TN provided on the LSR with the FID is correct on the service order.

LINK (HME CALL FORWARDING TO CELLULAR)

FID associated with the USOC HME (which is on our USOC list to validate.) The HME feature call forwards a call from the landline telephone number to a cellular telephone number. The LINK FID, along with the PCS telephone number provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR, will be validated against the LINK FID on the service order to determine whether the FID is present and the telephone number provided on the LSR matches the telephone number on the service order.

DES on DID MBB

If the CLEC requests a DID voice mailbox the DID number will follow the FID DES on the LSR in the Feature Detail section and on the service order. The DES FID along with the DID telephone number provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR will be validated against the DES FID on the service order to determine whether the FID is present and the DID telephone number provided on the matches the telephone number on the service order.

TN on Custom Ring USOC (RGG1A etc.)

We currently have 9 custom ring USOCs on our PO-20 USOC list. Along with the custom ring USOC is the TN FID. The TN FID along with the custom ring telephone number provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR will be validated against the TN FID on the service order to determine whether the FID is present and the custom ring telephone provided on the LSR with the FID is correct on the service order. (The validation would only apply if the USOC and FID were present in the Feature Detail section of the LSR.)

CAS (If provided on LSR for SEA)

Call Screening Code Assignment is a FID associated with the selective class of call feature (which is on our USOC list to validate.) Along with the CAS FID is a two-digit number that indicates what type of screening is being requested. The CAS FID along with a two-digit number is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the two-digit number matches the two-digit number provided on the LSR.

WW (if provided on LSR for TFM)

Working With is a FID associated with the transfer mailbox feature (which is on our USOC list to validate.) Along with the WW FID is a ten-digit number that indicates where the voice mailbox is located. The WW FID along with the ten-digit number is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the tendigit number matches the ten-digit number provided on the LSR.

MBOA (if provided on LSR for VFN)

Mailbox out-dial notification is a FID associated with the message notification feature (which is on our USOC list to validate.) Along with the MBOA FID is a two-digit alphanumeric combination that indicates where the notification will be sent (i.e., identifies pager type.) The MBOA FID along with the two-digit alphanumeric combination is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the two-digit alphanumeric matches the two-digit alphanumeric provided on the LSR.

DES on VGT (if provided on LSR)

Description is a FID associated with the scheduled greeting feature (which is on our USOC list to validate.) Along with the DES FID is a ten-digit telephone number that reflects the DID mailbox number. The DES FID along with the ten-digit telephone number is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the ten-digit telephone number matches the ten-digit telephone number provided on the LSR.

WLT (WLS Warm Line)

Warm line timeout is a FID associated with the warm line feature. Along with the WLT FID is a one or two numeric value that indicates the number of seconds that must elapse before the DMS-100 switch sets up the connection for a warm line service number. The WLT FID along with the one or two numeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the one or two numeric value matches the one or two numeric value provided on the LSR.

FIDs associated with WFA (800 service line feature which is on our USOC list to validate):

SIT (if provided on LSR for WFA)

Special identifying telephone number is a FID associated with the 800 service line feature. Along with the SIT FID is a ten-digit telephone number that reflects the 800, 888, 877, or 866 service line feature. The SIT FID along with the ten-digit telephone number is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the ten-digit telephone number matches the ten-digit telephone number provided on the LSR.

SIS (if provided on LSR for WFA)

Special Identifying Telephone Number Supplemental is a FID associated with the 800 service line feature. The SIS FID along with a one-digit number is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the one-digit number matches the one-digit number provided on the LSR.

ELN (if provided on LSR for WFA)

800 Service listed name is a FID associated with the 800 service line feature. Along with the ELN FID is a listed name, which follows the format of a business name. The ELN FID along with the name is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the name matches the name provided on the LSR.

ELA (if provided on LSR for WFA)

800 listed address is a FID associated with the 800 service line feature. Along with the ELA FID is an address, which follows the format of a listed address plus LATA, State, and ZIP code. The ELA FID along with the address is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the address provided on the LSR.

AOS (if provided on LSR for WFA)

Area of service is a FID associated with the 800 service line feature. Along with the AOS FID are one to two alphanumeric characters and three numeric characters which represents LATA and AC of the address. The AOS FID along with the additional characters are provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the additional characters match the additional characters provided on the LSR.

ALC (if provided on LSR for WFA)

IntraLATA carrier is a FID associated with the 800 service line feature. It indicates the IntraLATA carrier for the 800 service. Along with the ALC FID is the three-digit code (OTC) for the IntraLATA carrier. The ALC FID along with the three-digit code is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the three-digit code matches the three-digit code provided on the LSR.

Resale and UNE-P Centrex 21

FIDs associated with SO3, SO5, SFB, C2TAX (Electronic Business Set USOCs which are on our USOC list to validate):

KEY (If provided on LSR for Electronic Business Set EBS USOCs)

Key Designation (KEY number) is a FID associated with the Electronic Business Set feature. Along with the KEY FID is a numeric value that indicates the key designated for different features or lines on the EBS. The KEY FID along with the numeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the numeric value matches the numeric value provided on the LSR.

MADN (If provided on LSR for Electronic Business Set EBS USOCs)

Multiple Appearance Directory Number Call Arrangement is a FID associated with the Electronic Business Set feature. Along with the MADN FID is a set of alpha values that indicate the type, appearance and ring status desired for different features or lines on the EBS. The KEY FID along with the alpha values is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the alpha values match the alpha values provided on the LSR.

ROL (If provided on LSR for Electronic Business Set EBS USOCs)

Ring On Line is a FID associated with the Electronic Business Set feature. Along with the ROL FID is an alpha value that indicates if the line will ring (Y or N). The ROL FID along with the alpha value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the alpha value matches the alpha value provided on the LSR.

TTYD (If provided on LSR for C2TAX)

Terminal Type is a FID associated with the adjunct module feature. Along with the TTYD FID is a 4 character alpha value based on customer equipment. The TTYD FID along with the 4 character alpha value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the 4 character alpha value matches the 4 character alpha value provided on the LSR.

FIDs associated with E3PPK (CALL PICK-UP feature which is on our USOC list to validate):

CPG (If provided on LSR for E3PPK)

Call Pickup Group is a FID associated with the CALL PICK-UP feature. Along with the CPG FID is a 1-3 digit numeric value that identifies the call pickup group. The CPG FID along with the 1-3 digit numeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the 1-3 digit numeric value matches the 1-3 digit numeric value provided on the LSR.

CPUO (If provided on LSR for E3PPK)

Call Pickup-Originating is a FID associated with the CALL PICK-UP feature. Along with the CPUO FID is an alphanumeric value that identifies the call pickup group. The CPUO FID along with the alphanumeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the alphanumeric value matches alphanumeric value provided on the LSR.

CPUT (If provided on LSR for E3PPK)

Call Pickup-Terminating is a FID associated with the CALL PICK-UP feature. Along with the CPUT FID is an alphanumeric value that identifies the call pickup group. The CPUT FID along with the alphanumeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the alphanumeric value matches alphanumeric value provided on the LSR.

FIDs associated with GVJ, EZJ, GVZ, GV2, EVH, GVV (Speed Call feature USOCs that are on our USOC list to validate):

SCG (If provided on LSR for Speed call USOCs)

Speed Call Group is a FID associated with the Speed call feature. Along with the SCG FID is a 7 digit numeric value that identifies the controller of the group. The SCG FID along with the 7 digit numeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the 7 digit numeric value matches 7 digit numeric value provided on the LSR.

CSL (If provided on LSR for Speed call USOCs)

Change Speed Calling Group List is a FID associated with the Speed call feature. Along with the CSL FID is a 2 digit numeric value that identifies the size of the group list. The SCG FID along with the 7 digit numeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the 2 digit numeric value matches 2 digit numeric value provided on the LSR.

SCF (If provided on LSR for Speed call USOCs)

Speed Calling Feature Name is a FID associated with the Speed call feature. Along with the SCF FID is an alphanumeric value that identifies the controller of the shared list. The SCF FID along with the alphanumeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the alphanumeric value matches alphanumeric value provided on the LSR.



Service Performance Indicator Definitions (PID)

14-State 271 PID Version 7.0-1

QWEST'S SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATOR DEFINITIONS (PID)

14-State 271 PID Version 7.01

Introduction

Qwest will report performance results for the service performance indicators defined herein. Qwest will report separate performance results associated with the services it provides to Competitive Local Exchange Carriers (CLECs) in aggregate (except as noted herein), to CLECs individually and, as applicable, to Qwest's retail customers in aggregate. Within these categories, performance results related to service provisioning and repair will be reported for the products listed in each definition. Reports for CLECs individually will be subject to agreements of confidentiality and/or nondisclosure.

The definitions in this version of the PID apply in the 14 states of Qwest's local service region: Arizona, Colorado, Idaho, Iowa, Minnesota, Montana, Nebraska, New Mexico, North Dakota, Oregon, South Dakota, Utah, Washington and Wyoming. Individual state Performance Assurance Plans may specify and apply state specific variations from the Performance Measure definitions and/or standards contained herein.

Qwest's Service Performance Indicator Definitions

Table of Contents

| ELECTRONIC GATEWAY AVAILABILITY | 2 |
|---|------------|
| GA-1 – Gateway Availability – IMA-GUI | 2 |
| GA-2 – Gateway Availability – IMA-EDI | 2 |
| GA-3 – Gateway Availability – EB-TA | .2 |
| GA-4 – System Availability – EXACT | .2 |
| GA-6 – Gateway Availability – GUI Repair | 2 |
| GA-7 – Timely Outage Resolution following Software Releases | .2 |
| PRE-ORDER/ORDER | <u>. 2</u> |
| <u>PO-1 – Pre-Order/Order Response Times</u> | <u>.2</u> |
| PO-2 – Electronic Flow-through | <u>.2</u> |
| PO-3 – LSR Rejection Notice Interval | <u>.2</u> |
| PO-4 – LSRs Rejected | <u>.2</u> |
| PO-5 – Firm Order Confirmations (FOCs) On Time | <u>.2</u> |
| PO-6 – Work Completion Notification Timeliness | <u>.2</u> |
| PO-7 – Billing Completion Notification Timeliness | <u>.2</u> |
| PO-8 – Jeopardy Notice Interval | <u>.2</u> |
| <u>PO-9 – Timely Jeopardy Notices</u> | <u>.2</u> |
| <u>PO-15 – Number of Due Date Changes per Order</u> | <u>.2</u> |
| PO-16 – Timely Release Notifications | <u>.2</u> |
| PO-19 – Stand-Alone Test Environment (SATE) Accuracy | <u>.2</u> |
| PO-20 (Expanded) – Manual Service Order Accuracy | <u>.2</u> |
| ORDERING AND PROVISIONING | <u>.2</u> |
| <u>OP-2 – Calls Answered within Twenty Seconds – Interconnect Provisioning Center</u> | <u>.2</u> |
| <u>OP-3 – Installation Commitments Met</u> | <u>.2</u> |
| <u>OP-4 – Installation Interval</u> | <u>.2</u> |
| <u>OP-5 – New Service Quality</u> | <u>.2</u> |
| <u>OP-6 – Delayed Days</u> | <u>.2</u> |
| <u>OP-7 – Coordinated "Hot Cut" Interval – Unbundled Loop</u> | <u>.2</u> |
| <u>OP-8 – Number Portability Timeliness</u> | <u>.2</u> |
| <u>OP-13 – Coordinated Cuts On Time – Unbundled Loop</u> | <u>.2</u> |
| OP-15 – Interval for Pending Orders Delayed Past Due Date | <u>.2</u> |
| <u>OP-17 – Timeliness of Disconnects associated with LNP Orders</u> | <u>.2</u> |
| MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR | <u>.2</u> |
| MR-2 – Calls Answered within 20 Seconds – Interconnect Repair Center | <u>.2</u> |
| MR-3 – Out of Service Cleared within 24 Hours | <u>.2</u> |
| MR-4 – All Troubles Cleared within 48 hours | <u>.2</u> |
| MR-5 – All Troubles Cleared within 4 hours | <u>2</u> |
| MR-6 – Mean Time to Restore | <u>2</u> |
| MR-7 – Repair Repeat Report Rate | <u>2</u> |
| MR-8 – Trouble Rate | <u>2</u> |
| MH-9 – Hepair Appointments Met. | <u>2</u> |
| MR-10 – Customer and Non-Qwest Related Trouble Reports | <u>2</u> |
| MR-11 – LNP Trouble Reports Cleared within 24 Hours | 2 |
| BILLING | <u>2</u> |
| BI-1 – Lime to Provide Recorded Usage Records | 2 |

Qwest South Dakota SGAT Fourth Revision, ThirdFourth Amended Exhibit B May 5June 24, 2004Page ii

Table of Contents (continued)

| BI-2 – Invoices Delivered within 10 Days | <u>2</u> |
|--|--------------|
| BI-3 – Billing Accuracy – Adjustments for Errors | <u>2</u> |
| BI-4 – Billing Completeness | <u>2</u> |
| DATABASE UPDATES | <u>2</u> |
| DB-1 – Time to Update Databases | <u>2</u> |
| DB-2 – Accurate Database Updates | <u>2</u> |
| DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE | <u>2</u> |
| DA-1 – Speed of Answer – Directory Assistance | <u>2</u> |
| OPERATOR SERVICES | <u>2</u> |
| <u>OS-1 – Speed of Answer – Operator Services</u> | <u>2</u> |
| NETWORK PERFORMANCE | <u>2</u> |
| <u>NI-1 – Trunk Blocking</u> | <u>2</u> |
| NP-1 – NXX Code Activation | <u>2</u> |
| COLLOCATION | <u>2</u> |
| <u>CP-1 – Collocation Completion Interval</u> | <u>2</u> |
| <u>CP-2 – Collocations Completed within Scheduled Intervals</u> | <u>2</u> |
| <u>CP-3 – Collocation Feasibility Study Interval</u> | <u>2</u> |
| <u>CP-4 – Collocation Feasibility Study Commitments Met</u> | <u>2</u> |
| DEFINITION OF TERMS | <u>2</u> |
| GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS | <u>2</u> |
| APPENDIX A | <u>2</u> |
| ELECTRONIC GATEWAY AVAILABILITY | 1 |
| GA-1 – Gateway Availability – IMA-GUI | 1 |
| GA-2 – Gateway Availability – IMA-EDI | 2 |
| GA-3 – Gateway Availability – EB-TA | 3 |
| GA-4 – System Availability – EXACT | 4 |
| GA-6 – Gateway Availability – GUI Repair | 5 |
| GA-7 – Timely Outage Resolution following Software Releases | 6 |
| PRE-ORDER/ORDER | 7 |
| PO-1 – Pre-Order/Order Response Times | 7 |
| PO-2 – Electronic Flow-through | .10 |
| PO-3 – LSR Rejection Notice Interval | -12 |
| PO-4 – LSRs Rejected | -13 |
| PO-5 – Firm Order Confirmations (FOCs) On Lime | .14 |
| PO-6 – Work Completion Notification Limeliness | -14 |
| PO-7 – Billing Completion Notification Limeliness | -18 |
| PO-8 - Jeopardy Notice Interval | -20 |
| PO-9 - Himely Jeopardy Notices | -21 |
| PO-15 – Number of Due Date Changes per Order | -22 |
| PO-16 – Limely Release Notifications | -23 |
| PO-19 - Stand-Alone Lest Environment (SATE) Accuracy | -25 |
| | -28 |
| UF-2 – Gails Answered within Twenty Seconds – Interconnect Provisioning Center | -28 |
| UP-3 - Installation Commitments Met | -29 |
| UF-4 - Installation Interval | -32 |
| UP-5 - New Service Quality | |
| | -40 |
| UP-/ - Coordinated "Hot Cut" Interval - Unbundled Loop | -43 |

Table of Contents (continued)

| OP-8 – Number Portability Timeliness | 44 |
|--|----------------|
| OP-13 - Coordinated Cuts On Time - Unbundled Loop | 45 |
| OP-15 - Interval for Pending Orders Delayed Past Due Date | 47 |
| OP-17 - Timeliness of Disconnects associated with LNP Orders | 50 |
| MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR | 52 |
| MR-2 - Calls Answered within 20 Seconds - Interconnect Repair Center | 52 |
| MR-3 - Out of Service Cleared within 24 Hours | 53 |
| MR-4 – All Troubles Cleared within 48 hours | 55 |
| MR-5 – All Troubles Cleared within 4 hours | 57 |
| MR-6 – Mean Time to Restore | 59 |
| MR-7 – Repair Repeat Report Rate | 62 |
| MR-8 – Trouble Rate | 65 |
| MR-9 – Repair Appointments Met | 67 |
| MR-10 - Customer and Non-Qwest Related Trouble Reports | 68 |
| MR-11 - LNP Trouble Reports Cleared within 24 Hours | 70 |
| BILLING | 72 |
| BI-1 - Time to Provide Recorded Usage Records | 72 |
| BI-2 - Invoices Delivered within 10 Days | 73 |
| BI-3 – Billing Accuracy – Adjustments for Errors | 7 4 |
| BI-4 – Billing Completeness | 75 |
| DATABASE UPDATES | 76 |
| DB-1 – Time to Update Databases | 76 |
| DB-2 - Accurate Database Updates | 78 |
| DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE | 79 |
| DA-1 – Speed of Answer – Directory Assistance | 79 |
| OPERATOR SERVICES | 80 |
| OS-1 – Speed of Answer – Operator Services | 80 |
| NETWORK PERFORMANCE | 81 |
| NI-1 – Trunk Blocking | 81 |
| NP-1 – NXX Code Activation | 83 |
| COLLOCATION | 85 |
| CP-1 - Collocation Completion Interval | 85 |
| CP-2 - Collocations Completed within Scheduled Intervals | 88 |
| CP-3 – Collocation Feasibility Study Interval | 91 |
| CP-4 – Collocation Feasibility Study Commitments Met | 92 |
| DEFINITION OF TERMS | 93 |
| GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS | 97 |

GA-1 – Gateway Availability – IMA-GUI

| Purpose: | | | |
|---|--|--|--|
| Evaluates the quality of CLEC access to the IMA-GUI electronic gateway and one associated system, | | | |
| focusing on the extent they are actually available to C | CLECs. | | |
| Description: | | | |
| Description: GA-1A: Measures the availability of the IMA-GUI (Interconnect Mediated Access- Graphical User Interface), and reports the percentage of Scheduled Availability Time the IMA-GUI interface is available for view and/or input. Scheduled Up Time hours for preorder, order, and provisioning transactions are based on the currently published hours of availability found on the following website: http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/cmp/ossHours.html. GA-1D: Measures the availability of the SIA system, which facilitates access for the IMA-GUI interface and the IMA-EDI interface (see GA-2), and reports the percentage of scheduled time the SIA system is available. Scheduled availability times will be no less than the same hours as listed for IMA-GUI and IMA-EDI. | | | |
| Scheduled Availability Time is equal to Scheduled Up Time minus Scheduled Down Time. Scheduled Down Time is time identified and communicated that the interface is not available due to maintenance and/or upgrade work. Notification of Scheduled Down Time for routine maintenance and/or upgrade work will be provided no less than 48 hours in advance. An outage is a critical or serious loss of functionality, attributable to the specified gateway or component (i.e., IMA-GUI, SIA), affecting Qwest's ability to serve its customers. An outage is determined by Qwest technicians through the use of verifiable data, collected from the affected customer(s) and/or from mechanized event management systems. | | | |
| Reporting Period: One monthUnit of Measure: Percent | | | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate District of the second | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. Results will be reported as follows: GA-1A IMA Graphical User Interface Gateway GA-1D SIA system | | |
| Formula: ([Number of Hours and Minutes Gateway is Available to CLECs During Reporting Period] ÷ [Number of Hours and Minutes of Scheduled Availability Time During Reporting Period]) x 100 | | | |
| Exclusions: None | | | |
| Product Reporting: None Standard: 99.25 percent | | | |
| Availability: Available | Notes: | | |

GA-2 – Gateway Availability – IMA-EDI

Purpose:

Evaluates the quality of CLEC access to the IMA-EDI electronic gateway, focusing on the extent the gateway is actually available to CLECs.

Description:

Measures the availability of IMA-EDI (Interconnect Mediated Access - Electronic Data Interchange) interface and reports the percentage of scheduled availability time the IMA-EDI Interface is available for view and/or input. All times during which the interface is scheduled to be operating during the reporting period are measured.

- Scheduled Up Time hours for IMA-EDI based on the currently published hours of availability found on the following website: http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/cmp/ossHours.html. Time Gateway is Available to CLECs is equal to Scheduled Availability Time minus Outage Time.
- Scheduled Availability Time is equal to Scheduled Up Time minus Scheduled Down Time.
- Scheduled Down Time is time identified and communicated that the interface is not available due to maintenance and/or upgrade work. Notification of Scheduled Down Time for routine maintenance and/or upgrade work will be provided no less than 48 hours in advance.
- An outage is a critical or serious loss of functionality, attributable to the specified gateway or component (i.e., IMA-EDI), affecting Qwest's ability to serve its customers. An outage is determined by Qwest technicians through the use of verifiable data, collected from the affected customer(s) and/or from mechanized event management systems.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate results | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. (See GA-1D for reporting of SIA system availability.) |
| Formula: | |

([Number of Hours and Minutes Gateway is Available to CLECs During Reporting Period] + [Number of Hours and Minutes of Scheduled Availability Time During Reporting Period]) x 100

| Exclusions: None | | | |
|-------------------|-----------|-----------|---------------|
| Product Reporting | ng: None | Standard: | 99.25 percent |
| Availability: | Available | Notes: | |

GA-3 – Gateway Availability – EB-TA

Purpose:

Evaluates the quality of CLEC access to the EB-TA interface, focusing on the extent the gateway is actually available to CLECs.

Description:

Measures the availability of EB-TA (Electronic Bonding – Trouble Administration) interface and reports the percentage of scheduled availability time the EB-TA Interface is available.

- Scheduled Up Time hours are based on the currently published hours of availability found on the following website: http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/cmp/ossHours.html.
- Time Gateway is Available to CLECs is equal to Scheduled Availability Time minus Outage Time.
- Scheduled Availability Time is equal to Scheduled Up Time minus Scheduled Down Time.
- Scheduled Down Time is time identified and communicated that the interface is not available due to maintenance and/or upgrade work. Notification of Scheduled Down Time for routine maintenance and/or upgrade work will be provided no less than 48 hours in advance.
- An outage is a critical or serious loss of functionality, attributable to the specified gateway or component (i.e., EB-TA), affecting Qwest's ability to serve its customers. An outage is determined by Qwest technicians through the use of verifiable data, collected from the affected customer(s) and/or from mechanized event management systems.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate results | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. |

Formula:

([Number of Hours and Minutes Gateway is Available to CLECs During Reporting Period] + [Number of Hours and Minutes of Scheduled Availability During Reporting Period]) x 100

| Exclusions: None | | | |
|----------------------------|-----------|---------------|--|
| Product Reporting: None | Standard: | 99.25 percent | |
| Availability: Available | Notes: | | |

GA-4 – System Availability – EXACT

Purpose:

Evaluates the quality of CLEC batch access to the EXACT electronic access service request system, focusing on the extent the system is actually available to CLECs.

Description:

Measures the availability of EXACT system and reports the percentage of scheduled availability time the EXACT system is available.

- Scheduled Up Time hours are based on the currently published hours of availability found on the following website: <u>http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/cmp/ossHours.html</u>.
- Time System is Available to CLECs is equal to Scheduled Availability Time minus Outage Time.
- Scheduled Availability Time is equal to Scheduled Up Time minus Scheduled Down Time.
- Scheduled Down Time is time identified and communicated that the system is not available due to maintenance and/or upgrade work. Notification of Scheduled Down Time for routine maintenance and/or upgrade work will be provided no less than 48 hours in advance.
- An outage is a critical or serious loss of functionality, attributable to the specified gateway or component (i.e., EXACT), affecting Qwest's ability to serve its customers. An outage is determined by Qwest technicians through the use of verifiable data, collected from the affected customer(s) and/or from mechanized event management systems.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate results | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. |

Formula:

([Number of Hours and Minutes EXACT is Available to CLECs During Reporting Period] ÷ [Number of Hours and Minutes of Scheduled Availability During Reporting Period]) x 100

| Exclusions: None | | | |
|----------------------------|-----------|---------------|--|
| Product Reporting: None | Standard: | 99.25 percent | |
| Availability: Available | Notes: | | |

GA-6 - Gateway Availability - GUI -- Repair

Purpose:

Evaluates the quality of CLEC access to the GUI Repair electronic gateway, focusing on the extent the gateway is actually available to CLECs.

Description:

Measures the availability of the GUI (Graphical User Interface) repair electronic interface and reports the percentage of scheduled availability time the interface is available for view and/or input. All times during which the interface is scheduled to be operating during the reporting period are measured.

- Scheduled Up Time" hours are based on the currently published hours of availability found on the following website: http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/cmp/ossHours.html.
- Time Gateway is Available to CLECs is equal to Scheduled Availability Time minus Outage Time.
- Scheduled Availability Time is equal to Scheduled Up Time minus Scheduled Down Time.
- Scheduled Down Time is time identified and communicated that the interface is not available due to maintenance and/or upgrade work. Notification of Scheduled Down Time for routine maintenance and/or upgrade work will be provided no less than 48 hours in advance.
- An outage is a critical or serious loss of functionality, attributable to the specified gateway or component (i.e., GUI-Repair), affecting Qwest's ability to serve its customers. An outage is determined by Qwest technicians through the use of verifiable data, collected from the affected customer(s) and/or from mechanized event management systems.

| Unit of Measure: Percent | | | | |
|--|--|--|--|--|
| Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. | | | | |
| · · · · | | | | |
| | | | | |
| [Number of Hours and Minutes Gateway is Available to CLECs During Reporting Period + Number of | | | | |
| Hours and Minutes of Scheduled Availability Time During Reporting Period] x 100 | | | | |
| Exclusions: None | | | | |
| Standard: 99.25 percent | | | | |
| Notes: | | | | |
| | | | | |

GA-7 – Timely Outage Resolution following Software Releases

Purpose:

Measures the timeliness of resolution of gateway or system outages attributable to software releases for specified OSS interfaces, focusing on CLEC-affecting software releases involving the specified gateways or systems.

Description:

- Measures the percentage of gateway or system outages, which are attributable to OSS system software releases and which occur within two weeks after the implementation of the OSS system software releases, that are resolved ^{NOTE 1} within 48 hours of detection by the Qwest monitoring group or reporting by a CLEC/co-provider.
- Includes software releases associated with the following OSS interfaces in Qwest: IMA-GUI, IMA-EDI, and CEMR, Exchange Access, Control, & Tracking (EXACT)^{NOTE 2}, Electronic Bonding– Trouble Administration (EB -TA)
- An outage for this measurement is a critical or serious loss of functionality, attributable to the specified gateway or component, affecting Qwest's ability to serve its customers or data loss ^{NOTE 4} on the Qwest side of the interface. An outage is determined by Qwest technicians through the use of verifiable data, collected from the affected customer(s) and/or from mechanized event management systems.
- The outage resolution time interval considered in this measurement starts at the time Qwest's monitoring group detects a failure, or at the date/time of the first transaction sent to Qwest that cannot be processed (i.e. lost data), and ends with the time functionality is restored or the lost data is recovered.

| Reporting Period: Monthly | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---------------------------------------|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC Aggregate | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. |

Formula:

[(Total outages detected within two weeks of a Software Release that are resolved within 48 hours of the time Qwest detects the outage) \div (Total number of outages detected within two weeks of Software Releases resolved in the Reporting Period)] x 100

Exclusions:

- Outages in releases prior to any CLEC migrating to the release.
- Duplicate reports attributable to the same software defect.

| Product Reporting: None | | Standards: | |
|-------------------------|---|--|--|
| | | Volume = 1-20: 1 miss | |
| | | Volume > 20: 95% | |
| Availability: | Notes: | | |
| | 1. "Resolved" mea | ns that service is restored to the reporting CLEC, as | |
| Available | experienced by | the CLEC. | |
| | 2. EXACT is a Tele | ecordia system. Only releases for changes initiated by | |
| | Qwest for hardw | vare or connectivity will be included in this measurement. | |
| | 3. Outages reported under EB-TA are the same as outages in MEDIACC. | | |
| | 4. For data loss to | be considered for GA-7, a functional acknowledgement | |
| | must have been | provided for the data in question (e.g., EDI 997, LSR ID | |
| | or trouble ticket | number). | |

PO-1 – Pre-Order/Order Response Times

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness of responses to specific preordering/ordering queries for CLECs through the use of Qwest's Operational Support Systems (OSS). Qwest's OSS are accessed through the specified gateway interface.

Description:

PO-1A & PO-1B:

Measures the time interval between query and response for specified pre-order/order transactions through the electronic interface.

- Measurements are made using a system that simulates the transactions of requesting preordering/ordering information from the underlying existing OSS. These simulated transactions are made through the operational production interfaces and existing systems in a manner that reflects, in a statistically-valid manner, the transaction response times experienced by CLEC service representatives in the reporting period.
- The time interval between query and response consists of the period from the time the transaction request was "sent" to the time it is "received" via the gateway interface.
- A guery is an individual request for the specified type of information.

PO-1C:

• Measures the percentage of all IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B transmitted in the reporting period that timeout before receiving a response.

PO-1D:

• Measures the average response time for a sampling of rejected queries across preorder transaction types. The response time measured is the time between the issuance of a pre-ordering transaction and the receipt of an error message associated with a "rejected query." A rejected query is a transaction that cannot be successfully processed due to the provision of incomplete or invalid information by the sender, which results in an error message back to the sender.

| v | |
|-----------------------------|--------------------------------|
| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: |
| | PO-1A, PO-1B, & PO-1D: Seconds |
| | PO-1C: Percent |

PO-1 – Pre-Order/Order Response Times (continued)

| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate. | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. Results are reported as follows: PO-1A Pre-Order/Order Response Time for IMA-GUI PO-1B Pre-Order/Order Response Time for IMA-EDI Results are reported separately for each of the following transaction types: ^{NOTE 2} 1. Appointment Scheduling (Due Date Reservation, where appointment is required) 2. Service Availability Information 3. Facility Availability 4. Street Address Validation 5. Customer Service Records 6. Telephone Number 7. Loop Qualification Tools ^{NOTE 3} 8. Resale of Qwest DSL Qualification 9. Connecting Facility Assignment ^{NOTE 4} 10. Meet Point Inquiry ^{NOTE 5} | | | |
|---|---|--|--|--|
| | For PO-1A (transactions via IMA-GUI), in addition to reporting total response time, response times for each of the above transactions will be reported in two parts: (a) time to access the request screen, and (b) time to receive the response for the specified transaction. For PO-1A 6, Telephone Number, a third part (c) accept screen, will be reported. | | | |
| | For PO-1B (transactions via IMA-EDI), request/response will be reported as a combined number. | | | |
| | PO-1C Results for PO-1C will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-GUI 2. Percent of Preorder Transactions that Timeout IMA-EDI | | | |
| | PO-1D Results for PO-1D will be reported according to the gateway interface used: 1. Rejected Response Times for IMA-GUI 2. Rejected Response Times for IMA-EDI | | | |
| Formula: | | | | |
| PO-1A & PO-1B = | Σ [(Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] ÷ (Number of Queries Submitted in Reporting Period) | | | |
| PO-1C = | [(Number of IRTM Queries measured by PO-1A & 1B that Timeout before receiving response) + (Number of IRTM Queries Transmitted in Reporting Period)] x 100 | | | |
| PO-1D = | $\Sigma[(Rejected Query Response Date & Time) – (Query Submission Date & Time)] + (Number of Rejected Query Transactions Simulated by IRTM)$ | | | |
| Exclusions: | | | | |
| PO-1A & PO-1B: | | | | |
| Rejected requests/errors, and timed out transactions PO-1C: | | | | |
| Rejected requests and errors PO-1D: | | | | |
| Timed out trans | actions | | | |
PO-1 – Pre-Order/Order Response Times (continued)

| Product Reporting: None | Standards: | IMA-GUI | IMA-EDI |
|----------------------------|--|--|---|
| | Total Response Time: | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| | Appointment Scheduling Service Availability Information | <10 seconds <25 seconds | <10 seconds <25 seconds |
| | Facility Availability Street Address Validation Customer Service Records Telephone Number Loop Qualification Tools NOTE 3 | <25 seconds ⁶ <10 seconds <12.5 seconds ⁶ <10 seconds \leq 20 seconds ⁷ | <25 seconds ⁶ <10 seconds <12.5 seconds ⁶ <10 seconds \leq 20 seconds |
| | 8. Resale of Qwest DSL Qualification | \leq 20 seconds ⁷ | ≤ 20 seconds |
| | 9. Connecting Facility Assignment | ≤ 25 seconds | ≤ 25 seconds |
| | 10. Meet Point Inquiry | ≤ 30 seconds | ≤ 30 seconds |
| | PO-1C-1 | 0.5 | 5% |
| | PO-1C-2 | 0.5 | 5% |
| | PO-1D-1 & 2 | Diagr | nostic |
| Availability: Available | Notes: Rejected query types used in PO-1D are those developed for internal Qwest diagnostic purposes. As additional transactions, currently done manually, are mechanized, they will be measured and added to or included in the above list of transactions, as applicable. Results based on a weighted combination of ADSL Loop Qualification and Raw Loop Data Tool. Results based on Connecting Facility Assignment by Unit Query. Results based on meet Point Query, POTS Splitter option for Shared loops. Times reflect non-complex services, including residential, simple business, or POTS account. Does not include ADSL or accounts>25 lines. Benchmark applies to response time only. Request time and Total time will also be reported. | | |

PO-2 – Electronic Flow-through

Purpose:

Monitors the extent Qwest's processing of CLEC Local Service Requests (LSRs) is completely electronic, focusing on the degree that electronically-transmitted LSRs flow directly to the service order processor without human intervention or without manual retyping.

Description:

PO-2A - Measures the percentage of all electronic LSRs that flow from the specified electronic gateway interface to the Service Order Processor (SOP) without any human intervention.

• Includes all LSRs that are submitted electronically through the specified interface during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.

PO-2B – Measures the percentage of all flow-through-eligible LSRs ^{NOTE 1} that flow from the specified electronic gateway interface to the SOP without any human intervention.

• Includes all flow-through-eligible LSRs that are submitted electronically through the specified interface during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level (per multi- state system serving the state). Results for PO-2A and PO-2B will be reported according to the gateway interface* used to submit the LSR: LSRs received via IMA-GUI LSRs received via IMA-EDI *CO also reports an aggregate of IMA-GUI and IMA-EDI results. |
| P | |

- Formula:
- PO-2A = [(Number of Electronic LSRs that pass from the Gateway Interface to the SOP without human intervention) ÷ (Total Number of Electronic LSRs that pass through the Gateway Interface)] x 100
- PO-2B = [(Number of flow-through-eligible Electronic LSRs that actually pass from the Gateway Interface to the SOP without human intervention) ÷ (Number of flow-through-eligible Electronic LSRs received through the Gateway Interface)] x 100

- Rejected LSRs and LSRs containing CLEC-caused non-fatal errors.
- Non-electronic LSRs (e.g., via fax or courier).
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.
- Duplicate LSR numbers. (Exclusion to be eliminated upon implementation of IMA capability to disallow duplicate LSR #'s.)
- Invalid start/stop dates/times.

PO-2 – Electronic Flow-through (continued)

| Product Reporting: | | Standards: | | |
|-----------------------|--|--|----------------------------|--|
| Resale | | <u>PO-2A</u> : | | |
| Unbundled Loops | (with or | CO: CO PO-2B benchmarks minus 1 | 0 percent NOTE2 | |
| without Local Num | ber | All Other States: Diagnostic | | |
| Portability) | | NOTE | | |
| Local Number Por | tability | PO-2B: NOTE 2 | | |
| UNE-P (POTS) an | d UNE-P | · | | |
| (Centrex 21) | | Resale: | 95% | |
| Line Sharing | | Unbundled Loops: | 85% | |
| | | LNP: | 95% | |
| | | UNE-P (POTS & Centrex 21): | 95% | |
| | | Line Sharing: | Diagnostic NOTE 3 | |
| Availability: | Notes: | | | |
| Available (except as | 1. The list of | of LSR types classified as eligible for fl | ow through is contained in | |
| follows): | the "LSR | s Eligible for Flow Through" matrix. Th | nis matrix also includes | |
| | availabili | ty for enhancements to flow through. | Matrix will be distributed | |
| Combined reporting | through | the CMP process. | | |
| of UNE-P (POTS) | 2. In Colora | do the standard for PO-2 is considere | d met if the standard for | |
| and UNE-P (Centrex | either PC | D-2A or PO-2B is met. For both PO-2/ | A and PO-2B, the | |
| 21) - beginning with | benchma | ark percentages shown apply to the ag | gregations of PO-2A-1 and | |
| Jul 04 data on the | PO-2A-2 | (i.e., the combined PO-2A result) and | of PO-2B-1 and PO-2B-2 | |
| Aug 04 report. | (i.e., the | combined PO-2B result). | | |
| | 3. The standard and tuture disaggregated reporting of the Line Sharing | | | |
| Line Sharing - | product is TBD, pending resolution of TRO issues. | | | |
| beginning with Jul 04 | | | | |
| data on the Aug 04 | | | | |
| report | | | | |

PO-3 – LSR Rejection Notice Interval

Purpose:

Monitors the timeliness with which Qwest notifies CLECs that electronic and manual LSRs were rejected.

Description:

Measures the interval between the receipt of a Local Service Request (LSR) and the rejection of the LSR for standard categories of errors/reasons.

- Includes all LSRs submitted through the specified interface that are rejected during the reporting period.
- Standard reasons for rejections are: missing/incomplete/mismatching/unintelligible information, duplicate request or LSR/PON (purchase order number), no separate LSR for each account telephone number affected, no valid contract, no valid end user verification, account not working in Qwest territory, service-affecting order pending, request is outside established parameters for service, and lack of CLEC response to Qwest question for clarification about the LSR.
- Included in the interval is time required for efforts by Qwest to work with the CLEC to avoid the necessity of rejecting the LSR.
- With hours: minutes reporting, hours counted are (1) business hours for manual rejects (involving human intervention) and (2) published Gateway Availability hours for auto-rejects (involving no human intervention). Business hours are defined as time during normal business hours of the Wholesale Delivery Service Centers, except for PO-3C in which hours counted are workweek clock hours. Gateway Availability hours are based on the currently published hours of availability found on the following website: http://www.gwest.com/wholesale/cmp/ossHours.html.

| Reporting Period: One mor | nth 👘 | Unit of Measure: | |
|---|---|---|--|
| | | PO-3A-1, PO-3B-1 & PO-3C - Hrs: Mins. | |
| | | PO-3A-2 & PO-3B-2 – Mins: Secs. | |
| Reporting Comparisons: | Disaggregation Re | porting: | |
| CLEC aggregate and | Results for this indic | ator are reported according to the gateway interface | |
| | PO-3A-1, LSRs received via IMA-GUI and rejected manually: Statewide | | |
| | PO-3A –2, LSRs wide | received via IMA-GUI and auto-rejected: Region | |
| | PO-3B-1, LSRs Statewide | received via IMA-EDI and rejected manually: | |
| | PO-3B –2, LSRs wide | received via IMA-EDI and auto-rejected: Region | |
| | PO-3C LSBs re | ceived via facsimile: Statewide | |
| Formula: | | | |
| Σ [(Date and time of Rejection Notice transmittal) – (Date and time of LSR receipt)] + (Total numb LSR Rejection Notifications) | | - (Date and time of LSR receipt)] ÷ (Total number of | |
| | | | |
| Exclusions: | | | |
| Records with invalid pro- | duct codes. | | |
| Records missing data essential to the calculation of | | ion of the measurement per the PID. | |
| Duplicate LSR numbers | (Exclusion to be elim | inated upon implementation of IMA capability to | |
| disallow duplicate LSR # | 's.) | | |
| Invalid start/stop dates/times. | | | |
| Product Reporting: Not applicable (reported by | | Standards: | |
| ordering interface). | | • PO-3A-1 and -3B-1: \leq 12 business hours | |
| | | PO-3A -2 and -3B -2: ≤ 18 seconds | |
| | | PO-3C: ≤ 24 work week clock | |
| | | hours | |
| Availability: | | Notes: | |
| Available | | | |
| L | | | |

PO-4 – LSRs Rejected

| Purpose: | | | |
|--|---|--|--|
| Monitors the extent LSRs are rejected as a percentage of all LSRs to provide information to help | | | |
| address potential issues that might be raised by the | e indicator of LSR rejection notice intervals. | | |
| Description: | | | |
| Measures the percentage of LSRs rejected (re | turned to the CLEC) for standard categories of | | |
| errors/reasons. | | | |
| Includes all LSRs submitted through the speci reporting period. | fied interface that are rejected or FOC'd during the | | |
| Standard reasons for rejections are: missing | y/incomplete/mismatching/unintelligible information; | | |
| duplicate request or LSR/PON (purchase or | der number); no separate LSR for each account | | |
| telephone number affected; no valid contract; r | o valid end user verification; account not working in | | |
| Qwest territory; service-affecting order pendi | ng; request is outside established parameters for | | |
| service; and lack of CLEC response to Qwest of | uestion for clarification about the LSR. | | |
| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent of LSRs | | |
| | | | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and | Disaggregation Reporting: | | |
| individual CLEC results | Results for this indicator are reported according to | | |
| | the gateway interface used to submit the LSR: | | |
| | PO-4A-1 LSRs received via IMA-GUI and | | |
| | rejected manually – Region wide | | |
| | PO-4A -2 LSRs received via IMA-GUI and | | |
| | auto-rejected – Region wide | | |
| | PO-4B-1 LSRs received via IMA-EDI and | | |
| | rejected manually – Region wide | | |
| | PO-4B -2 LSRs received via IMA-EDI and | | |
| | auto-rejected – Hegion wide | | |
| | PO-4C LSHs received via facsimile – | | |
| | Statewide | | |

Formula:

[(Total number of LSRs rejected via the specified method in the reporting period) ÷ (Total of all LSRs that are received via the specified interface that were rejected or FOC'd in the reporting period)] x 100

Exclusions:

- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.
- Duplicate LSR numbers. (Exclusion to be eliminated upon implementation of IMA capability to disallow duplicate LSR #'s.)

• Invalid start/stop dates/times.

| Product Reporting: Not applicable (reported by ordering interface). | Standard: Diagnostic |
|--|----------------------|
| Availability: Available | Notes: |
| | |
| | |

PO-5 – Firm Order Confirmations (FOCs) On Time

Purpose:

Monitors the timeliness with which Qwest returns Firm Order Confirmations (FOCs) to CLECs in response to LSRs/ASRs received from CLECs, focusing on the degree to which FOCs are provided within specified intervals.

Description:

Measures the percentage of Firm Order Confirmations (FOCs) that are provided to CLECs within the intervals specified under "Standards" below for FOC notifications.

- Includes all LSRs/ASRs that are submitted through the specified interface or in the specified manner (i.e., facsimile) that receive an FOC during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below. (Acknowledgments sent separately from an FOC (e.g., EDI 997 transactions are not included.)
- For PO-5A, the interval measured is the period between the LSR received date/time (based on scheduled up time) and Qwest's response with a FOC notification (notification date and time).
- For PO-5B, 5C, and 5D, the interval measured is the period between the <u>application date and time</u>, as defined herein, and Qwest's response with a FOC notification (notification date and time).
- "Fully electronic" LSRs are those (1) that are received via IMA-GUI or IMA-EDI, (2) that involve no manual intervention, and (3) for which FOCs are provided mechanically to the CLEC.
- "Electronic/manual" LSRs are received electronically via IMA-GUI or IMA-EDI and involve manual processing.
- "Manual" LSRs are received manually (via facsimile) and processed manually.
- ASRs are measured only in <u>business days</u>.
- LSRs will be evaluated according to the FOC interval categories shown in the "Standards" section below, based on the number of lines/services requested on the LSR or, where multiple LSRs from the same CLEC are related, based on the combined number of lines/services requested on the related LSRs.

| Reporting Period: One m | onth Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|---|
| | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and individual CLEC results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level (per multi-state system serving the state). Results for this indicator are reported as follows: • PO-5A:* FOCs provided for <u>fully electronic</u> LSRs received via: - PO-5A-1 IMA-GUI - PO-5A-2 IMA-EDI • PO-5B:* FOCs provided for <u>electronic/manual</u> LSRs received via: - PO-5B-1 IMA-GUI - PO-5B-2 IMA-EDI • PO-5B-2 IMA-GUI - PO-5B-3 IMA-GUI - PO-5B-4 IMA-GUI - PO-5B-5 FOCs provided for <u>electronic/manual</u> LSRs received via: - PO-5B-1 IMA-GUI - PO-5B-2 IMA-GUI - PO-5B-3 IMA-GUI - PO-5B-4 IMA-GUI - PO-5B-5 FOCs provided for manual LSRs received via Facsimile. • PO-5D: FOCs provided for ASRs requesting LIS Trunks. |
| | * Each of the PO-5A, PO-5B and PO-5C measurements listed above will be further disaggregated as follows: (a) FOCs provided for Resale services and UNE-P (b) FOCs provided for Unbundled Loops and specified Unbundled Network Elements (c) FOCs provided for LNP |
| Formula: | ······································ |
| PO-5A = {[Count of LSRs f date/time (based FOC Notifications PO-5B, 5C, & 5D = {[Coun | for which the original FOC's "(FOC Notification Date & Time) - (LSR received on scheduled up time))" is within 20 minutes] + (Total Number of original s transmitted for the service category in the reporting period)} x 100 t of LSRs/ASRs for which the original FOC's "(FOC Notification Date & Time) |
| - (Application Dat | e & Time)" is within the intervals specified for the service category involved] |

 \div (Total Number of original FOC Notifications transmitted for the service category in the reporting period)} x 100

PO-5 – Firm Order Confirmations (FOCs) On Time (continued)

Exclusions:

- LSRs/ASRs involving individual case basis (ICB) handling based on quantities of lines, as specified in the "Standards" section below, or service/request types, deemed to be <u>projects</u>.
- Hours on Weekends and holidays. (Except for PO-5A which only excludes hours outside the scheduled up time).
- LSRs with CLEC-requested FOC arrangements different from standard FOC arrangements.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.
- Duplicate LSR numbers. (Exclusion to be eliminated upon implementation of IMA capability to disallow duplicate LSR #'s.)
- Invalid start/stop dates/times.

Additional PO-5D exclusion:

• Records with invalid application or confirmation dates.

| Product Reporting: | Standards: | | | |
|---|--|--|-------------------------------------|--|
| | • For PO-5A (all): | 95% within 20 minutes NOTE 2 | | |
| For PO-5A, -5B and -5C: | • For PO-5B (all): | 90% within standard FOC in (specified below) | tervals | |
| (a) Resale services UNE-P (POTS) | • For PO-5C (manual): | 90% within standard FOC int specified below PLUS 2 | ervals 4 hours ^{NOTE 3} | |
| and UNE-P Centrex | For PO-5D (LIS Trunks): | 85% within eight business da | iys | |
| (b) Unbundled Loops and specified Unbundled Network | Standard FOC Intervals for PO-5B and PO-5C | | | |
| Elements. | Product Group NOTE 1 | | FOC Interval | |
| (c) LNP | Resale | | | |
| | Residence and Business POTS | 1-39 lines | | |
| For PO-5D: LIS Trupko | ISDN-Basic | 1-10 lines | | |
| Trunks. | Conversion As Is | | 24 hours | |
| | Adding/Changing feature | res | | |
| | Add primary directory li | sting to established loop | | |
| | Add call appearance | | | |
| | Centrex Non-Design | 1-19 lines | | |
| | With no Common Block | Configuration | | |
| | | | | |
| | | 1-24 loops | | |
| | 2/4 Wire analog | 1 24 10000 | | |
| | DS3 Capable | | | |
| - | Sub-loop | 1-24 sub-loops | | |
| | [included in Product Report | ing group (b)] | | |
| | Line Sharing/Line Splitting | 1-24 shared | | |
| | [included in Product Report | ing group (b)] loops | | |
| | Unbundled Network Element– | Plattorm (UNE-P POTS) | | |
| | | 1 – 39 lines | | |
| | | | | |

PO-5 – Firm Order Confirmations (FOCs) On Time (continued)

| | | Resale | | | |
|---------------|-----------|---|--|--------------------------------|----------------|
| | 1 | ISD | N-Basic | 1-10 lines | |
| | | _ | Conversion As Specified | | |
| | | New Installs | | 1 | 48 hours |
| | | | Address Changes | | |
| | | - | Address Changes | | |
| | | - | | 10 | |
| | | ISD | N-PHI (Facility) | 1-3 | |
| | | PBY | | 1-24 trunks | |
| |] | DSC | or Voice Grade Equivalent | 1-24 | |
| | | DS- | 1 Facility | 1-24 | |
| | - | DSa | 3 Facility | 1-3 | |
| | | LNP | | 25-49 lines | |
| | | Enhance | ed Extended Loops (EELs) | | |
| | | [included | d in Product Reporting group (b)] | | |
| | | DS1 | 1-2 | 24 circuits | |
| | | Resale | | | |
| | | Cer | ntrex (including Centrex 21, Non-de | esign, | |
| | | | Centrex 21 Basic ISDN, Centr | ex-Plus, | |
| | | | Centron, Centrex Primes) | 1-10 lines | |
| | | | With Common Block Configuration | n required | |
| | | | Initial establishment of Centrex C | MS services | |
| | | | Tie lines or NARs activity | | |
| | | Subsequent to initial Common Block | | ock | |
| | | Station lines | | | |
| | | - Automatic Boute Selection | | 72 hours | |
| | | 1 | - Automatic Houle Oblection | | |
| | | | Additional numbers | | |
| | | | Contray | 1.10 lines | |
| | | UNE-P | Centrex 21 | 1-10 lines | |
| | | Unbundled Loops with Facility Check ^(NOTE 2, 3) 1 – 24 loops | | | |
| | | 2/4 wire Non-loaded | | • | |
| | | AD | SL compatible | | |
| | | ISE | DN capable | | |
| | | XD | SL-I capable | | |
| | | DS | 1 capable | | |
| | | Resale | | 4 40 1 | 00 h |
| | | | | | 90 nours |
| | | | | 040 trunk aireuit- | |
| A | | | Noteou | -240 LIUNK CITCUITS | uays |
| Availability: | Auglichic | | Notes: | highost number a | posified for |
| | Available | | 1. LORS with quantities above the | | |
| | | | Linbundlad Loop with Easility (| Teu IUD. Shaak aan ba prasa | cood |
| ļ | | | Onbunuleu Loop with Facility C oloctronically: however, hearth | se this estagony oly | uave carrice o |
| | | | 72 hour EOC interval the EOC | regulte for this prov | luct will |
| | | | appear in PO 5P if received al | results for this process | SC if received |
| | | | | ectronically of FO-t | |
| | | | 11 Induation 1 con with Easility (| Chack will not add a | n additional |
| | | | 04 hours to the 72 hour intense | alif the LSP is other | nitted |
| | | | | | initeu |
| 1 | | | manually. | | |

PO-6 – Work Completion Notification Timeliness

Purpose:

To evaluate the timeliness of Qwest issuing electronic notification at an LSR level to CLECs that provisioning work on all service orders that comprise the CLEC LSR have been completed in the Service Order Processor and the service is available to the customer.

Description:

PO-6A & 6B:

- Includes all orders completed in the Qwest Service Order Processor that generate completion notifications in the reporting period, subject to exclusions shown below.
- The start time is the date/time when the last of the service orders that comprise the CLEC LSR is posted as completed in the Service Order Processor.
- The end time is when the electronic order completion notice is made available (IMA-GUI) ^{NOTE 1} or transmitted (IMA-EDI) to the CLEC via the ordering interface used to place the local service request. The notification is transmitted at an LSR level when all service orders that comprise the CLEC LSR are complete.
- With hours: minutes reporting, hours counted are during the published Gateway Availability hours. Gateway Availability hours are based on the currently published hours of availability found on the following website: http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/cmp/ossHours.html.

| <u> </u> | | | | |
|---|---------------------------------------|------------------------|----------|--|
| Reporting Period: | | Unit of Measure: | | |
| One month | | PO-6A - 6B: | Hrs:Mins | |
| Reporting | Disaggregation Repor | ting: Statewide level. | | |
| Comparisons: CLEC | | | | |
| aggregate and individual | PO-6A Notices transmitted via IMA-GUI | | | |
| CLEC results. | PO-6B Notices trar | nsmitted via IMA-EDI | | |
| | | | | |
| Formula: | | | | |
| For completion notifications generated from LSRs received via IMA-GUI: | | | | |
| PO-6A = Σ (Date and Time Completion Notification made available to CLEC) - (Date and Time the | | | | |
| last of the service orders that comprise the CLEC LSR is completed in the Service Order Processor)) + | | | | |
| (Number of completion notifications made available in reporting period) | | | | |
| | | | | |

For completion notifications generated from LSRs received via IMA-EDI:

PO-6B = Σ ((Date and Time Completion Notification transmitted to CLEC) - (Date and Time the last of the service orders that comprise the CLEC LSR is completed in the Service Order Processor.)) ÷ (Number of completion notifications transmitted in reporting period)

Exclusions:

PO – 6A & 6B:

- Records with invalid completion dates.
- LSRs submitted manually (e.g., via facsimile).
- ASRs submitted via EXACT.

| Product Reporti | ng: | Standard: |
|-----------------|--|--|
| PO – 6A & 6B A | ggregate reporting for all products ordered through | 6 hours |
| IMA-GUI and, se | eparately, IMA-EDI (see disaggregation reporting). | |
| Availability: | Notes: | |
| Available | The time a notice is "made available" via the IM a status update related to the completion notice database. When this occurs, the notice can be CLEC using the Status Updates window or by function. | A-GUI is the time Qwest stores e in the IMA Status Updates immediately viewed by the using the LSR Notice Inquiry |

PO-7 – Billing Completion Notification Timeliness

Purpose:

To evaluate the timeliness with which electronic billing completion notifications are made available or transmitted to CLECs, focusing on the percentage of notifications that are made available or transmitted (for CLECs) or posted in the billing system (for Qwest retail) within five <u>business days</u>.

Description:

<u>PO-7A & 7B</u>:

- This measurement includes all orders posted in the CRIS billing system for which billing completion
 notices are made available or transmitted in the reporting period, subject to exclusions shown
 below.
- Intervals used in this measurement are from the time a service order is completed in the SOP to the time billing completion for the order is made available or transmitted to the CLEC.
 - The time a notice is "made available" via the IMA-GUI consists of the time Qwest stores the completion notice in the IMA Status Updates database. When this occurs, the notice can be immediately viewed by the CLEC using the Status Updates window.
 - The time a notice is "transmitted" via IMA-EDI consists of the time Qwest actually transmits the completion notice via IMA-EDI. Applicable only to those CLECs who are certified and setup to receive the notices via IMA-EDI.
- The start time is when the completion of the service order is posted in the Qwest SOP. The end time is when, confirming that the order has been posted in the CRIS billing system, the electronic billing completion notice is made available to the CLEC via the same ordering interface (IMA-GUI or IMA-EDI) as used to submit the LSR.
- Intervals counted in the numerator of these measurements are those that are five business days or less.

<u>PO-7C</u>:

- This measurement includes all retail orders posted in the CRIS Billing system in the reporting period, subject to exclusions shown below.
- Intervals used in this measurement are from the time an order is completed in the SOP to the time it is posted in the CRIS billing system.
- The start time is when the completion of the order is posted in the SOP. The end time is when the order is posted in the CRIS billing system.
- Intervals counted in the numerator of this measurement are those that are five business days or less.

| Reporting Per | iod: One month | | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|--|---|---|
| Reporting Co PO-7A and -7E aggregate and results. PO-7C: Qwest | mparisons: 3: CLEC individual CLEC retail results. | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. PO-7A Notices made available via IMA-GUI PO-7B Notices transmitted via IMA-EDI PO-7C Billing system posting completions for Qwest Retail | |
| Formula: For wholesale service orders Qwest generates for LSRs received via IMA: PO-7A = (Number of electronic billing completion notices in the reporting period made availal within five business days of posting complete in the SOP) + (Total Number of electronic billing completion notices made available during the reporting period) PO-7B = (Number of electronic billing completion notices in the reporting period) PO-7B = (Number of electronic billing completion notices in the reporting period transmitted within five business days of posting complete in the SOP) + (Total Number of electronic billing complete in the SOP) + (Total Number of electronic billing complete in the SOP) + (Total Number of electronic billing complete in the SOP) + (Total Number of electronic billing complete in the SOP) + (Total Number of electronic billing complete in the SOP) + (Total Number of electronic billing complete in the SOP) + (Total Number of electronic billing completion notices transmitted during the reporting period) | | <u>SRs received via IMA</u> : tion notices in the reporting period made available complete in the SOP) ÷ (Total Number of electronic ilable during the reporting period) tion notices in the reporting period transmitted complete in the SOP) ÷ (Total Number of electronic d during the reporting period) | |
| For service or PO-7C = | ders Qwest generat (Total number of r period that were p posted in the CRIS | <u>es for retail custo</u> etail service order osted within 5 bus 5 billing system in | mers (i.e., the retail analogue for PO-7A & -7B): s posted in the CRIS billing system in the reporting siness days) ÷ (Total number of retail service orders the reporting period) |

PO-7 – Billing Completion Notification Timeliness (continued)

| Exclusions: PO-7A, 7B & 7C Services that are not billed through CRIS, e.g. Resale Frame Relay. Records with invalid completion dates. PO-7A & 7B LSRs submitted manually. ASRs submitted via EXACT. | | |
|---|--------|---|
| Product Reporting: Aggregate reporting for all products ordered through IMA- GUI and, separately, IMA-EDI (see disaggregation reporting). | | Standard: PO-7A and -7B: Parity with PO-7C |
| Availability: Available | Notes: | |

PO-8 – Jeopardy Notice Interval

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness of jeopardy notifications, focusing on how far in advance of original due dates jeopardy notifications are provided to CLECs (regardless of whether the due date was actually missed).

Description:

Measures the average time lapsed between the date the customer is first notified of an order jeopardy event and the original due date of the order.

• Includes all orders completed in the reporting period that received jeopardy notifications.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Average Business days |
|--------------------------------------|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. |
| aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest | (This measure is reported by jeopardy notification process |
| Retail results | as used for the categories shown under Product |
| | Reporting.) |

Formula:

 $[\Sigma(Date of the original due date of orders completed in the reporting period that received jeopardy notification – Date of the first jeopardy notification) ÷ Total orders completed in the reporting period that received jeopardy notification]$

Exclusions:

- Jeopardies done after the original due date is past.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid due dates or <u>application dates</u>.
- Records with invalid completion dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

Product Reporting:

| A B C | Non-Designed Services Unbundled Loops (with or without Number Portability) LIS Trunks | A Parity with Retail POTS B Parity with Retail POTS C Parity with Feature Group D (FGD) services |
|-------------|--|--|
| U | | |
| Availa | bility: Available | Notes: 1. For PO-8A and -D, Saturday is counted as a business day for all non-dispatched orders for Resale Residence, Resale Business, and UNE-P (POTS), as well as for the retail analogues specified above as standards. For dispatched orders for Resale Residence, Resale Business, and UNE-P (POTS) and for all other products reported under PO-8B and -8C, Saturday is counted as a business day when the service order is due on Saturday. |

PO-9 – Timely Jeopardy Notices

Purpose:

When original due dates are missed, measures the extent to which Qwest notifies customers in advance of jeopardized due dates.

Description:

Measures the percentage of late orders for which advance jeopardy notification is provided.

- Includes all inward orders (Change, New, and Transfer order types) assigned a due date by Qwest and which are completed/closed in the reporting period that missed the original due date. Change order types included in this measurement consist of all C orders representing inward activity.
- Missed due date orders with jeopardy notifications provided on or after the original due date is past will be counted in the denominator of the formula but will not be counted in the numerator. norting Pariod: One month linit of Measure

| Reporting Period: One month | onit of measure: Percent |
|--------------------------------|---|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. |
| aggregate, individual CLEC and | (This measure is reported by jeopardy notification process as |
| Qwest Retail results | used for the categories shown under Product Reporting.) |
| Formula | |

Formula:

[(Total missed due date orders completed in the reporting period that received jeopardy notification in advance of original due date) ÷ (Total number of missed due date orders completed in the reporting period)] x 100

- Orders missed for customer reasons.
- · Records with invalid product codes.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid due dates or application dates.
- Records with invalid completion dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

| Product Reporting: | Standards: |
|---|--|
| A Non-Designed Services | A Parity with Retail POTS |
| B Unbundled Loops (with or without Number | B Parity with Retail POTS |
| Portability) C LIS Trunks | C Parity with Feature Group D (FGD) Services |
| D UNE-P (POTS) | D Parity with Retail POTS |
| Availability: | Notes: |
| Available | |
| | |

PO-15 – Number of Due Date Changes per Order

Purpose:

To evaluate the extent to which Qwest changes due dates on orders.

Description:

Measures the average number of Qwest due date changes per order.

- Includes all inward orders (Change, New, and Transfer order types) that have been assigned a
 due date in the reporting period subject to the exclusions below. Change order types for
 additional lines consist of all "C" orders representing <u>inward activity</u>.
- Counts all due date changes made for Qwest reasons following assignment of the original due date.

| date. | | |
|---|---|--|
| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Average Number of Due Date Changes | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC, an retail results. | d Qwest | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. |
| Formula: | | |

 Σ (Count of Qwest due date changes on all orders) ÷ (Total orders in reporting period)

- Customer requested due date changes.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid due dates or application dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

| Product Reporting: | None | Standard: Diagnostic |
|----------------------------|--------|-------------------------|
| Availability: Available | Notes: | |
| | | |

PO-16- Timely Release Notifications

Purpose:

Measures the percent of release notifications for changes to specified OSS interfaces sent by Qwest to CLECs within the intervals and scope specified within the change management plan found on Qwest's Change Management Process, (CMP) website at http://www.qwest.com/wholesale/cmp/whatiscmp.html.

Description:

- Measures the percent of release notices that are sent by Qwest within the intervals/timeframes prescribed by the release notification procedure on Qwest's CMP website.
 - Release notices measured are:
 - Draft Technical Specifications (for App to App interfaces only);
 - Final Technical Specifications (for App to App interfaces only);
 - Draft Release Notices (for IMA-GUI interfaces only);
 - Final Release Notices (for IMA-GUI interfaces only); and
 - OSS Interface Retirement Notices. NOTE 2
 - For the following OSS interfaces:
 - IMA-GUI, IMA-EDI;
 - CEMR;
 - Exchange Access, Control, & Tracking (EXACT); NOTE 3
 - Electronic Bonding Trouble Administration (EB -TA); NOTE 4
 - IABS and CRIS Summary Bill Outputs; NOTE 5
 - Loss and Completion Records; NOTE 5
 - New OSS interfaces (for introduction notices only.)^{NOTE 6}
 - Also included are notifications for connectivity or system function changes to Resale Product Database.
 - Includes OSS interface release notifications by Qwest relating to the following products and service categories: LIS/Interconnection, Collocation, Unbundled Network Elements (UNE), Ancillary, and Resale Products and Services.
 - Includes OSS interface release notifications by Qwest to CLECs for the following OSS functions: Pre-Ordering, Ordering, Provisioning, Repair and Maintenance, and Billing.
 - Includes Types of Changes as specified in the "Qwest Wholesale Change Management Process Document" (Section 4 – Types of Changes).
 - Includes all OSS interface release notifications pertaining to the above OSS systems, subject to the exclusions specified below.
- Release Notifications sent on or before the date required by the CMP are considered timely. A
 release notification "sent date" is determined by the date of the e-mail sent by Qwest that provides the
 Release Notification.
- Release Notifications sent after the date required by the (CMP) are considered untimely. Release Notifications required but not sent are considered untimely.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---------------------------------------|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC Aggregate | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. |

Formula:

[(Number of required release notifications for specified OSS interface changes made within the reporting period that are sent on or before the date required by the change management plan (CMP) + Total number of required release notifications for specified OSS interface changes within reporting period)]x100

- Changes to be implemented on an expedited basis (exception to OSS notification intervals) as mutually agreed upon by CLECs and Qwest through the CMP.
- Changes where Qwest and CLECs agree, through the CMP, that notification is unnecessary.

PO-16 Timely Release Notifications (continued)

| Product Reporting | I: None | Standards: |
|-------------------|---------------------------------|--|
| | | Vol. 1-10: No more than one |
| | | untimely notification |
| | | Vol. > 10: 92.5% timely notifications |
| Availability: | Notes: | • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • |
| Available | | |
| | 1. The Qwest Wholesale Char | ge Management Process Document specifies the |
| | intervals for release notificat | tions by type of notification. These intervals are |
| | documented in the change r | management plan. |
| | 2. The documents described ir | n section "9.0 – Retirement of Existing OSS |
| | Interfaces" of the "Qwest W | holesale Change Management Process Document" |
| | as "Initial Retirement Notice | " and "Final Retirement Notice." |
| | 3. EXACT is a Telecordia syst | em. Only release notifications for changes initiated |
| | by Qwest for hardware or co | onnectivity will be included in this measurement. |
| | 4. EB-TA is the same system a | as MEDIACC. |
| | 5. CHIS, IABS, and Loss and C | Completions will adhere to the notification intervals |
| | documented in section 8.1 - | - Changes to Existing Application to Application |
| | Interface. | a continue "7.0 Introduction of Now OCC Interface" of |
| | 6. The documents described in | n section "7.0 – Introduction of New USS Interface" of |
| | Release Appouncement and | d Proliminary Implementation Plan" (new App to App |
| | only) "Initial Interface Tech | a reliminary implementation rian (new App to App |
| | Interface Technical Specific | ations (now App to App only) "Balaasa Natification" |
| | (new GUI only) CMP notic | ations (new App to App only), "helease Notification" |
| | in this measurement even the | and the new system is not explicitly listed in the |
| | "Description" section of this | PID However once implemented the system will |
| | not be added to the measur | ement for purposes of measuring release change |
| | and retirement notifications | unless specifically incorporated as an authorized |
| | change to the PID. | |
| | 7. The intervals used to deterr | nine timeliness are based on CMP guidelines. |
| | | |

PO-19 – Stand-Alone Test Environment (SATE) Accuracy

Purpose:

Evaluates Qwest's ability to provide accurate production-like tests to CLECs for testing new releases in the SATE and production environments and testing between releases in the SATE environment.

Description:

PO-19Å

- Measures the percentage of test transactions that conform to the test scenarios published in the *IMA EDI Data Document – for the Stand Alone Test Environment (SATE)* that are successfully executed in SATE at the time a new IMA Release is deployed to SATE. In months where no release activity occurs, measures the percentage of test transactions that conform to the test scenarios published in the current IMA EDI Data Document-for the Stand Alone Test Environment (SATE) that are successfully executed in SATE during the between-releases monthly performance test.
- Includes one test transaction for each test scenario published in the IMA EDI Data Document for the Stand Alone Test Environment (SATE).
- Test transactions will be executed for each of the IMA releases supported in SATE utilizing all test scenarios for each of the current versions of the IMA EDI Data Document for the Stand Alone Test Environment (SATE).
- The successful execution of a transaction is determined by the Qwest Test Engineer according to:
 - The expected results of the test scenario as described in the *IMA EDI Data Document for the Stand Alone Test Environment (SATE)* and the EDI disclosure document.
 - The transactions strict adherence to business rules published in Qwest's most current IMA EDI Disclosure Documentation for each release and the associated Addenda.
- For this measurement, Qwest will execute the test transactions in the Stand-Alone Test Environment.
 - Release related test transactions will be executed when a full or point release of IMA is installed in SATE. These transactions will be executed within five <u>business days</u> of the numbered release being originally installed in SATE. This five-business day period will be referred to as the "Testing Window."
 - Mid-release monthly performance test transactions will be executed in the months when no Testing Window for a release is completed. These transactions will be executed on the 15th, or the nearest working day to the 15th of the month, in the months when no release related test transactions are executed.
- Test transaction results will be reported by release and included in the Reporting Period during which the release transactions or mid-release test transactions are completed.

PO-19B

- Validates the extent that SATE mirrors production by measuring the percentage of IMA EDI test transactions that produce comparable results in SATE and in production.
 - Transactions counted as producing comparable results are those that return correctly formatted data and fields as specified in the release's EDI disclosure document and developer worksheets related to the IMA release being tested.
 - Comparability will be determined by evaluating the data and fields in each EDI message for the test transactions against the same data and fields for Preorder queries, LSRs, and Supplementals, and returned as Query Responses, Acknowledgements, Firm Order Confirmations (FOCs) for flow-through eligible products, and rejects.
- Test transactions are executed one time for each new major IMA release within 7 days after the IMA release.
 - Test transactions consist of a defined suite of Product/Activity combinations. Qwest's three regions will be represented.
 - Pre-order, Order, and Post-order transactions (FOCs for flow-through products) are included.
- With respect to the comparability of the structure and content of results from SATE and production environments, this measurement focuses only on the validity of the structure and the validity of the content, per developer worksheets and EID mapping examples distributed as part of release notifications.

| Reporting Period: | Unit of Measure: | Percent |
|--|------------------|---------|
| PO-19A One month | | |
| PO-19B: One month (for those months in | | |

PO-19 Stand-Alone Test Environment (SATE) Accuracy (continued)

| which release-related test transactions are completed) | |
|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: None | Disaggregation Reporting: PO-19A – Reported separately for each release tested in the reporting period PO-19B None |
| Formula: PO-19A [(Total number of successfully completed SATE test transactions executed for a Software Relebetween-releases performance test completed in the Reporting Period) ÷ (Total number of SA transactions executed for each Software Release or between-releases performance test compthe Reporting Period)] x 100 PO-19B [(Total number of completed IMA EDI test transactions executed in SATE and production that produce comparable results for each new major IMA Software Release completed in the Reporting Period) ÷ (Total number of completed IMA EDI test transactions executed in SATE and production that produce comparable results for each new major IMA Software Release completed in the Reported in the Reported in SATE and production that produce new major IMA Software Release completed in the Reported in t | |
| Exclusions: For PO-19B: Transactions that fail due to the unavailabilit production environment) or a function in the validation query or CSR query) that is unsuc IMA-EDI (e.g., PREMIS or SIA). Transactions that fail because of differences an IMA candidate is implemented into IMA a an IMA candidate in a SATE release: e.g., t exclusion does not apply during reporting per production IMA and SATE caused by SATE | y of a content item (e.g., TN exhaustion in SATE or the SATE or production environments (e.g., address cessful due to an outage in systems that interface with between the production and SATE results caused when nd not SATE (i.e., where CMP decides not to implement he Reject Duplicate LSR candidate in IMA 12.0). This priods in which there are no differences between releases packaged pursuant to CMP decisions. |
| Product Reporting: None | Standard: PO-19A – 95% for each release tested PO-19B – 95% |
| Availability: Available | Notes: 1. Transactions that are executed and found to have inconsistencies with the data and format rules will be corrected and rerun. Rerun volumes will not be counted in the denominator for PO-19. Such corrections and re-executions are intended to enforce strict adherence to business rules published in Qwest's most current IMA EDI Data and Disclosure Documents. 2. The product and activity combinations that make up the test decks for PO-19B will be updated after each major IMA software release and provided to CLECs with the publication of IMA EDI Draft Interface Technical Specifications for the next major IMA software release as defined in the CMP process. All combinations with EDI transaction volumes > 100 in the previous 12-month period will be included in the test deck. 75 days prior to the execution of the test, Qwest will run a query against IMA to determine which combinations meet the criteria for inclusion (i.e., volumes > 100). |

PO-19 Stand-Alone Test Environment (SATE) Accuracy (continued)

3. The intent of this provision is to avoid including the effects of circumstances beyond the SATE environment that could cause differences in SATE and production results that are not due to problems in mirroring production. For example, because of real-time data manipulation in production, an appointment availability query transaction in SATE will not return the same list of available appointments as in production. Available appointments in production are fully dependent on real-time activities that occur there, whereas available appointments in SATE are based on a predefined list that is representative of production.

PO-20 (Expanded) – Manual Service Order Accuracy

Purpose:

Evaluates the degree to which Qwest accurately processes CLECs' Local Service Requests (LSRs), which are electronically-submitted and manually processed by Qwest, into Qwest Service Orders, based on mechanized comparisons of specified LSR-Service Order fields and focusing on the percentage of manually processed Service Orders that are accurate/error-free.

Description:

Measures the percentage of manually-processed Qwest Service Orders that are populated correctly, in specified data fields, with information obtained from CLEC LSRs.

- Includes only Service Orders created from CLEC LSRs that Qwest receives ^{NOTE 1} electronically (via IMA-GUI or IMA-EDI) and manually processes in the creation of Service Orders, regardless of flow through eligibility, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Includes only Service Orders, from the product reporting categories specified below, that request inward line or feature activity (Change, New, and Transfer order types), are assigned a due date by Qwest, and are completed/closed in the reporting period. Change Service Order types included in this measurement consist of all C orders with "I" and "T" action-coded line or feature USOCs.
- All Service Orders satisfying the above criteria and as specified in the Availability section below are evaluated in this measurement.
- An inward line Service Order will be classified as "accurate" and thus counted in the numerator in the formula below when the mechanized comparisons of this measurement determine that the fields specified in the Service Order Fields Evaluated section below (when the source fields have been properly populated on the LSR) are all accurate on the Service Order. An inward feature Service Order will be classified as "accurate" if the fields specified in the Service Order Fields Evaluated on the LSR) are all accurate on the Service Order Fields Evaluated section below (when the source fields have been properly populated on the LSR) are all accurate on the Service Order Fields Evaluated section below (when the source fields have been properly populated on the LSR) are all accurate on the Service Order and if no CLEC notifications to the call center have generated call center tickets coded to LSR/SO mismatch for that order.
 - Service Orders will be counted as being accurate if the contents of the relevant fields, as recorded in the completed Service Orders involved in provisioning the service, properly match or correspond to the information from the specified fields as provided in the latest version of associated LSRs.
 - Service orders generated from LSRs receiving a PIA (Provider Initiated Activity value will be counted as being accurate if each and every mismatch has a correct and corresponding PIA value.
 - Service Orders, including those otherwise considered accurate under the above-described mechanized field comparison, will not be counted as accurate if Qwest corrects errors in its Service Order(s) as a result of contacts received from CLECs no earlier than one business day prior to the original due date.

| Reporting Period: One month, reported in | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|---------------------------|
| arrears (i.e., results first appear in reports one | |
| month later than results for measurements that are | |
| not reported in arrears), in order to exclude Service | |
| Orders that are the subject of call center tickets | |
| counted in OP-5B and OP-5T, as having new | |
| service problems attributed to Service Order errors. | |
| | |
| Reporting Comparisons: | Disaggregation Reporting: |
| CLEC Aggregate and individual CLEC | Statewide Level |
| | |

Formula:

[(Number of accurate, evaluated Service Orders) ÷ (Number of evaluated Service Orders completed in the reporting period)] x 100

| Exclusions: | | | |
|---|--|--|---|
| Service Orders that are the subject of call center tickets counted in OP-5B and OP-5T as having new | | | |
| service problems attributed to Service Order erro | rs. | | |
| Cancelled Service Orders. | | | |
| Service Orders that cannot be matched to a correl | sponding LS | <u>SR</u> | |
| Records missing data essential to the calculation | of the meas | urement per the PID. | |
| Product Reporting: | | Standard: | |
| Resale and UNE-P (POTS and Centrex 21) | | <u>Benchmarks, as follo</u> | ws: |
| | | | |
| Unbundled Loops (Analog and Non-Loaded 2/4-w | ire, DS1 | | |
| Capable, DS3 and higher Capable, ADSL Compa | <u>tible,</u> | | |
| XDSL-I Capable, ISDN-BRI Capable) | | Phase 1 | <u>97%</u> |
| | | Phase 2 | <u>96%</u> |
| | | Phase 3 & beyond | 95% |
| | | | |
| Availability: Phase 0 – PO-20 (Old) (the first version using sampling of limited fields). (Available now) Phase 1^{NOTE 2} – PO-20 (Expanded) Mechanized version (as defined herein). All qualifying orders associated with initial LSRs received via IMA version 15.0 or higher beginning with May 2004 data reported in Jul 04. Phase 2 – Additional fields added. No later than Sep 04 results reported in Nov 04 Phase 3– Additional fields added. Targeted for 1st Quarter 05 Phase 4 – Additional fields added. (Date TBD). | <u>Notes:</u> <u>1.</u> To be i <u>Orders</u> <u>receive</u> <u>IMA-G</u> <u>2.</u> Phase <u>qualify</u> <u>catego</u> <u>Qwest</u> | included in the measur created from CLEC L ad and completed in th UI or IMA-EDI. 1: Consists of all man ing Service Orders per ry specified above, fro 's 14-state local servic | rement, Service SRs must be e same version of ually-processed, r product reporting m throughout e region. |
| Availability: Phase 0 – PO-20 (Old) (the first version using sampling of limited fields). (Available now) Phase 1^{NOTE 2} – PO-20 (Expanded) Mechanized version (as defined herein). All qualifying orders associated with initial LSRs received via IMA version 15.0 or higher beginning with May 2004 data reported in Jul 04. Phase 2 – Additional fields added. No later than Sep 04 results reported in Nov 04 Phase 3– Additional fields added. Targeted for 1st Quarter 05 Phase 4 – Additional fields added. (Date TBD). | Notes: <u>1.</u> To be i <u>Orders</u> <u>receive</u> <u>IMA-G</u> <u>2.</u> Phase <u>gualify</u> <u>catego</u> <u>Qwest</u> | included in the measur created from CLEC L ed and completed in th UI or IMA-EDI. 1: Consists of all man ing Service Orders per ry specified above, fro 's 14-state local servic | rement, Service SRs must be e same version of ually-processed, r product reporting m throughout e region. |
| <u>Availability:</u> Phase 0 – PO-20 (Old) (the first version using sampling of limited fields). (Available now) Phase 1^{NOTE 2} – PO-20 (Expanded) Mechanized version (as defined herein). All qualifying orders associated with initial LSRs received via IMA version 15.0 or higher beginning with May 2004 data reported in Jul 04. Phase 2 – Additional fields added. No later than Sep 04 results reported in Nov 04 Phase 3– Additional fields added. Targeted for 1st Quarter 05 Phase 4 – Additional fields added. (Date TBD). | <u>Notes:</u> <u>1.</u> To be i <u>Orders</u> <u>receive</u> <u>IMA-G</u> <u>2.</u> Phase <u>qualify</u> <u>catego</u> <u>Qwest</u> r Fields E | I created from CLEC L created from CLEC L ed and completed in th UI or IMA-EDI. 1: Consists of all man ing Service Orders per ry specified above, fro 's 14-state local servic | rement, Service SRs must be e same version of ually-processed, r product reporting m throughout e region. |

| <u></u> | Mechani | zed comparison of | the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: |
|-------------|-------------------|--|---|
| <u>Form</u> | LSR Field Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: |
| <u>LSR</u> | <u>CCNA</u> | Customer Carrier Name Abbreviation | CCNA field of LSR form compared to the RSID/ZCID field identifier in the Extended ID section of the Service Order. |
| | PON | Purchase Order Number | PON field of LSR form compared to the PON field in Bill Section of the Service Order. |
| | D/TSENT | Date and time sent | The D/TSENT field of LSR form from the Firm Order Manager, using applied business day cut-off rules and business typing rules, and compare to the APP (Application Date) used on the Service Order. |
| | CHC | Coordinated Hot Cut Requested | Applies only to Unbundled Loop. Validate that the installation USOC used on the Service Order matches the Coordinated Cut request. (Evaluated in conjunction with the TEST field to determine correct USOC.) |
| | TEST | Testing required | Applies only to Unbundled Loop. Validate that the installation USOC used on the Service Order matches the TEST request. (Evaluated in conjunction with the CHC field to determine correct USOC.) |
| | NC | Network Channel Code | Applies only to Unbundled Loop. NC field on the LSR form compared to provisioning USOC for CKL1 on the Service Order. |

| LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | | | |
|------------------------------------|---|--|--|--|
| | Phase 1 – (Effective with LSRs received beginning May 2004) | | | |
| | Mechani | zed comparison of | the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: | |
| | | | | |
| Form | <u>LSR Fleid</u> Code | I SB Field Name | Bemarks/Service Order Field: | |
| <u></u> | | Network Observed | | |
| | <u>NCI</u> | Interface Code | <u>compared to provisioning USOC for CKL1 on the Service</u> Order. | |
| | <u>SECNCI</u> | <u>Secondary</u> <u>Network Channel</u> Interface Code | Applies only to Unbundled Loop orders. SECNCI field on the LSR form compared to the provisioning USOC for CKL2 on the Service Order. | |
| | | | | |
| | | | • | |
| | PIC | InterLATA Pre- subscription Indicator Code | PIC field on Resale or Centrex form compared to PIC populated on the "I" or "T" action lines in the Service and Equipment section of the Service Order. <u>Note:</u> LSR PIC = None: S.O. PIC = None | |
| <u>Resale or</u> <u>Centrex</u> | <u>LPIC</u> | IntraLATA Pre- subscription Indicator Code | LPIC field on Resale or Centrex form compared to LPIC populated on the "I" or "T" action lines in the Service and Equipment section of the Service Order. <u>Note:</u> LSR LPIC = None; S.O. LPIC = 9199 LSR LPIC = DFLT; S.O. LPIC = 5123 | |
| | TNS | <u>Telephone</u> <u>Numbers</u> | Validate that all telephone numbers in the TNS fields in the Service Details section on the Resale or Centrex form requiring inward activity are addressed on the Service Order. | |
| Resale or Centrex | FEATURE | Feature Activity/Feature Codes | When the FA = N, T, VValidate line and feature USOCs provided in the FEATUREfield on the Resale or Centrex form are addressed with "I"and/or "T" action lines on the Service Order.Note: Comparison will be based on the USOCs associatedwith line and feature activity listed in the PO-20 USOC Listposted on Qwest's public website, on the web pagecontaining the current PIDwww.qwest.com/wholesale/results). Qwest may add USOCsto the list, delete grand-fathered/ discontinued or obsoleteUSOCs, or update USOCs assigned to listed descriptions byproviding notice in the monthly Summary of Notes and | |

| LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | | | |
|---|--|------------------|--|--|
| Phase 1 – (Effective with LSRs received beginning May 2004) | | | | |
| | Mechanized comparison of the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: | | | |
| | | | | |
| Form | LSR Field | I SD Field Name | Domostro/Sorving Order Field | |
| <u>Form</u> | Code | Lon Field Name | nemarks/Service Order Fleid: | |
| <u>LS</u> | ECCKT | Exchange | Applies to LSRs with ACT = C (only when NC code has not | |
| | | Company Circuit | changed, M, or T. | |
| | | | ECCKT field on the LS form compared to the CLS field in the | |
| | | | Service and Equipment section of the Service Order | |
| | 1. A | | | |
| LS/ | CFA | Connecting | CFA field on the LS or LSNP forms compared to the CFA | |
| LSNP | | Facility | field used in CKL1 of the Service Order. (Verbal acceptance | |
| | | Assignment | of CFA changes will be FOC'd and PIA'd, which will account | |
| | | | for the mismatch and eliminate it as an error in the PO-20 | |
| | | Listing Tupo | Calculation. | |
| | | Listing Type | that there is a LN in the List section of the Service Order | |
| | | | ITY = 2 (Non Listed – appears only in DA) Validate that | |
| | | | there is non listing instructions in the LN field in the List | |
| | | | section of the Service Order. | |
| | | | Central/Western Region: Validate that the left handed field | |
| | | | is NLST and (NON-LIST) is contained in the NLST data field | |
| | | · | in the List section of the Service order. | |
| | | | Eastern Hegion: Validate that the left handed field is NL | |
| | | | and (NON LIST) is contained in the NL data field in the List | |
| ds | | | LTY = 3 (Non Pub - does not appear in the directory and | |
| E, | | | telephone number does not appear in DA.) Validate that | |
| | | · | there is non published instructions in the LN field in the List | |
| l 9 L | | | section of the Service Order. | |
| Ma | | | Central/Western Regions: Validate that the left handed | |
| ial stir | | | tield is NP and (NON-PUB) is contained in the NP data field | |
| | | | Eastern Region: Validate that the left handed field is NP | |
| | | | and (NP LODA) or (NP NODA) is contained in the NP data | |
| | | | field in the List section of the Service Order. | |
| | ΤΟΑ | Type of Account | Validate TOA entries (only reviewed when BRO field on DL | |
| | | | form is not populated): | |
| ate | | | TOA valid entries are B or RP | |
| | | | Validate that there is a semi colon (;) within the LN in the | |
| Ш À | | | List section of the Service Order. | |
| J | | | Validate that there is a comma () within the LN in the List | |
| | | | section of the Service Order | |
| | | | Exception: When LSR-TOS = 3, TOA review is Not | |
| | | | Applicable. Handled by Complex Listing Group. Requires | |
| | | | separate Service Order. | |
| 11 | DML | Direct Mail List | DML field = O on DL form; Service Order LN contains | |
| | | | (OCLS). | |
| | NOSL | No Solicitation | Arizona Uniy | |
| | | | (NSOL) (OCLS) | |

| | LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | | |
|---------------------------------------|---|------------------------------------|---|--|
| | Phase 1 – (Effective with LSRs received beginning May 2004) | | | |
| | Mechani | zed comparison of | the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: | |
| | | | | |
| _ | LSR Field | | | |
| Form | Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: | |
| | TMKT | Telemarketing | Colorado Only | |
| | | | TMKT field = O on DL form; Service Order LN contains | |
| | | | (OATD). | |
| | | | When both the DML and the TMKT fields are populated, DML | |
| | | | validation applies. | |
| | LNLN and | Listed Name | LNLN and LNFN fields on DL form compared to the LN field | |
| | LNFN | | in the List section of the Service Order. | |
| | | Address Indicator | ADI - O on DL form: Somico Order LA containe (OAD) | |
| | | Address Indicator | ADI = O OIT DE TOITI, Service Ofder EA contains (OAD). | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | LAPR | Listed Address | LAPR field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List | |
| | | Number Prefix | section of the Service Order. | |
| | <u>LANO</u> | Listed Address | LANO field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List | |
| | | Number | section of the Service Order. | |
| | LASE | Listed Address | LASE field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List | |
| | | Number Suffix | Section of the Service Order. | |
| | LASD | Street Directional | section of the Service Order | |
| | LASN | Listed Address | ASN field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List | |
| | | Street Name | section of the Service Order. | |
| | LATH | Listed Address | LATH field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List | |
| | | Street Type | section of the Service Order. | |
| | LASS | Listed Address | LASS field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List | |
| | | Street Directional | section of the Service Order. | |
| | | Suffix | | |
| | LALOC | Listed Address | LALOC field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List | |
| <u> </u> | | Locality | section of the Service Order. | |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | Dhace 2 N | a latar than San 04 regults | |
| | | $\frac{\text{FildSe 2 - N}}{1000}$ | o later than Sep 04 results | |
| | Maalaan | LSR-Servic | the fields from the Service Order to the LSD: | |
| | | zed comparison of | the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: | |
| Form | Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: | |
| | | | | |
| <u>LSR</u> | DSPICH | Dispatch | Limited to Unbundled Loops where $ACI = Z$ or V only. | |
| | | | II DSPTCH field on the LSH form = Y, validate dispatch | |
| | | | Order | |
| | | | | |
| | LTC | Line Treatment | Applies only to Centrex 21 | |
| | | Code | LTC field numeric value on the Centrex form compared to the | |
| | | | data following the CAT field for the Line USOC on the | |
| <u>Centrex</u> | | | Service Order. | |
| | COS | Class of Service | Applies only to Centrex 21. | |
| | | - Qwest Specific | UD strend of the Centrex form compared to the US field in the | |
| 11 | 1 | | | |

| Phase 2 – No later than Sep 04 results | | | |
|--|--|----------------------|---|
| LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | | |
| | Mechanized comparison of the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: | | |
| <u>Form</u> | LSR Field Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: |
| <u>Resale</u> <u>or</u> <u>Centrex</u> | <u>FEATURE</u> DETAILS | Feature Details | As specified in Appendix A of the 14 State Working PID. Comparison would be based on the fields associated with the USOC list referenced under Feature Activity in Phase 1 above. |
| | | <u> Phase 3 – </u> | Targeted for 1 st Quarter 05 |
| | | LSR-Servic | ce Order Fields Evaluated |
| | Mechan | ized comparison of | the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: |
| Form | LSR Field Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: |
| Resale or Centrex | BLOCK (Stage 1) | <u>Blocking Type</u> | For each LNUM provided in the Service Detail section of the Resale or Centrex form when BA = E: Note: The BLOCK field may have one or more alpha and/or numeric values per LNUM. This review will only validate based on BA/BLOCK fields and will not address blocking information provided in the "Remark" section on the LSR or the Feature Detail section of the LSR. The values listed below will be considered as follows: If BLOCK contains A, validate FID TBE A is present on the service order floated behind line USOC associated with the TNS for that LNUM. If BLOCK contains B, validate FID TBE B is present on the service order floated behind line USOC associated with the TNS for that LNUM. If BLOCK contains C, validate FID TBE C is present on the service order floated behind line USOC associated with the TNS for that LNUM. If BLOCK contains C, validate FID TBE C is present on the service order floated behind line USOC associated with the TNS for that LNUM. If BLOCK contains C, validate FID TBE C is present on the service order floated behind line USOC associated with the TNS for that LNUM. If BLOCK contains H, validate FID TBE C is present on the service order floated behind line USOC associated with the TNS for that LNUM. If BLOCK contains H, validate FID BLKD is present on the service order floated behind line USOC associated with the TNS for that LNUM. |

| | Phase 4 – Date TBD | | | |
|---|--------------------|--|---|--|
| | | LSR-Servic | ce Order Fields Evaluated | |
| | <u>Mechani</u> | zed comparison of | the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: | |
| | LSR Field | | | |
| Form | Code | LSR Field Name | Hemarks/Service Order Field: | |
| | DFDT | <u>Desired Frame</u> <u>Due Time</u> | Applicable only to orders for Resale and UNE-P (POTS and Centrex 21) DFDT field on the LSR form compared to the FDT field in the Extended ID section of the Service Order. | |
| <u>LSR</u> | DDD | <u>Desired Due</u> <u>Date</u> | DDD field from the last FOC'd LSR compared to the original or last subsequent due date in the Extended ID section on the Service Order when no CFLAG/PIA is present on the FOC. (i.e. Evaluation includes recognition of valid differences between DDD and Service Order based on population of the CFLAG/PIA field on the LSRC (FOC)) | |
| <u>Directory Listings</u> <u>form</u> aluated only for al Main Listings) | <u>LTN</u> | <u>Listed Telephone</u> <u>Number</u> | For Resale and UNE-P (POTS and Centrex 21): LTN field on the Listing form compared to the Main Account Number of the Service Order. For Unbundled Loop: LTN field on the Listing form compared to the TN floated after the LN in the Listing section of the Service Order. | |
| (Ev (Ev | LNPL | <u>Letter Name</u> <u>Placement</u> | LNPL field on the Listing form = L, validate that LN on the Service Order follows letter placement versus word placement. | |
| <u>Resale</u> <u>or</u> <u>Centrex</u> | FEATURE DETAILS | Feature Details | If CLECs propose additional FIDs for review, Qwest will undertake a feasibility evaluation. | |
| | BLOCK (Stage 2) | Blocking Type | If CLECs identify value in additional Blocking review, Qwest will undertake development. [Requirements to be developed] | |

OP-2 – Calls Answered within Twenty Seconds – Interconnect Provisioning Center

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness of CLEC access to Qwest's interconnection provisioning center(s) and retail customer access to the Business Office, focusing on the extent calls are answered within 20 seconds.

Description:

Measures the percentage of (Interconnection Provisioning Center or Retail Business Office) calls that are answered by an agent within 20 seconds of the first ring.

- Includes all calls to the Interconnect Provisioning Center/Retail Business Office during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Abandoned calls and busy calls are counted as calls which are not answered within 20 seconds.
- First ring is defined as when the customer's call is first placed in queue by the ACD (Automatic Call Distributor).
- Answer is defined as when the call is first picked up by the Qwest agent.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent | |
|---|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. | |
| Formula: | · · | |
| [(Total Calls Answered by Center within 20 second | ls) ÷ (Total Calls received by Center)] x 100 | |
| | | |
| Exclusions: Time spent in the VRU Voice Respor | se Unit is not counted. | |
| Product Reporting: Not applicable | Standard: Parity | |
| Availability: Available | Notes: | |

OP-3 – Installation Commitments Met

Purpose:

Evaluates the extent to which Qwest installs services for Customers by the scheduled due date.

Description:

Measures the percentage of orders for which the scheduled due date is met.

- All inward orders (Change, New, and Transfer order types) assigned a due date by Qwest and which are completed/closed during the reporting period are measured, subject to exclusions specified below. Change order types included in this measurement consist of all C orders representing <u>inward activity</u>. Also included are orders with customer-requested due dates longer than the standard interval.
- Completion date on or before the Applicable Due Date recorded by Qwest is counted as a met due date. The Applicable Due Date is the original due date or, if changed or delayed by the customer, the most recently revised due date, subject to the following: If Qwest changes a due date for Qwest reasons, the Applicable Due Date is the customer-initiated due date, if any, that is (a) subsequent to the original due date and (b) prior to a Qwest-initiated, changed due date, if any.

| Reporting Period: C | One month Unit of Measure: Percent | |
|---------------------|---|----|
| Reporting | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. | |
| Comparisons: | Results for product/services listed in Product Reporting under "MSA-Type" | e |
| CLEC aggregate, | Disaggregation" will be reported according to orders involving: | |
| individual CLEC | OP-3A Dispatches within MSAs; | |
| and Qwest Retail | OP-3B Dispatches outside MSAs; and | |
| results | OP-3C No dispatches. | |
| | Results for products/services listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-ty | pe |
| | Disaggregation" will be disaggregated according to installations: | |
| | OP-3D In Interval Zone 1 areas; and | |
| | OP-3E In Interval Zone 2 areas | |

Formula:

[(Total Orders completed in the reporting period on or before the Applicable Due Date) \div (Total Orders Completed in the Reporting Period)] x 100

- Disconnect, From (another form of disconnect) and Record order-types.
- Due dates missed for standard categories of customer and non-Qwest reasons. Standard categories of customer reasons are: previous service at the location did not have a customer-requested disconnect order issued, no access to customer premises, and customer hold for payment. Standard categories of non-Qwest reasons are: Weather, Disaster, and Work Stoppage.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid due dates or application dates.
- Records with invalid completion dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

OP – 3 Installation Commitments Met (continued)

| Product Reporting: | Standards: | |
|---|--|--|
| MSA-Type Disaggregation - | | |
| Resale | | |
| Residential single line service | Parity with retail service | |
| Business single line service | Parity with retail service | |
| Centrex | Parity with retail service | |
| Centrex 21 | Parity with retail service | |
| DS0 (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| PBX Trunks (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Primary ISDN (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Basic ISDN (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Qwest DSL (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Parity with like retail service | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Parity with retail Centrex 21 | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Parity with retail Centrex | |
| Line Splitting | 95% | |
| Line Sharing | 95% | |
| Sub-Loop Unbundling | CO: 90% | |
| | All Other States: Diagnostic | |
| Zone-Type Disaggregation - | | |
| Resale | | |
| Primary ISDN (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Basic ISDN (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| DS0 (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| DS1 | Parity with retail service | |
| PBX Trunks (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Qwest DSL (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| DS3 and higher bit-rate services (aggregate) | Parity with retail service | |
| Frame Relay | Parity with retail service | |
| LIS Trunks | Parity with Feature Group D (aggregate) | |
| Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UD) | IT) | |
| UDIT – DS1 level | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line | |
| UDIT – Above DS1 level | Parity with retail Private Lines above DS1 level | |
| Dark Fiber – IOF | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Loops: | 1 Y | |
| Analog Loop | 90% | |
| Non-loaded Loop (2-wire) | 90% | |
| Non-loaded Loop (4-wire) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line | |
| DS1-capable Loop | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line | |
| ISDN-capable Loop | Parity with retail ISDN BRI | |
| ADSL-gualified Loop | 90% | |
| Loop types of DS3 and higher bit-rates | Parity with retail DS3 and higher bit-rate Private | |
| (aggregate) | Line services (aggregate) | |
| Dark Fiber – Loop | Diagnostic | |
| Loops with Conditioning | 90% | |
| • E911/911 Trunks | Parity with retail E911/911 Trunks | |

OP – 3 Installation Commitments Met (continued)

| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS0 level) | | WA: 90% All Other States: Diagnostic | |
|--|--------|---|--|
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS1 level) | | 90% | |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS3 level) | | WA: 90% | |
| | | All Other States: Diagnostic | |
| Availability: Available | Notes: | | |

OP-4 – Installation Interval

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness of Qwest's installation of services for customers, focusing on the average time to install service.

Description:

Measures the average interval (in <u>business days</u>)^{NOTE 1} between the <u>application date</u> and the completion date for service orders accepted and implemented.

- Includes all inward orders (Change, New, and Transfer order types) assigned a due date by Qwest and which are completed/closed during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below. Change order types for additional lines consist of all C orders representing <u>inward activity</u>.
- Intervals for each measured event are counted in whole days: the application date is day zero (0); the day following the application date is day one (1).
- The Applicable Due Date is the original due date or, if changed or delayed by the customer, the most recently revised due date, subject to the following: If Qwest changes a due date for Qwest reasons, the Applicable Due Date is the customer-initiated due date, if any, that is (a) subsequent to the original due date and (b) prior to a Qwest-initiated, changed due date, if any.
- Time intervals associated with customer-initiated due date changes or delays occurring after the Applicable Due Date, as applied in the formula below, are calculated by subtracting the latest Qwest-initiated due date, if any, following the Applicable Due Date, from the subsequent customer-initiated due date, if any.

| Reporting Period | : One month | Unit of Measure: Average Business Days |
|---|---|---|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: State Results for product/services Disaggregation" will be report OP-4A Dispatches with OP-4B Dispatches outs OP-4C No dispatches. Results for products/services Disaggregation" will be disate OP-4D In Interval Zones OP-4E In Interval Zones | atewide level. Isted in Product Reporting under " <u>MSA</u> -Type orted according to orders involving: in MSAs; side MSAs; and es listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type ggregated according to installations: <u>a 1</u> areas; and <u>a 2</u> areas. |

Formula:

 Σ [(Order Completion Date) – (Order Application Date) – (Time interval between the Original Due Date and the Applicable Date) – (Time intervals associated with customer-initiated due date changes or delays occurring after the Applicable Due Date)] + Total Number of Orders Completed in the reporting period

Explanation: The average installation interval is derived by dividing the sum of installation intervals for all orders (in business days)^{NOTE 1} by total number of service orders completed in the reporting period. **Exclusions:**

- Orders with customer requested due dates greater than the current standard interval.
- Disconnect, From (another form of disconnect) and Record order types.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid due dates or application dates.
- Records with invalid completion dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

OP-4 – Installation Interval (continued)

| Product Reporting: | Standards: | |
|---|--|--|
| MSA-Type Disaggregation - | · | |
| Resale | | |
| Residential single line service | Parity with retail service | |
| Business single line service | Parity with retail service | |
| Centrex | Parity with retail service | |
| Centrex 21 | Parity with retail service | |
| DS0 (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| PBX Trunks (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Primary ISDN (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Basic ISDN (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Qwest DSL (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Parity with like retail service | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Parity with retail Centrex 21 | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Parity with retail Centrex | |
| Line Splitting | 3.3 days | |
| Line Sharing | 3.3 days | |
| Sub-Loop Unbundling | CO: 6 days | |
| | All Other States: Diagnostic | |
| Zone-Type Disaggregation - | 1 | |
| Resale | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| Primary ISDN (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Basic ISDN(designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| DS0 (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| DS1 | Parity with retail service | |
| PBX Trunks (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| Qwest DSL (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service | |
| DS3 and higher bit-rate services | Parity with retail service | |
| (aggregate) | | |
| Frame Helay | Parity with retail service | |
| LIS Trunks | Parity with Feature Group D (aggregate) | |
| Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UD |)IT) | |
| UDIT – DS1 level | Parity with DS1 Private Line Service | |
| UDIT – Above DS1 level | Parity with Private Lines above DS1 level | |
| Dark Fiber – IOF | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Loops: | | |
| Analog Loop | 6 days | |
| Non-loaded Loop (2-wire) | 6 days | |
| Non-loaded Loop (4-wire) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line | |
| DS1-capable Loop | Idaho, Iowa, Montana, Nebraska, North Dakota, Oregon, Wyoming: Parity with retail DS1 Private Line | |
| | Arizona, Colorado, Minnesota, New Mexico, South Dakota, Utah, Washington: 5.5 days | |
| ISDN-capable Loop | Parity with retail ISDN BRI | |
| ADSL-qualified Loop | 6 days | |
| Loop types of DS3 and higher bit-rates | Parity with retail DS3 and higher bit-rate services | |
| (aggregate) | (aggregate) | |
| Dark Fiber – Loop | Diagnostic | |
| Loops with Conditioning | 15 days | |

OP-4 – Installation Interval (continued)

| • E911/911 Trunks | | Parity with retail E911/911 Trunks | |
|--|---|---|--|
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS0 level) | | Diagnostic | |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS1 level) | | 6 days | |
| Enhanced Extended Loop level) | os (EELs) – (DS3 | Diagnostic | |
| Availability: | Notes: | urday is counted as a business day for all orders for | |
| Available | s (EELs) – (DS3 Diagnostic Notes: 1. For OP-4C, Saturday is counted as a business day for all orders for Resale Residence, Resale Business, and UNE-P (POTS), as well as for the retail analogues specified above as standards. For all other products under OP-4C and for all products under OP-4A, -4B, -4D, and -4E. Saturday is counted as a business day when the service order is due or completed on Saturday. 2. According to this definition, the Applicable Due Date can change, per successive customer-initiated due date change occurs. At that point, the Applicable Due Date becomes fixed (i.e., with no further changes) as the date on which it was set prior to the first Qwest-initiated due date change, if any. Following the first Qwest-initiated due date changes or delays are measured as time intervals that are subtracted as indicated in the description. (Though infrequent, in cases where multiple Qwest-initiated due date changes occur, the stated method for calculating delay intervals is applied to each pair of Qwest-initiated due date change and subsequent customer-initiated due date change or delay. The intervals thus calculated from each pairing of Qwest and customer-initiated due dates are summed and then subtracted as indicated in the formula.) The result of this approach is that Qwest-initiated impacts on intervals are counted in the reported interval, and customer-initiated impacts | | |
| | | not counted in the reported interval. | |

OP-5 – New Service Quality

Purpose:

Evaluates the quality of ordering and installing new services (inward line service orders), focusing on the percentage of newly-installed service orders that are free of CLEC/customer-initiated trouble reports during the provisioning process and within 30 calendar days following installation completion, and focusing on the quality of Qwest's resolution of such conditions with respect to multiple reports.

Description:

Measures two components of new service provisioning quality (OP-5A and -5B) and also reports a combined result (OP-5T), as described below, each as a percentage of all inward line service orders completed in the reporting period that are free of CLEC/customer-reported provisioning and repair trouble reports, as described below. Also measures the percentage of all provisioning and repair trouble reports that constitute multiple trouble reports for the affected service orders. (OP-5R)

- Orders for new services considered in calculating all components of this performance indicator are all inward line service orders completed in the reporting period, including Change (C-type) orders for additional lines/circuits, subject to exclusions shown below. Change order types considered in these measurements consist of all C orders representing <u>inward activity</u>.
- Orders for new service installations include conversions (Retail to CLEC, CLEC to CLEC, and same CLEC converting between products).
- Provisioning or repair trouble reports include both out of service and other service affecting conditions, such as features on a line that are missing or do not function properly upon conversion, subject to exclusions shown below.

OP-5A: New Service Installation Quality Reported to Repair

- Measures the percentage of inward line service orders that are free of repair trouble reports NOTE 2 within 30 calendar days of installation completion, subject to exclusions below.
- Repair trouble reports are defined as CLEC/customer notifications to Qwest of out-of-service and
 other service affecting conditions for which Qwest opens repair tickets in its maintenance and repair
 management and tracking systems ^{NOTE 3} that are closed in the reporting period or the following
 month, ^{NOTE 4} subject to exclusions shown below. ^{NOTE 5}
- Qwest is able to open repair tickets for repair trouble reports received from CLECs/customers once the service order is completed in Qwest's systems.

OP-5B: New Service Provisioning Quality

- Measures the percentage of inward line service orders that are free of provisioning trouble reports during the provisioning process and within 30 calendar days of installation completion, subject to exclusions shown below.
- Provisioning trouble reports are defined as CLEC notifications to Qwest of out of service or other service affecting conditions that are attributable to provisioning activities, including but not limited to LSR/service order mismatches and conversion outages. For provisioning trouble reports, Qwest creates call center tickets in its call center database. Subject to exclusions shown below, call center tickets closed in the reporting period or the following month ^{NOTE 4} are captured in this measurement. Call center tickets closed to Network reasons will not be counted in OP-5B when a repair trouble report for that order is captured in OP-5A.

OP-5T: New Service Installation Quality Total

 Measures the percentage of inward line service orders that are free of repair or provisioning trouble reports during the provisioning process and within 30 calendar days of installation completion, subject to exclusion shown below.

OP-5R: New Service Quality Multiple Report Rate

- Evaluates the quality of Qwest's responses to repair and provisioning trouble reports for inward line service orders completed in the reporting period. This measurement reports, for those service orders that were *not* free of repair or provisioning trouble reports in OP-5A or OP-5B, the percentage of trouble reports affecting the same service orders that were followed by additional repair and provisioning trouble reports, as specified below.
- Measures the percentage of all repair and provisioning trouble reports considered in OP-5A and OP-5B that are additional repair or provisioning trouble reports received by Qwest for the same service order during the provisioning process or within 30 calendar days following installation

OP-5 – New Service Quality (continued)

- completion.
- Additional repair or provisioning trouble reports are defined as all such reports that are received following the first report (whether the first report is represented by a call center ticket or a repair ticket) relating to the same service order during the provisioning process or within 30 calendar days following installation completion. In all cases, the trouble reports counted are those that are defined for OP-5A and OP-5B above.

| Reporting Period: One month, reported in arrears (i.e., results first appear | | Unit of Measure: |
|---|-------------------------|---------------------|
| in reports one month later than results for measurements that are not | | Percent |
| reported in arrears), in order to cover the 30-day period following installation. | | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reportin | ng: Statewide level |
| Formulas: | | |
| OP-5A = (Number inward line service orders completed in the reporting period – Number of inward line service orders with any <u>repair trouble reports</u> as specified above) ÷ (Number of inward line service orders completed in the reporting period) x 100 | | |
| OP-5B = (Number of inward line service orders completed in the reporting period – Number of inward line service orders with any <u>provisioning trouble reports</u> as specified above) ÷ (Number of inward line service orders completed in the reporting period) x 100 | | |

- **OP-5T** = ([Number of inward line service orders completed in the reporting period] Number of inward line service orders with <u>repair or provisioning trouble reports</u> as defined above under OP-5A or OP-5B, as applicable) ÷ (Number of inward line service orders completed in the reporting period) x 100
- **OP-5R** = (Number of all repair and provisioning trouble reports, relating to inward line service orders closed in the reporting period as defined above under OP-5A or OP-5B, that constitute additional repair and provisioning trouble reports, within 30 calendar days following the installation date + Number of all repair and provisioning trouble reports relating to inward line service orders closed In the reporting period, as defined above under OP-5A or OP-5B) x 100

Exclusions:

Applicable to OP-5A, OP-5T and OP-5R:

- Repair trouble reports attributable to CLEC or coded to non-Qwest reasons as follows:
 - For products measured from MTAS data, repair trouble reports coded to disposition codes for:
 - Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant; Trouble Beyond the Network Interface; and Miscellaneous Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider); and Reports from other than the CLEC/customer that result in a charge if dispatched.

- For products measured from WFA (Workforce Administration) data, repair reports coded to codes for:

 Carrier Action (IEC); Customer Provided Equipment (CPE); Commercial power failure; Customer requested service order activity; and Other non-Qwest.

- Repair reports coded to disposition codes for referral to another department (i.e., for non-repair ticket resolutions of non-installation-related problems, except cable cuts, which are not excluded).

Applicable to OP-5B, OP-5T and OP-5R only:

- Provisioning trouble reports attributable to CLEC or non-Qwest causes.
- Call center tickets relating to activities that occur as part of the normal process of conversion (i.e., while Qwest is actively and properly engaged in process of converting or installing the service). Provisioning trouble reports involving service orders that, at the time of the calls, have fallen out for manual handling and been disassociated from the related service order, as applicable, will be considered as not in the normal process of conversion and will not be excluded.

Applicable to OP-5A, OP-5B, OP-5T and OP-5R:

- Repair or provisioning trouble reports related to service orders captured as misses under measurements OP-13 (Coordinated Cuts Timeliness) or OP-17 (LNP Timeliness).
- Subsequent repair or provisioning trouble reports of any trouble on the installed service before the original repair or provisioning trouble report is closed.
- Service orders closed in the reporting period with App Dates earlier than eight months prior to the

OP-5 – New Service Quality (continued)

beginning of the reporting period.

- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Disconnect, From (another form of disconnect) and Record order types. When out of service or service
 affecting problems are reported to the call center on conversion and move requests, the resulting call
 center ticket will be included in the calculation of the numerator in association with the related inward
 order type even when the call center ticket reflects the problem was caused by the Disconnect or From
 order.
- Records involving official Qwest company services.

Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement as defined herein.

| Product Reporting Categories: | Standards: | |
|--|--|--|
| As specified below – one | OP-5A: | Parity with retail service |
| percentage result reported for | OP-5B: | Diagnostic for six months following first reporting. After |
| each bulleted category under | | six months Benchmark (TBD) |
| the sub-measurements shown. | OP-5T: | Diagnostic |
| | OP-5R: | Diagnostic for six months following first reporting. |
| | | Possible standard (TBD) |
| | (Where parity comparisons involve multiple service varieties in a | |
| | product category, weighting based on the retail analogue volumes may | |
| | be used if necessary to create a comparison that is not affected by | |
| | different pro | portions of wholesale and retail analogue volumes in the |
| | same report | ing category.) |
OP-5 – New Service Quality (continued)

| Product Reporting: | Standards: | | | |
|--|-----------------------------|--------------------------------------|------------|--|
| | | | | |
| Heported under OP-5A, OP-5B, | UP-5T and OP-5R: | o portion in Land Tame PID A 1 4 4 | ation \ | |
| roduct categories may be com | Diffed as agreed upon by th | e parues in Long-Term PID Administra | | |
| | UT-JA | | 0P-5P | |
| Resale | | | | |
| Residential single line | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic: Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| service | , | | | |
| Business single line | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| service | | | | |
| Centrex | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| Centrex 21 | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| PBX Trunks | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| Basic ISDN | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| Qwest DSL | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| Primary ISDN | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| DS0 | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| DS1 | Parity with retail service | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| DS3 and higher bit- | Parity with retail service | ю mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| rate services | | | | |
| (aggregate) | Pority with rotail as its | 6 mo Diagnostia: Deserve TDD | Diognastis | |
| | Parity with like rotal | 6 mo Diagnostic; Benchmark IBD | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Network Element Distance | Fanty with like retail | o mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark IBD | Diagnostic | |
| = Platform | 301100 | | | |
| Inhundled Network | Parity with retail Centroy | 6 mo Diagnostic: Renchmark TPD | Diagnostio | |
| Flement - Pletform | 21 | | | |
| (UNF-P) (Centrey 21) | | | | |
| Unbundled Network | Parity with retail Centrex | 6 mo. Diagnostic: Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| Element – Platform | | | | |
| (UNE-P) (Centrex) | | | | |
| Line Splitting | Diagnostic | Diagnostic | Diagnostic | |
| Line Sharing | Parity with retail RES & | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| | BUS POTS | | | |
| Sub-Loop Unbundling | Diagnostic | Diagnostic | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Loops: | | | | |
| Analog Loop | Parity with retail Res & | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| | Bus POTS with dispatch | | L | |
| Non-loaded Loop (2- | Parity with retail ISDN | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| wire) | BHI BC | | | |
| Non-loaded Loop (4- | Parity with retail DS1 | o mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| wire) | Devite match port | | | |
| US1-capable Loop | Parity with retail DS1 | o mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| ISDN-capable Loop | Parity with retail ISDN | o mo. שומפחסנוכ; Benchmark IBD | | |
| ADSL-qualified Loop | Parity with retail Qwest | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| | DSL with dispatch | | | |
| Loop types of DS3 and | Parity with retail DS3 | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic | |
| higher bit-rates | and higher bit-rate | | | |
| (aggregate) | services (aggregate) | | L | |
| Dark Fiber - Loop | Diagnostic | Diagnostic | Diagnostic | |

OP-5 – New Service Quality (continued)

| Enhanced Exten (EELs) – (DS0 le | ded Loops evel) | Diagnostic until volume criteria are met | Diagnostic until volume criteria are met | Diagnostic |
|--|--|---|---|------------|
| Enhanced Exten (EELs) – (DS1 le | ded Loops evel) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line | 6 mo. Diagnostic; Benchmark TBD | Diagnostic |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (above DS1 level) | | Diagnostic until volume criteria are met | Diagnostic until volume criteria are met | Diagnostic |
| Reported under OP | -5A and un | der OP-5R (per OP-5A spe | ecifications): | |
| | | <u>OP-5A</u> | <u>OP-5R</u> | |
| LIS Trunks | | Parity with Feature Group D (aggregate) | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Dedicate | d Interoffice | Transport (UDIT) | | |
| UDIT (DS1 Le | vel) | Parity with Retail Private Lines (DS1) | Diagnostic | |
| UDIT (Above I | DS1 Level) | Parity with Retail Private Lines (Above DS1 level) | Diagnostic | |
| Dark Fiber - IC |)F | Diagnostic | Diagnostic | |
| • E911/911 Trunk | S | Parity with Retail E911/911 Trunks | Diagnostic | |
| Availability: | Notes: | | | |
| Available | The sp orders Specifi number Includi trouble preced comple was tro Qwest Admin succes this me centers OP-5B The "fo or five) proces Include supers trouble For pu provisi miss ir numbe by the OP-5F | Parity with Retail E911/911 Trunks Diagnostic Notes: 1. The specified Change order types representing inward activity exclude Change orders that do not involve installation of lines (in both wholesale and retail results). Specifically this measurement does not include changes to existing lines, such as number changes and PIC changes. 2. Including consideration of repeat repair trouble reports (i.e., additional reports of trouble related to the same newly-installed line/circuit that are received after the preceding repair report is closed and within 30 days following installation completion) to complete the determination of whether the newly-installed line/circuit was trouble free within 30 days of installation. 3. Qwest's repair management and tracking systems consist of WFA (Work Force Administration), MTAS (Maintenance Tracking and Administration System), and successor repair systems, if any, as applicable to obtain the repair report data for this measurement. Not included are Call Center Database systems supporting call centers in logging calls from customers regarding problems or other inquiries (see OP-5B and OP-5T). 4. The "following month" includes also the period of a few <u>business days</u> (typically four or five) afterward, up to the time when Qwest pulls the repair data to begin processing results for this measurement. 5. Includes repair and provisioning trouble reports generated by new processes that supersede or supplement existing processes for submitting repair and provisioning trouble reports as specified in Qwest's documented or agreed upon procedures. 6. For purposes of calculating OP-5B, a call center ticket for multiple orders with provisioning trouble reports will result in all orders reporting trouble counting as a miss in OP-5B. If | | |

OP-6 – Delayed Days

| Purpose: Evaluates the extent Qwest is late in installing services for customers, focusing days that late orders are completed beyond the committed due date | on the average number of | |
|--|--|--|
| | | |
| Description: OP-6A – Measures the average number of <u>business days</u> NOTE 1 that service is Applicable Due Date for non-facility reasons attributed to Qwest. Includes all inward orders (Change, New, and Transfer order type completed/closed during the reporting period, later, due to non-face Applicable Due Date recorded by Qwest, subject to exclusions sp | delayed beyond the es) that are cility reasons, than the ecified below. | |
| OP-6B – Measures the average number of business days ^{NOTE 1} that service is Applicable Due Date for facility reasons attributed to Qwest. Includes all inward orders (Change, New, and Transfer order type completed/closed during the reporting period later due to facility reduce date recorded by Qwest, subject to exclusions specified below | delayed beyond the es) that are easons than the original w. | |
| For both OP-6A and OP-6B: Change order types for additional lines consist of "C" orders representing in The Applicable Due Date is the original due date or, if changed or delayed recently revised due date, subject to the following: If Qwest changes a due the Applicable Due Date is the customer-initiated due date, if any, that is (a original due date and (b) prior to a Qwest-initiated, changed due date, if an Time intervals associated with customer-initiated due date changes or dela Applicable Due Date, as applied in the formula below, are calculated by su initiated due date, if any, following the Applicable Due Date, from the subseque date, if any. NOTE 2 | nward activity. by the customer, the most date for Qwest reasons, a) subsequent to the y. ^{NOTE 2} ays occurring after the btracting the latest Qwest- equent customer-initiated | |
| Reporting Period: One month Unit of Measure: Avera | ge Business Days | |
| Reporting Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. Comparisons: Results for products/services listed under Product ReDisaggregation" will be reported for OP-6A and OP-6 Disaggregate, Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. | eporting under " <u>MSA</u> -type B according to orders | |
| Individual CLEC involving: and Qwest Retail results 1. Dispatches within MSAs; 2. Dispatches outside MSAs; and 3. No dispatches. Results for products/services listed in Product Report Disaggregation" will be disaggregated according to in 4. In <u>Interval Zone 1</u> areas; and 5. In <u>Interval Zone 2</u> areas. | ting under "Zone-type istallations: | |
| Formula: OP-6A = ∑[(Actual Completion Date of late order for non-facility reasons) – (A order) – (Time intervals associated with customer-initiated due date occurring after the Applicable Due Date)] ÷ (Total Number of Late Or reasons completed in the reporting period) | pplicable Due Date of late changes or delays rders for non-facility | |
| OP-6B = ∑[(Actual Completion Date of late order for facility reasons) – (Applicable Due Date of late order)] – (Time intervals associated with customer-initiated due date changes or delays occurring after the Applicable Due Date) ÷ (Total Number of Late Orders for facility reasons completed in the reporting period) | | |

OP-6 – Delayed Days (continued)

- Orders affected only by delays that are solely for customer and/or CLEC reasons.
- Disconnect, From (another form of disconnect) and Record order types.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid due dates or <u>application dates</u>.
- Records with invalid completion dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

| Product Reporting: | Standards: |
|---|---|
| MSA-Type Disaggregation - | · |
| Resale | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| Residential single line service | Parity with retail service |
| Business single line service | Parity with retail service |
| Centrex | Parity with retail service |
| Centrex 21 | Parity with retail service |
| DS0 (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service |
| PBX Trunks (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service |
| Primary ISDN (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service |
| Basic ISDN (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service |
| Qwest DSL (non-designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Parity with like retail service |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Parity with retail Centrex 21 |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Parity with retail Centrex |
| Line Splitting | Parity with retail Qwest DSL |
| Line Sharing | Parity with retail Qwest DSL |
| Sub-Loop Unbundling | Diagnostic |
| Zone-type Disaggregation - | |
| Resale | |
| Primary ISDN (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service |
| Basic ISDN (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service |
| DS0 (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service |
| DS1 | Parity with retail service |
| PBX Trunks (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service |
| Qwest DSL (designed provisioning) | Parity with retail service |
| DS3 and higher bit-rate services (aggregate) | Parity with retail service |
| Frame Relay | Parity with retail service |
| LIS Trunks | Parity with Feature Group D (aggregate) |
| Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UDI | T) |
| UDIT – DS1 level | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line- Service |
| UDIT – Above DS1 level | Parity with retail Private Line- Services above DS1 level |
| Dark Fiber – IOF | Diagnostic |
| Unbundled Loops: | |
| Analog Loop | Parity with retail Res and Bus POTS with dispatch |
| Non-loaded Loop (2-wire) | Parity with retail ISDN BRI |
| Non-loaded Loop (4-wire) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| DS1-capable Loop | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| ISDN-capable Loop | Parity with retail ISDN BRI |
| ADSL-qualified Loop | Parity with retail Qwest DSL, with dispatch |
| Loop types of DS3 and higher bit-rates | Parity with retail DS3 and higher bit-rate Private |
| (aggregate) | Line services (aggregate) |

OP-6 – Delayed Days (continued)

| | Diagnostic |
|---|--|
| | Parity with retail E911/911 Trunks |
| ops (EELs) – (DS0 | Diagnostic |
| | OP-64: Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| $\mu s (EELS) = (DS)$ | OP-6B: Diagnostic |
| ops (EELs) – (DS3 | Diagnostic |
| · · · · · | |
| Notes: | |
| OP-6B: Diagnostic Diagnostic Diagnostic Notes: For OP-6A-3 and OP-6B-3, Saturday is counted as a business of all orders for Resale Residence, Resale Business, and UNE-P (POTS), as well as for the retail analogues specified above as standards. For all other products under OP-6A-3 and OP-6B-3, for all products under OP-6A-1, -6A-2, -6A-4, -6A-5, -6B-1, -6B-2, 6B-4, and -6B-5, Saturday is counted as a business day when the service order is due or completed on Saturday. According to this definition, the Applicable Due Date can change successive customer-initiated due date changes or delays, up to point when a Qwest-initiated due date change occurs. At that puthe Applicable Due Date becomes fixed (i.e., with no further change, any further customer-initiated due date changes or delay measured as time intervals that are subtracted as indicated in th formula. These delay time intervals are calculated as stated in t description. (Though infrequent, in cases where multiple Qwest initiated due date change or or The intervals is applied to each pair of Qwest-initiated due date change or or The intervals thus calculated from each pairing of Qwest and customer-initiated due dates are summed and then subtracted as indicated in the formula.) The result of this approach is that Qw initiated impacts on intervals are counted in the reported interval | |
| | ps (EELs) – (DS0 ps (EELs) – (DS1 ps (EELs) – (DS3 Notes: 1. For OP-6A-3 and C all orders for Resal (POTS), as well as standards. For all for all products und 6B-4, and -6B-5, S service order is due 2. According to this d successive custom point when a Qwes the Applicable Due as the date on whic date change, if any change, any furthe measured as time formula. These de description. (Thou initiated due date c delay intervals is a change and subset The intervals thus of customer-initiated in indicated in the form initiated impacts or customer-initiated in interval. |

| OP-7 – Coordinated "Hot Cut" Interval – Unbundled Loop | | | |
|---|--|--|--|
| Purpose: | | | |
| Evaluates the duration of completing coordinated " | not cuts" of unbundled loops, focusing on the time | | |
| actually involved in disconnecting the loop from the | Qwest network and connecting/testing the loop. | | |
| Description: | | | |
| Measures the average time to complete coordinate | d "hot cuts" for unbundled loops, based on intervals | | |
| beginning with the "lift" time and ending with the co | mpletion time of Qwest's applicable tests for the | | |
| loop. | | | |
| Includes all coordinated hot cuts of unbundled | loops that are completed/closed during the | | |
| reporting period, subject to exclusions specifie | d below. | | |
| "Hot cut" refers to moving the service of existin CLEC's equipment, via unbundled loops, that y | g customers from Qwest's switch/frames to the vill serve the customers. | | |
| "Lift" time is defined as when Qwest disconnect | ts the existing loop. | | |
| "Completion time" is defined as when Qwest or | ompletes the applicable tests after connecting the | | |
| loop to the CLEC. | | | |
| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Hours and Minutes | | |
| | | | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC Disaggregat | on Reporting: Statewide level. | | |
| aggregate and individual CLEC | | | |
| results | | | |
| Formula: | | | |
| Σ [Completion time – Lift time] ÷ (Total Number of L | inbundled loops with coordinated cutovers | | |
| completed in the reporting period) | | | |
| | | | |
| Exclusions: | | | |
| Time intervals associated with CLEC-caused delays. | | | |
| Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID. | | | |
| Invalid start/stop dates/times or invalid scheduled date/times. | | | |
| Product Reporting: Coordinated Unbundled | Standard: | | |
| Loops – Reported separately for: | CO: 1 hour | | |
| Analog Loops | All Other States: Diagnostic in light of OP-13 | | |
| All other Loop Types | (Coordinated Cuts On Time) | | |
| Availability: | Notes: | | |
| Available | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |

OP-8 – Number Portability Timeliness

Purpose: Evaluates the timeliness of cutovers of local number portability (LNP). **Description:** OP-8B - LNP Timeliness with Loop Coordination (percent): Measures the percentage of coordinated LNP triggers set prior to the scheduled start time for the loop. All orders for LNP coordinated with unbundled loops that are completed/closed during the reporting period are measured, subject to exclusions specified below. OP-8C - LNP Timeliness without Loop Coordination (percent): Measures the percentage of LNP triggers set prior to the Frame Due Time or scheduled start time for the LNP cutover as applicable. All orders for LNP for which coordination with a loop was not requested that are completed/closed during the reporting period are measured (including standalone LNP coordinated with other than Qwest-provided Unbundled Loops and non-coordinated, standalone LNP), subject to exclusions specified below. • For purposes of these measurements (OP-8B and -8C), "trigger" refers to the "10-digit unconditional trigger" or Line Side Attribute (LSA) that is set or translated by Qwest. • "Scheduled start time" is defined as the confirmed appointment time (as stated on the FOC), or a newly negotiated time. In the case of LNP cutovers coordinated with loops, the scheduled time used in this measurement will be no later than the "lay" time for the loop. Reporting Period: One month Unit of Measure: Percent of triggers set on time Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. individual CLEC results Formula: OP-8B = [(Number of LNP triggers set before the scheduled time for the coordinated loop cutover) +(Total Number of LNP activations coordinated with unbundled loops completed)] x 100 OP-8C = [(Number of LNP triggers set before the Frame Due Time or Scheduled Start Time) ÷ (Total Number of LNP activations without loop cutovers completed)] x 100 Exclusions: CLEC-caused delays in trigger setting. LNP requests that do not involve automatic triggers (e.g., DID lines without separate, unique . telephone numbers and Centrex 21). LNP requests for which the records used as sources of data for these measurements have the • following types of errors: Records with no PON (purchase order number) or STATE. Records where triggers cannot be set due to switch capabilities. _ Records with invalid due dates, application dates, or start dates. _ Records with invalid completion dates. Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID. Invalid start/stop dates/times or invalid frame due or scheduled date/times. Product Reporting: None Standard: 95% Availability: Notes: Available

OP-13 – Coordinated Cuts On Time – Unbundled Loop

Purpose:

Evaluates the percentage of coordinated cuts of unbundled loops that are completed on time, focusing on cuts completed within one hour of the committed order due time and the percent that were started without CLEC approval.

Description:

- Includes all LSRs for coordinated cuts of unbundled loops that are completed/closed during the • reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- OP-13A Measures the percentage of LSRs (CLEC orders) for all coordinated cuts of unbundled loops that are started and completed on time. For coordinated loop cuts to be counted as "on time" in this measurement, the CLEC must agree to the start time, and Qwest must (1) receive verbal CLEC approval before starting the cut or lifting the loop, (2) complete the physical work and appropriate tests, (3) complete the Qwest portion of any associated LNP orders and (4) call the CLEC with completion information, all within one hour of the time interval defined by the committed order due time.
- OP-13B Measures the percentage of all LSRs for coordinated cuts of unbundled loops that are actually started without CLEC approval.
- "Scheduled start time" is defined as the confirmed appointment time (as stated on the FOC), or a newly negotiated appointment time.
- The "committed order due time" is based on the number and type of loops involved in the cut and is calculated by adding the applicable time interval from the following list to the scheduled start time:
 - Analog unbundled loops:

| 1 Hour | | | |
|----------------------------|--|--|--|
| 2 Hours | | | |
| Project* | | | |
| All other unbundled loops: | | | |
| 1 Hour | | | |
| | | | |

| 1 to 5 lines: | 1 | F |
|---------------|---|---|
|---------------|---|---|

| 6 to 8 lines: | 2 Hours |
|-----------------|----------|
| 9 to 11 lines: | 3 Hours |
| 12 to 24 lines: | 4 Hours |
| 25+ lines: | Project* |

*For Projects scheduled due dates and scheduled start times will be negotiated between CLEC and Qwest, but no committed order due time is established. Therefore, projects are not included in OP-13A (see exclusion below).

- "Stop" time is defined as when Qwest notifies the CLEC that the Qwest physical work and the appropriate tests have been successfully accomplished, including the Qwest portion of any coordinated LNP orders.
- Time intervals following the scheduled start time or during the cutover process associated with customer-caused delays are subtracted from the actual cutover duration.
- Where Qwest's records of completed coordinated cut transactions are missing evidence of CLEC approval of the cutover, the cut will be counted as a miss under both OP-13A and OP-13B.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and individual CLEC results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. Results for this measurement will be reported according to: OP-13A Cuts Completed On Time OP-13B Cuts Started Without CLEC Approval |

OP-13 – Coordinated Cuts On Time – Unbundled Loop (continued)

| dled Loop cuts whose actual start time occurs er of LSRs for Coordinated Unbundled Loop Cuts | | |
|--|--|--|
| 0 | | |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | |
| andard methodologies, processes, or timelines. | | |
| OP-13A & OP-13B: | | |
| Records with invalid completion dates. Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID which are not | | |
| otherwise designated to be "counted as a miss". | | |
| Invalid start/stop dates/times of invalid scheduled date/times. Projects involving 25 or more lines. | | |
| Product Reporting: Coordinated Unbundled Standards: | | |
| A7: 90 Percent or more | | |
| All Other States: 95 Percent or more | | |
| OB-13B: Diagnostic | | |
| Notes: | | |
| | | |

OP-15 – Interval for Pending Orders Delayed Past Due Date

Purpose:

Evaluates the extent to which Qwest's pending orders are late, focusing on the average number of days the pending orders are delayed past the Applicable Due Date, as of the end of the reporting period.

Description:

OP-15A – Measures the average number of <u>business days</u> that pending orders are delayed beyond the Applicable Due Date for reasons attributed to Qwest.

- Includes all pending inward orders (Change, New, and Transfer order types) for which the Applicable Due Date recorded by Qwest has been missed, subject to exclusions specified below. Change order types included in this measurement consist of all "C" orders representing inward activity.
- The Applicable Due Date is the original due date or, if changed or delayed by the customer, the most
 recently revised due date, subject to the following: If Qwest changes a due date for Qwest reasons, the
 Applicable Due Date is the customer-initiated due date, if any, that is (a) subsequent to the original due
 date and (b) prior to a Qwest-initiated, changed due date, if any.
- Time intervals associated with customer-initiated due date changes or delays occurring after the Applicable Due Date, as applied in the formula below, are calculated by subtracting the latest Qwestinitiated due date, if any, following the Applicable Due Date, from the subsequent customer-initiated due date, if any.

OP-15B – Reports the number of pending orders measured in the numerator of OP-15A that were delayed for Qwest facility reasons.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: OP-15A – Average Business Days NOTE 2 OP-15B – Number of orders pending facilities |
|---|---|
| Reporting Comparisons: | Disaggregation Reporting: |
| CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC, Qwest retail | Statewide |

Formula:

- OP-15A = ∑[(Last Day of Reporting Period) (Applicable Due Date of Late Pending Order) (Time intervals associated with customer-initiated due date changes or delays occurring after the Applicable Due Date)] ÷ (Total Number of Pending Orders Delayed for Qwest reasons as of the last day of Reporting Period)
- OP-15B = Count of pending orders measured in numerator of OP-15A that were delayed for Qwest facility reasons

- Disconnect, From (another form of disconnect) and Record order types.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid due dates or <u>application dates</u>.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

| Product Reporting: | Standards: OP-15B = diagnostic only | |
|---|--|--|
| Besale | | |
| Residential single line service | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| Business single line service | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| Centrex | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| Centex 21 | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| | Blaghoono (Expositation: Fanty With Petal bervice) | |
| PBX Trunk | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| Basic ISDN | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service | |
| Qwest DSL | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| Primary ISDN | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| DS0 | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| DS1 | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| DS3 and higher bit-rate services (aggregate) | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| Frame Relay | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail service) | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail Centrex 21) | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail Centrex) | |
| Line Splitting | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail Qwest DSL) | |
| Line Sharing | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail Qwest DSL) | |
| Sub-Loop Unbundling | Diagnostic | |
| LIS Trunks | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with Feature Group D | |
| Inbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UD | T (aggregate)) (separately reported) | |
| UDIT – DS1 level | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with DS1 Private | |
| | Line-Service) | |
| UDIT – Above DS1 level | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with Private Line- | |
| | Services above DS1 level) | |
| Dark Fiber – IOF | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Loops: | | |
| Analog Loop | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail Res and | |
| · | Bus POTS with dispatch) | |
| Non-loaded Loop (2-wire) | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail ISDN BRI) | |
| Non-loaded Loop (4-wire) | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail DS1) | |
| DS1-capable Loop | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail DS1) | |
| ISDN-capable Loop | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with ISDN-BRI) | |
| ADSL-qualified Loop | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail Qwest DSL with dispatch) | |
| Loop types of DS3 or higher bit rate | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail DS3 and | |
| (aggregate) | higher bit-rate services (aggregate) | |
| Dark Fiber – Loop | Diagnostic | |
| • E911/911 Trunks | Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail E911/911 Trunks) | |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) | Diagnostic | |

OP-15 – Interval for Pending Orders Delayed Past Due Date (continued)

OP-15 – Interval for Pending Orders Delayed Past Due Date (continued)

| Availability: | Notes: |
|---------------|--|
| Available | According to this definition, the Applicable Due Date can change, per successive customer-initiated due date changes or delays, up to the point when a Qwest-initiated due date change occurs. At that point, the Applicable Due Date becomes fixed (i.e., with no further changes) as the date on which it was set prior to the first Qwest-initiated due date change, if any. Following the first Qwest-initiated due date change, any further customer-initiated due date changes or delays are measured as time intervals that are subtracted as indicated in the formula. These delay time intervals are calculated as stated in the description. (Though infrequent, in cases where multiple Qwest- initiated due date changes occur, the stated method for calculating delay intervals is applied to each pair of Qwest-initiated due date change and subsequent customer-initiated due date change or delay. The intervals thus calculated from each pairing of Qwest and customer-initiated due dates are summed and then subtracted as indicated in the formula.) The result of this approach is that Qwest-initiated impacts on intervals are not counted in the reported interval, and customer-initiated impacts on intervals are not counted in the reported interval. |
| | For OP-15A, Saturday is counted as a business day for all non-dispatched orders for Resale Residence, Resale Business, and UNE-P (POTS), as well as for non-dispatched orders in the retail analogues specified above as standards. For all other non-dispatched products and for all dispatched products under OP-15A, Saturday is not counted as a business day. |

OP-17 – Timeliness of Disconnects associated with LNP Orders

Purpose:

Evaluates the quality of Qwest completing LNP telephone number porting, focusing on the degree to which porting occurs without implementing associated disconnects before the scheduled time/date. **Description:**

OP-17A

- Measures the percentage of all LNP telephone numbers (TNs), both stand alone and associated with loops, that are ported without the incidence of disconnects being made by Qwest before the scheduled time/date, as identified by associated qualifying trouble reports.
 - Focuses on disconnects associated with timely CLEC requests for delaying the disconnects or no requests for delays.
 - The scheduled time/date is defined as 11:59 p.m. on (1) the due date of the LNP order recorded by Qwest or (2) the delayed disconnect date requested by the CLEC, where the CLEC submits a timely request for delay of disconnection.
 - A CLEC request for delay of disconnection is considered timely if received by Qwest before 8:00 p.m. MT on the current due date of the LNP order recorded by Qwest.

OP-17B

- Measures the percentage of all LNP telephone numbers (TNs), both stand alone and associated with loops, that are ported without the incidence of disconnects being made by Qwest before the scheduled time/date, as identified by associated qualifying trouble reports.
 - Includes only disconnects associated with untimely CLEC requests for delaying the disconnects.
 - A CLEC request for delay of disconnection is considered "untimely" if received by Qwest after 8:00 p.m. MT on the current due date of the LNP order recorded by Qwest and before 12:00 p.m. MT (noon) on the day after the current due date.
- Disconnects are defined as the removal of switch translations, including the 10-digit trigger.
- Disconnects that are implemented early, and thus counted as a "miss" under this measurement, are those that the CLEC identifies as such to Qwest via trouble reports, within four calendar days of the actual disconnect date, that are confirmed to be caused by disconnects being made before the scheduled time.
- Includes all CLEC orders for LNP TNs completed in the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|-------------------------------------|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC Aggregate and Individual CLEC | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide |
| Earman Iar | |

Formula:

[(Total number of LNP TNs ported pursuant to orders completed in the reporting period – Number of TNs with qualifying trouble reports notifying Qwest that disconnection before the scheduled time has occurred) + Total Number of LNP TNs ported pursuant to orders completed in the reporting period] x 100

OP-17 – Timeliness of Disconnects associated with LNP Orders (continued)

Exclusions: OP-17A only

Trouble reports notifying Qwest of early disconnects associated with situations for which the CLEC has failed to submit timely requests to have disconnects held for later implementation.

OP-17A & B

- Trouble reports not related to valid requests (LSRs) for LNP and associated disconnects.
- LNP requests that do not involve automatic triggers (e.g., DID lines without separate, unique TNs, and Centrex 21).
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared, closed or due dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

OP-17B only

• Trouble reports notifying Qwest of early disconnects associated with situations for which the CLEC did not submit its untimely requests by 12:00 p.m. MT (noon) on the day after the LNP due date to have disconnects held for later implementation.

| Product Reporting: LNP | Standards: OP-17A – 98.25% OP-17B – Diagnostic only, in light of its measuring only requests for delay of disconnect that are defined as untimely. |
|----------------------------|--|
| Availability: Available | Notes: |

Maintenance and Repair

MR-2 – Calls Answered within 20 Seconds – Interconnect Repair Center

Purpose:

Evaluates Customer access to Qwest's Interconnection and/or Retail Repair Center(s), focusing on the number of calls answered within 20 seconds.

Description:

Measures the percentage of Interconnection and/or Retail Repair Center calls answered within 20 seconds of the first ring.

- Includes all calls to the Interconnect Repair Center during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- First ring is defined as when the customer's call is first placed in queue by the ACD (Automatic Call Distributor).
- Answer is defined as when the call is first picked up by the Qwest agent.

• Abandoned calls and busy calls are counted as calls which are not answered within 20 seconds.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent | |
|---|--|--|
| Poperting Comparisonal CLEC aggregate and | Disagragation Reporting Design wide level | |
| Qwest Retail levels. | Disaggregation Reporting: Region-wide level. | |
| Formula: | | |
| [(Total Calls Answered by Center within 20 seconds) + (Total Calls received by Center)] x 100 | | |
| | | |
| Exclusions: Time spent in the VRU (Voice Response Unit) is not counted. | | |
| Product Reporting: None | Standard: Parity | |
| Availability: Available | Notes: | |

MR-3 – Out of Service Cleared within 24 Hours

Purpose:

Evaluates timeliness of repair for specified services, focusing on trouble reports where the out-ofservice trouble reports were cleared within the standard estimate for specified services (i.e., 24 hours for out-of-service conditions).

Description:

Measures the percentage of out of service trouble reports, involving specified services, that are cleared within 24 hours of receipt of trouble reports from CLECs or from retail customers.

- Includes all trouble reports, closed during the reporting period, which involve a specified service that is out-of-service (i.e., unable to place or receive calls), subject to exclusions specified below.
- Time measured is from date and time that Qwest is first notified of the trouble by CLEC to date and time trouble is cleared.

| Reporting Period: | One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: S Results for product/service Disaggregation" will be dis reports involving: MR-3A Dispatches w MR-3B Dispatches of MR-3C No dispatches Results for products/servi Disaggregation" will be dis MR-3D In Interval Zo MR-3E In Interval Zo | Statewide level. es listed in Product Reporting under " <u>MSA</u> -Type saggregated and reported according to trouble ithin MSAs; utside MSAs; and s. ces listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type saggregated according to trouble reports involving: <u>ne 1</u> areas; and <u>ne 2</u> areas. |

Formula:

[(Number of Out of Service Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period that are cleared within 24 hours) + (Total Number of Out of Service Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period)] x 100

- Trouble reports coded as follows:
 - For products measured from MTAS data (products listed for MSA-type disaggregation), trouble reports coded to disposition codes for: Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant; Trouble Beyond the Network Interface; and Miscellaneous – Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider).
 - For products measured from WFA (Workforce Administration) data (products listed for Zonetype disaggregation) trouble reports coded to trouble codes for Carrier Action (IEC) and Customer Provided Equipment (CPE).
- Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed.
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Time delays due to "no access" are excluded from repair time for products/services listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type Disaggregation".
- For products measured from MTAS data (products listed for MSA-type disaggregation), trouble reports involving a "no access" delay.
- Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

MR-3 – Out of Service Cleared within 24 Hours (Continued)

| Product Reporting: | Standards: |
|---|--|
| MSA-Type Disaggregation - | |
| Resale | |
| Residential single line service | Parity with retail service |
| Business single line service | Parity with retail service |
| Centrex | Parity with retail service |
| Centrex 21 | Parity with retail service |
| PBX Trunks | Parity with retail service |
| Basic ISDN | Parity with retail service |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Parity with appropriate retail service |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Parity with retail Centrex 21 |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Parity with retail Centrex |
| Line Splitting | TBD |
| Line Sharing | CO: Parity with Qwest DSL |
| | All Other States: Parity with RES and BUS POTS |
| Sub-Loop Unbundling | CO: Parity with retail ISDN-BRI |
| | All Other States: Diagnostic |
| Zone-type Disaggregation - | |
| Resale | · |
| Qwest DSL | Parity with retail service |
| Unbundled Loops | |
| Analog Loop | Parity with retail Res and Bus POTS |
| Non-loaded Loop (2 wire) | Parity with retail ISDN-BRI |
| ISDN-capable Loop | Parity with ISDN-BRI |
| ADSL-qualified Loop | Parity with retail Qwest DSL |
| Availability: | Notes: |
| Available | |

MR-4 – All Troubles Cleared within 48 hours

Purpose:

Evaluates timeliness of repair for specified services, focusing on trouble reports of all types (both out of service and service affecting) and on the number of such trouble reports cleared within the standard estimate for specified services (i.e., 48 hours for service-affecting conditions).

Description:

Measures the percentage of trouble reports, for specified services, that are cleared within 48 hours of receipt of trouble reports from CLECs or from retail customers.

- Includes all trouble reports, closed during the reporting period, which involve a specified service, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Time measured is from date and time that Qwest is first notified of the trouble by CLEC to date and time trouble is cleared.

| Reporting Period: | One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|---|---|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: S Results for product/servic Disaggregation" will be dis reports involving: MR-4A Dispatches w MR-4B Dispatches of MR-4C No dispatches Results for products/servi Disaggregation" will be dis MR-4D In Interval Zo MR-4E In Interval Zo | Statewide level. es listed in Product Reporting under " <u>MSA</u> -Type saggregated and reported according to trouble ithin MSAs; utside MSAs; and s. ces listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type saggregated according to trouble reports involving: <u>ne 1</u> areas; and <u>ne 2</u> areas |
| | | |

Formula:

[(Total Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period that are cleared within 48 hours) \div (Total Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period)] x 100

- Trouble reports coded as follows:
 - For products measured from MTAS data (products listed for MSA-type disaggregation), trouble reports coded to disposition codes for: Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant; Trouble Beyond the Network Interface; and Miscellaneous – Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider).
 - For products measured from WFA (Workforce Administration) data (products listed for Zonetype disaggregation) trouble reports coded to trouble codes for Carrier Action (IEC) and Customer Provided Equipment (CPE).
- Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed.
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Time delays due to "no access" are excluded from repair time for products/services listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type Disaggregation".
- For products measured from MTAS data (products listed for MSA-type disaggregation), trouble reports involving a "no access" delay.
- Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

MR-4 – All Troubles Cleared within 48 Hours (Continued)

| Product Reporting: | Standards: |
|---|--|
| MSA-Type Disaggregation - | |
| Resale | |
| Residential single line service | Parity with retail service |
| Business single line service | Parity with retail service |
| Centrex | Parity with retail service |
| Centrex 21 | Parity with retail service |
| PBX Trunks | Parity with retail service |
| Basic ISDN | Parity with retail service |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Parity with appropriate retail service |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Parity with retail Centrex 21 |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Parity with retail Centrex |
| Line Splitting | TBD |
| Line Sharing | Parity with RES and BUS POTS |
| Sub-Loop Unbundling | Diagnostic |
| Zone-Type Disaggregation - | |
| Resale | |
| Qwest DSL | Parity with retail service |
| Unbundled Loops: | |
| Analog Loop | Parity with retail Res and Bus POTS |
| Non-loaded Loop (2 wire) | Parity with retail ISDN-BRI |
| ISDN-capable Loop | Parity with retail ISDN-BRI |
| ADSL-qualified Loop | Parity with retail Qwest DSL |
| Availability: Available | Notes: |

MR-5 – All Troubles Cleared within 4 hours

Purpose:

Evaluates timeliness of repair for specified services, focusing on all trouble reports of all types (including out of service and service affecting troubles) and on the number of such trouble reports cleared within the standard estimate for specified services (i.e., 4 hours).

Description:

Measures the percentage of trouble reports for specified services that are cleared within 4 hours of receipt of trouble reports from CLECs or from retail customers.

- Includes all trouble reports, closed during the reporting period, which involve a specified service, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Time measured is from date and time that Qwest is first notified of the trouble by CLEC to date and time trouble is cleared.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measu | ure: Percent | |
|-------------------------------|--|--------------------------------------|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: | Disaggregati | on Reporting: Statewide level. | |
| CLEC aggregate, individual | Results for listed products will be disaggregated according to trouble | | |
| CLEC and Qwest Retail results | reports: | | |
| | MR-5A | In <u>Interval Zone 1</u> areas; and | |
| | MR-5B | In <u>Interval Zone 2</u> areas. | |
| | | | |

Formula:

[(Number of Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period that are cleared within 4 hours) \div (Total Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period)] x 100

- Trouble reports coded as follows:
 - For products measured using WFA (Workforce Administration) data (products listed for Zonetype disaggregation) trouble reports coded to trouble codes for Carrier Action (IEC) and Customer Provided Equipment (CPE).
- Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed.
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Time delays due to "no access" are excluded from repair time.
- Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

MR-5 – All Troubles Cleared within 4 hours (continued)

| Product Reporting: | Standards: |
|--|--|
| Zone-Type Disaggregation - | |
| Resale | |
| Primary ISDN | Parity with retail service |
| DS0 | Parity with retail service |
| DS1 | Parity with retail service |
| DS3 and higher bit-rate services (aggregate) | Parity with retail service |
| Frame Relay | Parity with retail service |
| LIS Trunks | Parity with Feature Group D (aggregate) |
| Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UDI) | Г) |
| UDIT – DS1 level | Parity with DS1 Private Line Service |
| UDIT – Above DS1 level | Parity with Private Line Services above DS1 level |
| Unbundled Loops: | · |
| Non-loaded Loop (4-wire) | Parity with retail DS1 |
| DS1-capable Loop | Parity with retail DS1 |
| Loop types of DS3 and higher bit-rates (aggregate) | Parity with retail DS3 and higher bit-rate services (aggregate) |
| • E911/911 Trunks | Parity with retail E911/911 Trunks |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS0 level) | Diagnostic |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS1 level) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS3 level) | Diagnostic |
| Availability: | Notes: |
| Available | |
| | |

MR-6 – Mean Time to Restore

Purpose:

Evaluates timeliness of repair, focusing how long it takes to restore services to proper operation. **Description:**

Measures the time actually taken to clear trouble reports.

- Includes all trouble reports closed during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Includes customer direct reports, customer-relayed reports, and test assist reports that result in a trouble report.
- Time measured is from date and time that Qwest is first notified of the trouble by CLEC to date and time trouble is cleared.

| Reporting Period: (| One month | Unit of Measure: Hours and Minutes | |
|---------------------|---|---|--|
| Reporting | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. | | |
| Comparisons: | Results for product/services listed in Product Reporting under " <u>MSA</u> -Type | | |
| CLEC aggregate, | Disaggregation" will be reported according to trouble reports involving: | | |
| individual CLEC | MR-6A Dispatches within MSAs; | | |
| and Qwest Retail | MR-6B Dispatches outside MSAs; and | | |
| results | MR-6C No dispatches. | | |
| | Results for products/service | ces listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type | |
| | Disaggregation" will be dis | saggregated according to trouble reports involving: | |
| | MR-6D In Interval Zor | ne 1 areas; and | |
| | MR-6E In Interval Zor | ne 2 areas. | |

Formula:

 \sum [(Date & Time Trouble Report Cleared) – (Date & Time Trouble Report Opened)] ÷ (Total number of Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period)

- Trouble reports coded as follows:
 - For products measured from MTAS data (products listed for MSA-type disaggregation), trouble reports coded to disposition codes for: Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant; Trouble Beyond the Network Interface; and Miscellaneous – Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider).
 - For products measured from WFA (Workforce Administration) data (products listed for Zonetype disaggregation) trouble reports coded to trouble codes for Carrier Action (IEC) and Customer Provided Equipment (CPE).
- Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed.
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Time delays due to "no access" are excluded from repair time for products/services listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type Disaggregation".
- For products measured from MTAS data (products listed for MSA-type disaggregation), trouble reports involving a "no access" delay.
- Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

MR-6 - Mean Time to Restore (Continued)

| Product Reporting: | | Standards: |
|--------------------|--|--|
| <u>M</u> S | SA-Type Disaggregation - | · |
| ٠ | Resale | |
| | Residential single line service | Parity with retail service |
| | Business single line service | Parity with retail service |
| | Centrex | Parity with retail service |
| | Centrex 21 | Parity with retail service |
| | PBX Trunks | Parity with retail service |
| | Basic ISDN | Parity with retail service |
| • | Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Parity with like retail service |
| • | Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Parity with retail Centrex 21 |
| • | Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Parity with retail Centrex |
| • | Line Splitting | TBD |
| • | Line Sharing | CO: Parity with Qwest DSL |
| | | All Other States: Parity with RES and BUS POTS |
| • | Sub-Loop Unbundling | CO: Parity with retail ISDN-BRI |
| | | All Other States: Diagnostic |
| <u>Z</u> | one-Type Disaggregation - | · |
| • | Resale | |
| ļ | Qwest DSL | Parity with retail service |
| L | Primary ISDN | Parity with retail service |
| <u> </u> | DS0 | Parity with retail service |
| | | Parity with retail service |
| | US3 and higher bit-rate services | Parity with retail service |
| | (aggregate) | Parity with ratail convice |
| <u> </u> | | Parity with Feature Group D (aggregate) |
| • | LID I TUNKS | T any with realure Group D (aggregate) |
| • | | 1) Parity with ratail DS1 Privata Lina |
| | | Parity with retail Dot Filvate Lines above DS1 lovel |
| - | Dark Eiber IOE | Diagnostic |
| - | Unhundled Loope: | Diagnostic |
| - | | Parity with rotail Res and Pus POTS |
| | Non loaded Loop (2 wire) | Parity with retail ISDN RPI |
| | Non loaded Loop (2-wire) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| - | | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| | | Parity with retail ISDN RPI |
| - | | Parity with retail Owest DSI |
| | Loop types of DS3 and higher hit-rates | Parity with retail DS3 and higher hit-rate Private |
| | (andredate) | Line services (aggregate) |
| - | Dark Fiber – Loop | Diagnostic |
| • | F911/911 Trunks | Parity with retail E911/911 Trunks |
| | Enhanced Extended Loops (FELs) – (DS0 | Diagnostic |
| | | Devity with rotal DC1 Driveta Line |
| • | Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS1 level) | Parity with retail DST Private Line |
| • | Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS3 level) | Diagnostic |

| Availability: | Notes: | |
|---------------|--------|--|
| Available | | |

MR-6 – Mean Time to Restore (Continued)

MR-7 – Repair Repeat Report Rate

Purpose:

Evaluates the accuracy of repair actions, focusing on the number of <u>repeated trouble reports</u> received for the same line/circuit within a specified period (30 calendar days).

Description:

Measures the percentage of trouble reports that are repeated within 30 days on end user lines and circuits.

- Includes all trouble reports closed during the reporting period that have a repeated trouble report received within thirty (30) days of the initial trouble report for the same service (regardless of whether the report is about the same type of trouble for that service), subject to exclusions specified below.
- In determining same service Qwest will compare the end user telephone number or circuit access code of the initial trouble reports closed during the reporting period with reports received within 30 days of when the initial trouble report closed.
- Includes reports due to Qwest network or system causes, customer-direct and customer-relayed reports.
- The 30-day period applied in the numerator of the formula below is from the date and time that the initial trouble report is closed to the date and time that the next, or "repeat" trouble report is received (i.e., opened).

| Reporting Period: One month, reported in | | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|---|--|
| arrears (i.e., results first appear in reports one | | |
| month later than | results for measurements that | |
| are not reported i | n arrears), in order to cover the | |
| 30-day period following the initial trouble report. | | |
| Reporting | porting Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. | |
| Comparisons: | Results for product/services listed in Product Reporting under "MSA-Type | |
| CLEC | Disaggregation" will be reported according to trouble reports involving: | |
| aggregate, | aggregate, MR-7A Dispatches within MSAs, | |
| individual MR-7B Dispatches outside MSAs; and | | ide MSAs; and |
| CLEC and MR-7C No dispatches. | | |
| Qwest Retail | Qwest Retail Results for products/services listed in Product Reporting under "Zone-type | |
| results | Disaggregation" will be disag | gregated according to trouble reports involving: |
| | MR-7D In Interval Zone | 1 areas; and |

Formula:

[(Total trouble reports closed within the reporting period that had a repeated trouble report received within 30 calendar days of when the initial trouble report closed) \div (Total number of Trouble Reports Closed in the reporting period)] x 100

MR-7E In Interval Zone 2 areas.

- Trouble reports coded as follows:
 - For products measured from MTAS data (products listed for MSA-type disaggregation), trouble reports coded to disposition codes for: Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant; Trouble Beyond the Network Interface; and Miscellaneous – Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider).
 - For products measured from WFA (Workforce Administration) data (products listed for Zonetype disaggregation) trouble reports coded to trouble codes for Carrier Action (IEC) and Customer Provided Equipment (CPE).
- Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed.
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete.
- Records involving official company services.
- · Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.

MR-7 – Repair Repeat Report Rate (Continued)

- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

| Product Reporting: | | Standards: |
|---------------------------|--|--|
| MSA-Type Disaggregation - | | |
| | Resale | |
| - | Besidential single line service | Parity with retail service |
| | Business single line service | Parity with retail service |
| | Centrey | Parity with retail service |
| | Controx 21 | Parity with retail service |
| | | Parity with retail service |
| | Basic ISDN | Parity with retail service |
| | Linbundled Network Element Dietform | Parity with like rotail service |
| • | (UNE-P) (POTS) | |
| • | Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Parity with retail Centrex 21 |
| • | Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE- P) (Centrex) | Parity with retail Centrex |
| ٠ | Line Splitting | Parity with Qwest Retail DSL |
| • | Line Sharing | AZ & CO: Parity with Qwest Retail DSL |
| | | All Other States: Diagnostic Comparison with Qwest Retail DSL |
| ٠ | Sub-Loop Unbundling | CO: Parity with Retail ISDN-BRI |
| | | All Other States: Diagnostic |
| Zc | one-Type Disaggregation - | |
| ٠ | Resale | |
| | Qwest DSL | Parity with retail service |
| | Primary ISDN | Parity with retail service |
| | DS0 | Parity with retail service |
| | DS1 | Parity with retail service |
| | DS3 and higher bit-rate services (aggregate) | Parity with retail service |
| | Frame Relay | Parity with retail service |
| • | LIS Trunks | Parity with Feature Group D (aggregate) |
| • | Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UDI | T) |
| | UDIT – DS1 level | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| | UDIT – Above DS1 level | Parity with retail Private Lines above DS1 level |
| | Dark Fiber – IOF | Diagnostic |
| • | Unbundled Loops: | |
| | Analog Loop | Parity with retail Res and Bus POTS |
| | Non-loaded Loop (2-wire) | Parity with retail ISDN BRI |
| | Non-loaded Loop (4-wire) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| | DS1-capable Loop | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| | ISDN-capable Loop | Parity with retail ISDN BRI |
| | ADSL-gualified Loop | Parity with retail Qwest DSL |
| | Loop types of DS3 and higher bit-rates | Parity with retail DS3 and higher bit-rate Private |
| | (aggregate) | Line services (aggregate) |
| | Dark Fiber – Loop | Diagnostic |
| | E911/911 Trunks | Parity with retail E911/911 Trunks |
| L | | J |

MR-7 – Repair Repeat Report Rate (Continued)

| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS0 level) | Diagnostic |
|---|-------------------------------------|
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS1 level) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS3 level) | Diagnostic |
| Availability: Targeted availability with July 2004 results reported in September 2004 | Notes: |

MR-8 – Trouble Rate

Purpose:

Evaluates the overall rate of trouble reports as a percentage of the total installed base of the service or element.

Description:

Measures trouble reports by product and compares them to the number of lines in service.

- Includes all trouble reports closed during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Includes all applicable trouble reports, including those that are out of service and those that are only service-affecting.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. |

Formula:

[(Total number of trouble reports closed in the reporting period involving the specified service grouping) + (Total number of the specified services that are in service in the reporting period)] x 100

- Trouble reports coded as follows:
 - For products measured from MTAS data, trouble reports coded to disposition codes for:
 Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant; Trouble Beyond the Network Interface; and Miscellaneous
 Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider).
 - For products measured from WFA data trouble reports coded to trouble codes for Carrier Action (IEC) and Customer Provided Equipment (CPE).
- Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed.
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

MR-8 – Trouble Rate (continued)

| Product Reporting: | Standards: |
|---|---|
| Decele | |
| Resale Desidential single line service | Derity with rotail convice |
| | Parity with retail service |
| Business single line service | Parity with retail service |
| | Parity with retail service |
| | Parity with retail service |
| PBA TIUNKS | Parily with retail service |
| Basic ISDN | Parity with retail service |
| | Parity with Qwest DSL service |
| Primary ISDN | Parity with retail service |
| DSU | Parity with retail service |
| DS1 | Parity with retail service |
| DS3 and higher bit-rate services | Parity with retail service |
| (aggregate) | |
| Frame Relay | Parity with retail service |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Parity with like retail service |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Parity with retail Centrex 21 |
| Unbundled Network Element – Plotform(LNE_R) (Contrax) | Parity with retail Centrex |
| | |
| | CO. Derity with Owest DSI |
| • Line Sharing | All Other States Derity with DES and DUS |
| | POTS |
| Sub-Loop Unbundling | CO: Parity with retail ISDN-BRI |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | All Other States: Diagnostic |
| LIS Trunks | Parity with Feature Group D (aggregate) |
| Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UD) | IT) · |
| UDIT – DS1 level | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line Service |
| UDIT – Above DS1 level | Parity with retail Private Lines above DS1 level |
| Dark Fiber – IOF | Diagnostic |
| Unbundled Loops: | |
| Analog Loop | Parity with retail Res and Bus POTS |
| Non-loaded Loop (2-wire) | Parity with retail ISDN BRI |
| Non-loaded Loop (4-wire) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| DS1-capable Loop | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| ISDN-capable Loop | Parity with retail ISDN BRI |
| ADSL-gualified Loop | Parity with retail Qwest DSL |
| Loop types of DS3 and higher bit-rates | Parity with retail DS3 and higher bit-rate services |
| (aggregate) | (aggregate) |
| Dark Fiber – Loop | Diagnostic |
| • E911/911 Trunks | Parity with retail E911/911 Trunks |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS0 | Diagnostic |
| level) | |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS1 level) | Parity with retail DS1 Private Line |
| Enhanced Extended Loops (EELs) – (DS3 level) | Diagnostic |
| Availability: Available | Notes: |

MR-9 – Repair Appointments Met

Purpose:

Evaluates the extent to which Qwest repairs services for Customers by the appointment date and time. **Description:**

Measures the percentage of trouble reports for which the appointment date and time is met.

- Includes all trouble reports closed during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Time measured is from date and time that Qwest is first notified of the trouble by CLEC to date and time trouble is cleared.

| Reporting Period: One month | | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|------------------------------------|---|--------------------------------|
| Reporting Disaggregation Re | | on Reporting: Statewide level. |
| Comparisons: CLEC | omparisons: CLEC Results for listed services will be disaggregated and reported | |
| aggregate, individual | according | to trouble reports involving: |
| CLEC and Qwest Retail MR-9A Dispat | | Dispatches within <u>MSAs;</u> |
| results | MR-9B | Dispatches outside MSAs; and |
| | MR-9C | No dispatches. |

Formula:

[(Total Trouble Reports Cleared by appointment date and time) \div (Total Trouble Reports Closed in the Reporting Period)] x 100

Exclusions:

- Trouble reports coded as follows:
 - For products measured from MTAS data, trouble reports coded to disposition codes for:
 Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant; Trouble Beyond the Network Interface; and Miscellaneous
 Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider).
- Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed.
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Time delays due to "no access" are excluded from repair time by using the rescheduled appointment time to determine if the repair appointment is met.
- Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.

• Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

| Product Reporting: | Standard: Parity |
|---------------------------------------|------------------|
| Resale: | |
| Residential single line service | |
| Business single line service | |
| Centrex | |
| Centrex 21 | |
| PBX Trunks | |
| Basic ISDN | |
| Unbundled Elements – Platform (UNE-P) | |
| (POTS) | |
| Availability: | Notes: |
| Available | |
| | |

MR-10 – Customer and Non-Qwest Related Trouble Reports

Purpose:

Evaluates the extent that trouble reports were customer related, and provides diagnostic information to help address potential issues that might be raised by the core maintenance and repair performance indicators.

Description:

Measures the percentage of all trouble reports that are attributed to the customer as a percentage of all trouble reports resolved during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below. Includes trouble reports closed during the reporting period coded as follows:

- For products measured from MTAS data, trouble reports coded to disposition codes for: Customer Action; Non-Telco Plant, Trouble Beyond the Network Interface; and Miscellaneous Non-Dispatch, non-Qwest (includes CPE, Customer Instruction, Carrier, Alternate Provider) and trouble reports involving a "no access" delay for <u>MSA</u> type disaggregated products.
- For products measured from WFA (Workforce Administration) data trouble reports coded to trouble codes for Carrier Action (IEC) and Customer Provided Equipment (CPE).

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. |

Formula:

[(Number of Trouble Reports coded to disposition codes specified above) + (Total Number of Trouble Reports Closed in the Reporting Period)] x 100

- Subsequent trouble reports of any trouble before the original trouble report is closed
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.
- Trouble reports on the day of installation before the installation work is reported by the technician/installer as complete.

MR-10 Customer and Non-Qwest Related Trouble Reports (continued)

| Product Reporting: | Standards: | |
|---|------------|--|
| Resale | | |
| Residential single line service | Diagnostic | |
| Business single line service | Diagnostic | |
| Centrex | Diagnostic | |
| Centrex 21 | Diagnostic | |
| PBX Trunks | Diagnostic | |
| Basic ISDN | Diagnostic | |
| Qwest DSL | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (POTS) | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex 21) | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) (Centrex) | Diagnostic | |
| Resale | · . | |
| Primary ISDN | Diagnostic | |
| DS0 | Diagnostic | |
| DS1 | Diagnostic | |
| DS3 and higher bit-rate services (aggregate) | Diagnostic | |
| Frame Relay | Diagnostic | |
| LIS Trunks | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport (UDI) | Γ) . | |
| UDIT – DS1 level | Diagnostic | |
| UDIT – Above DS1 level | Diagnostic | |
| Unbundled Loops: | | |
| Analog Loop | Diagnostic | |
| Non-loaded Loop (2-wire) | Diagnostic | |
| Non-loaded Loop (4-wire) | Diagnostic | |
| DS1-capable Loop | Diagnostic | |
| ISDN-capable Loop | Diagnostic | |
| ADSL-qualified Loop | Diagnostic | |
| Loop types of DS3 and higher bit-rates (aggregate) | Diagnostic | |
| • E911/911 Trunks | Diagnostic | |
| Availability: | Notes: | |
| Available | | |

| MR-11 – LNP Trouble Reports Cleared within 24 Hours | | |
|---|--|--|
| Purpose: | | |
| Evaluates timeliness of clearing LNP trouble report business, disconnect-related, out-of-service trouble LNP-related trouble reports are cleared within 48 h | s, focusing on the degree to which residence and reports are cleared within four business hours and all ours. | |
| Description: | | |
| MR-11A: Measures the percentage of specified business, out-of-service trouble reports receiving these trouble reports from CLE | LNP-only (i.e., not unbundled-loop), residence and that are cleared within four business hours of Qwest CCs. | |
| Includes only trouble reports that are received on or before the currently-scheduled due date of the actual LNP-related disconnect time/date, or the next <u>business day</u>, that are confirmed to be caused by disconnects being made before the scheduled time, and that are closed during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below. MB-11B: Measures the percentage of specified LNP-only trouble reports that are cleared within 48 hours | | |
| of Qwest receiving these trouble reports from CLECs. Includes all LNP-only trouble reports, received within four calendar days of the actual LNP-related disconnect date and closed during the reporting period. | | |
| The "currently-scheduled due date/time" is response to CLEC/customer request for discort to Qwest a timely or untimely request for dela later date/time. | the original due date/time established by Qwest in nnection of service ported via LNP or, if CLEC submits by of disconnection, it is the CLEC/customer-requested | |
| A request for delay of disconnection is considered timely if received by Qwest before 8:00 p.m. MT on the due date that Qwest has on record at the time of the request | | |
| • A request for delay of disconnection is consid on the due date and before 12:00 p.m. MT (no | ered untimely if received by Qwest after 8:00 p.m. MT on) on the day after the due date | |
| • Time measured is from the date and time Q trouble is cleared. | west receives the trouble report to the date and time | |
| Reporting Period: One month Unit of Measure: Percent | | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC Aggregate and Individual CLEC | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level (all are "non-dispatched"). | |
| Formula: MR-11A = [(Number of specified out-of-service LN confirmed to be caused by disconnects | P-only Trouble Reports, for LNP-related troubles , that Qwest executed before the currently-scheduled | |

due date/time, that were closed in the reporting period and cleared within four business hours) + (Total Number of specified out of service LNP-only Trouble Reports for LNP-related troubles confirmed to be caused by disconnects that Qwest executed before the currentlyscheduled due date/time, that were closed in the reporting period)] x 100

MR-11B = [(Number of specified LNP-only Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period that were cleared within 48 hours) + (Total Number of specified LNP-only Trouble Reports closed in the reporting period)] x 100

MR-11 – LNP Trouble Reports Cleared within 24 Hours (Continued)

- Trouble reports attributed to customer or non-Qwest reasons
- Trouble reports not related to valid requests (LSRs) for LNP and associated disconnects.
- Subsequent trouble reports of LNP trouble before the original trouble report is closed.
- For MR-11B only: Trouble reports involving a "no access" delay.
- Information tickets generated for internal Qwest system/network monitoring purposes.
- Records involving official company services.
- Records with invalid trouble receipt dates.
- Records with invalid cleared or closed dates.
- Records with invalid product codes.
- Records missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

| Product Reporting: LNP | Standards: | |
|----------------------------|---|--|
| | <u>MR-11A</u> : | |
| | • If OP-17 result meets its standard, the MR-11A standard is Diagnostic. | |
| | • If OP-17 result does not meet its standard, the MR-11A standard is as follows: | |
| | For 0-20 trouble reports*: No more than 1 ticket cleared in > four business hours | |
| | For > 20 trouble reports*: The lesser of 95% or Parity with MR-3C results for Retail Residence and Business | |
| | <u>MR-11B</u> : | |
| | For 0-20 trouble reports**: No more than 1 ticket cleared > 48 hours | |
| | For > 20 trouble reports**: The lesser of 95% or Parity with MR-4C results for Retail Residence and Business | |
| | * Based on MR-11A denominator. | |
| | ** Based on MR-11B denominator. | |
| Availability: Available | Notes: | |
| | | |

Billing

BI-1 – Time to Provide Recorded Usage Records

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness with which Qwest provides recorded daily usage records to CLECs.

Description:

Measures the average time interval from date of recorded daily usage to date usage records are transmitted or made available to CLECs as applicable.

- BI-1A Measures recorded daily usage for UNEs and Resale and includes industry standard electronically transmitted usage records for feature group switched access,^{NOTE 1} local measured usage, local message usage, toll usage, and local exchange service components priced on a per-use basis, subject to exclusions specified below.
- BI-1B Measures the percent of recorded daily usage for Jointly provided switched access provided within four days. This includes usage created by the CLEC and Qwest or IXC providing access, usually via 2-way Feature Group X trunk groups for Feature Group A, Feature Group B, Feature Group D, Phone to Phone IP Telephony, 8XX access, and 900 access and their successors or similar Switched Access services.
- BI-1C Provides separate reporting for two elements captured in BI-1A above, as follows:
 - BI-1C-1 Measures recorded daily usage for UNEs and Resale and includes industry standard electronically transmitted usage records for feature group switched access, ^{NOTE1} subject to exclusions specified below.
 - BI-1C-2 Measures recorded daily usage for UNEs and Resale and includes industry standard electronically transmitted usage records for local measured usage, local message usage, toll usage, and local exchange service components priced on a per-use basis, subject to exclusions specified below.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: | |
|--|--|--|
| | BI-1A, BI-1C-1, BI-1C-2: Average Business Days | |
| | BI-1B: Percent | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, | Disaggregation Reporting: State level. | |
| individual CLECs, and Qwest Retail results | | |
| Formula: | | |
| BI-1A, BI-1C-1, BI-1C-2 (for specified products & records) = \sum (Date Record Transmitted or made | | |
| available – Date Usage Recorded) ÷ (Total number of records) | | |

BI-1B = [(# of daily usage records for Jointly provided switched access sent within four days) ÷ (Total daily usage records for Jointly provided switched access in the report period)] x 100

Exclusions:

Instances where the CLEC requests other than daily usage transmission or availability.
Duplicate records.

| Product Reporting: UNEs and Resale Jointly-provided Switched Access | Standards: BI-1A: Parity with Qwest retail. BI-1B: 95% within 4 business days BI-1C-1, BI-1C-2: Diagnostic Comparison with the Qwest Retail results used in standard for BI-1A |
|---|---|
| Availability: Available | Notes: 1. "Feature group switched access" includes all type 110XXX detail records for Feature Groups A, B, C, and D. |

BI-2 – Invoices Delivered within 10 Days

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness with which Qwest delivers industry standard electronically transmitted bills to CLECs, focusing on the percent delivered within ten calendar days.

Description:

Measures the percentage of invoices that are delivered within ten days, based on the number of days between the bill date and bill delivery.

• Includes all industry standard electronically transmitted invoices for local exchange services and toll, subject to exclusions specified below.

| ton, subject to exclusions specified below. | |
|---|---------------------------------------|
| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
| Reporting Comparisons: Combined Qwest Retail/CLEC results (Parity by design) | Disaggregation Reporting: State level |
| Formula: | |

[(Count of Invoices for which Bill Transmission Date to Bill Date is ten calendar days or less) ÷ (Total Number of Invoices)] x 100

- Bills transmitted via paper, magnetic tape, CD-ROM, diskette.
- Records with missing data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the PID.

| Product Reporting:UNEs and Resale | Standard: Parity by design. |
|--|--------------------------------|
| Availability: Available | Notes: |
BI-3 – Billing Accuracy – Adjustments for Errors

| Purpose: | | |
|---|--|--|
| Evaluates the accuracy with which Qwest bills CLECs, focusing on the percentage of billed revenue | | |
| adjusted due to errors. | adjusted due to errors. | |
| Description: | | |
| Measures the billed revenue minus amounts adjust | ed off bills due to errors, as a percentage of total | |
| billed revenue. | | |
| Both the billed revenue and amounts adjusted of | off bills due to error are calculated from bills | |
| rendered in the reporting period. | | |
| "Amounts adjusted off bills due to errors" is the | sum of all bill adjustments made in the reporting | |
| period that involve, either in part or in total, adju | stment codes related to billing errors. (Each | |
| adjustment thus qualifying is added to the sum | in its entirety.) | |
| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent | |
| | | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, | Disaggregation Reporting: State level. | |
| individual CLECs, and Qwest Retail results | | |
| Formula: | | |
| $\sum \sum (\text{Total Billed Revenue Billed in Reporting Period})$ | Amounts Adjusted Off Bills Due to Errors) + (Total | |
| Billed Revenue billed in Reporting Period)] x 100 | | |
| | | |
| Exclusions: | | |
| BI-3A - UNEs and Resale – None | | |
| BI-3B - Reciprocal Compensation Minutes of Use | Billing adjustments as a result of CLEC-caused | |
| errors in return of minutes of use | | |
| Dur dur dan dan dan | | |
| Product Reporting: | BLOA UNEs and Baseley Derity with Owest | |
| BI-3A - UNEs and Resale | BI-3A – UNES and Resale: Parity with Qwest | |
| BI-3B - Reciprocal Compensation Minutes of | PLOP Designeed Companyation (MOLI) | |
| Use (MOU) | • BI-3B – Reciprocal Compensation (MOU) – | |
| 90 /0 | | |
| Availability | | |
| Available | | |
| | | |
| |] | |

BI-4 – Billing Completeness

Purpose:

- UNEs and Resale Evaluates the completeness with which Qwest reflects non-recurring and recurring charges associated with completed service orders on the bills.
- Reciprocal Compensation Minutes of Use (MOU) Evaluates the completeness with which Qwest reflects the revenue for Local Minutes of Use associated with CLEC local traffic over Qwest's network on the bills.

Description:

BI-4A – UNEs and Resale: Measures the percentage of non-recurring and recurring charges associated with completed service orders appear on the correct bill.*

BI-4B – Reciprocal Compensation (MOU): Measures the percentage of revenue associated with local minutes of use appearing on the correct (current) bill.*

* Correct bill = next available bill

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLECs, and Qwest Retail results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. |
| | |

Formula:

BI-4A – UNEs and Resale = [∑(Count of service orders with non-recurring and recurring charges associated with completed service orders on the bills that are billed on the correct bill ÷ total count of service orders with non-recurring and recurring charges associated with completed service orders billed on the bill)] x 100

BI-4B – Reciprocal Compensation MOU = [∑(Revenue for Local Minutes of Use billed on the correct* bill ÷ Total revenue for Local Minutes of Use collected during the month)] x 100

Exclusions: None

| Product Reporting: UNEs and Resale Reciprocal Compensation (MOU) | Standards: BI-4A - UNEs and Resale: Parity with Qwest Retail bills. BI-4B - Reciprocal Compensation (MOU): 95% |
|--|--|
| Availability: Available | Notes: |

DB-1 – Time to Update Databases

Purpose:

Evaluates the time required for updates to the databases of E911, LIDB, and Directory Builder. **Description:**

- Measures the average time required to update the databases of E911, LIDB, and Directory Builder.
- Includes all database updates as specified under Disaggregation Reporting completed during the reporting period.
- For DB-1A the time to update the E911 database is provided by the third party vendor that performs the update. The elapsed time is captured automatically by the database system. There are no "individual E911 database update records" provided with which to measure the database update process.
- The numerator of DB-1A is calculated by multiplying the vendor-calculated results (Average Minutes in Process Time) by the denominator (Count of records Processed). This method produces a result from the vendor data that is the same as that which would be produced by totalling the update times from individual E911 database update records.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: |
|---|--|
| | E911 – Hrs: Mins. |
| | LIDB & Directory Listings – Seconds |
| Reporting Comparisons: | Disaggregation Reporting: |
| DB-1A - E911: Combined results for Qwest Retail | DB-1A: E911 for Qwest Retail and Reseller |
| and Reseller CLEC Aggregate; | CLEC-State level |
| DB-1B - LIDB: Combined results for all Qwest | DB-1B: LIDB for Qwest Retail, Reseller CLEC |
| Retail, Reseller CLEC and Facilities Based CLEC | and Facilities Based CLEC – Multi |
| updates; | state region-wide level |
| DB-1C-1 - Listings: Combined results for all | DB-1C-1: Listings for all Provider types including |
| Provider types including Qwest Retail, Reseller | Qwest Retail, Reseller CLEC, and |
| CLEC, and Facilities Based CLEC, ILEC and | Facilities Based CLEC, ILEC and |
| Unknown Provider, Electronically Submitted, | Unknown Provider, Electronically |
| Electronically Processed updates. NOTE 1 | Submitted, Electronically Processed- |
| | Sub-region applicable to state |
| | |

Formula:

 Σ [(Date and Time of database update for each database update as specified under Disaggregation Reporting in the reporting period) – (Date and Time of submissions of data for entry into the database for each database update as specified under Disaggregation Reporting in the reporting period)] ÷ Total database updates as specified under Disaggregation Reporting completed in the reporting period

Exclusion:

• Invalid start/stop dates/times.

DB-1 – Time to Update Databases (continued)

| Product Reporting: Not applicable (Reported by | y database type) | Standards: DB-1A-E911: Parity by design DB-1B-LIDB: Parity by design DB-1C-1 - Listings: Parity by design |
|---|--|---|
| Availability: Available | Notes: Because they cannot be separated, results for Qwest Retail, Reseller CLEC, Facilities-based CLECs, ILEC and Unknown Provider updates are reported combined within these disaggregations. | |

DB-2 – Accurate Database Updates

Purpose:

Evaluates the accuracy of database updates completed without errors in the reporting period.

Description:

- Measures the percentage of database updates completed without errors in the reporting period.
- Includes all database updates as specified under Disaggregation Reporting completed during the reporting period.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: | Disaggregation Reporting: |
| DB-2C-1 Listings – Combined results for all | DB-2C-1, Listings for Qwest Retail, Reseller |
| Qwest Retail, Reseller CLEC and Facilities- | CLEC, and Facilities-Based CLEC Electronically |
| Based CLEC Electronically Submitted, | Submitted, Electronically Processed updates: |
| Electronically Processed updates | Statewide |

Formula:

[Total database updates as specified under Disaggregation Reporting completed without errors in the reporting period + Total database updates as specified under Disaggregation Reporting completed in the reporting period] x 100

| Exclusions: Invalid start/stop dates/times. | |
|--|--------------------------------------|
| Product Reporting: | Standards: |
| Not applicable (Reported by database type) | DB-2C-1 – Listings: Parity by design |

| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
|---------------------------------------|---|
| Availability: | Notes: |
| Available | Qwest retail and Reseller CLECs are parity by design. Because Facilities-based CLEC Electronically Submitted, Electronically Processed cannot be separated out from Reseller CLECs they are reported combined within this disaggregation. |

Directory Assistance

DA-1 – Speed of Answer – Directory Assistance

Purpose:

Evaluates timeliness of customer access to Qwest's Directory Assistance operators, focusing on how long it takes for calls to be answered.

Description:

Measures the average time following first ring until a call is first picked up by the Qwest agent/system to answer Directory Assistance calls.

- Includes all calls to Qwest directory assistance during the reporting period.
- Because a system (electronic voice) prompts for city, state, and listing requested before the actual operator comes on the line, the first ring is defined as when the voice response unit places the call into queue.
- Measurements are taken by sampling calls from the network queue at 10-second intervals. A count of calls in the queue is taken for every sampling event (10-second snapshot), and this count is multiplied by 10 to get a measurement of waiting intervals.
- Using this method, calls that enter the queue after a sample is taken but exit before the next sample is taken are not counted, i.e., are effectively counted as a zero interval. However, this situation is offset by calls that enter just prior to a sampling time, but exit before the next sampling time, and which are counted as 10 seconds. The call intervals shorter than 10 seconds that are counted as 10 seconds are offset by those calls shorter than 10 seconds that are not counted.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Seconds |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: Results for Qwest and all CLECs are combined. | Disaggregation Reporting: Sub-region applicable to state |
| Formula: $\Sigma[(Date and Time of Call Answer) - (Date and Time$ | e of First Ring)] + (Total Calls Answered by Center) |

Exclusions: Abandoned Calls are not included in the total number of calls answered by the center.

| Product Reporting: None | Standard: Parity by design | |
|----------------------------|----------------------------|--|
| Availability: Available | Notes: | |

Operator Services

OS-1 – Speed of Answer – Operator Services

Purpose:

Evaluates timeliness of customer access to Qwest's operators, focusing on how long it takes for calls to be answered.

Description:

Measures the time following first ring until a call is answered by the Qwest agent.

- Includes all calls to Qwest's operator services during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Measurements are taken by sampling calls from the network queue at 10-second intervals. A count of calls in the queue is taken for every sampling event (10-second snapshot), and this count is multiplied by 10 to get a measurement of waiting intervals.
- Using this method, calls that enter the queue after a sample is taken but exit before the next sample is taken are not counted, i.e., are effectively counted as a zero interval. However, this situation is offset by calls that enter just prior to a sampling time, but exit before the next sampling time, and which are counted as 10 seconds. The call intervals shorter than 10 seconds that are counted as 10 seconds are offset by those calls shorter than 10 seconds that are not counted.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Seconds |
|---|---|
| Reporting Comparisons: Qwest and all CLECs are aggregated in a single measure. | Disaggregation Reporting: Sub-region applicable to state |
| Formula: | |

 Σ [(Date and Time of Call Answer) – (Date and Time of First Ring)] ÷ (Total Calls Answered by Center)

Exclusions: Abandoned Calls are not included in the total number of calls answered by the center.

| Product Reporting: None | Standard: Parity by design |
|----------------------------|----------------------------|
| Availability: Available | Notes: |

Network Performance

NI-1 – Trunk Blocking

Purpose:

Evaluates factors affecting completion of calls from Qwest end offices to CLEC end offices, compared with the completion of calls from Qwest end offices to other Qwest end offices, focusing on average busy-hour blocking percentages in interconnection or interoffice final trunks.

Description:

Measures the percentage of trunks blocking in interconnection and interoffice final trunks.

Includes blocking percentages on all direct final and alternate final interconnection and interoffice trunk groups that are in service during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
 Reporting Period: One month
 Unit of Measure: Percent Blockage

| Reporting Comparisons: | Disaggregation Rep | porting: Statewide level. |
|---|----------------------------|---|
| CLEC aggregate, | Reports the percent | tage of trunks blocking in interconnection final trunks, |
| individual CLEC, and | reported by: | |
| Qwest Interoffice trunk blocking results. | NI-1A Intercor related | nnection (LIS) trunks to Qwest tandem offices, with TGSR- exclusions applied as specified below; |
| | NI-1B LIS trur applied | nks to Qwest end offices, with TGSR-related exclusions |
| | NI-1C LIS trur exclusio | nks to Qwest tandem offices, without TGSR-related ons; |
| | NI-1D LIS trur exclusio | nks to other Qwest end offices, without TGSR-related ons. |

Formula:

 $\{\sum(Blockage in Final Trunk Group of Specified Type)x(Number of Circuits in Trunk Group)] + (Total Number of Final Trunk Circuits in all Final Trunk Groups)\} x 100$

Explanation: Actual average percentage of trunk blockage is calculated by dividing the equivalent average number of trunk circuits blocking by the total number of trunk circuits in final trunks of the type being measured.

Exclusions:

For NI-1A and NI-1B only:

- Trunk groups, blocking in excess of one percent in the reporting period, for which:
 - A Trunk Group Service Request (TGSR)^{NOTES 1 & 2} has been issued in the reporting period; or
 - CLECs do not submit, within 20 calendar days of receiving a TGSR:
 - a) Responsive ASRs (or have ASRs pending that are delayed for CLEC reasons NOTE 3);
 - b) Trouble Reports: or
 - c) Notification of traffic re-routing (as described in Note 1 below).
- For NI-1A, NI-1B, NI-1C, and NI-1D:
- Trunk groups, blocking in excess of one percent in the reporting period, for which Qwest can identify, in time to incorporate in the regular reporting of this measurement, the cause as being attributable to:
 - Trunk group out-of-service conditions arising from cable cuts, severe weather, or force majeure circumstances;
 - The CLEC placing trunks in a "busy" condition;
 - Lack of interconnection facilities to fulfill LIS requests for which the CLEC did not provide a timely
 forecast to Qwest. (This portion of the exclusion is limited to being applied in (a) the month the LIS
 requests could not be fulfilled, due to lack of facilities, and (b) each month thereafter up to the month
 following facility availability OR up to five months after the month the LIS requests could not be
 fulfilled, whichever is sooner NOTE 4); or
 - Isolated incidences of blocking, about which Qwest provides notification to the CLEC, that (a) are
 not recurring or persistent (affecting the same trunk groups), (b) do not warrant corrective action by
 CLEC or Qwest, and (c) thus, do not require an actionable TGSR.

NI-1 – Trunk Blocking (Continued)

| Trunk grou | ips recently activated that have not been in service for a full "20-high-day, busy hour" review | | | | |
|---|---|--|--|--|--|
| period. | | | | | |
| • Toll trunks, non-final trunks, and trunks that are not connected to the public switched network. | | | | | |
| One-way trunks originating at CLEC end offices. | | | | | |
| Qwest official services trunks, local interoffice operator and directory assistance trunks, and local | | | | | |
| interoffice 911/F911 trunks | | | | | |
| Records w | ith invalid product codes | | | | |
| Records w | nin invalid product objects. | | | | |
| Recolus II | sting data essential to the calculation of the measurement per the rip. | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| LIS Trunks | Where NI-TA \leq 1%: 1% | | | | |
| | where NI-TA > 1%: Parity with Qwest Interoffice Trunks to landems | | | | |
| | Where NI-1B \leq 1%: 1% | | | | |
| | Where NI-1B > 1%: Parity with Qwest Interoffice I runks to end offices | | | | |
| | NI-1C and NI-1D: Diagnostic Notes | | | | |
| Availability: | Notes: | | | | |
| Available | 1. Qwest uses TGSRs to notify CLECs when trunk blocking exceeds standard thresholds or is | | | | |
| | determined to be persistent. To respond properly to TGSRs, a CLEC must (a) submit | | | | |
| | within 20 days ASRs to provide necessary trunk augmentations to avoid further blocking, | | | | |
| | (b) notify Qwest within 20 days that it is initiating a Trouble Report where Qwest traffic | | | | |
| | routing problems are causing the blocking referenced by the TGSR, or (c) notify Qwest that | | | | |
| | the CLEC will undertake its own re-routing of traffic within 20 days to alleviate the blocking. | | | | |
| | 2. The TGSR-related exclusion is applied in the month in which the TGSR is issued and in | | | | |
| | the month in which the above-specified 20-day response period ends. Thus, any trunk | | | | |
| | group excluded in one month will not be excluded in the next month, unless there is (a) a | | | | |
| | 20-day period following a TGSR ends in that month. (b) there is another TGSR applicable | | | | |
| | to the next month for the same trunk group or (c) an exception documented, in lieu of | | | | |
| issuing a subsequent TGSR, where the CLEC's response to the previous TGSR indicated | | | | | |
| that, for its own reasons, it plans to take no action at any time to augment the trunk group. | | | | | |
| | 3. CLEC delays are reflected by CLEC-initiated order supplements that move the due date | | | | |
| | later. | | | | |
| | a) Qwest-initiated due date delays, including supplements made pursuant to Qwest | | | | |
| | requests to delay due dates, shall not be counted as CLEC delays in this | | | | |
| | measurement. | | | | |
| | b) Owest-initiated due date changes to earlier dates that the CLEC does not meet shall | | | | |
| | not be counted as a CL ÉC delay in this measurement unless the earlier dates were | | | | |
| | mutually agreed-upon | | | | |
| | c) CLEC delays (e.g., "customer not ready" in advance of a due date) that do not | | | | |
| | c) CLEC delays (e.g., customer not ready in advance of a due date) that do not contribute to a Owest-established due date being missed shall not be counted as a | | | | |
| | CI FC delay in this measurement. | | | | |
| | 4 The limitation on part (3) of this exclusion is intended to bound its applicability to a period | | | | |
| | of time that treats the unforecasted ASR as if it were in effect the first forecast for the | | | | |
| | facilities needed | | | | |
| | a) Civen that forecast advance intervals are surrantly six menths, this provision allows the | | | | |
| | a) Given that forecast advance intervals are currently six months, this provision allows the | | | | |
| | b) Nevertheless, this limitation to the evolution also reasonizes that facilities may become | | | | |
| | b) Nevertheless, this initiation to the exclusion also recognizes that factures may become | | | | |
| | available sooner and, it so, reduces the infinitation accordingly. In that context, this | | | | |
| | minimation recognizes that, absent a OLEO forecast, Gwest still retains a responsibility to | | | | |
| | provide facilities for the ASH, although in a longer timetrame than for ASHS covered by | | | | |
| | Torecasts. INI-TO and INI-TO will be reported for information purposes only, with no | | | | |
| | standard to be applied. | | | | |
| | c) I his limitation may change depending on the outcome of separate workshops dealing | | | | |
| | with issues of interconnection forecasting. | | | | |
| | 5. NI-1C and NI-1D will be reported for information purposes only, with no standard to be | | | | |
| | applied. | | | | |

NP-1 – NXX Code Activation

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness of Qwest's NXX code activation prior to the LERG effective date or by the "revised" effective date, as set forth herein.

Description:

- NP-1A: Measures the percentage of NXX codes activated in the reporting period that are actually loaded and tested prior to the LERG effective date or the "revised" date, subject to exclusions shown below.
- NP-1B: Measures the percentage of NXX codes activated in the reporting period that are delayed beyond the LERG date or "revised" date due to Qwest-caused Interconnection facility delays, subject to exclusions shown below. Included among activations counted as a Qwest delay in this sub-measurement are cases in which "2-6 codes" ^{NOTE 1} associated with the Qwest interconnection facilities are provided late by Qwest to the CLEC.
- Qwest must receive complete and accurate routing information required for code activation, which includes but is not limited to "2-6 codes" for all interconnection trunk groups associated with the activation no less than 25 days prior to the LERG Due Date or Revised Due Date.
- The "revised" date, for purposes of this measurement, is a CLEC-initiated renegotiation of the activation effective date that is no less than 25 days after Qwest receives complete and accurate routing information required for code activation, which includes but is not limited to "2-6 codes" for all interconnection trunk groups associated with the activation.
- The NXX code activation notice is provided by the LERG (Local Exchange Routing Guide) to Qwest.
- NXX code activation is defined as complete when all translations associated with the new NXX are complete by 11:59 p.m. of the day prior to the date identified in the LERG or the "revised" date (if different than the LERG date).
- The NXX code activation completion process includes testing, including calls to the test number when provided.

| when provided. | | | |
|--|---|--|--|
| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent | | |
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate, individual CLEC and Qwest Retail results. | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide. | | |
| Formula: | | | |
| NP-1A = [(Number of NXX codes loaded and tested date or the "revised" date) ÷ (Number of N period)] x 100 | in the reporting period prior to the LERG effective XX codes loaded and tested in the reporting | | |
| NP-1B = [(Number of NXX codes loaded and tested in the reporting period that were delayed past the LERG effective date or "revised" date affected by Qwest Interconnection Facility Delays) ÷ (Number of NXX codes loaded and tested in the reporting period, including NXX codes loaded and tested in the reporting period, including NXX codes loaded and tested in the reporting period that were delayed past the LERG effective date or the "revised" date due to Interconnection Facility Delays)] x 100 | | | |
| Exclusions: NP-1A: | | | |
| NXX code activations completed after the LERG date or "revised" date due to delays in the installation of Qwest provided interconnection facilities associated with the activations. | | | |
| NP-1A and NP-1B: NXX codes with LERG dates or "revised industry standard (currently 45 calendar dates) | " dates resulting in loading intervals shorter than ys). | | |
| NIXY and an whore OWEST reasined com | plote and accurate routing information required for | | |

NXX codes where QWEST received complete and accurate routing information required for code activations less than 25 days prior to the LERG due date or Revised due date.

NP-1 – NXX Code Activation (continued)

| Product Reporting: None | Standards: |
|-------------------------|---|
| | NP-1A: Parity |
| | NP-1B: Diagnostic |
| Availability: | Notes: |
| Available | "2-6 codes" are industry-standard designators for local interconnection trunk groups, consisting of 2 alpha letters and six numeric digits. Only Qwest-provided interconnection facilities are noted in this exclusion, because delays related to facilities provided by CLECs or others are accounted for by revising the due date. |

CP-1 – Collocation Completion Interval

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness of Qwest's installation of collocation arrangements for CLECs, focusing on the average time to complete such arrangements.

Description:

Measures the interval between the Collocation Application Date and Qwest's completion of the collocation installation.

- Includes all collocations of types specified herein that are assigned a <u>Ready for Service (RFS) date</u> by Qwest and completed during the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Collocation types included are: physical cageless, physical caged, shared physical caged, physicalline sharing, cageless-line sharing, and virtual.
- The Collocation Application Date is the date Qwest receives from the CLEC a complete and valid application for collocation. In cases where the CLEC's collocation application is received by Qwest on a weekend or holiday, the Collocation Application Date is the next <u>business day</u> following the weekend or holiday.
- Major Infrastructure Modifications include conditioning the collocation space, obtaining permits, and installing DC power plant, standby generators, heating, venting or air conditioning equipment.
- Completion of the collocation installation is the date on which the requested collocation arrangement is "<u>Ready For Service</u>" as defined in the Definition of Terms section herein.
- <u>Establishment of RFS Dates</u>: RFS dates are established according to intervals specified in interconnection agreements. Where an interconnection agreement does not specify intervals, or where the CLEC requests, RFS dates are established as follows:
 - Collocation Applications with Timely Quote Acceptance and, for Virtual Collocations, also with Timely Equipment Ready for collocation applications where the CLEC accepts the quote in seven or fewer calendar days after the quote date and, for virtual collocations, where the CLEC provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest 53 calendar days or less after the Collocation Application Date, the RFS date shall be:
 - Forecasted Collocations: 90 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date for collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - <u>Unforecasted Collocations</u>: 120 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date for collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - Collocation Applications with Late Quote Acceptance and, for Virtual Collocations, also with Timely Equipment Ready for collocation applications where the CLEC accepts the quote in eight or more calendar days after the quote date and, for virtual collocations, where the CLEC provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest 53 calendar days or less after the Collocation Application Date, the RFS date shall be:
 - Forecasted Collocations: 90 calendar days after the quote acceptance date for collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - <u>Unforecasted Collocations</u>: 120 calendar days after the quote acceptance date for collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - Virtual Collocation Applications with Timely Quote Acceptance and Late Equipment Ready – for virtual collocation applications where the CLEC (1) accepts the quote in seven or fewer calendar days after the quote date and (2) provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest more than 53 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date, the RFS date shall be:
 - Forecasted Collocations: 45 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - Unforecasted Collocations: 75 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for

CP-1 – Collocation Completion Interval (continued)

collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.

- Virtual Collocation Applications with Late Quote Acceptance and Late Equipment Ready for virtual collocation applications where the CLEC (1) accepts the quote in eight or more calendar days after the quote date and (2) provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest more than 53 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date, the RFS date shall be:
 - Forecasted Collocations: 45 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - <u>Unforecasted Collocations</u>: 75 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
- <u>All Collocations (physical, virtual, forecasted, or unforecasted) requiring Major</u> <u>Infrastructure Modifications</u>: the later of (1) up to 150 calendar days (as specified in the quote) after the Collocation Application Date, or (2) for virtual collocations, 45 days following the date equipment to be collocated is provided to Qwest for collocations in which Major Infrastructure Modifications are required. Qwest will provide to the CLEC, as part of the quotation, the need for, and the duration of, such extended intervals.
- When a CLEC submits six (6) or more Collocation applications in a one-week period in any state, completion intervals will be individually negotiated. These collocation arrangements will be included in CP-1A, -1B, or -1C according to the interval criteria specified below for these measurements.
 - Where there is a CLEC-caused delay, the RFS Date is rescheduled
- RFS dates may be extended beyond the above intervals for CLEC reasons, or for reasons beyond Qwest's control, but not for Qwest reasons.
- Where CLECs do not accept the quote within thirty days of the quote date, the application is considered expired.
- **CP-1A** Measures collocation installations for which the scheduled interval from Collocation Application Date to RFS date is 90 calendar days or less.
- **CP-1B** Measures collocation installations for which the scheduled interval from Collocation Application Date to RFS date is 91 to 120 calendar days.
- **CP-1C** Measures collocation installations for which the scheduled interval from Collocation Application Date to RFS date is 121 to 150 calendar days.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Calendar Days | |
|--|--------------------------------------|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and individual CLEC results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide. | |
| Formula: (for CP-1A, CP-1B and CP-1C) Σ[(Collocation Completion Date) – (Complete Application Date)] ÷ (Total Number of Collocations Completed in Reporting Period) | | |

CP-1 – Collocation Completion Interval (continued)

Exclusions:

- CP-1A: CLEC collocation applications with RFS dates yielding scheduled intervals longer than 90 calendar days from Collocation Application Date to RFS date.
- CP-1B: CLEC collocation applications with RFS dates yielding scheduled intervals shorter than 91 calendar days or longer than 120 calendar days from Collocation Application Date to RFS date.
- CP-1C: CLEC collocation applications with RFS dates yielding scheduled intervals shorter than 121 calendar days or longer than 150 calendar days from Collocation Application Date to RFS date.

| | • | Cancelled | or | expired | ap | plications. |
|--|---|-----------|----|---------|----|-------------|
|--|---|-----------|----|---------|----|-------------|

| Product Reporting: None | Standards: | |
|-------------------------|---|-------------------|
| | CP-1A: 90 calendar days | |
| | CP-1B: 120 calendar days | |
| | CP-1C: 150 calendar days | |
| Availability: | Notes: | |
| Available | 1. Collocations covered by this measurement are central office related. As additional types of central office collocation are defined and offered, the will be included in this measurement. Non-central office-based types of collocation (such as remote collocation and field connection points) will considered for either inclusion in this measurement, or in new, separate measurements, after the terms, conditions, and processes for such collocation types become finalized, accepted, mature (i.e., six months o experience from first installations), and ordered in volumes warranting reporting (i.e., consistently more than two per month in any state). | s y be y |

CP-2 – Collocations Completed within Scheduled Intervals

Purpose:

Evaluates the extent to which Qwest completes collocation arrangements for CLECs within the standard intervals or intervals established in interconnection agreements.

Description:

Measures the percentage of collocation applications that are completed within standard intervals, including intervals set forth in interconnection agreements.

- Includes all collocations of types specified herein that are assigned a <u>Ready for Service Date RFS date</u> by Qwest and that are completed within the reporting period, including those with CLEC-requested RFS dates longer than the standard interval and those with extended RFS dates negotiated with the CLEC (including supplemented collocation orders that extend the RFS date) subject to exclusions specified below.
 Collocation types included are: physical cageless, physical caged, shared physical caged, physical-line sharing, cageless-line sharing, and virtual.
- The Collocation Application Date is the date Qwest receives from the CLEC a complete and valid application for collocation. In cases where the CLEC's collocation application is received by Qwest on a weekend or holiday, the Collocation Application Date is the next <u>business day</u> following the weekend or holiday.
- Major Infrastructure Modifications are defined as conditioning the collocation space, obtaining permits, and installing DC power plant, standby generators, heating, venting or air conditioning equipment.
- A collocation arrangement is counted as met under this measurement if its RFS date is met.
- <u>Establishment of RFS Dates</u>: RFS dates are established as follows, except where interconnection agreements require different intervals, in which case the intervals specified in the interconnection agreements apply:
 - Collocation Applications with Timely Quote Acceptance and, for Virtual Collocations, also with Timely Equipment Ready for collocation applications where the CLEC accepts the quote in seven or fewer calendar days after the quote date and, for virtual collocations, where the CLEC provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest 53 calendar days or less after the Collocation Application Date, the RFS date shall be:
 - Forecasted Collocations: 90 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date for physical collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - <u>Unforecasted Collocations</u>: 120 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date for physical collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - Collocation Applications with Late Quote Acceptance and, for Virtual Collocations, also with Timely Equipment Ready – for collocation applications where the CLEC accepts the quote in eight or more calendar days after the quote date and, for virtual collocations, where the CLEC provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest 53 calendar days or less after the Collocation Application Date, the RFS date shall be:
 - Forecasted Collocations: 90 calendar days after the quote acceptance date for collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - <u>Unforecasted Collocations</u>: 120 calendar days after the quote acceptance date for collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - Virtual Collocation Applications with Timely Quote Acceptance and Late Equipment Ready for virtual collocation applications where the CLEC (1) accepts the quote in seven or fewer calendar days after the quote date and (2) provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest more than 53 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date, the RFS date shall be:
 - Forecasted Collocations: 45 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - <u>Unforecasted Collocations</u>: 75 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
 - Virtual Collocation Applications with Late Quote Acceptance and Late Equipment Ready for

CP-2 – Collocations Completed within Scheduled Intervals (continued)

virtual collocation applications where the CLEC (1) accepts the quote in eight or more calendar days after the quote date and (2) provides the equipment to be collocated to Qwest more than 53 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date, the RFS date shall be:

- Forecasted Collocations: 45 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for collocations for which the CLEC provides a complete forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
- <u>Unforecasted Collocations</u>: 75 calendar days after the equipment is provided to Qwest, for collocations for which the CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
- <u>All Collocations (physical, virtual, forecasted, or unforecasted) requiring Major Infrastructure</u> <u>Modifications</u>: the later of (1) up to 150 calendar days (as specified in the quote) after the Collocation Application Date, or (2) for virtual collocations, 45 calendar days following the date equipment to be collocated is provided to Qwest for collocations in which Major Infrastructure Modifications are required. Qwest will provide to the CLEC, as part of the quotation, the need for, and the duration of, such extended intervals.
- When a CLEC submits six (6) or more Collocation applications in a one-week period in any state, completion intervals will be individually negotiated. These collocation arrangements will be included in CP-2A, -2B, or -2C according to the criteria specified below for these measurements.
- Where there is a CLEC-caused delay, the RFS Date is rescheduled.
- Where CLECs do not accept the quote within thirty calendar days of the quote date, the application is considered expired.
- **CP-2A Forecasted Collocations**: Measures collocation installations for which CLEC provides a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
- **CP-2B** Non-Forecasted and Late Forecasted Collocations: Measures collocation installations for which CLEC does not provide a forecast to Qwest 60 or more calendar days in advance of the Collocation Application Date.
- CP-2C All Collocations requiring Major Infrastructure Modifications and Collocations with intervals longer than 120 days: Measures all collocation installations requiring Major Infrastructure Modifications and collocations for which the RFS date is more than 120 calendar days after the Collocation Application Date.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and individual CLEC results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. |
| Formula: (for CP-2A, CP-2B and CP-2C) | |
| [(Count of Collocations for which the RFS is met) ÷ (T Period)] x 100 | otal Number of Collocations Completed in the Reporting |
| Exclusions: RFS dates missed for reasons beyond Qwest's c Cancelled or expired requests. | ontrol. |
| Product Reporting: None | Standards: |
| | CP-2A & -2B: 90% |
| | CP-2C: 90% |

CP-2 – Collocations Completed within Scheduled Intervals (continued)

| Availability: | Notes: |
|---------------|---|
| Available | Collocations covered by this measurement are central office related. As additional types of central office collocation are defined and offered, they will be included in this measurement. Non-central office-based types of collocation (such as remote collocation and field connection points) will be considered for either inclusion in this measurement, or in new, separate measurements, after the terms, conditions, and processes for such collocation types become finalized, accepted, mature (i.e., six months of experience from first installations), and ordered in volumes warranting reporting (i.e., consistently more than two per month in any state). |

CP-3 – Collocation Feasibility Study Interval

Purpose:

Evaluates the timeliness of the Qwest sub-process function of providing a collocation feasibility study to the CLEC.

Description:

Measures average interval to respond to collocation studies for feasibility of installation.

- Includes feasibility studies, for collocations of types specified herein that are completed in the reporting period, subject to exclusions specified below. Collocation types included are: physical cageless, physical caged, shared physical caged, physical-line sharing, cageless-line sharing, and virtual.
- Interval begins with the Collocation Application Date and ends with the date Qwest completes the Feasibility Study and provides it to the CLEC.
- The Collocation Application Date is the date Qwest receives from the CLEC a complete application for collocation. In cases where the CLEC's application for collocation is received by Qwest on a weekend or holiday, the Collocation Application Date is the next <u>business day</u> following the weekend or holiday.

| Reporting Period: One month | | Unit of Measure: Calendar Days | | |
|--|--|--|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and individual CLEC results | | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. | | |
| Formula: Σ [(Date Feasibility Study provided to CLEC) – (Date Study)] ÷ (Total Feasibility Studies Completed in the | | e Qwest receiv e Reporting Pe | es CLEC request for Feasibility priod) | |
| Exclusions: CLEC-caused delays of, than ten calendar days f date. | , or CLEC requests for rom Collocation Applic | feasibility stud ation Date to s | y completions resulting in greater cheduled feasibility study completion | |
| Product Reporting: None | . * | Standard: | 10 calendar days or less | |
| Availability: | Notes: | ered by this me | asurement are central office related | |

| Available | Collocations covered by this measurement are central office related. As additional types of central office collocation are defined and offered, they will be included in this measurement. Non-central office-based types of collocation (such as remote collocation and field connection points) will be considered for either inclusion in this measurement, or in new, separate measurements, after the terms, conditions, and processes for such collocation types become finalized, accepted, mature (i.e., six months of experience from first installations), and ordered in volumes warranting reporting (i.e., consistently more than two per month in any state) |
|-----------|--|
| | consistently more than two per month in any state). |

CP-4 – Collocation Feasibility Study Commitments Met

Purpose:

Evaluates the degree that Qwest completes the sub-process function of providing a collocation feasibility study to the CLEC as committed.

Description:

Measures the percentage of collocation feasibility studies for installations that are completed within the Scheduled Interval

- The Scheduled Interval is ten calendar days from the Collocation Application Date or, if interconnection agreements call for different intervals, within intervals specified in the agreements, or if otherwise delayed by the CLEC, the interval resulting from the delay.
- Includes all feasibility studies for collocations of types specified herein, that are completed in the reporting period. Collocation types included are: physical cageless, physical caged, shared physical caged, physical-line sharing, cageless-line sharing, and virtual.
- Considers the interval from the Collocation Application Date to the date Qwest completes the Feasibility Study and provides it to the CLEC.
- The Collocation Application Date is the date Qwest receives from the CLEC a complete application for collocation. In cases where the CLEC's application for collocation is received by Qwest on a weekend or holiday, the Collocation Application Date is the next <u>business day</u> following the weekend or holiday.
- Subject to superceding terms in the CLEC's interconnection agreement, when a CLEC submits six

 (6) or more Collocation applications in a one-week period in any state, feasibility study intervals
 will be individually negotiated and the resulting intervals used instead of ten calendar days in this
 measurement.

| Reporting Period: One month | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|--|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC aggregate and individual CLEC results | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide level. |

Formula:

[(Total Applicable Collocation Feasibility studies completed within Scheduled Intervals) ÷ (Total applicable Collocation Feasibility studies completed in the reporting period)] x 100

Exclusions: None

| Product Reporting: None | | Standard: | 90 percent or more |
|-------------------------|---|--|---|
| | | | P |
| Availability: | Notes: | | |
| Available | 1. Collocation related. A defined an Non-centr collocation either incl measurer such colloc six month volumes v per month | ns covered by this as additional types and offered, they w ral office-based ty n and field connec- usion in this meas nents, after the te boation types becco s of experience fr warranting reporting in any state). | s measurement are central office s of central office collocation are ill be included in this measurement. pes of collocation (such as remote ction points) will be considered for surement, or in new, separate rms, conditions, and processes for ome finalized, accepted, mature (i.e., om first installations), and ordered in ng (i.e., consistently more than two |

DEFINITION OF TERMS

Application Date (and Time) – The date (and time) on which Qwest receives from the CLEC a complete and accurate local service request (LSR) or access service request (ASR) or retail order, subject to the following:

- For the following types of requests/orders, the application date (and time) is the start of the next business day:
 - (1) LSRs and ASRs received after 3:00PM MT for Designed Services and Local Number Portability (except non-designed, flow-through LNP).
 - (2) Retail orders received after 3:00 PM local time for Designed Services.
 - (3) LSRs received after 7:00PM MT for POTS Resale (Residence and Business), Non-Design Resale Centrex, non-designed UNE-P, Unbundled Loops, and non-designed, flow-through LNP.
 - (4) Retail orders for comparable non-designed services cannot be received after closing time, so the cutoff time is essentially the business office closing time.
- For all types of orders that are received from Friday at 7:00 PM MT through Sunday, or on holidays, and do not flow through, the application date (and time) is the next, non-weekend business day.

Automatic Location Information (ALI) – The feature of E911 that displays at the Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) the street address of the calling telephone number. This feature requires a data storage and retrieval system for translating telephone numbers to the associated address. ALI may include Emergency Service Number (ESN), street address, room or floor, and names of the enforcement, fire and medical agencies with jurisdictional responsibility for the address. The Management System (E911) database is used to update the Automatic E911 Location Information databases.

Bill Date – The date shown at the top of the bill, representing the date on which Qwest begins to close the bill.

Blocking – Condition on a telecommunications network where, due to a maintenance problem or an traffic volumes exceeding trunking capacity in a part of the network, some or all originating or terminating calls cannot reach their final destinations. Depending on the condition and the part of the network affected, the network may make subsequent attempts to complete the call or the call may be completely blocked. If the call is completely blocked, the calling party will have to re-initiate the call attempt.

Business Day – Workdays that Qwest is normally open for business. Business Day = Monday through Friday, excluding weekends and Qwest published Holidays including New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas. Individual measurement definitions may modify (typically expanding) this definition as described in the Notes section of the measurement definition.

Cleared Trouble Report – A trouble report for which the trouble has been cleared, meaning the customer is "back in service".

Closed Trouble Report – A trouble report that has been closed out from a maintenance center perspective, meaning the ticket is closed in the trouble reporting system following repair of the trouble.

Code Activation (Opening) – Process by which new NPA/NXXs (area code/prefix) is defined, through software translations to network databases and switches, in telephone networks. Code activation (openings) allow for new groups of telephone numbers (usually in blocks of 10,000) to be made available for assignment to an ILEC's or CLEC's customers, and for calls to those numbers to be passed between carriers.

Common Channel Signaling System 7 (CCSS7) – A network architecture used to for the exchange of signaling information between telecommunications nodes and networks on an out-of-band basis. Information exchanged provides for call set-up and supports services and features such as CLASS and database query and response.

Common Transport – Trunk groups between tandem and end office switches that are shared by more than one carrier, often including the traffic of both the ILEC and several CLECs.

Qwest South Dakota SGAT Fourth Revision, ThirdFourth Amended Exhibit B May 5June 24, 2004Page 101

Completion – The time in the order process when the service has been provisioned and service is available.

Completion Notice – A notification the ILEC provides to the CLEC to inform the CLEC that the requested service order activity is complete.

Coordinated Customer Conversion -- Orders that have a due date negotiated between the ILEC, the CLEC, and the customer so that work activities can be performed on a coordinated basis under the direction of the receiving carrier.

Customer Requested Due Date – A specific due date requested by the customer which is either shorter or longer than the standard interval or the interval offered by the ILEC.

Customer Trouble Reports – A report that the carrier providing the underlying service opens when notified that a customer has a problem with their service. Once resolved, the disposition of the trouble is changed to closed.

Dedicated Transport – A network facility reserved to the exclusive use of a single customer, carrier or pair of carriers used to exchange switched or special, local exchange, or exchange access traffic.

Delayed Order – An order which has been completed after the scheduled due date and/or time.

Directory Assistance Database – A database that contains subscriber records used to provide live or automated operator-assisted directory assistance. Including 411, 555-1212, NPA-555-1212.

Directory Listings – Subscriber information used for DA and/or telephone directory publishing, including name and telephone number, and optionally, the customer's address.

DS-0 – Digital Service Level 0. Service provided at a digital signal speed commonly at 64 kbps, but occasionally at 56 kbps.

DS-1 – Digital Service Level 1. Service provided at a digital signal speed of 1.544 Mbps.

DS-3 – Digital Service Level 3. Service provided at a digital signal speed of 44.736 Mbps.

Due Date – The date provided on the Firm Order Confirmation (FOC) the ILEC sends the CLEC identifying the planned completion date for the order.

End Office Switch – A switch from which an end users' exchange services are directly connected and offered.

Final Trunk Groups – Interconnection and interoffice trunk groups that do not overflow traffic to other trunk groups when busy.

Firm Order Confirmation (FOC) – Notice the ILEC sends to the CLEC to notify the CLEC that it has received the CLECs service request, created a service order, and assigned it a due date.

Flow-Through –The term used to describe whether a LSR electronically is passed from the OSS interface system to the ILEC legacy system to automatically create a service order. LSRs that do not flow through require manual intervention for the service order to be created in the ILEC legacy system.

Interval Zone 1/Zone 2 – Interval Zone 1 areas are wire centers for which Qwest specifies shorter standard service intervals than for Interval Zone 2 areas.

Installation – The activity performed to activate a service.

Installation Troubles – A trouble, which is identified after service order activity and installation, has completed on a customer's line. It is likely attributable to the service activity (within a defined time period).

Interconnection Trunks – A network facility that is used to interconnect two switches generally of different local exchange carriers

Inward Activity – Refers to all orders for new or additional lines/circuits. For change order types, additional lines/circuits consist of all C orders with "I" and "T" action coded line/circuit USOCs that represent new or additional lines/circuits, including conversions from retail to CLEC and CLEC to CLEC.

Jeopardy – A condition experienced in the service provisioning process which results potentially in the inability of a carrier to meet the committed due date on a service order

Jeopardy Notice – The actual notice that the ILEC sends to the CLEC when a jeopardy has been identified.

Lack of Facilities – A shortage of cable facilities identified after a due date has been committed to a customer, including the CLEC. The facilities shortage may be identified during the inventory assignment process or during the service installation process, and typically triggers a jeopardy.

Local Exchange Routing Guide (LERG) – A Bellcore master file that is used by the telecom industry to identify NPA-NXX routing and homing information, as well as network element and equipment designations. The file also includes scheduled network changes associated with activity within the North American Numbering Plan (NANP).

Local Exchange Traffic – Traffic originated on the network of a LEC in a local calling area that terminates to another LEC in a local calling area.

Local Number Portability (formerly defined under Permanent Number Portability and also known as – Long Term Number Portability) – A network technology which allows end user customers to retain their telephone number when moving their service between local service providers. This technology does not employ remote call forwarding, but actually allows the customer's telephone number to be moved and redefined in the network of the new service provider. The activity to move the telephone number is called "porting."

Local Service Request (LSR) – Transaction sent from the CLEC to the ILEC to order services or to request a change(s) be made to existing services.

MSA/Non-MSA – Metropolitan Statistical Area is a government defined geographic area with a population of 50,000 or greater. Non-Metropolitan Statistical Area is a government defined geographic area with population of less than 50,000. Qwest depicts MSA Non-MSA based on NPA NXX. Where a wire center is predominantly within an MSA, all lines are counted within the MSA.

Mechanized Bill – A bill that is delivered via electronic transmission.

NXX, NXX Code or Central Office Code – The three digit switch entity indicator that is defined by the "D", "E", and "F" digits of a 10-digit telephone number within the NANP. Each NXX Code contains 10,000 station numbers.

Plain Old Telephone Service (POTS) – Refers to basic 2-wire, non-complex analog residential and business services. Can include feature capabilities (e.g., CLASS features).

Projects – Service requests that exceed the line size and/or level of complexity which would allow for the use of standard ordering and provisioning processes. Generally, due dates for projects are negotiated, coordination of service installations/changes is required and automated provisioning may not be practical.

Query Types – Pre-ordering information that is available to a CLEC that is categorized according to standards issued by OBF and/or the FCC.

Ready For Service (RFS) – The status achieved in the installation of a collocation arrangement when all "operational" work has been completed. Operational work consists of the following as applicable to the particular type of collocation:

- Cage enclosure complete;
- DC power is active (including fuses available, BDFB [Battery Distribution Fuse Board] in place, and cables between the CLEC and power terminated);
- Primary AC outlet in place;
- Cable racking and circuit terminations are complete (e.g. fiber jumpers placed between the Outside Plant Fiber Distribution Panel and the Central Office Fiber Distribution Panel serving the CLEC). and
- The following items complete, subject to the CLEC having made required payments to Qwest (e.g., final payment): (If the required CLEC payments have not been made, the following items are not required for RFS):
 - Key turnover made available to CLEC.
 - APOT/CFA complete, as defined/required in the CLEC's interconnection agreement and
 - Basic telephone service and other services and facilities complete, if ordered by CLEC in time to be provided on the scheduled RFS date (per Qwest's published standard installation intervals for such telephone service).

Ready for Service Date (RFS date) – The due date assigned to a collocation order (typically determined by regulatory rulings, contract terms, or negotiations with CLEC) to indicate when collocation installation is scheduled to be ready for service, as defined above.

Reject – A status that can occur to a CLEC submitted local service request (LSR) when it does not meet certain criteria. There are two types of rejects: (1) syntax, which occur if required fields are not included in the LSR; and (2) content, which occur if invalid data is provided in a field. A rejected service request must be corrected and re-submitted before provisioning can begin.

DEFINITION OF TERMS (continued)

Repeat Report – Any trouble report that is a second (or greater) report on the same telephone number/circuit ID and at the same premises address within 30 days. The original report can be any category, including excluded reports, and can carry any disposition code.

Service Group Type – The designation used to identify a category of similar services, .e.g., UNE loops.

Service Order – The work order created and distributed in ILECs systems and to ILEC work groups in response to a complete, valid local service request.

Service Order Type – The designation used to identify the major types of provisioning activities associated with a local service request.

Standard Interval – The interval that the ILEC publishes as a guideline for establishing due dates for provisioning a service request. Typically, due dates will not be assigned with intervals shorter than the standard. These intervals are specified by service type and type of service modification requested. ILECs publish these standard intervals in documents used by their own service representatives as well as ordering instructions provided to CLECs in the Qwest Standard Interval Guidelines.

Subsequent Reports – A trouble report that is taken in relation to a previously-reported trouble prior to the date and time the initial report has a status of "closed."

Tandem Switch – Switch used to connect and switch trunk circuits between and among Central Office switches.

Time to Restore – The time interval from the receipt, by the ILEC, of a trouble report on a customer's service to the time service is fully restored to the customer.

Unbundled Network Element – Platform (UNE-P) – Combinations of network elements, including both new and conversions, involving POTS (i.e., basic services providing dial tone).

Unbundled Loop - The Unbundled Loop is a transmission path between a Qwest Central Office Distribution Frame, or equivalent, and the Loop Demarcation Point at an end user premises. Loop Demarcation Point is defined as the point where Qwest owned or controlled facilities cease, and CLEC, end user, owner or landlord ownership of facilities begins.

Usage Data – Data generated in network nodes to identify switched call data on a detailed or summarized basis. Usage data is used to create customer invoices for the calls.

GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS

| ACRONYM | DESCRIPTION | |
|---------|--|--|
| ACD | Automatic Call Distributor | |
| ADSL | Asymmetric Digital Subscriber Line | |
| ALI | Automatic Line Information (for 911/E911 systems) | |
| ASR | Service Request (processed via Exact system) | |
| BRI | Basic Rate Interface (type of ISDN service) | |
| CABS | Carrier Access Billing System | |
| CKT | Circuit | |
| CLEC | Competitive Local Exchange Carrier | |
| CO | Central Office | |
| CPE | Customer Premises Equipment | |
| CRIS | Customer Record Information System | |
| CSR | Customer Service Record | |
| DA | Directory Assistance | |
| DB | Decibel | |
| DB | Database | |
| DS0 | Digital Service 0 | |
| DS1 | Digital Service 1 | |
| DS3 | Digital Service 3 | |
| E911 MS | E911 Management System | |
| EAS | Extended Area Service | |
| EB-TA | Electronic Bonding – Trouble Administration | |
| EDI | Electronic Data Interchange | |
| EELS | Enhanced Extended Loops | |
| ES | Emergency Services (for 911/E911) | |
| FOC | Firm Order Confirmation | |
| GUI | Graphical User Interface | |
| HDSL | High-Bit-Rate Digital Subscriber Line | |
| HICAP | High Capacity Digital Service | |
| IEC | Interexchange Carrier | |
| ILEC | Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier | |
| INP | Interim Number Portability | |
| IOF | Interoffice Facilities (refers to trunk facilities located between | |
| | Qwest central offices) | |
| ISDN | Integrated Services Digital Network | |
| IMA | Interconnect Mediated Access | |
| LATA | Local Access Transport Area | |
| LERG | Local Exchange Routing Guide | |
| LIDB | Line Identification Database | |
| LIS | Local Interconnection Service Trunks | |
| LNP | Long Term Number Portability | |
| LSR | Local Service Request | |
| N, T, C | Service Order Types N (new), T (to or transfer), C | |
| | (change) | |
| NANP | North American Numbering Plan | |
| NDM | Network Data Mover | |
| NPAC | Number Portability Administration Center | |
| NXX | Telephone number prefix | |
| OBF | Ordering and Billing Forum | |

Qwest South Dakota SGAT Fourth Revision, <u>ThirdFourth</u> Amended Exhibit B <u>May 5June 24</u>, 2004 Page 105

GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS (continued)

| ACRONYM | DESCRIPTION | | |
|---------|---|--|--|
| OOS | Out of service (type of trouble condition) | | |
| OSS | Operations Support Systems | | |
| PBX | Private Branch Exchange | | |
| PON | Purchase Order Number | | |
| POTS | Plain Old Telephone Service | | |
| PRI | Primary Rate Interface (type of ISDN service) | | |
| RFS | Ready for Service (refers to collocation installations) | | |
| SIA | SAAFE (Strategic Application Architecture Framework and | | |
| | Environment) Information Access | | |
| SOP | Service Order Processor | | |
| SOT | Service Order Type | | |
| SS7 | Signaling System 7 | | |
| STP | Signaling Transfer Point | | |
| TN | Telephone Number | | |
| UDIT | Unbundled Dedicated Interoffice Transport | | |
| UNE | Unbundled Network Element | | |
| UNE-P | Unbundled Network Element Platform | | |
| VRU | Voice Response Unit | | |
| WFA | Work Force Administration | | |
| XDSL | (x) Digital Subscriber Line. (The "x" prefix refers to DSL | | |
| | generically. An "x" replaced by an "A" refers to Asymmetric | | |
| | DSL, and by an "H" refers to High-bit-rate DSL.) | | |

APPENDIX A

PO-20 Feature Detail Fields

Feature Detail

Resale and UNE-P (POTS and Centrex 21):

<u>CFN</u>

Validate the call forwarding TN

<u>CFNB</u>

Validate the call forwarding TN

<u>CFND</u>

Validate the call forwarding TN

<u>RCYC</u>

FID associated with a call forwarding don't answer USOC that determines how many rings before the call forwards to the TN provided with the CFN or CFND FIDs.

HLN (HLA Hot Line)

FID associated with the USOC HLA (which is on our USOC list to validate.) The Hot Line feature call forwards automatically to a pre-programmed number. This TN is provided following the HLN FID. The data provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR will be validated against the HLN FID on the service order to determine whether the FID is present and the TN provided on the LSR with the FID is correct on the service order.

LINK (HME CALL FORWARDING TO CELLULAR)

FID associated with the USOC HME (which is on our USOC list to validate.) The HME feature call forwards a call from the landline telephone number to a cellular telephone number. The LINK FID, along with the PCS telephone number provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR, will be validated against the LINK FID on the service order to determine whether the FID is present and the telephone number provided on the LSR matches the telephone number on the service order.

DES on DID MBB

If the CLEC requests a DID voice mailbox the DID number will follow the FID DES on the LSR in the Feature Detail section and on the service order. The DES FID along with the DID telephone number provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR will be validated against the DES FID on the service order to determine whether the FID is present and the DID telephone number provided on the matches the telephone number on the service order.

TN on Custom Ring USOC (RGG1A etc.)

We currently have 9 custom ring USOCs on our PO-20 USOC list. Along with the custom ring USOC is the TN FID. The TN FID along with the custom ring telephone number provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR will be validated against the TN FID on the service order to determine whether the FID is present and the custom ring telephone provided on the LSR with the FID is correct on the service order. (The validation would only apply if the USOC and FID were present in the Feature Detail section of the LSR.)

CAS (If provided on LSR for SEA)

Call Screening Code Assignment is a FID associated with the selective class of call feature (which is on our USOC list to validate.) Along with the CAS FID is a two-digit number that indicates what type of screening is being requested. The CAS FID along with a two-digit number is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the two-digit number matches the two-digit number provided on the LSR.

WW (if provided on LSR for TFM)

Working With is a FID associated with the transfer mailbox feature (which is on our USOC list to validate.) Along with the WW FID is a ten-digit number that indicates where the voice mailbox is located. The WW FID along with the ten-digit number is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the tendigit number matches the ten-digit number provided on the LSR.

MBOA (if provided on LSR for VFN)

Mailbox out-dial notification is a FID associated with the message notification feature (which is on our USOC list to validate.) Along with the MBOA FID is a two-digit alphanumeric combination that indicates where the notification will be sent (i.e., identifies pager type.) The MBOA FID along with the two-digit alphanumeric combination is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the two-digit alphanumeric matches the two-digit alphanumeric provided on the LSR.

DES on VGT (if provided on LSR)

Description is a FID associated with the scheduled greeting feature (which is on our USOC list to validate.) Along with the DES FID is a ten-digit telephone number that reflects the DID mailbox number. The DES FID along with the ten-digit telephone number is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the ten-digit telephone number matches the ten-digit telephone number provided on the LSR.

WLT (WLS Warm Line)

Warm line timeout is a FID associated with the warm line feature. Along with the WLT FID is a one or two numeric value that indicates the number of seconds that must elapse before the DMS-100 switch sets up the connection for a warm line service number. The WLT FID along with the one or two numeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the one or two numeric value matches the one or two numeric value provided on the LSR.

FIDs associated with WFA (800 service line feature which is on our USOC list to validate):

SIT (if provided on LSR for WFA)

Special identifying telephone number is a FID associated with the 800 service line feature. Along with the SIT FID is a ten-digit telephone number that reflects the 800, 888, 877, or 866 service line feature. The SIT FID along with the ten-digit telephone number is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the ten-digit telephone number matches the ten-digit telephone number provided on the LSR.

SIS (if provided on LSR for WFA)

Special Identifying Telephone Number Supplemental is a FID associated with the 800 service line feature. The SIS FID along with a one-digit number is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the one-digit number matches the one-digit number provided on the LSR.

ELN (if provided on LSR for WFA)

800 Service listed name is a FID associated with the 800 service line feature. Along with the ELN FID is a listed name, which follows the format of a business name. The ELN FID along with the name is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the name matches the name provided on the LSR.

ELA (if provided on LSR for WFA)

800 listed address is a FID associated with the 800 service line feature. Along with the ELA FID is an address, which follows the format of a listed address plus LATA, State, and ZIP code. The ELA FID along with the address is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the address provided on the LSR.

AOS (if provided on LSR for WFA)

Area of service is a FID associated with the 800 service line feature. Along with the AOS FID are one to two alphanumeric characters and three numeric characters which represents LATA and AC of the address. The AOS FID along with the additional characters are provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the additional characters match the additional characters provided on the LSR.

ALC (if provided on LSR for WFA)

IntraLATA carrier is a FID associated with the 800 service line feature. It indicates the IntraLATA carrier for the 800 service. Along with the ALC FID is the three-digit code (OTC) for the IntraLATA carrier. The ALC FID along with the three-digit code is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the three-digit code matches the three-digit code provided on the LSR.

Resale and UNE-P Centrex 21

FIDs associated with SO3, SO5, SFB, C2TAX (Electronic Business Set USOCs which are on our USOC list to validate):

KEY (If provided on LSR for Electronic Business Set EBS USOCs)

Key Designation (KEY number) is a FID associated with the Electronic Business Set feature. Along with the KEY FID is a numeric value that indicates the key designated for different features or lines on the EBS. The KEY FID along with the numeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the numeric value matches the numeric value provided on the LSR.

MADN (If provided on LSR for Electronic Business Set EBS USOCs)

Multiple Appearance Directory Number Call Arrangement is a FID associated with the Electronic Business Set feature. Along with the MADN FID is a set of alpha values that indicate the type, appearance and ring status desired for different features or lines on the EBS. The KEY FID along with the alpha values is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the alpha values match the alpha values provided on the LSR.

ROL (If provided on LSR for Electronic Business Set EBS USOCs)

Ring On Line is a FID associated with the Electronic Business Set feature. Along with the ROL FID is an alpha value that indicates if the line will ring (Y or N). The ROL FID along with the alpha value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the alpha value matches the alpha value provided on the LSR.

TTYD (If provided on LSR for C2TAX)

Terminal Type is a FID associated with the adjunct module feature. Along with the TTYD FID is a 4 character alpha value based on customer equipment. The TTYD FID along with the 4 character alpha value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the 4 character alpha value matches the 4 character alpha value provided on the LSR.

FIDs associated with E3PPK (CALL PICK-UP feature which is on our USOC list to validate):

CPG (If provided on LSR for E3PPK)

Call Pickup Group is a FID associated with the CALL PICK-UP feature. Along with the CPG FID is a 1-3 digit numeric value that identifies the call pickup group. The CPG FID along with the 1-3 digit numeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the 1-3 digit numeric value matches the 1-3 digit numeric value provided on the LSR.

CPUO (If provided on LSR for E3PPK)

Call Pickup-Originating is a FID associated with the CALL PICK-UP feature. Along with the CPUO FID is an alphanumeric value that identifies the call pickup group. The CPUO FID along with the alphanumeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the alphanumeric value matches alphanumeric value provided on the LSR.

CPUT (If provided on LSR for E3PPK)

Call Pickup-Terminating is a FID associated with the CALL PICK-UP feature. Along with the CPUT FID is an alphanumeric value that identifies the call pickup group. The CPUT FID along with the alphanumeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the alphanumeric value matches alphanumeric value provided on the LSR.

FIDs associated with GVJ, EZJ, GVZ, GV2, EVH, GVV (Speed Call feature USOCs that are on our USOC list to validate):

SCG (If provided on LSR for Speed call USOCs)

Speed Call Group is a FID associated with the Speed call feature. Along with the SCG FID is a 7 digit numeric value that identifies the controller of the group. The SCG FID along with the 7 digit numeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the 7 digit numeric value matches 7 digit numeric value provided on the LSR.

CSL (If provided on LSR for Speed call USOCs)

Change Speed Calling Group List is a FID associated with the Speed call feature. Along with the CSL FID is a 2 digit numeric value that identifies the size of the group list. The SCG FID along with the 7 digit numeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the 2 digit numeric value matches 2 digit numeric value provided on the LSR.

SCF (If provided on LSR for Speed call USOCs)

Speed Calling Feature Name is a FID associated with the Speed call feature. Along with the SCF FID is an alphanumeric value that identifies the controller of the shared list. The SCF FID along with the alphanumeric value is provided in the Feature Detail section on the LSR. The PO-20 review will validate that the FID is floated on the service order behind the feature USOC and that the alphanumeric value matches alphanumeric value provided on the LSR.

PERFORMANCE ASSURANCE PLAN

1.0 Introduction

1.1 As set forth in this Agreement, Qwest and CLEC voluntarily agree to the terms of the following Performance Assurance Plan ("PAP"), prepared in conjunction with Qwest's application for approval under Section 271 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the "Act") to offer in-region long distance service.

2.0 Plan Structure

2.1 The PAP is a two-tiered, self-executing remedy plan. CLEC shall be provided with Tier 1 payments if, as applicable, Qwest does not provide parity between the service it provides to CLEC and that which it provides to its own retail customers, or Qwest fails to meet applicable benchmarks.

2.1.1 As specified in section 7.0, if Qwest fails to meet parity and benchmark standards on an aggregate CLEC basis, Qwest shall make Tier 2 payments to a Fund administered by the state regulatory commission or, if required by existing law, to the state general fund.

2.2 As specified in sections 6.0 and 7.0 and Attachments 1 and 2, payment is generally on a per occurrence basis, (i.e., a set dollar payment times the number of non-conforming service events). For the performance measurements which do not lend themselves to per occurrence payment, payment is on a per measurement basis, (i.e., a set dollar payment). The level of payment also depends upon the number of consecutive months of non-conforming performance, (i.e., an escalating payment the longer the duration of non-conforming performance).

2.3 Qwest shall be in conformance with the parity standard when service Qwest provides to CLEC is equivalent to that which it provides meet the benchmark. Percentage benchmarks will be adjusted to round the allowable number of misses up or down to the closest integer, except when a benchmark standard and low CLEC volume are such that a 100% performance result would be required to meet the standard and has not been attained. In such a situation, the determination of whether Qwest meets or fails the benchmark standard will be made using performance results for the month in question, plus a sufficient number of consecutive months so that a 100% performance result would not be required to meet the standard. For purposes of section 6.2, a meet or fail determined by this procedure shall count as a single month to its retail customers. The PAP relies upon statistical scoring to determine whether any difference between CLEC and Qwest performance results is significant, that is, not attributable to simple random variation. Statistical parity shall exist when performance results for CLEC and for Qwest retail

analogue result in a z-value that is no greater than the critical z-values listed in the Critical Z-Statistical Table in section 5.0

2.4 For performance measurements that have no Qwest retail analogue, agreed upon benchmarks shall be used. Benchmarks shall be evaluated using a "stare and compare" method. For example, if the benchmark is for a particular performance measurement is 95% or better, Qwest performance results must be at least 95% to

3.0 **Performance Measurements**

3.1 The performance measurements included in the PAP are set forth in Attachment 1. Each performance measurement identified is defined in the Performance Indicator Definitions ("PIDs") developed in the ROC Operational Support System ("OSS") collaborative, and which are included in the SGAT at Exhibit B. The measurements have been designated as Tier 1, Tier 2, or both Tier 1 and Tier 2 and given a High, Medium, or Low designation.

4.0 Statistical Measurement

4.1 Qwest uses a statistical test, namely the modified "z-test," for evaluating the difference between two means (i.e., Qwest and CLEC service or repair intervals) or two percentages (e.g., Qwest and CLEC proportions), to determine whether a parity condition exists between the results for Qwest and the CLEC(s). The modified z-tests shall be applicable if the number of data points are greater than 30 for a given measurement. For testing measurements for which the number of data points are 30 or less, Qwest will use a permutation test to determine the statistical significance of the difference between Qwest and CLEC.

4.2 Qwest shall be in conformance when the monthly performance results for parity measurements (whether in the form of means, percents, or proportions and at the equivalent level of disaggregation) are such that the calculated z-test statistics are not greater than the critical z-values as listed in Table 1, section 5.0.

4.3 Qwest shall be in conformance with benchmark measurements when the monthly performance result equals or exceeds the benchmark, if a higher value means better performance, and when the monthly performance result equals or is less than the benchmark if a lower value means better performance.

The formula for determining parity using the modified z-test is:

 $z = DIFF / \sigma_{DIFF}$

Where:

 $DIFF = M_{Qwest} - M_{CLEC}$

M_{QWEST} = Qwest average or proportion

 $M_{CLEC} = CLEC$ average or proportion

 σ_{DIFF} = square root $\Box \sigma^{\Box} \text{Qwest} (1/\text{ n}_{\text{CLEC}} + 1/\text{ n}_{\text{Qwest}})]$

 $\sigma^{2}_{\text{Qwest}}$ = calculated variance for Qwest

 n_{Qwest} = number of observations or samples used in Qwest measurement

 n_{CLEC} = number of observations or samples used in CLEC measurement

The modified z-tests will be applied to reported parity measurements that contain more than 30 data points.

In calculating the difference between Qwest and CLEC performance, the above formula applies when a larger Qwest value indicates a better level of performance. In cases where a smaller Qwest value indicates a higher level of performance, the order is reversed, i.e., M_{CLEC} - M_{QWEST} .

4.3.1 For parity measurements where the number of data points is 30 or less, Qwest will apply a permutation test to test for statistical significance. Permutation analysis will be applied to calculate the z-statistic using the following logic:

Calculate the modified z-statistic for the actual arrangement of the data Pool and mix the CLEC and Qwest data sets Perform the following 1000 times:

Randomly subdivide the pooled data sets into two pools, one the same size as the original CLEC data set (n_{CLEC}) and one reflecting the remaining data points, and one reflecting the remaining data points, (which is equal to the size of the original Qwest data set or n_{QWEST}). Compute and store the modified z-test score (Z_S) for this sample.

Count the number of times the z-statistic for a permutation of the data is greater than the actual modified z- statistic

Compute the fraction of permutations for which the statistic for the rearranged data is greater than the statistic for the actual samples

If the fraction is greater than α , the significance level of the test, the hypothesis of no difference is not rejected, and the test is passed. The α shall be .05 when the critical z value is 1.645 and .15 when the critical z value is 1.04.

5.0 Critical Z-Value

5.1 The following table shall be used to determine the critical z-value that is referred to in section 6.0. It is based on the monthly business volume of the CLEC for the particular performance measurements for which statistic testing is being performed.

| CLEC volume | LIS Trunks, UDITs, | All Other |
|----------------|---------------------|-----------|
| (Sample size) | Resale, UBL-DS1 and | |
| | DS-3 | |
| 1-10 | 1.04* | 1.645 |
| 11-150 | 1.645 | 1.645 |
| 151-300 | 2.0 | 2.0 |
| 301-600 | 2.7 | 2.7 |
| 601-3000 | 3.7 | 3.7 |
| 3001 and above | 4.3 | 4.3 |

TABLE 1: CRITICAL Z-VALUE

* The 1.04 applies for individual month testing for performance measurements involving LIS trunks and DS-1 and DS-3 that are UDITs, Resale, or Unbundled Loops. The performance measurements are OP-3d/e, OP-4d/e, OP-5a, OP-6-4/5, MR-5a/b, MR-7d/e, and MR-8.

For purposes of determining consecutive month misses, 1.645 shall be used. Where performance measurements disaggregate to zone 1 and zone 2, the zones shall be combined for purposes of statistical testing.

6.0 Tier 1 Payments to CLEC

6.1 Tier 1 payments to CLEC shall be made solely for the performance measurements designated as Tier 1 on Attachment 1. The payment amount for non-conforming service varies depending upon the designation of performance measurements as High, Medium, and Low and the duration of the non-conforming service condition as described below. Non-conforming service is defined in section 4.0.

6.1.1 Determination of Non-Conforming Measurements: The number of performance measurements that are determined to be non-conforming and, therefore, eligible for Tier 1 payments, are limited according to the critical z-value shown in Table 1, section 5.0. The critical z-values are the statistical standard that determines for each CLEC performance measurement whether Qwest has met parity. The critical z-value is selected from Table 1 according to the monthly CLEC volume for the performance measurement. For instance, if the CLEC sample size for

that month is 100, the critical z-value is 1.645 for the statistical testing of that parity performance measurement.

6.2 Determination of the Amount of Payment: Tier 1 payments to CLEC, except as provided for in sections 6.3 and 10.0, are calculated and paid monthly based on the number of performance measurements exceeding the critical z-value. Payments will be made on either a per occurrence or per measurement basis, depending upon the performance measurement, using the dollar amounts specified in Table 2 below. The dollar amounts vary depending upon whether the performance measurement is designated High, Medium, or Low and escalate depending upon the number of consecutive months for which Qwest has not met the standard for the particular measurement.

6.2.1 The escalation of payments for consecutive months of non-conforming service will be matched month for month with de-escalation of payments for every month of conforming service. For example, if Qwest has four consecutive monthly "misses" it will make payments that escalate from month 1 to month 4 as shown in Table 2. If, in the next month, service meets the standard, Qwest makes no payment. A payment "indicator" de-escalates down from month 4 to month 3. If Qwest misses the following month, it will make payment at the month 3 level of Table 2 because that is where the payment "indicator" presently sits. If Qwest misses again the following month, it will make payments that escalate back to the month 4 level. The payment level will de-escalate back to the original month 1 level only upon conforming service sufficient to move the payment "indicator" back to the month 1 level.

6.2.2 For those performance measurements listed on Attachment 2 as "Performance Measurements Subject to Per Measurement Caps," payment to a CLEC in a single month shall not exceed the amount listed in Table 2 below for the "Per Measurement" category. For those performance measurements listed on Attachment 2 as "Performance Measurements Subject to Per Measurement Payments," payment to a CLEC will be the amount set forth in Table 2 below under the section labeled "per measurement."

| Per Occurrence | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|---------|------------|------------|---------|---------|---------|---|
| Measurement Group | Month 1 | Month 2 | Month 3 | Month 4 | Month 5 | Month 6 | Each following month after Month 6 add |
| High | \$150 | \$250 | \$500 | \$600 | \$700 | \$800 | \$100 |
| Medium | \$ 75 | \$150 | \$300 | \$400 | \$500 | \$600 | \$100 |
| Low | \$ 25 | \$ 50 | \$100 | \$200 | \$300 | \$400 | \$100 |

TABLE 2: TIER-1 PAYMENTS TO CLEC

| Per Measurement Cap | | | | | | | |
|------------------------|----------|--------------|--------------|---------------|---------------|-----------|---|
| Measurement Group | Month 1 | Month 2 | Month 3 | Month 4 | Month 5 | Month 6 | Each following month after Month 6 add |
| High | \$25,000 | \$50,00 0 | \$75,00 0 | \$100,00 0 | \$125,00 0 | \$150,000 | \$25,000 |
| Medium | \$10,000 | \$20,00 0 | \$30,00 0 | \$ 40,000 | \$ 50,000 | \$ 60,000 | \$ 10,000 |
| Low | \$ 5,000 | \$10,00 0 | \$15,00 0 | \$ 20,000 | \$ 25,000 | \$ 30,000 | \$ 5,000 |

6.3 For collocation, CP-2 and CP-4 performance measurements shall be relied upon for delineation of collocation business rules. For purposes of calculating Tier 1 payments, collocation jobs and collocation feasibility studies that are later than the due date will have a per day payment applied according to Table 3. The per day payment will be applied to any collocation job in which the feasibility study is provided or the collocation installation is completed later than the scheduled date. The calculation of the payment amount will be performed by applying the per day payment amounts as specified in Table 3. Thus, for days 1 through 10, the payment is \$150 per day. For days 11 through 20, the payment is \$300 per day and so on.

| Days Late | Completion Date | Feasibility Study |
|-------------------|-----------------|-------------------|
| 1 to 10 days | \$150/day | \$45/day |
| 11 to 20 days | \$300/day | \$90/day |
| 21 to 30 days | \$450/day | \$135/day |
| 31 to 40 days | \$600/day | \$180/day |
| More than 40 days | \$1,000/day | \$300/day |

TABLE 3: TIER-1 COLLOCATION PAYMENTS TO CLECS

6.4 A minimum payment calculation shall be performed at the end of each year for each CLEC with annual order volumes of no more than 1,200. The payment shall be calculated by multiplying \$2,000 by the number of months in which at least one payment was made to the CLEC. To the extent that the actual CLEC payment for the year is less than the product of the preceding calculation, Qwest shall make an additional payment equal to the difference.

7.0 Tier 2 Payments to the State

7.1 Payments to the State shall be limited to the performance measurements designated in section 7.4 for Tier 2 per measurement payments and in Attachment 1 for per occurrence payments and which have at least 10 data points each month for
the period payments are being calculated. Similar to the Tier 1 structure, Tier 2 measurements are categorized as High, Medium, and Low and the amount of payments for non-conformance varies according to this categorization.

7.2 Determination of Non-Conforming Measurements: The determination of nonconformance will be based upon the aggregate of all CLEC data for each Tier 2 performance measurement. Non-conforming service is defined in section 4.2 (for parity measurements) and 4.3 (for benchmark measurements), except that a 1.645 critical z-value shall be used for all parity measurements but MR-2 and OP-2. The critical z-value is the statistical standard that determines for each performance measurement whether Qwest has met parity.

7.3 Determination of the Amount of Payment: Except as provided in section 7.4, Tier 2 payments are calculated and paid monthly based on the number of performance measurements exceeding the critical z-value, identified in section 7.2, in a single month. Payment will be made on either a per occurrence or per measurement basis, whichever is applicable to the performance measurement, using the dollar amounts specified in Table 4 or Table 5 below. Except as provided in section 7.4, the dollar amounts vary depending upon whether the performance measurement is designated High, Medium, or Low.

7.3.1 For those Tier 2 measurements listed on Attachment 2 as "Performance Measurements Subject to Per Measurement Caps," payment to the State in a single month shall not exceed the amount listed in Table 4 for the "Per Measurement" category.

| Per Oc | currence | |
|--------|-------------------|-------|
| | Measurement Group | |
| | High | |
| | | \$500 |
| | Medium | |
| | | \$300 |
| | Low | |
| | | \$200 |

TABLE 4: TIER-2 PAYMENTS TO STATE FUNDS

Per Measurement/Cap

| Measurement Group | |
|-------------------|----------|
| High | \$75,000 |
| Medium | \$30,000 |
| Low | \$20,000 |

7.4 <u>Performance Measurements Subject to Per Measurement Payment</u>: The following Tier 2 performance measurements shall have their performance results measured on a region-wide (14 state) basis. Failure to meet the performance standard, therefore, will result in a per measurement payment in each of the Qwest in-region 14 states adopting this PAP. The performance measurements are:

Qwest South Dakota SGAT 4th Revision, Third Revised, Exhibit K June 24, 2004 Page 7

GA-1: Gateway Availability - IMA-GUI

GA-2: Gateway Availability - IMA-EDI

GA-3: Gateway Availability – EB-TA GA-4: System Availability – EXACT

GA-6: Gateway Availability – GUI-Repair

PO-1: Pre-Order/Order Response Times

OP-2: Call Answered within Twenty Seconds - Interconnect Provisioning Center

MR-2: Calls Answered within Twenty Seconds – Interconnect Repair Center PO-20:¹ Manual Service Order Accuracy

GA-1 has two sub-measurements: GA-1A and GA-1D. PO-1 shall have two submeasurements: PO-1A and PO-1B. PO-1A and PO-1B shall have their transaction types aggregated together. PO-20 shall have two product disaggregations - Resale POTS / UNE-P (POTS) and Unbundled Loops (Analog and Non-Loaded 2-Wire).

For these measurements, Qwest will make a Tier 2 payment based upon monthly performance results according to Table 5: Tier 2 Per Measurement Payments to State Funds.

| Measurement | Performance | State | 14 State |
|-----------------|----------------|----------|-----------|
| | | | Payment |
| GA-1,2,3,4,6 | 1% or lower | \$1,000 | \$14,000 |
| | >1% to 3% | \$10,000 | \$140,000 |
| | >3% to 5% | \$20,000 | \$280,000 |
| | >5% | \$30,000 | \$420,000 |
| | | | |
| PO-1 | 2 sec. Or less | \$1,000 | \$14,000 |
| | >2 sec. to 5 | \$5,000 | \$70,000 |
| | sec. | | |
| | >5 sec. to 10 | \$10,000 | \$140,000 |
| | SeC. | | |
| | >10 sec. | \$15,000 | \$210,000 |
| | | | |
| OP-2/MR-2 | 1% or lower | \$1,000 | \$14,000 |
| | >1% to 3% | \$5,000 | \$70,000 |
| | >3% to 5% | \$10,000 | \$140,000 |
| | >5% | \$15,000 | \$210,000 |
| | | | |
| PO-20 | | | |
| | | | |
| - Resale POTS / | 1% or lower | \$500 | \$7,000 |
| UNE-P (POTS) | >1% to 3% | \$2,500 | \$35,000 |
| | >3% to 5% | \$5,000 | \$70,000 |

TABLE 5: TIER-2 PER MEASUREMENT PAYMENTS TO STATE FUNDS

| | >5% | \$7,500 | \$105,000 |
|-------------------|-------------|---------|-----------|
| | | | |
| - Unbundled Loops | 1% or lower | \$500 | \$7,000 |
| (Analog and 2- | >1% to 3% | \$2,500 | \$35,000 |
| Wire | | | |
| Non-Loaded) | >3% to 5% | \$5,000 | \$70,000 |
| | >5% | \$7,500 | \$105,000 |

7.5 Payment of Tier 2 Funds: Payments to a state fund shall be used for any purpose determined by the Commission that is allowed to it by state law. If the Commission is not permitted by state law to receive or administer Tier 2 payments, payments shall be made to the state general fund or to such other source as may be provided for under state law.

8.0 Step by Step Calculation of Monthly Tier 1 Payments to CLEC

8.1 Application of the Critical Z-Values: Qwest shall identify the Tier 1 parity performance measurements that measure the service provided to CLEC by Qwest for the month in question and the critical z-value from Table 1 in section 5.0 that shall be used for purposes of statistical testing for each particular performance measurement. The statistical testing procedures described in section 4.0 shall be applied. For the purpose of determining the critical z-values, each disaggregated category of a performance measurement is treated as a separate sub-measurement. The critical z-value to be applied is determined by the CLEC volume at each level of disaggregation or sub-measurement.

8.2 Performance Measurements for which Tier 1 Payment is Per Occurrence:

8.2.1 Performance Measurements that are Averages or Means:

8.2.1.1 Step 1: For each performance measurement, the average or the mean that would yield the critical z-value shall be calculated. The same denominator as the one used in calculating the z-statistic for the measurement shall be used. (For benchmark measurements, the benchmark value shall be used.)

8.2.1.2 Step 2: The percentage differences between the actual averages and the calculated averages shall be calculated. The calculation is % diff = (CLEC result – Calculated Value)/Calculated Value.

8.2.1.3 Step 3: For each performance measurement, the total number of data points shall be multiplied by the percentage calculated in the previous step and the per occurrence dollar amounts from the Tier 1 Payment Table shall determine the payment to the CLEC for each non-conforming performance measurement.

8.2.2 Performance Measurements that are Percentages:

8.2.2.1 Step 1: For each performance measurement, the percentage that would yield the critical z-value shall be calculated. The same denominator as the one used in calculating the z- statistic for the measurement shall be used. (For benchmark measurements, the benchmark value shall be used.)

8.2.2.2 Step 2: The difference between the actual percentages for the CLEC and the calculated percentages shall be determined.

8.2.2.3 Step 3: For each performance measurement, the total number of data points shall be multiplied by the difference in percentage calculated in the previous step, and the per occurrence dollar amount taken from the Tier 1 Payment Table, to determine the payment to the CLEC for each non-conforming performance measurement.

8.2.3 Performance Measurements that are Ratios or Proportions:

8.2.3.1 Step 1: For each performance measurement the ratio that would yield the critical z-value shall be calculated. The same denominator as the one used in calculating the z-statistic for the measurement shall be used. (For benchmark measurements, the benchmark value shall be used.)

8.2.3.2 Step 2: The absolute difference between the actual rate for the CLEC and the calculated rate shall be determined.

8.2.3.3 Step 3: For each performance measurement, the total number of data points shall be multiplied by the difference calculated in the previous step, and the per occurrence dollar amount taken from the Tier 1 Payment Table, to determine the payment to the CLEC for each non-conforming performance measurement.

8.3 Performance Measurements for which Tier 1 Payment is Per Measure:

8.3.1 For each performance measurement where Qwest fails to meet the standard, the payment to the CLEC shall be the dollar amount shown on the "per measure" portion of Table 2: Tier 1 Payments to CLEC.

9.0 Step by Step Calculation of Monthly Tier 2 Payments to State Funds

9.1 Application of the Critical Z-Values: Qwest shall identify the Tier 2 parity performance measurements that measure the service provided to all CLECs by Qwest for the month in question. The statistical testing procedures described in section 4.0 shall be applied, except that a 1.645 critical z-value shall be used for all parity measurements except MR-2 and OP-2. If Qwest misses a performance standard and there are at least 10 data points for the performance measurement, a

Tier 2 payment will be calculated and paid as described below and will continue in each succeeding month until Qwest's performance meets the applicable standard.

9.2 Performance Measurements for which Tier 2 Payment is Per Occurrence:

9.2.1 Performance Measurements that are Averages or Means:

9.2.1.1 Step 1: The monthly average or the mean for each performance measurement that would yield the critical z-value for each month shall be calculated. The same denominator as the one used in calculating the z-statistic for the measurement shall be used. (For benchmark measurements, the benchmark value shall be used.)

9.2.1.2 Step 2: The percentage difference between the actual averages and the calculated averages for each month shall be calculated. The calculation for parity measurements is % diff = (actual average – calculated average)/calculated average.

9.2.1.3 Step 3: For each performance measurement, the total number of data points for the non-conforming month shall be multiplied by the percentage calculated in the previous step and multiplied by the result of the per occurrence dollar amount taken from the Tier 2 Payment Table to determine the payment to the State for each non-conforming performance measurement.

9.3 Performance Measurements that are Percentages:

9.3.1 Step 1: For each performance measurement, the monthly percentage that would yield the critical z-value for each month shall be calculated. The same denominator as the one used in calculating the z-statistic for the measurement shall be used. (For benchmark measurements, the benchmark value shall be used.)

9.3.1.2 Step 2: The difference between the actual percentages and the calculated percentages for the non-conforming month shall be calculated. The calculation for parity measurement is diff = (CLEC result – calculated percentage). This formula shall be applicable where a high value is indicative of poor performance. The formula shall be reversed where high performance is indicative of good performance.

9.3.1.3 Step 3: For each performance measurement, the total number of data points for the non-conforming month shall be multiplied by the difference in percentage calculated in the previous step and multiplied by the result of the per occurrence dollar amounts taken from the Tier 2 Payment Table to determine the payment to the State.

9.4 Performance Measurements that are Ratios or Proportions:

9.4.1 Step 1: For each performance measurement, the ratio that would yield the critical z-value for each month shall be calculated. The same denominator as the one used in calculating the z-statistic for the measurement shall be used. (For benchmark measurements, the benchmark value shall be used.)

9.4.1.1 Step 2: The difference between the actual rate for the CLEC and the calculated rate for the non-conforming month shall be calculated. The calculation is: diff \approx (CLEC rate – calculated rate). This formula shall apply where a high value is indicative of poor performance. The formula shall be reversed where high performance is indicative of good performance.

9.4.1.2 Step 3: For each performance measurement, the total number of data points shall be multiplied by the difference calculated in the previous step for the non-conforming month and multiplied by the result of the per occurrence dollar amounts taken from the Tier 2 Payment Table to determine the payment to the State.

9.5 Performance Measurements for which Tier 2 Payment is Per Measure:

9.5.1 For each performance measurement where Qwest fails to meet the standard, the payment to the State Fund shall be the dollar amount shown on the "per measure" portion of the Tier 2 Payment Table.

10.0 Low Volume, Developing Markets

10.1 For certain qualifying performance standards, if the aggregate monthly volumes of CLECs participating in the PAP are more than 10, but less than 100, Qwest will make Tier 1 payments to CLECs for failure to meet the parity or benchmark standard for the qualifying performance sub-measurements. The qualifying sub-measurements are the UNE-P (POTS), megabit resale, and ADSL qualified loop product disaggregation of OP-3, OP-4, OP-5a, MR-3, MR-5, MR-7, and MR-8. If the aggregate monthly CLEC volume is greater than 100, the provisions of this section shall not apply to the qualifying performance sub-measurement.

10.2 The determination of whether Qwest has met the parity or benchmark standards will be made using aggregate volumes of CLECs participating in the PAP. In the event Qwest does not meet the applicable performance standards, a total payment to affected CLECs will be determined in accordance with the high, medium, low designation for each performance measurement (see Attachment 1) and as described in section 8.0, except that CLEC aggregate volumes will be used. In the event the calculated total payment amount to CLECs is less than \$5,000, a minimum payment of \$5,000 shall be made. The resulting total payment amount to CLECs will be apportioned to the affected CLECs based upon each CLEC's relative share of the number of total service misses.

10.3 At the six (6)-month reviews, Qwest will consider adding to the above list of qualifying performance sub-measurements, new products disaggregation representing new modes of CLEC entry into developing markets.

11.0 Payment

11.1 Payments to CLEC, the State, or the Special Fund shall be made one month following the due date of the performance measurement report for the month for which payment is being made. Qwest will pay interest on any late payment and underpayment at the prime rate as reported in the Wall Street Journal. On any overpayment, Qwest is allowed to offset future payments by the amount of the overpayment plus interest at the prime rate.

11.2 Payment to CLEC shall be made via bill credits. Bill credits shall be identified on a summary format substantially similar to that distributed as a prototype to the CLECs and the Commissions. To the extent that a monthly payment owed to CLEC under this PAP exceeds the amount owed to Qwest by CLEC on a monthly bill, Qwest will issue a check or wire transfer to CLEC in the amount of the overage. Payment to the State shall be made via check or wire transfer.

11.3 Upon the execution of a memorandum of understanding with the South Dakota Commission, a South Dakota Special Fund and a South Dakota Discretionary Fund shall be created for the purposes and in accordance with section 11.0. The South Dakota Commission shall authorize disbursement of funds. All claims against the funds shall be presented to the Commission and shall be the responsibility of the South Dakota Commission.

11.3.1 Qwest shall establish the South Dakota Special Fund and the South Dakota Discretionary Fund as separate interest bearing escrow accounts. Upon Qwest receiving effective section 271 authority from the FCC for the state of South Dakota, the Commission shall determine and direct Qwest to deposit into the South Dakota Special Fund either 1) one-fifth of all Tier 1 payments that exceed the month 1 payment amounts in Table 2 and one-third of all Tier 2 payments or 2) 50% of all Tier 2 payments. Qwest shall deposit any other Tier 2 payments into the South Dakota Discretionary Fund. The costs of the escrow accounts will be paid for from the accounts' funds.

11.3.2 The South Dakota Special Fund shall be created to pay the independent auditor and audit costs for the purpose of regional or state audits as specified in section 15.1 or, and to pay expenses incurred by the Commission in participating in any regional review of the PIDs. Disbursements from the South Dakota Special Fund shall first be from Tier 2 funds and second from Tier 1 funds. Not less than every two years, Tier 1 funds that are not needed to meet the continuing obligations of the

Special Fund shall be returned on a pro-rata basis to CLECs, including any interest not used for fund administration. Other than the transfer of funds allowed in section 11.3.2.1, disbursements from the South Dakota Discretionary Fund shall be for, but not limited to, South Dakota telecommunications initiatives. Any excess funds in the South Dakota Special Fund may be transferred to the South Dakota Discretionary Fund at the Commission's discretion.

11.3.2.1 If the South Dakota Commission chooses not to participate in the regional audit pursuant to section 15.1 and the account balance of the South Dakota Special Fund escrow account is less than \$50,000 at the time of any state audit described in section 15.1, a transfer of funds from the South Dakota Discretionary Fund to the South Dakota Special Fund shall be allowed in the amount necessary to bring the South Dakota Special Fund balance to \$50,000.

11.3.3 Notwithstanding the provisions herein, Qwest shall advance sufficient funds to any consolidated Special Fund established by participating states, set up for the purpose of a regional audit as specified in sections 15.1, not to exceed \$200,000 (or \$500,000 in the event 6 or more states participate in the regional audit) in order to meet initial claims against that Fund to the extent that contributions from Tier 1 and/or Tier 2 payments are insufficient. Qwest shall be allowed to recover any such advances plus interest at the rate that such an escrow account would have earned from future Tier 2 payments.

12.0 Cap on Tier 1 and Tier 2 Payments

12.1 There shall be a cap on the total payments made by Qwest for a 12-month period beginning with the effective date of the PAP for the State of South Dakota. The annual cap for the State of South Dakota shall be 36% of the prior year's ARMIS Net Return, or \$15,000,000, whichever is greater, subject to any applicable adjustments permitted pursuant to section 12.2. Qwest shall submit to the Commission the calculation of each year's cap no later than 30 days after submission of ARMIS results to the FCC. CLEC agrees that this amount constitutes a maximum annual cap that shall apply to the aggregate total of Tier 1 liquidated damages, including any such damages paid pursuant to this Agreement, any other interconnection agreement, or any other payments made for the same underlying activity or omission under any other contract, order or rule and Tier 2 assessments or payments made by Qwest for the same underlying activity or omission under any other contract, order or rule and Tier 2 assessments or payments made by Qwest for the same underlying activity or omission under any other same underlying activity or omission under any other

12.2 If Qwest payments equal or exceed the annual cap for two years in a row or equal or exceed 1/3rd of the annual cap in a combination of two consecutive months, the Commission shall have the authority to open a proceeding to request Qwest to explain the non-conforming performance and show that it did not result from Qwest's failure to act in a prudent manner to avoid reasonably foreseeable consequences. The Commission may raise the cap to the amount which Qwest would have paid in the higher of the prior two years, may ask the Federal Communication Commission

("FCC") to halt Qwest's in-region interLATA long distance marketing authority for a particular interval, or may take other appropriate action.

12.3 If the annual cap is reached, each CLEC shall, as of the end of the plan year, be entitled to receive the same percentage of its total calculated Tier 1 payments. In order to preserve the operation of the annual cap, the percentage of equalization shall take place as follows:

12.3.1 The amount by which any month's total year-to-date Tier 1 and Tier 2 payments exceeds the cumulative monthly cap (defined as 1/12th of the annual cap times the cumulative number of months to date) shall be calculated and apportioned between Tier 1 and Tier 2 according to the percentage that each bore of total payments for the year-to-date. The Tier 1 apportionment resulting of this calculation shall be known as the "Tracking Account."

12.3.2 The Tier 1 apportionment shall be debited against the monthly payment due to each CLEC, by applying to the year-to-date payments received by each the percentage necessary to generate the required total Tier 1 amount.

12.3.3 The Tracking Amount shall be apportioned among all CLECs so as to provide each with payments equal in percentage of its total year to date Tier 1 payment calculations.

12.3.4 This calculation shall take place in the first month that the year-to-date total Tier 1 and Tier 2 payments are expected to exceed the cumulative monthly cap and for each month of that year thereafter. Qwest shall recover any debited amounts by reducing payments due to any CLEC for that month and any succeeding months, as necessary.

13.0 Limitations

13.1 The PAP shall not become available in the State unless and until Qwest receives effective section 271 authority from the FCC for that State.

13.2 Qwest will not be liable for Tier 1 payments to CLEC in an FCC approved state until the Commission has approved an interconnection agreement between CLEC and Qwest which adopts the provisions of this PAP.

13.3 Qwest shall not be obligated to make Tier 1 or Tier 2 payments for any measurement if and to the extent that non-conformance for that measurement was the result of any of the following: 1) with respect to performance measurements with a benchmark standard, a Force Majeure event as defined in section 5.7 of the SGAT. Qwest will provide notice of the occurrence of a Force Majeure event within 72 hours of the time Qwest learns of the event or within a reasonable time frame that Qwest should have learned of it; 2) an act or omission by a CLEC that is contrary to any of

its obligations under its interconnection agreement with Qwest or under federal or state law; an act or omission by CLEC that is in bad faith. Examples of bad faith conduct include, but are not limited to: unreasonably holding service orders and/or applications, "dumping" orders or applications in unreasonably large batches, "dumping" orders or applications at or near the close of a business day, on a Friday evening or prior to a holiday, and failing to provide timely forecasts to Qwest for services or facilities when such forecasts are explicitly required by the SGAT; 3) problems associated with third-party systems or equipment, which could not have been avoided by Qwest in the exercise of reasonable diligence, provided, however, that this third party exclusion will not be raised in the State more than three times within a calendar year. If a Force Majeure event or other excusing event recognized in this section merely suspends Qwest's ability to timely perform an activity subject to a performance measurement that is an interval measure, the applicable time frame in which Qwest's compliance with the parity or benchmark criterion is measured will be extended on an hour-for-hour or day-for-day basis, as applicable, equal to the duration of the excusing event.

13.3.1 Qwest will not be excused from Tier 1 or Tier 2 payments for any reason except as described in Section 13.0. Qwest will have the burden of demonstrating that its non-conformance with the performance measurement was excused on one of the grounds described in this PAP. A party may petition the Commission to require Qwest to deposit disputed payments into an escrow account when the requesting party can show cause, such as grounds provided in the Uniform Commercial Code for cases of commercial uncertainty.

13.3.2 Notwithstanding any other provision of this PAP, it shall not excuse performance that Qwest could reasonably have been expected to deliver assuming that it had designed, implemented, staffed, provisioned, and otherwise provided for resources reasonably required to meet foreseeable volumes and patterns of demands upon its resources by CLECs.

13.4 Qwest's agreement to implement these enforcement terms, and specifically its agreement to pay any "liquidated damages" or "assessments" hereunder, will not be considered as an admission against interest or an admission of liability in any legal, regulatory, or other proceeding relating in whole or in part to the same performance.

13.4.1 CLEC may not use: 1) the existence of this enforcement plan; or 2) Qwest's payment of Tier -1 "liquidated damages" or Tier 2 "assessments" as evidence that Qwest has discriminated in the provision of any facilities or services under Sections 251 or 252, or has violated any state or federal law or regulation. Qwest's conduct underlying its performance measures, however are not made inadmissible by its terms.

13.4.2 By accepting this performance remedy plan, CLEC agrees that Qwest's performance with respect to this remedy plan may not be used as an admission of

liability or culpability for a violation of any state or federal law or regulation. (Nothing herein is intended to preclude Qwest from introducing evidence of any Tier 1 "liquidated damages" under these provisions for the purpose of offsetting the payment against any other damages or payments a CLEC might recover.) The terms of this paragraph do not apply to any proceeding before the Commission or the FCC to determine whether Qwest has met or continues to meet the requirements of section 271 of the Act.

13.5 By incorporating these liquidated damages terms into the PAP, Qwest and CLEC accepting this PAP agree that proof of damages from any non-conforming performance measurement would be difficult to ascertain and, therefore, liquidated damages are a reasonable approximation of any contractual damages that may result from a non-conforming performance measurement. Qwest and CLEC further agree that Tier 1 payments made pursuant to this PAP are not intended to be a penalty. The application of the assessments and damages provided for herein is not intended to foreclose other non-contractual legal and non-contractual regulatory claims and remedies that may be available to a CLEC.

13.6 This PAP contains a comprehensive set of performance measurements, statistical methodologies, and payment mechanisms that are designed to function together, and only together, as an integrated whole. To elect the PAP, CLEC must adopt the PAP in its entirety in its interconnection agreement with Qwest in lieu of other alternative standards or relief. Where alternative standards or remedies for Qwest's wholesale performance are available under rules, orders, or contracts, including interconnection agreements, CLEC will be limited to either PAP standards and remedies or the standards and remedies available under rules, orders or contracts and CLECs choice of remedies shall be specified in its interconnection agreement.

13.7 Any liquidated damages payment by Qwest under these provisions is not hereby made inadmissible in any proceeding related to the same conduct where Qwest seeks to offset the payments against any other damages a CLEC may recover; whether or not the nature of the damages sought by the CLEC is such that an offset is appropriate will be determined in the relevant proceeding.

13.8 To the extent Qwest believes that some Tier 2 payments required to be made under this PAP would duplicate payments that have been assessed by or on behalf of the Commission pursuant to any service quality rules or Commission orders, Qwest may make such Tier 2 payments to a special interest bearing escrow account and then dispute the payments before the South Dakota Commission. If Qwest can show that the payments relate to the same underlying activity or omission, it may retain the Tier 2 payments and any interest accrued on such payments.

13.9 Whenever a Qwest Tier 1 payment to an individual CLEC exceeds \$3 million in a month, Qwest may commence a proceeding to demonstrate why it should not be required to pay any amount in excess of the \$3 million. Upon timely commencement

of the proceeding, Qwest must pay the balance of payments owed in excess of \$3 million into escrow, to be held by a third-party pending the outcome of the proceeding. To invoke these escrow provisions, Qwest must file, not later than the due date of the Tier 1 payments, its application. Qwest will have the burden of proof to demonstrate why, under the circumstances, it would be unjust to require it to make the payments in excess of \$3 million. If Qwest reports non-conforming performance to CLEC for three consecutive months on 20% or more of the measurements reported to CLEC and has incurred no more than \$1 million in liability to CLEC, then CLEC may commence a similar proceeding. In any such proceeding CLEC will have the burden of proof to demonstrate why, under the circumstances, justice requires Qwest to make payments in excess of the amount calculated pursuant to the terms of the PAP. The disputes identified in this section shall be resolved in a manner specified in the Dispute Resolution section of the SGAT with the CLEC.

13.10 Any payments made by Qwest as a result of the PAP should not: 1) be included as expenses in any Qwest revenue requirement, or 2) be reflected in increased rates to CLECs for services and facilities provided pursuant to Section 251(c) of the Telecommunication Act of 1996 and priced pursuant to Section 252(d) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996.

13.11 This Exhibit K may be assigned as a part of any agreement to which SGAT Section 5.12.1 is applicable.

14.0 Reporting

14.1 Upon receiving effective section 271 authority from the FCC for a state, Qwest will provide CLEC that has an approved interconnection agreement with Qwest, a monthly report of Qwest's performance for the measurements identified in the PAP by the last day of the month following the month for which performance results are being reported. However, Qwest shall have a grace period of five business days, so that Qwest shall not be deemed out of compliance with its reporting obligations before the expiration of the five business day grace period. Qwest will collect, analyze, and report performance data for the measurements listed on Attachment 1 in accordance with the most recent version of the PIDs. Upon CLEC's request, data files of the CLEC's raw data, or any subset thereof, will be transmitted, without charge, to CLEC in a mutually acceptable format, protocol, and transmission medium.

14.2 Qwest will also provide the Commission a monthly report of aggregate CLEC performance results pursuant to the PAP by the last day of the month following the month for which performance results are being reported. However, Qwest shall have a grace period of five business days, so that Qwest shall not be deemed out of compliance with its reporting obligations before the expiration of the five business day grace period. Individual CLEC reports of participating CLECs will also be available to the Commission upon request. By accepting this PAP, CLEC consents to Qwest

providing CLEC's report and raw data to the State Commission. Pursuant to the terms of an order of the Commission, Qwest may provide CLEC-specific data that relates to the PAP, provided that Qwest shall first initiate any procedures necessary to protect the confidentiality and to prevent the public release of the information pending any applicable Commission procedures and further provided that Qwest provides such notice as the Commission directs to the CLEC involved, in order to allow it to prosecute such procedures to their completion. Data files of participating CLEC raw data, or any subset thereof, will be transmitted, without charge, to the Commission in a mutually acceptable format, protocol, and transmission form.

14.3 In the event Qwest does not provide CLEC and the Commission with a monthly report by the last day of the month following the month for which performance results are being reported, Qwest will pay to the State a total of \$500 for each business day for which performance reports are 6 to 10 business days past the due date; \$1,000 for each business day for which performance reports are 11 to 15 business days past the due date; and \$2,000 for each business day for which performance results are more than 15 business days past the due date. If reports are on time but are missing performance results, Qwest will pay to the State a total of one-fifth of the late report amount for each missing performance measurement, subject to a cap of the full late report amount. These amounts represent the total payments for omitting performance measurements or missing any report deadlines, rather than a payment per report. Prior to the date of a payment for late reports, Qwest may file a request for a waiver of the payment, which states the reasons for the waiver. The Commission may grant the waiver, deny the waiver, or provide any other relief that may be appropriate.

14.4 To the extent that Qwest recalculates payments made under this PAP, such recalculation shall be limited to the preceding three years (measured from the later of the provision of a monthly credit statement or payment due date). Qwest shall retain sufficient records to demonstrate fully the basis for its calculations for long enough to meet this potential recalculation obligation. CLEC verification or recalculation efforts should be made reasonably contemporaneously with Qwest measurements. In any event, Qwest shall maintain the records in a readily useable format for one year. For the remaining two years, the records may be retained in archived format. Any payment adjustments shall be subject to the interest rate provisions of section 11.1.

15.0 Integrated Audit Program/Investigations of Performance Results

15.1 Audits of the PAP shall be conducted under the auspices of the Commission in accordance with a detailed audit plan developed by an independent auditor and approved by the Commission. The Commission shall select the independent auditor with input from Qwest and the CLECs. The Commission will determine, based upon requests and upon its own investigation, which results and/or measures should be audited. The Commission

may, at its discretion, conduct audits through participation in a collaborative process with other states.

15.1.1 The initial audit plan shall be conducted over two years, with audit periods subsequent to the initial audit to be determined by the Commission. The Commission will determine the scope of and procedure for the audit plan, which, at a minimum, will identify the specific performance measurements to be audited, the specific tests to be conducted, and the entity to conduct them. The initial audit plan will give priority to auditing the higher risk areas identified in the Final OSS Report.

15.1.2 The Commission will attempt to coordinate its audit plan with other audit plans that may be conducted by other state commissions so as to avoid duplication. The audit shall be conducted so as not to impede Qwest's ability to comply with the other provisions of the PAP and should be of a nature and scope that it can be conducted in accordance with the reasonable course of Qwest's business operations.

15.1.3 Any dispute arising out of the audit plan, the conduct of the audit, or audit results shall be resolved by the Commission.

15.2 Qwest must report to the Commission monthly any changes it makes to the automated or manual processes used to produce performance results including data collection, generation, and reporting. The reports must include sufficient detail to enable the parties to understand the scope and nature of the changes.

15.3 In the event of a disagreement between Qwest and CLEC as to any issue regarding the accuracy or integrity of data collected, generated, and reported pursuant to the PAP, Qwest and the CLEC shall first consult with one another and attempt in good faith to resolve the issue. If an issue is not resolved within 45 days after a request for consultation, CLEC and Qwest may, upon a demonstration of good cause (e.g., evidence of material errors or discrepancies), request an independent audit to be conducted, at the initiating party's expense. The independent auditor will assess the need for an audit based upon whether there exists a material deficiency in the data or whether there exists an issue not otherwise addressed by the audit plan for the current cycle. The Commission will resolve any dispute by any party questioning the independent auditor's decision to conduct or not conduct a CLEC requested audit and the audit findings, should such an audit be conducted. Audit findings will include: (a) general applicability of findings and conclusions (i.e., relevance to CLECs or jurisdictions other than the ones causing test initiation), (b) magnitude of any payment adjustments required and, (c) whether cost responsibility should be shifted based upon the materiality and clarity of any Qwest nonconformance with measurement requirements (no pre-determined variance is appropriate, but should be based on the auditor's professional judgment). CLEC may not request an audit of data more than three years from the later of the provision of a monthly credit statement or payment due date.

15.4 Expenses for the audit of the PAP and any other related expenses incurred by the Commission, except that which may be assigned under section 15.3, shall be paid first from the Tier 2 funds in the Special Fund. If no Special Fund is in existence or Tier 2 funds are not otherwise sufficient to cover audit costs in whole or in part, the Commission will develop an additional funding method that will include contributions from CLECs' Tier 1 payments and from Qwest.

15.5 Any party may petition the Commission to request that Qwest investigate any consecutive Tier 1 miss or any second consecutive Tier 2 miss to determine the cause of the miss and to identify the action needed in order to meet the standard set forth in the performance measurements. Qwest will report the results of its investigation to the Commission, and to the extent an investigation determines that a CLEC was responsible in whole or in part for the Tier 2 misses, Qwest may petition the Commission to request that it receive credit against future Tier 2 payments in an amount equal to the Tier 2 payments that should not have been made. Qwest may also request that the relevant portion of subsequent Tier 2 payments will not be owed until any responsible CLEC problems are corrected. For the purposes of this sub-section, Tier 1 performance measurements that have not been designated as Tier 2 will be aggregated and the aggregate results will be investigated pursuant to the terms of this agreement.

16.0 Reviews

16.1 Every six (6) months beginning six months after the effective date of 271 approval by the FCC for the state of South Dakota, Qwest, CLECs, and the Commission shall participate in a review of the performance measurements to determine whether the measurements should be added, deleted, or modified; whether the applicable benchmark standards should be modified or replaced by standards; and whether to move a classification of a measurement to High, Medium, or Low or Tier 1 to Tier 2. Criteria for review of performance measurement, other than for possible reclassification, shall be whether there exists an omission or failure to capture intended performance, and whether there is duplication of another measurement. After the Commission considers changes proposed in the six month review process, it shall determine what, if any, changes shall be made by Qwest. The Commission retains its independent authority under state law to initiate a proceeding to review the PAP at any time and to order changes to any provisions of the PAP, after notice and hearing, and consistent with due process and other rights of all parties. No new performance measurements shall be added to the PAP that have not been subject to observation as a diagnostic measurement for a period of six (6) months, unless ordered otherwise by the Commission. Any changes made pursuant to this section shall apply to and modify this agreement.

16.1.1 Notwithstanding section 16.1, if any agreements on adding, modifying, deleting, performance measurements as permitted by section 16.1 are reached between Qwest and CLECs participating in an industry Regional Oversight Committee (ROC) PID administration forum, those agreements shall be incorporated into the QPAP and modify the agreement between CLEC and Qwest at any time those agreements are submitted to and approved by the Commission, whether before or after a six-month review.

16.1.2 Nothing in this PAP precludes the Commission from modifying the PAP based upon its independent state law authority, subject to judicial challenge. Nothing in this PAP constitutes a grant of authority by either party to this agreement nor does it constitute a waiver by either party to this agreement of any claim either party may have that the Commission lacks jurisdiction to make any modifications to this PAP, including any modifications resulting from the process described in Section 16.0.

16.2 Two years after the effective date of the first FCC 271 approval of the PAP, the Commission, by itself or in conjunction with other state commissions, may conduct a review by a independent third party to examine the continuing effectiveness of the PAP as a means of inducing compliant performance. Except for expenses which may be assigned under section 15.3, the expenses of any review by the state of South Dakota, or if the Commission participates in a multistate review, the expenses shall be paid first from the Tier 2 funds in the Special Fund. If no Special Fund is in existence or Tier 2 funds are not otherwise sufficient to cover audit costs in whole or in part, the Commission will develop an additional funding method that will include contribution from CLECs' Tier 1 payments and from Qwest.

16.3 Qwest will make the PAP available for CLEC interconnection agreements. Upon Qwest's elimination of its Section 272 affiliate or upon it exiting the interLATA market, Qwest may petition the Commission to phase out the PAP. At that time, a review of the PAP shall be conducted to determine whether a phase-out of the PAP is appropriate.

17.0 (Reserved for Future Use)

18.0 Dispute Resolution

Except as otherwise provided in the PAP, the Commission shall resolve any disputes.

Attachment 1: Tier 1 and Tier 2 Performance Measurements Subject to Per Occurrence Payment

| Performance Measurement | | Tier | 1 Pavn | nents | Tier 2 Paymen | | ients |
|--|-------------------|------|--------|----------|---------------|-----|----------|
| | Low | | Med | | Low | Med | High |
| | | | | High | | | |
| GATEWAY | | | | <u> </u> | | | |
| Timely Outage Resolution | GA-7 | | | | | | Х |
| | | | | | | | |
| PRE-ORDER/ORDERS | | | | | | | |
| LSR Rejection Notice Interval | PO-3 ^a | Х | | | | | |
| Firm Order Confirmations On Time | PO-5 | X | | | | Х | |
| Work Completion Notification Timeliness | PO-6 ^b | X | | | | | |
| Billing Completion Notification Timeliness | PO-7⁵ | Х | | | | | |
| Jeopardy Notice Interval | PO-8 | X | | | | | |
| Timely Jeopardy Notices | PO-9 | X | | | | | |
| Release Notifications | PO-16 | | | | | | Х |
| (Expanded) – Manual Service Order | PO-20° | X | ····· | | | | |
| Accuracy | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | [|
| ORDERING AND PROVISIONING | | | | | | | |
| Installation Commitments Met | OP-3 | | | X | | Х | |
| Installation Intervals | OP-4 ^d | | | X | | Х | |
| New Service Quality | OP-5a | | | X | | X | |
| Delayed Days | OP-6 ^e | | | X | | X | |
| Number Portability Timeliness | OP-8 | | | X | | X | |
| Coordinated Cuts On Time – Unbundled | OP-13a | | | X | | X | |
| Loops | | | | | | | |
| LNP Disconnect Timeliness | OP-17 | | | X | | Х | |
| And and a second s | | | | | | | |
| MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR | | | | | | | |
| Out of Service Cleared within 24 hours | MR-3 | - | | X | | | |
| All Troubles Cleared within 4 hours | MR-5 | | | Х | , | | |
| Mean time to Restore | MR- | | | X | | | |
| | 6a.b.c | | | | | | |
| Repair Repeat Report Rate | MR-7 | | | X | | X | |
| Trouble Rate | MR-8 | | | X | | X | |
| LNP Trouble Reports Cleared within 24 | MR-11 | | | X | | X | |
| Hours | | | | | | | |
| Management of the second se | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| BILLING | | | | | | | |
| Time to Provide Recorded Usage Records | BI-1 | X | | | | | X |
| Billing Accuracy-Adjustments for Errors | BI-3 | X | | | | | <u> </u> |
| Billing Completeness | BI-4 | X | | | | X | |
| | | | | | | | |
| NETWORK PERFORMANCE | | | | | | | |
| Trunk Blocking | NI-1 | | | X | | | X |
| NXX Code Activation | NP-1 | - | | X | | | X |
| | <u> </u> | | 1 | | I | 1 | 1 |

a. PO-3 is limited to PO-3a-1, PO-3b-1, and PO-3c.

b. PO-6 is included with PO-7 as two "families:" PO-6a/PO-7a and PO-6b/PO-7b. Measurements within each family share a single payment opportunity with only the measurements with the highest payment being paid.

c. For PO-20, where CLEC order volumes are 1 - 20, apply a benchmark standard of "not greater than one order in error." Under this provision, no payment applies if there is only one order with an error. For each phase beginning with Phase 1, there will be no more than a 3 month measurement stabilization period for all fields introduced in that phase. Additional fields are not subject to payments during the measurement stabilization period. During the Phase 1 measurement stabilization period, measurement and payment will continue for the original PO-20 as defined in Exhibit B1.

d. OP-4 is included with OP-6 as five "families:" OP-4a/OP-6-1, OP-4b/OP-6-2, OP-4c/OP-6-3, OP-4d/OP-6-4, and OP-4e/OP-6-5. Measurements within each family share a single payment opportunity with only the measurement with the highest payment being paid.

e. For purposes of the PAP, OP-6a and OP-6b will be combined and treated as one. The combined OP-6 breaks down to OP-6-1 (within MSA), OP-6-2 (outside MSA), OP-6-3 (no dispatch), OP-6-4 (zone 1), and OP-6-5 (zone 2).

Attachment 2: Performance Measurements Subject to Per Measurement Caps

Billing

Time to Provide Recorded Usage Records – BI-1 (Tier 1/Tier 2) Billing Accuracy – Adjustments for Errors – BI-3 (Tier 1) Billing Completeness – BI-4 (Tier 1/Tier 2)

PERFORMANCE ASSURANCE PLAN

1.0 Introduction

1.1 As set forth in this Agreement, Qwest and CLEC voluntarily agree to the terms of the following Performance Assurance Plan ("PAP"), prepared in conjunction with Qwest's application for approval under Section 271 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the "Act") to offer in-region long distance service.

2.0 Plan Structure

2.1 The PAP is a two-tiered, self-executing remedy plan. CLEC shall be provided with Tier 1 payments if, as applicable, Qwest does not provide parity between the service it provides to CLEC and that which it provides to its own retail customers, or Qwest fails to meet applicable benchmarks.

2.1.1 As specified in section 7.0, if Qwest fails to meet parity and benchmark standards on an aggregate CLEC basis, Qwest shall make Tier 2 payments to a Fund administered by the state regulatory commission or, if required by existing law, to the state general fund.

2.2 As specified in sections 6.0 and 7.0 and Attachments 1 and 2, payment is generally on a per occurrence basis, (i.e., a set dollar payment times the number of non-conforming service events). For the performance measurements which do not lend themselves to per occurrence payment, payment is on a per measurement basis, (i.e., a set dollar payment). The level of payment also depends upon the number of consecutive months of non-conforming performance, (i.e., an escalating payment the longer the duration of non-conforming performance).

2.3 Qwest shall be in conformance with the parity standard when service Qwest provides to CLEC is equivalent to that which it provides meet the benchmark. Percentage benchmarks will be adjusted to round the allowable number of misses up or down to the closest integer, except when a benchmark standard and low CLEC volume are such that a 100% performance result would be required to meet the standard and has not been attained. In such a situation, the determination of whether Qwest meets or fails the benchmark standard will be made using performance results for the month in question, plus a sufficient number of consecutive months so that a 100% performance result would not be required to meet the standard. For purposes of section 6.2, a meet or fail determined by this procedure shall count as a single month to its retail customers. The PAP relies upon statistical scoring to determine whether any difference between CLEC and Qwest performance results is significant, that is, not attributable to simple random variation. Statistical parity shall exist when performance results for CLEC and for Qwest retail

Qwest South Dakota SGAT 4th Revision, 2nd Third Revised, Exhibit K October 31, 2003 June 24, 2004 Page 1

analogue result in a z-value that is no greater than the critical z-values listed in the Critical Z-Statistical Table in section 5.0

2.4 For performance measurements that have no Qwest retail analogue, agreed upon benchmarks shall be used. Benchmarks shall be evaluated using a "stare and compare" method. For example, if the benchmark is for a particular performance measurement is 95% or better, Qwest performance results must be at least 95% to

3.0 **Performance Measurements**

3.1 The performance measurements included in the PAP are set forth in Attachment 1. Each performance measurement identified is defined in the Performance Indicator Definitions ("PIDs") developed in the ROC Operational Support System ("OSS") collaborative, and which are included in the SGAT at Exhibit B. The measurements have been designated as Tier 1, Tier 2, or both Tier 1 and Tier 2 and given a High, Medium, or Low designation.

4.0 Statistical Measurement

4.1 Qwest uses a statistical test, namely the modified "z-test," for evaluating the difference between two means (i.e., Qwest and CLEC service or repair intervals) or two percentages (e.g., Qwest and CLEC proportions), to determine whether a parity condition exists between the results for Qwest and the CLEC(s). The modified z-tests shall be applicable if the number of data points are greater than 30 for a given measurement. For testing measurements for which the number of data points are 30 or less, Qwest will use a permutation test to determine the statistical significance of the difference between Qwest and CLEC.

4.2 Qwest shall be in conformance when the monthly performance results for parity measurements (whether in the form of means, percents, or proportions and at the equivalent level of disaggregation) are such that the calculated z-test statistics are not greater than the critical z-values as listed in Table 1, section 5.0.

4.3 Qwest shall be in conformance with benchmark measurements when the monthly performance result equals or exceeds the benchmark, if a higher value means better performance, and when the monthly performance result equals or is less than the benchmark if a lower value means better performance.

The formula for determining parity using the modified z-test is:

$$z = DIFF / \sigma_{DIFF}$$

Where:

 $\mathsf{DIFF} = \mathsf{M}_{\mathsf{Qwest}} - \mathsf{M}_{\mathsf{CLEC}}$

Qwest South Dakota SGAT 4th Revision, 2ndEvised, Exhibit KOctober 31, 200324, 2004Page 2

 M_{QWEST} = Qwest average or proportion

 $M_{CLEC} = CLEC$ average or proportion

 σ_{DIFF} = square root $\Box \sigma^{\Box} \text{Qwest} (1/n_{\text{CLEC}} + 1/n_{\text{Qwest}})]$

 σ^{2}_{Qwest} = calculated variance for Qwest

n_{Qwest} = number of observations or samples used in Qwest measurement

 n_{CLEC} = number of observations or samples used in CLEC measurement

The modified z-tests will be applied to reported parity measurements that contain more than 30 data points.

In calculating the difference between Qwest and CLEC performance, the above formula applies when a larger Qwest value indicates a better level of performance. In cases where a smaller Qwest value indicates a higher level of performance, the order is reversed, i.e., M_{CLEC} - M_{QWEST} .

4.3.1 For parity measurements where the number of data points is 30 or less, Qwest will apply a permutation test to test for statistical significance. Permutation analysis will be applied to calculate the z-statistic using the following logic:

Calculate the modified z-statistic for the actual arrangement of the data Pool and mix the CLEC and Qwest data sets Perform the following 1000 times:

Randomly subdivide the pooled data sets into two pools, one the same size as the original CLEC data set (n_{CLEC}) and one reflecting the remaining data points, and one reflecting the remaining data points, (which is equal to the size of the original Qwest data set or n_{QWEST}).

Compute and store the modified z-test score (Z_S) for this sample.

Count the number of times the z-statistic for a permutation of the data is greater than the actual modified z- statistic

Compute the fraction of permutations for which the statistic for the rearranged data is greater than the statistic for the actual samples

If the fraction is greater than α , the significance level of the test, the hypothesis of no difference is not rejected, and the test is passed. The α shall be .05 when the critical z value is 1.645 and .15 when the critical z value is 1.04.

5.0 Critical Z-Value

5.1 The following table shall be used to determine the critical z-value that is referred to in section 6.0. It is based on the monthly business volume of the CLEC for the particular performance measurements for which statistic testing is being performed.

| CLEC volume | LIS Trunks, UDITs, | All Other |
|----------------|---------------------|-----------|
| (Sample size) | Resale, UBL-DS1 and | |
| | DS-3 | |
| 1-10 | 1.04* | 1.645 |
| 11-150 | 1.645 | 1.645 |
| 151-300 | 2.0 | 2.0 |
| 301-600 | 2.7 | 2.7 |
| 601-3000 | 3.7 | 3.7 |
| 3001 and above | 4.3 | 4.3 |

TABLE 1: CRITICAL Z-VALUE

* The 1.04 applies for individual month testing for performance measurements involving LIS trunks and DS-1 and DS-3 that are UDITs, Resale, or Unbundled Loops. The performance measurements are OP-3d/e, OP-4d/e, OP-5a, OP-6-4/5, MR-5a/b, MR-7d/e, and MR-8.

For purposes of determining consecutive month misses, 1.645 shall be used. Where performance measurements disaggregate to zone 1 and zone 2, the zones shall be combined for purposes of statistical testing.

6.0 Tier 1 Payments to CLEC

6.1 Tier 1 payments to CLEC shall be made solely for the performance measurements designated as Tier 1 on Attachment 1. The payment amount for nonconforming service varies depending upon the designation of performance measurements as High, Medium, and Low and the duration of the non-conforming service condition as described below. Non-conforming service is defined in section 4.0.

6.1.1 Determination of Non-Conforming Measurements: The number of performance measurements that are determined to be non-conforming and, therefore, eligible for Tier 1 payments, are limited according to the critical z-value shown in Table 1, section 5.0. The critical z-values are the statistical standard that determines for each CLEC performance measurement whether Qwest has met parity. The critical z-value is selected from Table 1 according to the monthly CLEC volume for the performance measurement. For instance, if the CLEC sample size for

that month is 100, the critical z-value is 1.645 for the statistical testing of that parity performance measurement.

6.2 Determination of the Amount of Payment: Tier 1 payments to CLEC, except as provided for in sections 6.3 and 10.0, are calculated and paid monthly based on the number of performance measurements exceeding the critical z-value. Payments will be made on either a per occurrence or per measurement basis, depending upon the performance measurement, using the dollar amounts specified in Table 2 below. The dollar amounts vary depending upon whether the performance measurement is designated High, Medium, or Low and escalate depending upon the number of consecutive months for which Qwest has not met the standard for the particular measurement.

6.2.1 The escalation of payments for consecutive months of non-conforming service will be matched month for month with de-escalation of payments for every month of conforming service. For example, if Qwest has four consecutive monthly "misses" it will make payments that escalate from month 1 to month 4 as shown in Table 2. If, in the next month, service meets the standard, Qwest makes no payment. A payment "indicator" de-escalates down from month 4 to month 3. If Qwest misses the following month, it will make payment at the month 3 level of Table 2 because that is where the payment "indicator" presently sits. If Qwest misses again the following month, it will make payments that escalate back to the month 4 level. The payment level will de-escalate back to the original month 1 level only upon conforming service sufficient to move the payment "indicator" back to the month 1 level.

6.2.2 For those performance measurements listed on Attachment 2 as "Performance Measurements Subject to Per Measurement Caps," payment to a CLEC in a single month shall not exceed the amount listed in Table 2 below for the "Per Measurement" category. For those performance measurements listed on Attachment 2 as "Performance Measurements Subject to Per Measurement Payments," payment to a CLEC will be the amount set forth in Table 2 below under the section labeled "per measurement."

| Per Occurrence | | | | | | | |
|----------------------|---------|------------|------------|---------|---------|---------|---|
| Measurement Group | Month 1 | Month 2 | Month 3 | Month 4 | Month 5 | Month 6 | Each following month after Month 6 add |
| High | \$150 | \$250 | \$500 | \$600 | \$700 | \$800 | \$100 |
| Medium | \$ 75 | \$150 | \$300 | \$400 | \$500 | \$600 | \$100 |
| Low | \$ 25 | \$ 50 | \$100 | \$200 | \$300 | \$400 | \$100 |

TABLE 2: TIER-1 PAYMENTS TO CLEC

Qwest South Dakota SGAT 4th Revision, 2nd Third Revised, Exhibit K October 31, 2003 June 24, 2004 Page 5

| Per Measurement Cap | | | | | | | |
|------------------------|----------|--------------|--------------|---------------|---------------|-----------|---|
| Measurement Group | Month 1 | Month 2 | Month 3 | Month 4 | Month 5 | Month 6 | Each following month after Month 6 add |
| High | \$25,000 | \$50,00 0 | \$75,00 0 | \$100,00 0 | \$125,00 0 | \$150,000 | \$25,000 |
| Medium | \$10,000 | \$20,00 0 | \$30,00 0 | \$ 40,000 | \$ 50,000 | \$ 60,000 | \$ 10,000 |
| Low | \$ 5,000 | \$10,00 0 | \$15,00 0 | \$ 20,000 | \$ 25,000 | \$ 30,000 | \$ 5,000 |

6.3 For collocation, CP-2 and CP-4 performance measurements shall be relied upon for delineation of collocation business rules. For purposes of calculating Tier 1 payments, collocation jobs and collocation feasibility studies that are later than the due date will have a per day payment applied according to Table 3. The per day payment will be applied to any collocation job in which the feasibility study is provided or the collocation installation is completed later than the scheduled date. The calculation of the payment amount will be performed by applying the per day payment amounts as specified in Table 3. Thus, for days 1 through 10, the payment is \$150 per day. For days 11 through 20, the payment is \$300 per day and so on.

| Days Late | Completion Date | Feasibility Study | |
|-------------------|-----------------|-------------------|--|
| 1 to 10 days | \$150/day | \$45/day | |
| 11 to 20 days | \$300/day | \$90/day | |
| 21 to 30 days | \$450/day | \$135/day | |
| 31 to 40 days | \$600/day | \$180/day | |
| More than 40 days | \$1,000/day | \$300/day | |

TABLE 3: TIER-1 COLLOCATION PAYMENTS TO CLECS

6.4 A minimum payment calculation shall be performed at the end of each year for each CLEC with annual order volumes of no more than 1,200. The payment shall be calculated by multiplying \$2,000 by the number of months in which at least one payment was made to the CLEC. To the extent that the actual CLEC payment for the year is less than the product of the preceding calculation, Qwest shall make an additional payment equal to the difference.

7.0 Tier 2 Payments to the State

7.1 Payments to the State shall be limited to the performance measurements designated in section 7.4 for Tier 2 per measurement payments and in Attachment 1 for per occurrence payments and which have at least 10 data points each month for

the period payments are being calculated. Similar to the Tier 1 structure, Tier 2 measurements are categorized as High, Medium, and Low and the amount of payments for non-conformance varies according to this categorization.

7.2 Determination of Non-Conforming Measurements: The determination of nonconformance will be based upon the aggregate of all CLEC data for each Tier 2 performance measurement. Non-conforming service is defined in section 4.2 (for parity measurements) and 4.3 (for benchmark measurements), except that a 1.645 critical z-value shall be used for all parity measurements but MR-2 and OP-2. The critical z-value is the statistical standard that determines for each performance measurement whether Qwest has met parity.

7.3 Determination of the Amount of Payment: Except as provided in section 7.4, Tier 2 payments are calculated and paid monthly based on the number of performance measurements exceeding the critical z-value, identified in section 7.2, in a single month. Payment will be made on either a per occurrence or per measurement basis, whichever is applicable to the performance measurement, using the dollar amounts specified in Table 4 or Table 5 below. Except as provided in section 7.4, the dollar amounts vary depending upon whether the performance measurement is designated High, Medium, or Low.

7.3.1 For those Tier 2 measurements listed on Attachment 2 as "Performance Measurements Subject to Per Measurement Caps," payment to the State in a single month shall not exceed the amount listed in Table 4 for the "Per Measurement" category.

| TABLE 4: TIER-2 PAYMENTS TO STA | ATE FUNDS |
|---------------------------------|-----------|
|---------------------------------|-----------|

Per Occurrence

| Measurement Group | |
|---------------------------------------|-------|
| High | |
| | \$500 |
| Medium | |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | \$300 |
| Low | |
| | \$200 |

Per Measurement/Cap

| Measurement Group | |
|-------------------|----------|
| High | \$75,000 |
| Medium | \$30,000 |
| Low | \$20,000 |

7.4 <u>Performance Measurements Subject to Per Measurement Payment</u>: The following Tier 2 performance measurements shall have their performance results measured on a region-wide (14 state) basis. Failure to meet the performance standard, therefore, will result in a per measurement payment in each of the Qwest in-region 14 states adopting this PAP. The performance measurements are:

GA-1: Gateway Availability - IMA-GUI

GA-2: Gateway Availability - IMA-EDI

GA-3: Gateway Availability – EB-TA

GA-4: System Availability - EXACT

GA-6: Gateway Availability - GUI-Repair

PO-1: Pre-Order/Order Response Times

OP-2: Call Answered within Twenty Seconds – Interconnect Provisioning Center

MR-2: Calls Answered within Twenty Seconds – Interconnect Repair Center PO-20:¹ Manual Service Order Accuracy

GA-1 has three-two sub-measurements: GA-1A, GA-1B, and GA-1C1D. PO-1 shall have two sub-measurements: PO-1A and PO-1B. PO-1A and PO-1B shall have their transaction types aggregated together. PO-20 shall have two product disaggregations – Resale POTS / UNE-P (POTS) and Unbundled Loops (Analog and Non-Loaded 2-Wire).

For these measurements, Qwest will make a Tier 2 payment based upon monthly performance results according to Table 5: Tier 2 Per Measurement Payments to State Funds.

| Measurement | Performance | State | 14 State |
|--------------------|----------------|----------|-----------|
| | | Payment | Payment |
| GA-1,2,3,4,6 | 1% or lower | \$1,000 | \$14,000 |
| | >1% to 3% | \$10,000 | \$140,000 |
| | >3% to 5% | \$20,000 | \$280,000 |
| | >5% | \$30,000 | \$420,000 |
| | | | |
| PO-1 | 2 sec. Or less | \$1,000 | \$14,000 |
| | >2 sec. to 5 | \$5,000 | \$70,000 |
| | sec. | | |
| | >5 sec. to 10 | \$10,000 | \$140,000 |
| | sec. | | |
| | >10 sec. | \$15,000 | \$210,000 |
| | | | |
| OP-2/MR-2 | 1% or lower | \$1,000 | \$14,000 |
| | >1% to 3% | \$5,000 | \$70,000 |
| | >3% to 5% | \$10,000 | \$140,000 |
| | >5% | \$15,000 | \$210,000 |
| | | | |
| PO-20 ¹ | | | |

TABLE 5: TIER-2 PER MEASUREMENT PAYMENTS TO STATE FUNDS

Qwest South Dakota SGAT 4th Revision, 2nd2ndExhibit KOctober 31, 200324, 2004Page 8

¹ This version of PO-20 as defined in Exhibit B1 will continue to be reported and subject to payments until Phase 1 of the new PO-20 (Expanded) – Manual Service Order Accuracy becomes eligible for payments following a maximum three month measurement stabilization period.

| - Resale POTS / | 1% or lower | \$500 | \$7,000 |
|-------------------|-------------|---------|-----------|
| UNE-P (POTS) | >1% to 3% | \$2,500 | \$35,000 |
| | >3% to 5% | \$5,000 | \$70,000 |
| | >5% | \$7,500 | \$105,000 |
| | | | |
| - Unbundled Loops | 1% or lower | \$500 | \$7,000 |
| (Analog and 2- | >1% to 3% | \$2,500 | \$35,000 |
| Wire | | | |
| Non-Loaded) | >3% to 5% | \$5,000 | \$70,000 |
| | >5% | \$7,500 | \$105,000 |

7.5 Payment of Tier 2 Funds: Payments to a state fund shall be used for any purpose determined by the Commission that is allowed to it by state law. If the Commission is not permitted by state law to receive or administer Tier 2 payments, payments shall be made to the state general fund or to such other source as may be provided for under state law.

8.0 Step by Step Calculation of Monthly Tier 1 Payments to CLEC

8.1 Application of the Critical Z-Values: Qwest shall identify the Tier 1 parity performance measurements that measure the service provided to CLEC by Qwest for the month in question and the critical z-value from Table 1 in section 5.0 that shall be used for purposes of statistical testing for each particular performance measurement. The statistical testing procedures described in section 4.0 shall be applied. For the purpose of determining the critical z-values, each disaggregated category of a performance measurement is treated as a separate sub-measurement. The critical z-value to be applied is determined by the CLEC volume at each level of disaggregation or sub-measurement.

8.2 Performance Measurements for which Tier 1 Payment is Per Occurrence:

8.2.1 Performance Measurements that are Averages or Means:

8.2.1.1 Step 1: For each performance measurement, the average or the mean that would yield the critical z-value shall be calculated. The same denominator as the one used in calculating the z-statistic for the measurement shall be used. (For benchmark measurements, the benchmark value shall be used.)

8.2.1.2 Step 2: The percentage differences between the actual averages and the calculated averages shall be calculated. The calculation is % diff = (CLEC result – Calculated Value)/Calculated Value.

8.2.1.3 Step 3: For each performance measurement, the total number of data points shall be multiplied by the percentage calculated in the previous step and the per occurrence dollar amounts from the Tier 1 Payment Table shall determine the payment to the CLEC for each non-conforming performance measurement.

8.2.2 Performance Measurements that are Percentages:

8.2.2.1 Step 1: For each performance measurement, the percentage that would yield the critical z-value shall be calculated. The same denominator as the one used in calculating the z- statistic for the measurement shall be used. (For benchmark measurements, the benchmark value shall be used.)

8.2.2.2 Step 2: The difference between the actual percentages for the CLEC and the calculated percentages shall be determined.

8.2.2.3 Step 3: For each performance measurement, the total number of data points shall be multiplied by the difference in percentage calculated in the previous step, and the per occurrence dollar amount taken from the Tier 1 Payment Table, to determine the payment to the CLEC for each non-conforming performance measurement.

8.2.3 Performance Measurements that are Ratios or Proportions:

8.2.3.1 Step 1: For each performance measurement the ratio that would yield the critical z-value shall be calculated. The same denominator as the one used in calculating the z-statistic for the measurement shall be used. (For benchmark measurements, the benchmark value shall be used.)

8.2.3.2 Step 2: The absolute difference between the actual rate for the CLEC and the calculated rate shall be determined.

8.2.3.3 Step 3: For each performance measurement, the total number of data points shall be multiplied by the difference calculated in the previous step, and the per occurrence dollar amount taken from the Tier 1 Payment Table, to determine the payment to the CLEC for each non-conforming performance measurement.

8.3 Performance Measurements for which Tier 1 Payment is Per Measure:

8.3.1 For each performance measurement where Qwest fails to meet the standard, the payment to the CLEC shall be the dollar amount shown on the "per measure" portion of Table 2: Tier 1 Payments to CLEC.

9.0 Step by Step Calculation of Monthly Tier 2 Payments to State Funds

9.1 Application of the Critical Z-Values: Qwest shall identify the Tier 2 parity performance measurements that measure the service provided to all CLECs by Qwest for the month in question. The statistical testing procedures described in section 4.0 shall be applied, except that a 1.645 critical z-value shall be used for all parity measurements except MR-2 and OP-2. If Qwest misses a performance standard and there are at least 10 data points for the performance measurement, a Tier 2 payment will be calculated and paid as described below and will continue in each succeeding month until Qwest's performance meets the applicable standard.

9.2 Performance Measurements for which Tier 2 Payment is Per Occurrence:

9.2.1 Performance Measurements that are Averages or Means:

9.2.1.1 Step 1: The monthly average or the mean for each performance measurement that would yield the critical z-value for each month shall be calculated. The same denominator as the one used in calculating the z-statistic for the measurement shall be used. (For benchmark measurements, the benchmark value shall be used.)

9.2.1.2 Step 2: The percentage difference between the actual averages and the calculated averages for each month shall be calculated. The calculation for parity measurements is % diff = (actual average – calculated average)/calculated average.

9.2.1.3 Step 3: For each performance measurement, the total number of data points for the non-conforming month shall be multiplied by the percentage calculated in the previous step and multiplied by the result of the per occurrence dollar amount taken from the Tier 2 Payment Table to determine the payment to the State for each non-conforming performance measurement.

9.3 Performance Measurements that are Percentages:

9.3.1 Step 1: For each performance measurement, the monthly percentage that would yield the critical z-value for each month shall be calculated. The same denominator as the one used in calculating the z-statistic for the measurement shall be used. (For benchmark measurements, the benchmark value shall be used.)

9.3.1.2 Step 2: The difference between the actual percentages and the calculated percentages for the non-conforming month shall be calculated. The calculation for parity measurement is diff = (CLEC result – calculated percentage). This formula shall be applicable where a high value is indicative of poor performance. The formula shall be reversed where high performance is indicative of good performance.

9.3.1.3 Step 3: For each performance measurement, the total number of data points for the non-conforming month shall be multiplied by the difference in percentage calculated in the previous step and multiplied by the result of the per occurrence

dollar amounts taken from the Tier 2 Payment Table to determine the payment to the State.

9.4 Performance Measurements that are Ratios or Proportions:

9.4.1 Step 1: For each performance measurement, the ratio that would yield the critical z-value for each month shall be calculated. The same denominator as the one used in calculating the z-statistic for the measurement shall be used. (For benchmark measurements, the benchmark value shall be used.)

9.4.1.1 Step 2: The difference between the actual rate for the CLEC and the calculated rate for the non-conforming month shall be calculated. The calculation is: diff = (CLEC rate – calculated rate). This formula shall apply where a high value is indicative of poor performance. The formula shall be reversed where high performance is indicative of good performance.

9.4.1.2 Step 3: For each performance measurement, the total number of data points shall be multiplied by the difference calculated in the previous step for the non-conforming month and multiplied by the result of the per occurrence dollar amounts taken from the Tier 2 Payment Table to determine the payment to the State.

9.5 Performance Measurements for which Tier 2 Payment is Per Measure:

9.5.1 For each performance measurement where Qwest fails to meet the standard, the payment to the State Fund shall be the dollar amount shown on the "per measure" portion of the Tier 2 Payment Table.

10.0 Low Volume, Developing Markets

10.1 For certain qualifying performance standards, if the aggregate monthly volumes of CLECs participating in the PAP are more than 10, but less than 100, Qwest will make Tier 1 payments to CLECs for failure to meet the parity or benchmark standard for the qualifying performance sub-measurements. The qualifying sub-measurements are the UNE-P (POTS), megabit resale, and ADSL qualified loop product disaggregation of OP-3, OP-4, OP-5a, MR-3, MR-5, MR-7, and MR-8. If the aggregate monthly CLEC volume is greater than 100, the provisions of this section shall not apply to the qualifying performance sub-measurement.

10.2 The determination of whether Qwest has met the parity or benchmark standards will be made using aggregate volumes of CLECs participating in the PAP. In the event Qwest does not meet the applicable performance standards, a total

payment to affected CLECs will be determined in accordance with the high, medium, low designation for each performance measurement (see Attachment 1) and as described in section 8.0, except that CLEC aggregate volumes will be used. In the event the calculated total payment amount to CLECs is less than \$5,000, a minimum payment of \$5,000 shall be made. The resulting total payment amount to CLECs will be apportioned to the affected CLECs based upon each CLEC's relative share of the number of total service misses.

10.3 At the six (6)-month reviews, Qwest will consider adding to the above list of qualifying performance sub-measurements, new products disaggregation representing new modes of CLEC entry into developing markets.

11.0 Payment

11.1 Payments to CLEC, the State, or the Special Fund shall be made one month following the due date of the performance measurement report for the month for which payment is being made. Qwest will pay interest on any late payment and underpayment at the prime rate as reported in the Wall Street Journal. On any overpayment, Qwest is allowed to offset future payments by the amount of the overpayment plus interest at the prime rate.

11.2 Payment to CLEC shall be made via bill credits. Bill credits shall be identified on a summary format substantially similar to that distributed as a prototype to the CLECs and the Commissions. To the extent that a monthly payment owed to CLEC under this PAP exceeds the amount owed to Qwest by CLEC on a monthly bill, Qwest will issue a check or wire transfer to CLEC in the amount of the overage. Payment to the State shall be made via check or wire transfer.

11.3 Upon the execution of a memorandum of understanding with the South Dakota Commission, a South Dakota Special Fund and a South Dakota Discretionary Fund shall be created for the purposes and in accordance with section 11.0. The South Dakota Commission shall authorize disbursement of funds. All claims against the funds shall be presented to the Commission and shall be the responsibility of the South Dakota Commission.

11.3.1 Qwest shall establish the South Dakota Special Fund and the South Dakota Discretionary Fund as separate interest bearing escrow accounts. Upon Qwest receiving effective section 271 authority from the FCC for the state of South Dakota, the Commission shall determine and direct Qwest to deposit into the South Dakota Special Fund either 1) one-fifth of all Tier 1 payments that exceed the month 1 payment amounts in Table 2 and one-third of all Tier 2 payments or 2) 50% of all Tier 2 payments. Qwest shall deposit any other Tier 2 payments into the South Dakota Discretionary Fund. The costs of the escrow accounts will be paid for from the accounts' funds.

11.3.2 The South Dakota Special Fund shall be created to pay the independent auditor and audit costs for the purpose of regional or state audits as specified in section 15.1 or, and to pay expenses incurred by the Commission in participating in any regional review of the PIDs. Disbursements from the South Dakota Special Fund shall first be from Tier 2 funds and second from Tier 1 funds. Not less than every two years, Tier 1 funds that are not needed to meet the continuing obligations of the Special Fund shall be returned on a pro-rata basis to CLECs, including any interest not used for fund administration. Other than the transfer of funds allowed in section 11.3.2.1, disbursements from the South Dakota Discretionary Fund shall be for, but not limited to, South Dakota telecommunications initiatives. Any excess funds in the South Dakota Special Fund may be transferred to the South Dakota Discretionary Fund at the Commission's discretion.

11.3.2.1 If the South Dakota Commission chooses not to participate in the regional audit pursuant to section 15.1 and the account balance of the South Dakota Special Fund escrow account is less than \$50,000 at the time of any state audit described in section 15.1, a transfer of funds from the South Dakota Discretionary Fund to the South Dakota Special Fund shall be allowed in the amount necessary to bring the South Dakota Special Fund balance to \$50,000.

11.3.3 Notwithstanding the provisions herein, Qwest shall advance sufficient funds to any consolidated Special Fund established by participating states, set up for the purpose of a regional audit as specified in sections 15.1, not to exceed \$200,000 (or \$500,000 in the event 6 or more states participate in the regional audit) in order to meet initial claims against that Fund to the extent that contributions from Tier 1 and/or Tier 2 payments are insufficient. Qwest shall be allowed to recover any such advances plus interest at the rate that such an escrow account would have earned from future Tier 2 payments.

12.0 Cap on Tier 1 and Tier 2 Payments

12.1 There shall be a cap on the total payments made by Qwest for a 12-month period beginning with the effective date of the PAP for the State of South Dakota. The annual cap for the State of South Dakota shall be 36% of the prior year's ARMIS Net Return, or \$15,000,000, whichever is greater, subject to any applicable adjustments permitted pursuant to section 12.2. Qwest shall submit to the Commission the calculation of each year's cap no later than 30 days after submission of ARMIS results to the FCC. CLEC agrees that this amount constitutes a maximum annual cap that shall apply to the aggregate total of Tier 1 liquidated damages, including any such damages paid pursuant to this Agreement, any other interconnection agreement, or any other payments made for the same underlying activity or omission under any other contract, order or rule and Tier 2 assessments or payments made by Qwest for the same underlying activity or omission under any other contract, order or rule and Tier 2 assessments or payments made by Qwest for the same underlying activity or omission under any other same underlying activity or omission under any other

Qwest South Dakota SGAT 4th Revision, 2ndThird Revised,Exhibit KOctober 31, 200324, 2004Page 14

12.2 If Qwest payments equal or exceed the annual cap for two years in a row or equal or exceed 1/3rd of the annual cap in a combination of two consecutive months, the Commission shall have the authority to open a proceeding to request Qwest to explain the non-conforming performance and show that it did not result from Qwest's failure to act in a prudent manner to avoid reasonably foreseeable consequences. The Commission may raise the cap to the amount which Qwest would have paid in the higher of the prior two years, may ask the Federal Communication Commission ("FCC") to halt Qwest's in-region interLATA long distance marketing authority for a particular interval, or may take other appropriate action.

12.3 If the annual cap is reached, each CLEC shall, as of the end of the plan year, be entitled to receive the same percentage of its total calculated Tier 1 payments. In order to preserve the operation of the annual cap, the percentage of equalization shall take place as follows:

12.3.1 The amount by which any month's total year-to-date Tier 1 and Tier 2 payments exceeds the cumulative monthly cap (defined as 1/12th of the annual cap times the cumulative number of months to date) shall be calculated and apportioned between Tier 1 and Tier 2 according to the percentage that each bore of total payments for the year-to-date. The Tier 1 apportionment resulting of this calculation shall be known as the "Tracking Account."

12.3.2 The Tier 1 apportionment shall be debited against the monthly payment due to each CLEC, by applying to the year-to-date payments received by each the percentage necessary to generate the required total Tier 1 amount.

12.3.3 The Tracking Amount shall be apportioned among all CLECs so as to provide each with payments equal in percentage of its total year to date Tier 1 payment calculations.

12.3.4 This calculation shall take place in the first month that the year-to-date total Tier 1 and Tier 2 payments are expected to exceed the cumulative monthly cap and for each month of that year thereafter. Qwest shall recover any debited amounts by reducing payments due to any CLEC for that month and any succeeding months, as necessary.

13.0 Limitations

13.1 The PAP shall not become available in the State unless and until Qwest receives effective section 271 authority from the FCC for that State.

13.2 Qwest will not be liable for Tier 1 payments to CLEC in an FCC approved state until the Commission has approved an interconnection agreement between CLEC and Qwest which adopts the provisions of this PAP.

Qwest shall not be obligated to make Tier 1 or Tier 2 payments for any 13.3 measurement if and to the extent that non-conformance for that measurement was the result of any of the following: 1) with respect to performance measurements with a benchmark standard, a Force Majeure event as defined in section 5.7 of the SGAT. Qwest will provide notice of the occurrence of a Force Majeure event within 72 hours of the time Qwest learns of the event or within a reasonable time frame that Qwest should have learned of it; 2) an act or omission by a CLEC that is contrary to any of its obligations under its interconnection agreement with Qwest or under federal or state law; an act or omission by CLEC that is in bad faith. Examples of bad faith conduct include, but are not limited to: unreasonably holding service orders and/or applications, "dumping" orders or applications in unreasonably large batches, "dumping" orders or applications at or near the close of a business day, on a Friday evening or prior to a holiday, and failing to provide timely forecasts to Qwest for services or facilities when such forecasts are explicitly required by the SGAT; 3) problems associated with third-party systems or equipment, which could not have been avoided by Qwest in the exercise of reasonable diligence, provided, however, that this third party exclusion will not be raised in the State more than three times within a calendar year. If a Force Majeure event or other excusing event recognized in this section merely suspends Qwest's ability to timely perform an activity subject to a performance measurement that is an interval measure, the applicable time frame in which Qwest's compliance with the parity or benchmark criterion is measured will be extended on an hour-for-hour or day-for-day basis, as applicable, equal to the duration of the excusing event.

13.3.1 Qwest will not be excused from Tier 1 or Tier 2 payments for any reason except as described in Section 13.0. Qwest will have the burden of demonstrating that its non-conformance with the performance measurement was excused on one of the grounds described in this PAP. A party may petition the Commission to require Qwest to deposit disputed payments into an escrow account when the requesting party can show cause, such as grounds provided in the Uniform Commercial Code for cases of commercial uncertainty.

13.3.2 Notwithstanding any other provision of this PAP, it shall not excuse performance that Qwest could reasonably have been expected to deliver assuming that it had designed, implemented, staffed, provisioned, and otherwise provided for resources reasonably required to meet foreseeable volumes and patterns of demands upon its resources by CLECs.

13.4 Qwest's agreement to implement these enforcement terms, and specifically its agreement to pay any "liquidated damages" or "assessments" hereunder, will not be considered as an admission against interest or an admission of liability in any legal, regulatory, or other proceeding relating in whole or in part to the same performance.

13.4.1 CLEC may not use: 1) the existence of this enforcement plan; or 2) Qwest's payment of Tier -1 "liquidated damages" or Tier 2 "assessments" as evidence that

Qwest has discriminated in the provision of any facilities or services under Sections 251 or 252, or has violated any state or federal law or regulation. Qwest's conduct underlying its performance measures, however are not made inadmissible by its terms.

13.4.2 By accepting this performance remedy plan, CLEC agrees that Qwest's performance with respect to this remedy plan may not be used as an admission of liability or culpability for a violation of any state or federal law or regulation. (Nothing herein is intended to preclude Qwest from introducing evidence of any Tier 1 "liquidated damages" under these provisions for the purpose of offsetting the payment against any other damages or payments a CLEC might recover.) The terms of this paragraph do not apply to any proceeding before the Commission or the FCC to determine whether Qwest has met or continues to meet the requirements of section 271 of the Act.

13.5 By incorporating these liquidated damages terms into the PAP, Qwest and CLEC accepting this PAP agree that proof of damages from any non-conforming performance measurement would be difficult to ascertain and, therefore, liquidated damages are a reasonable approximation of any contractual damages that may result from a non-conforming performance measurement. Qwest and CLEC further agree that Tier 1 payments made pursuant to this PAP are not intended to be a penalty. The application of the assessments and damages provided for herein is not intended to foreclose other non-contractual legal and non-contractual regulatory claims and remedies that may be available to a CLEC.

13.6 This PAP contains a comprehensive set of performance measurements, statistical methodologies, and payment mechanisms that are designed to function together, and only together, as an integrated whole. To elect the PAP, CLEC must adopt the PAP in its entirety in its interconnection agreement with Qwest in lieu of other alternative standards or relief. Where alternative standards or remedies for Qwest's wholesale performance are available under rules, orders, or contracts, including interconnection agreements, CLEC will be limited to either PAP standards and remedies or the standards and remedies available under rules, orders or contracts and CLECs choice of remedies shall be specified in its interconnection agreement.

13.7 Any liquidated damages payment by Qwest under these provisions is not hereby made inadmissible in any proceeding related to the same conduct where Qwest seeks to offset the payments against any other damages a CLEC may recover; whether or not the nature of the damages sought by the CLEC is such that an offset is appropriate will be determined in the relevant proceeding.

13.8 To the extent Qwest believes that some Tier 2 payments required to be made under this PAP would duplicate payments that have been assessed by or on behalf of the Commission pursuant to any service quality rules or Commission orders, Qwest may make such Tier 2 payments to a special interest bearing escrow account
and then dispute the payments before the South Dakota Commission. If Qwest can show that the payments relate to the same underlying activity or omission, it may retain the Tier 2 payments and any interest accrued on such payments.

13.9Whenever a Qwest Tier 1 payment to an individual CLEC exceeds \$3 million in a month, Qwest may commence a proceeding to demonstrate why it should not be required to pay any amount in excess of the \$3 million. Upon timely commencement of the proceeding, Qwest must pay the balance of payments owed in excess of \$3 million into escrow, to be held by a third-party pending the outcome of the proceeding. To invoke these escrow provisions, Qwest must file, not later than the due date of the Tier 1 payments, its application. Qwest will have the burden of proof to demonstrate why, under the circumstances, it would be unjust to require it to make the payments in excess of \$3 million. If Qwest reports non-conforming performance to CLEC for three consecutive months on 20% or more of the measurements reported to CLEC and has incurred no more than \$1 million in liability to CLEC, then CLEC may commence a similar proceeding. In any such proceeding CLEC will have the burden of proof to demonstrate why, under the circumstances, justice requires Qwest to make payments in excess of the amount calculated pursuant to the terms of the PAP. The disputes identified in this section shall be resolved in a manner specified in the Dispute Resolution section of the SGAT with the CLEC.

13.10 Any payments made by Qwest as a result of the PAP should not: 1) be included as expenses in any Qwest revenue requirement, or 2) be reflected in increased rates to CLECs for services and facilities provided pursuant to Section 251(c) of the Telecommunication Act of 1996 and priced pursuant to Section 252(d) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996.

13.11 This Exhibit K may be assigned as a part of any agreement to which SGAT Section 5.12.1 is applicable.

14.0 Reporting

14.1 Upon receiving effective section 271 authority from the FCC for a state, Qwest will provide CLEC that has an approved interconnection agreement with Qwest, a monthly report of Qwest's performance for the measurements identified in the PAP by the last day of the month following the month for which performance results are being reported. However, Qwest shall have a grace period of five business days, so that Qwest shall not be deemed out of compliance with its reporting obligations before the expiration of the five business day grace period. Qwest will collect, analyze, and report performance data for the measurements listed on Attachment 1 in accordance with the most recent version of the PIDs. Upon CLEC's request, data files of the CLEC's raw data, or any subset thereof, will be transmitted, without charge, to CLEC in a mutually acceptable format, protocol, and transmission medium.

Qwest will also provide the Commission a monthly report of aggregate CLEC 14.2 performance results pursuant to the PAP by the last day of the month following the month for which performance results are being reported. However, Qwest shall have a grace period of five business days, so that Qwest shall not be deemed out of compliance with its reporting obligations before the expiration of the five business day grace period. Individual CLEC reports of participating CLECs will also be available to the Commission upon request. By accepting this PAP, CLEC consents to Qwest providing CLEC's report and raw data to the State Commission. Pursuant to the terms of an order of the Commission, Qwest may provide CLEC-specific data that relates to the PAP, provided that Qwest shall first initiate any procedures necessary to protect the confidentiality and to prevent the public release of the information pending any applicable Commission procedures and further provided that Qwest provides such notice as the Commission directs to the CLEC involved, in order to allow it to prosecute such procedures to their completion. Data files of participating CLEC raw data, or any subset thereof, will be transmitted, without charge, to the Commission in a mutually acceptable format, protocol, and transmission form.

In the event Qwest does not provide CLEC and the Commission with a 14.3 monthly report by the last day of the month following the month for which performance results are being reported, Qwest will pay to the State a total of \$500 for each business day for which performance reports are 6 to 10 business days past the due date; \$1,000 for each business day for which performance reports are 11 to 15 business days past the due date; and \$2,000 for each business day for which performance results are more than 15 business days past the due date. If reports are on time but are missing performance results, Qwest will pay to the State a total of one-fifth of the late report amount for each missing performance measurement, subject to a cap of the full late report amount. These amounts represent the total payments for omitting performance measurements or missing any report deadlines, rather than a payment per report. Prior to the date of a payment for late reports, Qwest may file a request for a waiver of the payment, which states the reasons for the waiver. The Commission may grant the waiver, deny the waiver, or provide any other relief that may be appropriate.

14.4 To the extent that Qwest recalculates payments made under this PAP, such recalculation shall be limited to the preceding three years (measured from the later of the provision of a monthly credit statement or payment due date). Qwest shall retain sufficient records to demonstrate fully the basis for its calculations for long enough to meet this potential recalculation obligation. CLEC verification or recalculation efforts should be made reasonably contemporaneously with Qwest measurements. In any event, Qwest shall maintain the records in a readily useable format for one year. For the remaining two years, the records may be retained in archived format. Any payment adjustments shall be subject to the interest rate provisions of section 11.1.

15.0 Integrated Audit Program/Investigations of Performance Results

15.1 Audits of the PAP shall be conducted under the auspices of the Commission in accordance with a detailed audit plan developed by an independent auditor and approved by the Commission. The Commission shall select the independent auditor with input from Qwest and the CLECs. The Commission will determine, based upon requests and upon its own investigation, which results and/or measures should be audited. The Commission may, at its discretion, conduct audits through participation in a collaborative process with other states.

15.1.1 The initial audit plan shall be conducted over two years, with audit periods subsequent to the initial audit to be determined by the Commission. The Commission will determine the scope of and procedure for the audit plan, which, at a minimum, will identify the specific performance measurements to be audited, the specific tests to be conducted, and the entity to conduct them. The initial audit plan will give priority to auditing the higher risk areas identified in the Final OSS Report.

15.1.2 The Commission will attempt to coordinate its audit plan with other audit plans that may be conducted by other state commissions so as to avoid duplication. The audit shall be conducted so as not to impede Qwest's ability to comply with the other provisions of the PAP and should be of a nature and scope that it can be conducted in accordance with the reasonable course of Qwest's business operations.

15.1.3 Any dispute arising out of the audit plan, the conduct of the audit, or audit results shall be resolved by the Commission.

15.2 Qwest must report to the Commission monthly any changes it makes to the automated or manual processes used to produce performance results including data collection, generation, and reporting. The reports must include sufficient detail to enable the parties to understand the scope and nature of the changes.

15.3 In the event of a disagreement between Qwest and CLEC as to any issue regarding the accuracy or integrity of data collected, generated, and reported pursuant to the PAP, Qwest and the CLEC shall first consult with one another and attempt in good faith to resolve the issue. If an issue is not resolved within 45 days after a request for consultation, CLEC and Qwest may, upon a demonstration of good cause (e.g., evidence of material errors or discrepancies), request an independent audit to be conducted, at the initiating party's expense. The independent auditor will assess the need for an audit based upon whether there exists a material deficiency in the data or whether there exists an issue not otherwise addressed by the audit plan for the current cycle. The Commission will resolve any dispute by any party questioning the independent auditor's decision to conduct or not conduct a CLEC requested audit and the audit findings, should such an audit be conducted. Audit findings will include: (a) general applicability of findings and conclusions (i.e., relevance to CLECs or jurisdictions other than the ones causing test initiation), (b) magnitude of any payment adjustments required and, (c) whether cost

responsibility should be shifted based upon the materiality and clarity of any Qwest nonconformance with measurement requirements (no pre-determined variance is appropriate, but should be based on the auditor's professional judgment). CLEC may not request an audit of data more than three years from the later of the provision of a monthly credit statement or payment due date.

15.4 Expenses for the audit of the PAP and any other related expenses incurred by the Commission, except that which may be assigned under section 15.3, shall be paid first from the Tier 2 funds in the Special Fund. If no Special Fund is in existence or Tier 2 funds are not otherwise sufficient to cover audit costs in whole or in part, the Commission will develop an additional funding method that will include contributions from CLECs' Tier 1 payments and from Qwest.

15.5 Any party may petition the Commission to request that Qwest investigate any consecutive Tier 1 miss or any second consecutive Tier 2 miss to determine the cause of the miss and to identify the action needed in order to meet the standard set forth in the performance measurements. Qwest will report the results of its investigation to the Commission, and to the extent an investigation determines that a CLEC was responsible in whole or in part for the Tier 2 misses, Qwest may petition the Commission to request that it receive credit against future Tier 2 payments in an amount equal to the Tier 2 payments that should not have been made. Qwest may also request that the relevant portion of subsequent Tier 2 payments will not be owed until any responsible CLEC problems are corrected. For the purposes of this sub-section, Tier 1 performance measurements that have not been designated as Tier 2 will be aggregated and the aggregate results will be investigated pursuant to the terms of this agreement.

16.0 Reviews

Every six (6) months beginning six months after the effective date of 271 16.1 approval by the FCC for the state of South Dakota, Qwest, CLECs, and the Commission shall participate in a review of the performance measurements to determine whether the measurements should be added, deleted, or modified; whether the applicable benchmark standards should be modified or replaced by standards; and whether to move a classification of a measurement to High, Medium, or Low or Tier 1 to Tier 2. Criteria for review of performance measurement, other than for possible reclassification, shall be whether there exists an omission or failure to capture intended performance, and whether there is duplication of another measurement. After the Commission considers changes proposed in the six month review process, it shall determine what, if any, changes shall be made by Qwest. The Commission retains its independent authority under state law to initiate a proceeding to review the PAP at any time and to order changes to any provisions of the PAP, after notice and hearing, and consistent with due process and other rights of all parties. No new performance measurements shall be added to the PAP that have not been subject to observation as a diagnostic measurement for a period of six

(6) months, unless ordered otherwise by the Commission. Any changes made pursuant to this section shall apply to and modify this agreement.

16.1.1 Notwithstanding section 16.1, if any agreements on adding, modifying, deleting, performance measurements as permitted by section 16.1 are reached between Qwest and CLECs participating in an industry Regional Oversight Committee (ROC) PID administration forum, those agreements shall be incorporated into the QPAP and modify the agreement between CLEC and Qwest at any time those agreements are submitted to and approved by the Commission, whether before or after a six-month review.

16.1.2 Nothing in this PAP precludes the Commission from modifying the PAP based upon its independent state law authority, subject to judicial challenge. Nothing in this PAP constitutes a grant of authority by either party to this agreement nor does it constitute a waiver by either party to this agreement of any claim either party may have that the Commission lacks jurisdiction to make any modifications to this PAP, including any modifications resulting from the process described in Section 16.0.

16.2 Two years after the effective date of the first FCC 271 approval of the PAP, the Commission, by itself or in conjunction with other state commissions, may conduct a review by a independent third party to examine the continuing effectiveness of the PAP as a means of inducing compliant performance. Except for expenses which may be assigned under section 15.3, the expenses of any review by the state of South Dakota, or if the Commission participates in a multistate review, the expenses shall be paid first from the Tier 2 funds in the Special Fund. If no Special Fund is in existence or Tier 2 funds are not otherwise sufficient to cover audit costs in whole or in part, the Commission will develop an additional funding method that will include contribution from CLECs' Tier 1 payments and from Qwest.

16.3 Qwest will make the PAP available for CLEC interconnection agreements. Upon Qwest's elimination of its Section 272 affiliate or upon it exiting the interLATA market, Qwest may petition the Commission to phase out the PAP. At that time, a review of the PAP shall be conducted to determine whether a phase-out of the PAP is appropriate.

17.0 (Reserved for Future Use)

18.0 Dispute Resolution

Except as otherwise provided in the PAP, the Commission shall resolve any disputes.

Attachment 1: Tier 1 and Tier 2 Performance Measurements Subject to Per Occurrence Payment

| Performance Measurement | | Tier 1 Payments | | Tier 2 Payments | | | |
|--|-------------------|-----------------|----------|-----------------|-----|-----|----------|
| | | Low | Med | | Low | Med | High |
| | | | | High | | | |
| GATEWAY | | | | | | | |
| Timely Outage Resolution | GA-7 | | | | | | X |
| | | | | | | | |
| PRE-ORDER/ORDERS | | | | | | | |
| LSR Rejection Notice Interval | PO-3 ^a | Х | | | | | |
| Firm Order Confirmations On Time | PO-5 | Х | | | | Х | |
| Work Completion Notification Timeliness | PO-6 ^b | X | | | | | |
| Billing Completion Notification Timeliness | PO-7 ^D | X | | | | | |
| Jeopardy Notice Interval | PO-8 | X | | | | | |
| Timely Jeopardy Notices | PO-9 | X | | | | | |
| Release Notifications | PO-16 | | | | ļ | | <u> </u> |
| (Expanded) – Manual Service Order | <u>PO-20°</u> | <u> X</u> | | | | | |
| Accuracy | | | | | | | |
| | | | ļ | ļ | | | |
| ORDERING AND PROVISIONING | | | | | | | ļ |
| Installation Commitments Met | OP-3 | | | | | | |
| Installation Intervals | OP-4" | | | X | | X | |
| New Service Quality | OP-5a | | | X | | X | |
| Delayed Days | OP-6 ^e | | | X | | X | 1 |
| Number Portability Timeliness | OP-8 | | 1 | X | | X | |
| Coordinated Cuts On Time - Unbundled | OP-13a | | | X | | X | |
| Loops | | | | <u> </u> | | | |
| LNP Disconnect Timeliness | OP-17 | | | <u> </u> | | X | |
| | | | | | | | |
| MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR | | | <u> </u> | | | | |
| Out of Service Cleared within 24 hours | MH-3 | | | | | | |
| All Troubles Cleared within 4 hours | MH-5 | | | | | | |
| Mean time to Restore | MH- | | | X | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| Repair Repeat Report Rate | | | | | | | |
| I rouble Hate | | | | | | | |
| LNP Trouble Reports Cleared within 24 | MH-11 | | | X | | | |
| Hours | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | |
| DILLING | | | | | | | |
| BILLING | | | | | | | |
| Time to Provide Recorded Usage Records | | | | | | | |
| Billing Accuracy-Adjustments for Errors | | + | | | | | |
| Billing Completeness | DI-4 | + ^ | | | · | - | |
| | | | | | | | - |
| Truck Plocking | NI_1 | | | X | | | X |
| NYX Code Activation | | | | | + | | |
| | | | | <u> </u> | | | |

a. PO-3 is limited to PO-3a-1, PO-3b-1, and PO-3c.

b. PO-6 is included with PO-7 as two "families:" PO-6a/PO-7a and PO-6b/PO-7b. Measurements within each family share a single payment opportunity with only the measurements with the highest payment being paid.

c. For PO-20, where CLEC order volumes are 1 - 20, apply a benchmark standard of "not greater than one order in error." Under this provision, no payment applies if there is only one order with an error. For each phase beginning with Phase 1, there will be no more than a 3 month measurement stabilization period for all fields introduced in that phase. Additional fields are not subject to payments during the measurement stabilization period. During the Phase 1 measurement stabilization period, measurement and payment will continue for the original PO-20 as defined in Exhibit B1.

e.<u>d</u>. OP-4 is included with OP-6 as five "families:" OP-4a/OP-6-1, OP-4b/OP-6-2, OP-4c/OP-6-3, OP-4d/OP-6-4, and OP-4e/OP-6-5. Measurements within each family share a single payment opportunity with only the measurement with the highest payment being paid.

e<u>e</u>. For purposes of the PAP, OP-6a and OP-6b will be combined and treated as one. The combined OP-6 breaks down to OP-6-1 (within MSA), OP-6-2 (outside MSA), OP-6-3 (no dispatch), OP-6-4 (zone 1), and OP-6-5 (zone 2).

Attachment 2: Performance Measurements Subject to Per Measurement Caps

Billing

Time to Provide Recorded Usage Records – BI-1 (Tier 1/Tier 2) Billing Accuracy – Adjustments for Errors – BI-3 (Tier 1) Billing Completeness – BI-4 (Tier 1/Tier 2)

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission WEEKLY FILINGS For the Period of June 24, 2004 through June 30, 2004

If you need a complete copy of a filing faxed, overnight expressed, or mailed to you, please contact Delaine Kolbo within five business days of this report. Phone: 605-773-3201

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

TC04-110 In the Matter of the Filing by Qwest Corporation of its Notice of Modification to the Statement of Generally Available Terms and Conditions (SGAT) Exhibit B, Notice of Qwest's Changes to its Performance Assurance Plan and Motion for Tier Designation, Volume Differentiated Benchmark and Measurement Stabilization Period for the Revised PID PO-20.

On June 24, 2004, Qwest Corporation filed an updated Exhibit B to the Statement of Generally Available Terms and Conditions, which is the Performance Indicator Definitions, and a revised Performance Assurance Plan (PAP) to reflect changes from the Long Term PID Administration discussions as well as request determination regarding the tier designation, volume-differentiated benchmark, and measurement stabilization period related to the revised PID, PO-20 (Expanded) Manual Service Order Entry. Qwest Corporation requests that the Commission approve the PAP, as revised and modified, designate a tier for PO-20, establish a low-volume differentiated benchmark for PO-20, and allow PO-20 a measurement stabilization for no more than three months with the implementation of each phase. meaning that Qwest will make any required payments for PO-20 on the prior phase, but under Exhibit B-1 for Phase 1 implementation, until the expiration of the measurement stabilization period. Qwest requests that the Commission permit the amended Exhibit B to go into effect no later than 60 days after submission in accordance with 47 U.S.C. Section 252(f)(3) and, further, upon determination of the issues outlined above and upon a compliance filing by Qwest removing Exhibit B-1, supersede Exhibit B-1. In the interim, Qwest will report on the expanded PO-20 contained in Exhibit B; Qwest will also report and make payments on the existing PO-20 contained in Exhibit B-1 until such time as the Commission determines the appropriate tier designation, measurement stabilization period and whether a low volume differentiated benchmark should apply. Further, Qwest requests that, pursuant to Section 16 of PAP, the changes shall automatically apply to all existing interconnection agreements that currently contain Exhibit B and the PAP, Exhibit K as exhibits.

Staff Analyst: Harlan Best Staff Attorney: Karen E. Cremer Date Docketed: 06/24/04 Intervention Deadline: 07/16/04

TC04-111 In the Matter of the Establishment of Switched Access Revenue Requirement for Venture Communications Cooperative, Inc.

On June 25, 2004, Venture Communications Cooperative, Inc., Highmore, South Dakota, filed a switched access cost study developing a revenue requirement and minutes of use that are included in the revenue requirement and minutes of use used to determine the switched access rates for the Local Exchange Carriers Association.

Staff Analyst: Keith Senger Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer Date Docketed: 06/25/04 Intervention Deadline: 07/16/04

TC04-112 In the Matter of the Establishment of Switched Access Revenue Requirement for City of Brookings Municipal Telephone Department.

On June 25, 2004, City of Brookings Municipal Telephone Department filed a switched access cost study developing a revenue requirement and minutes of use that are included in the revenue requirement and minutes of use used to determine the switched access rates for the Local Exchange Carriers Association.

Staff Analyst: Harlan Best Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer Date Docketed: 06/25/04 Intervention Deadline: 07/16/04

TC04-113 In the Matter of the Filing for Approval of an Adoption Agreement between Qwest Corporation and Covista, Inc.

On June 28, 2004, the Commission received a filing for approval of an Agreement to Adopt Qwest Corporation's Statement of Generally Accepted Terms ("SGAT") and Associated Exhibits for the State of South Dakota between Covista, Inc. and Qwest Corporation. According to the parties, by entering into the Agreement "Covista chooses to adopt, in its entirety, the terms and conditions of Qwest Corporation's Statement of Generally Accepted Terms ("SGAT") and Associated Exhibits for the State of South Dakota." Any party wishing to comment on the Agreement may do so by filing written comments with the Commission and the parties to the Agreement no later than July 19, 2004. Parties to the Agreement may file written responses to the comments no later than twenty days after the service of the initial comments.

Staff Attorney: Rolayne Ailts Wiest Date Filed: 06/28/04 Initial Comments Due: 07/19/04

TC04-114 In the Matter of the Establishment of Switched Access Revenue Requirement for Stockholm-Strandburg Telephone Company.

On June 29, 2004, Stockholm-Strandburg Telephone Co., Stockholm, South Dakota, filed a switched access cost study developing a revenue requirement and minutes of use that are included in the revenue requirement and minutes of use used to determine the switched access rates for the Local Exchange Carriers Association.

Staff Analyst: Harlan Best Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer Date Docketed: 06/29/04 Intervention Deadline: 07/16/04

TC04-115 In the Matter of the Establishment of Switched Access Rates for PrairieWave Telecommunications, Inc.

On June 29, 2004, PrairieWave Telecommunications, Inc., Sioux Falls, South Dakota, filed a switched access cost study pursuant to the rules established by the Commission.

Staff Analyst: Harlan Best Staff Attorney: Karen E. Cremer Date Filed: 06/29/04 Intervention Deadline: 07/16/04

TC04-116 In the Matter of the Establishment of Switched Access Revenue Requirement for Santel Communications Cooperative, Inc.

On June 30, 2004, Santel Communications Cooperative, Inc., Woonsocket, South Dakota, filed a switched access cost study developing a revenue requirement and minutes of use that are included in the revenue requirement and minutes of use used to determine the switched access rates for the Local Exchange Carriers Association.

Staff Analyst: Harlan Best Staff Attorney: Karen E. Cremer Date Docketed: 06/30/04 Intervention Deadline: 07/16/04

TC04-117 In the Matter of the Establishment of Switched Access Revenue Requirement for James Valley Cooperative Telephone Company.

On June 30, 2004, James Valley Cooperative Telephone Company, Groton, South Dakota, filed a switched access cost study developing a revenue requirement and minutes of use that are included in the revenue requirement and minutes of use used to determine the switched access rates for the Local Exchange Carriers Association.

Staff Analyst: Harlan Best Staff Attorney: Karen E. Cremer Date Docketed: 06/30/04 Intervention Deadline: 07/16/04

TC04-118 In the Matter of the Establishment of Switched Access Revenue Requirement for Kennebec Telephone Company.

On June 30, 2004, Kennebec Telephone Company, Kennebec, South Dakota, filed a switched access cost study developing a revenue requirement and minutes of use that are included in the revenue requirement and minutes of use used to determine the switched access rates for the Local Exchange Carriers Association.

Staff Analyst: Harlan Best Staff Attorney: Karen E. Cremer Date Docketed: 06/30/04 Intervention Deadline: 07/16/04

TC04-119 In the Matter of the Establishment of Switched Access Rates for the Local Exchange Carriers Association.

On June 30, 2004, the Local Exchange Carriers Association (LECA) filed revised switched access tariff pages. The purpose of these revisions is to implement changes in rates as necessitated by revisions in member companies' revenue requirements and access minutes of use. LECA requests that the revised rates be effective August 1, 2004.

Staff Analyst: Harlan Best Staff Attorney: Karen E. Cremer Date Docketed: 06/30/04 Intervention Deadline: 07/16/04

> You may receive this listing and other PUC publications via our website or via internet e-mail. You may subscribe or unsubscribe to the PUC mailing lists at http://www.state.sd.us/puc

Melissa K. Thompson Senior Attorney 1801 California Street Suite 4900 Denver, CO 80202 303-672-2734 303-295-7069 (fax) melissa.thompson@qwest.com



Received

June 24, 2004

JUN 2 5 2004

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Pamela Bonrud, Executive Director Public Utilities Commission of the State of South Dakota 500 East Capitol Avenue Pierre, South Dakota 57501

RE: Notice of Modification to the SGAT, Notice of Qwest's Changes to its Performance Assurance Plan, and Motion for Tier Designation, Volume Differentiated Benchmark and Measurement Stabilization Period for the Revised PID PO-20

Dear Ms. Bonrud:

On June 24th (today), Qwest Corporation submitted to you for filing an original and 10 copies of Qwest Corporation's Notice of Modification to the SGAT, Notice of Qwest's Changes to its Performance Assurance Plan, and Motion for Tier Designation, Volume Differentiated Benchmark and Measurement Stabilization Period for the Revised PID PO-20. Qwest included both clean and redlined copies of Exhibit B and K with its filing.

In submitting this filing, we neglected to include with the filing the attachments to the cover pleading. I apologize for this oversight. I am hopeful that you can attach the enclosed documents to the back of Qwest's cover pleading. These documents correspond to the references in the footnotes in the cover pleading. We have enclosed an original plus 10 copies.

I am sorry for this inconvenience. If you would prefer that Qwest handle this error another way, or if you have any questions, please contact me.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

plitity thay

Melissa K. Thompson

Encl.

Revised Minutes Long Term PID Administration Conference Call (Minutes Provided by Qwest)

RECEIVED

JUN 2 5 2004

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Date & Time: Thursday, January 29, 2004, 1 p.m. M.S.T.

Purpose:

.

- To address the following issues:
 - o Issue 8, Qwest's response to CLECs' Line Loss PID proposal
 - Issue 11, Qwest's response to CLECs' proposal for benchmark standards for OP-3 and OP-4
 - Issue 12, CLECs' response to Qwest's proposal to add OP-3 exclusion language for non-Qwest reasons to OP-4, OP-6, and OP-15
 - Issue 15, CLECs' response to Qwest's proposal to adopt regionwide the Arizona benchmarks for the 9th and 10th pre-order transactions in PO-1
- To address the following pending action items:
 - Issue 10a, CLECs' response to Qwest's position on measuring trouble tickets for MR-3, MR-4, MR-5, and MR-6
 - Issues 13 and 33, Qwest's response to CLECs' alternate new product reporting proposal

| Organization | Name | | Organization | Name | |
|------------------|-----------------|----|-------------------|----------------|--|
| LTPA Facilitator | John Kern | | OR PUC | Irv Emmons | |
| ID PUC | Wayne Hart | | SD PUC | Harlan Best | |
| AT&T | Joe Bloss | 調整 | UT Div. of Public | Joni Zenger | |
| | | | Utilities | | |
| Covad | Megan Doberneck | 题 | WA UTC | Tom Spinks | |
| Eschelon | Ray Smith | | WY PUC | Mike Korber | |
| McLeodUSA | Julia Redmond- | 部 | Qwest | Nancy | |
| | Carter | | | Lubamersky | |
| MCI | Chad Warner | | Qwest | Dean Buhler | |
| MCI | Liz Balvin | | Qwest | Kathy Haile | |
| USLink | Jennifer Arnold | 縱影 | Qwest | Patricia Emigh | |
| USLink | Rod Cox | | Qwest | Duane Cooke | |
| CO PUC | John Epley | | Qwest | Char Mahs | |
| IA UB | Penny Baker | 推进 | Qwest | Todd Staebell | |
| IA UB | Cecil Wright | 記録 | Qwest | Dave Phillips | |
| MT PSC | Kate Whitney | | Qwest | Nancy Tangeman | |
| NM PRC | Mike Ripperger | 臟 | Qwest | John Hayat | |
| | | 膨 | Qwest | Tim Francis | |

New Issues:

1

Issue 8, Qwest's response to CLECs' Line Loss PID proposal: Qwest reviewed and expanded upon its written position in response to the CLECs' Line Loss PID proposal. Qwest pointed out that not all RBOCs have a Line Loss PID; BellSouth does not. The same major issues were raised before BellSouth and Qwest pointed out the reasons that BellSouth believed the responsibility of notifying lines lost resided with the Customer and the local carrier, not BellSouth. Additionally, Qwest pointed out that the Line Loss PID provided to Qwest with its four submeasures goes well beyond the Line Loss PIDs in place with other RBOCs.

In response to CLEC CMP requests, Qwest shared that it has implemented two major system improvements in its line loss notification process. In both June and September 2003 it put new edits into its service order processor improving the ability to process the line loss notification electronically. On December 8, 2003, with IMA Release 14.0, it implemented a new line loss notification capability with near real-time notification via the IMA-EDI and IMA-GUI interfaces, rearchitected for stability and reduced the time from service order completion to availability of the line loss notification from up to 24 hours to two hours or less.

At the CMP meeting held January 27, 2003, which addressed line loss notification, the parties acknowledged the progress with the system improvements and focused on process concerns resulting from errors that occur due to manual handling of an order. Qwest stated that it invoked quality control measures. The next CMP meeting is on February 19, 2004 and will continue the discussion. As a result, Qwest proposed that the subject of a Line Loss PID be deferred to the February 26, 2004, LTPA meeting (1) to allow time for Qwest to evaluate the stability of the new system capability and to address the process issues with CMP and (2) to allow the CLECs to evaluate and provide input about the new system capability and the steps Qwest has taken to improve the manual handling of service orders.

A CLEC stated that the CLECs are to only receive external losses (those lines lost to another provider) via the line loss notification and not the internal losses (those lines that stayed with the CLEC but changed local service products). As a result of the manual handling of some of the orders, the CLEC pointed out that the wrong DCR code is sometimes placed on the order resulting in an internal loss being reported to the CLEC as a loss or an external loss not being reported at all. The latter case can cause the CLEC to continue billing the customer.

The CLECs asked if Qwest could quantify the frequency of the incorrect code being assigned in order to evaluate how large the process problem

2

may be. CLECs stated that Qwest should put controls in place prior to service order completion to address the manual errors and should consider auditing its wholesale billing to ensure double billing is not occurring.

CLECs stated that the most critical issue with line loss notifications does not involve timeliness of line loss notification but with line losses not being sent or being mis-reported.

John Kern suggested that the CLECs try to validate the system and process improvements and determine if modifications to the CLEC PID proposal are indicated. He stated that any process problems resulting from the validation should continue to be addressed via the CMP.

- **Resolution:** The issue remains open and will be revisited on February 26, 2004 after the continued process discussion occurs in the February 19, 2004, CMP meeting. The CLECs will begin validating the system and process improvements. Qwest will continue its process improvement steps and provide data on the frequency of incorrect DCR-coded orders.
- Issue 11, Qwest's response to CLECs' proposal for benchmark standards for OP-3 and OP-4: Eschelon explained that when developing the EEL standards in Colorado, the difference in the standard interval for loops between retail and wholesale was identified. Eschelon also stated its belief that when retail missed its DS1 interval, Qwest waives the NRC. No such remedy applies to wholesale DS1 loops. Eschelon stated that for these reasons the appropriate standard is a benchmark. Qwest stated other remedy provisions apply on the wholesale side but that in any case that does not go to whether commitments are met or missed which is the purpose of OP-3. As for OP-3 having different standards for retail and wholesale, that is not what is being measured. The measurement is, rather, whether the interval for each is met or missed and the parity with the analog of retail DS1 private line is an appropriate standard. Qwest stated that it could be argued Qwest is in fact working to its disadvantage since there was a shorter timeframe within which to meet the wholesale due date than to meet the retail due date.

USLink stated it generally favors a benchmark over a parity standards for PIDs and that these PIDs are no exception.

Qwest stated that in all 14 states the standard interval for retail DS1 loops is 9 days. For wholesale DS1 capable loops, seven states have an interval of 5 days and seven states have an interval of 9 days. The interval generally varies by loop volume ordered for retail and wholesale. In considering the standard for OP-4, Qwest asked whether the parties could ever envision situations whereby the standard interval for the same product between wholesale and retail should differ because of some inherent difference in the ordering or provisioning process.

A conversation ensued in which the need for a new issue was identified to address the basis on which parity and benchmark standards should be applied. Qwest stated that some PID standards might be more reasonably set as benchmarks in certain instances because benchmarks provide a steady objective. CLECs agreed that such a discussion would be valuable. This issue also may result in benchmark standards in other PIDs.

Because of the differences in the standard intervals for different volumes of loops, the parties discussed how a benchmark should be established. Eschelon stated its belief that the benchmark should be equal to the applicable interval stated in the SIG. Qwest stated that this was tantamount to having a benchmark of 100% and that that was unreasonable. Eschelon stated that Qwest is not correct because each order completed earlier than the due date allows Qwest to "miss" the SIG guidelines on another so that Qwest can still meet the standard. CLECs were asked to propose a more specific benchmark proposal.

• **Resolution:** The issue remains open. Eschelon, USLink, and any other interested CLEC will develop a proposal for benchmark standards for OP-3 and OP-4 for Qwest to consider. Qwest will provide DS1 capable loop interval data for Zone 1 and Zone 2 and, if available, broken down by volumes ordered. Qwest will provide an update on the data availability on the February 5, 2004, call. Qwest will frame another issue for LTPA consideration on the assignment of benchmarks and parity as performance measurement standards.

Issue 12, CLECs' response to Qwest's proposal to add OP-3 exclusion language for non-Qwest reasons to OP-4, OP-6, and OP-15: Qwest stated that to improve the consistency of the exclusion-type of language among the OP-3, OP-4, OP6, and OP-15 PIDs, it is proposing to use the exclusion language in OP-3 (see the redlined PIDs provided with the initial Master Issues Matrix in November 2003). Qwest is not proposing a change in how the results are calculated; it is simply proposing that the PID state what is currently happening. For the intervals being measured in OP-4, OP-6, and OP-15, the proposed language addition is to state in various sections of the PID that the time being excluded is also for non-Qwest reasons, Weather, Disaster, and Work Stoppage. These PIDs already state that time for customer-caused delays is excluded. The language addition simply makes clearer how the PIDs were implemented and audited.

In response to a question about why the language is needed in light of the Force Majeure language in the PAPs, Qwest stated that the PIDs are

measurements of performance and do not address payment of penalties. Consequently, they do not always reach Force Majeure significance. Qwest pointed out that the excluded data is readily available upon CLEC request.

A CLEC questioned whether non-Qwest reasons would affect both retail and wholesale similarly. Qwest stated that may not always be true dependent upon the circumstances associated with the specific non-Qwest reason.

CLECs requested (1) three or four specific examples of occurrences of non-Qwest reasons, (2) the frequency of these occurrences, and (3) comparisons of the OP-4, OP-6, and OP-15 results with the non-Qwest reasons included and excluded from the results.

• **Resolution:** The issue remains open. The data will be reviewed on the February 5, 2004, LTPA call.

Issue 15, CLECs' response to Qwest's proposal to adopt region-wide the Arizona benchmarks for the 9th and 10th pre-order transactions in PO-1: Qwest stated as part of the Arizona test, the TAG met in May 2002 and agreed to the benchmark standards in PO-1 of 25 seconds for the 9th pre-order transaction, Connecting Facilities Assignment, and 30 seconds for the 10th pre-order transaction, Meet Point Inquiry. In the merged PO-1 PID, these benchmarks were stated for Arizona only and "TBD" was the listed standard for the other 13 states. Qwest has provided a redlined PID with the initial Master Issues Matrix which shows the Arizona standards for all 14 states.

• **Resolution:** The parties agreed with the proposal. The issue is closed.

Pending Action Items:

• Issue 10a, CLECs' response to Qwest's position on measuring trouble tickets for MR-3, MR-4, MR-5, and MR-6: Qwest sent out additional information pertaining to the number of New Service Quality calls to the ISC which result in repair trouble reports. Using the average of September and November figures, the ISC received a total of 35,950 New Service Quality reports. After its initial research, the ISC advised the CLEC to contact repair for only 41 (.12%) of these reports. Only 20 (.06%) of these 41 reports resulted in a repair trouble report. In addition, Qwest performed a manual study of October and November 2003 tickets to quantify the interval between the time a CLEC contacts the ISC to the time the ISC advises the CLEC to contact repair. The average time for the two months was 55 minutes. Based on this data and the proposed change to 24 hours after service order completion that Qwest recommends a CLEC contact the ISC with a trouble, Qwest does not support the CLEC proposal to change the manner in which the repair interval is calculated.

• **Resolution:** The issue remains open pending Eschelon reviewing the additional information with its internal experts. Eschelon will contact John Kern if the issue can be closed.

Issues 13 and 33, Qwest's response to CLECs' alternate new product reporting proposal: In response to Qwest providing its clarifying questions to the CLECs, the CLECs provided their reply. Qwest asked if, putting aside product issues that arise from the regulatory environment, the parties could agree on volume thresholds for products that have very low volumes. Covad stated it needed to discuss that possibility with MCI and Eschelon but its initial reaction was the concern of committing to a "one size fits all" approach without knowing what might happen in the future. Covad stated that there might be specific scenarios where it would agree to a volume threshold but Qwest would need to bring forth a specific proposal. Covad stated that product volumes and growth are not necessarily indicative of the importance of a product to a CLEC. Covad stated that relative to its proposed product reporting process its primary concern is for current CLEC requests for new product reporting. Covad asked how likely it would be that for a product having very low volumes and extremely low current order activity, CLECs would ask for the product to be reported in the performance results.

In discussing the CLECs' proposal for setting of standards for newly reported products, Covad stated that it does not rule out the possibility of a diagnostic standard but does not agree that it would last for 6 months. Eschelon gave the example of the new OP-5B diagnostic standard as a case where the CLECs agreed to a diagnostic standard during an initial reporting period. Both Qwest and the CLECs stated that instances may arise where a standard needs to be changed.

• **Resolution:** The issue remains open. Qwest will re-examine its volume threshold proposal for the February 12, 2004, call.

Other Items:

- Format of PID Reports: AT&T raised the issue of replacing or enhancing the PDF format of the monthly Performance Result reports so that the data could be more easily accessed by the CLECs. MCI and USLink also concurred in the request. Qwest stated that it has already started looking at the options.
 - **Resolution:** The issue will be added to the Master Issues Matrix. Qwest will provide an update on the February 12, 2004, call.

New Action Items:

- John Kern will distribute the next agenda and an updated Master Issues Matrix by noon on Monday, February 2nd.
- Qwest will:

- Continue the CMP process pertaining to line loss notifications and provide data on the frequency of incorrect DCR-coded orders. (Issue 8)
- Provide DS1 capable loop interval data for Zone 1 and Zone 2 and, if available, volume breakdowns. Update on availability of data to be provided on February 5, 2004, call. (Issue 11)
- Frame an issue on the use of benchmarks and parity as performance measurement standards.
- Provide for the February 5, 2004, call (1) some examples of occurrences of non-Qwest examples,(2) the frequency of these occurrences, and (3) comparisons of the OP-4, OP-6, and OP-15 results with the non-Qwest reasons included and excluded from the results. (Issue 12)
- Re-examine its volume threshold proposal for discussion on February 12, 2004. (Issues 13 and 33)
- Provide an update on February 12, 2004, about enhancing or replacing the PDF format of the monthly PID reports.
- The CLECs will begin validating the Line Loss Notification system and process improvements. (Issue 8)
- Eschelon, USLink, and any other interested CLEC will develop a proposal for benchmark standards for OP-3 and OP-4. (Issue 11)
- Eschelon to review the Qwest data on ISC New Service Quality reports resulting in a repair trouble report and report to John Kern whether Issue 10a can be closed.

Next Meeting:

- February 5, 2004, at 1 p.m. M.S.T.
- Conference bridge: 1-877-552-8688 pass code 3381262#

Minutes

Long Term PID Administration Conference Call (Minutes Provided by Qwest)

Date & Time: Thursday, January 15, 2004, 1 p.m. M.S.T.

Purpose [LTPA participants had not received the agenda sent January 11th from John Kern. It was re-sent at the beginning of the meeting.]:

- To address Issue 10a, change phrase "of receipt" to "that Qwest is first notified of the trouble by CLEC" for MR-3, MR-4, MR-5, and MR-6
- To address Issue 10b, delete the phrase "indicated as" from MR-3 and MR-4
- To address Issue 22, adopt Arizona version of PO-19 region-wide
- To address Qwest's response to Issue 27, standards for line sharing and line splitting for OP-6 and OP-15
- To address Issue 31, adopt Colorado EEL standards for PO-5, OP-3, OP-4, OP-5, OP-6, MR-5, MR-6, MR-7, and MR-8
- To review the following pending Action Items:
 - Proposed LTPA Web Site
 - o Issue 3, MCI's response to wording change in formula for BI-3A
 - o Issue 32, Eschelon and Qwest x-DSL-I volume discrepancy
- To address the two day face-to-face meeting

| Organization | Name | | Organization | Name |
|--------------------|-----------------|--------|--------------|----------------|
| LTPA Facilitator | John Kern | trans. | Qwest | Nancy |
| | | | | Lubamersky |
| ID PUC | Wayne Hart | 調査 | Qwest | Dean Buhler |
| AT&T | Joe Bloss | 識 | Qwest | Kathy Haile |
| Covad | Megan Doberneck | | Qwest | Patricia Emigh |
| Eschelon | Ray Smith | 経営 | Qwest | Duane Cooke |
| MCI | Chad Warner | 影 | Qwest | Barb Brohl |
| U S Link | Rod Cox | 游戏 | Qwest | Todd Staebell |
| IA Utilities Board | Penny Baker | 罐 | Qwest | Tom Kowal |
| MN DOC | Sue Pierce | 離 | Qwest | Char Mahs |
| MT PUC | Kate Whitney | | Qwest | Barry Orrel |
| MT PUC | Tina Shorten | | Qwest | Dave Phillips |
| OR PUC | Irv Emmons | 調 | Qwest | Nancy Tangeman |
| UT Div. of Public | Joni Zenger | | Qwest | Tim Francis |
| Utilities | | | | |
| WA UTC | Tom Spinks | | Qwest | John Hayat |
| WY PUC | Mike Korber | 凝 | Qwest | Paul Diamond |
| | | 艦 | Qwest | Cindi Houston |

Issue 10b, delete the phrase "indicated as" from MR-3 and MR-4: Qwest agreed to the deletion of the "indicated as" phrase.

• **Resolution:** Issue closed.

Issue 10a, change phrase "of receipt" to "that Qwest is first notified of the trouble by CLEC" for MR-3, MR-4, MR-5, and MR-6: Owest agreed to the language change with the understanding that the clock starts on trouble reports when, with all the required information available, the repair ticket is created. The CLECs reiterated their concern that the time from when a trouble is reported to the Call Center to the time when a repair trouble report is created is not captured in the M & R measures. Owest provided October 2003 data showing that after service order completion less than 1% of the CLEC repair troubles involve the CLECs first calling the Call Center, the Call Center being unable to resolve the problem, and then being referred to Repair, resulting in an average elapsed time of one hour. The data also showed that after a service order completes, the CLECs predominantly submit a repair ticket through CEMR or call the Repair Center. In these latter situations and assuming all the required field information is provided, a repair ticket is created and all such time is captured in the M & R PIDs. Qwest also stated it sent a CMP notice to the CLECs that Qwest is reducing the time after service order completion that a CLEC is encouraged to contact the Call Center with a trouble from 72 hours to 24 hours. Eschelon requested adding the average one hour timeframe to the M & R PIDs. Qwest stated its unwillingness to do so reiterating that the CLEC always has the option to contact the Repair Center directly or submit a trouble report through CEMR, which is how the CLECs are predominantly reporting troubles after service order completion.

In response to a question about how Qwest measures repair time for its retail customers, Qwest stated that when a Qwest end user contacts the Business Office about a new service problem, the Business Office can often solve the problem. If the Business Office needs to refer the trouble to repair, the clock starts when the trouble report is created. For both end users and CLECs the time interval for repair is calculated the same way.

A CLEC expressed concern about what happens to the M & R measurements if the gateway for submitting repair trouble reports is experiencing unscheduled down time. Qwest stated that gateway availability has not been an issue and is captured in the applicable Gateway PIDs, not in the M & R PIDs.

• **Resolution:** The CLECs will review this issue and the data presented above with their internal experts. If a CLEC finds discrepancies between its data and Qwest's, it should discuss this off-line with Qwest. This issue will be discussed further at a later date.

Issue 22, adopt Arizona version of PO-19 region-wide: PO-19 measures the Stand-Alone Test Environment (SATE). The Arizona version has two sub-measures while the version for the other 13 states only has one. The Arizona version arose out of the Arizona 271 test and a recommendation from the vendor. Qwest is publishing the results for all 14 states in its monthly performance results report per discussions it had with the FCC Wireline Bureau. The additional submeasure measures the extent that SATE mirrors production by measuring the percentage of transactions that produce comparable results in SATE and the production environment. The region-wide standard would be 95%, the same as for Arizona.

- **Resolution:** The CLECs will review this issue with their internal experts. It will be discussed further on the January 22 call.
- Issue 27, standards for line sharing and line splitting for OP-6 and OP-15: As agreed upon for Issue 29 on the January 8th call, discussions on standards for line splitting will begin after the February report with 5 months of data comes out. With respect to line sharing, Qwest stated that in response to Covad's request, Qwest is willing to adopt a standard of "Parity with retail Qwest DSL" for OP-6. Qwest stated that, since all standards within OP-15 are diagnostic, the line sharing standard should remain diagnostic but Qwest would be willing to add "(Expectation: Parity with retail Qwest DSL)." In response to a question about when the Qwest DSL standard for OP-6 would be reported, Qwest stated that the standard would be part of the next SGAT Exhibit B PID filing targeted for the early part of April, effective in the June timeframe, and then with the reporting starting in July with the June performance report.
 - **Resolution:** The CLECs agreed on using Qwest DSL for the OP-6 standards. The CLECs will review with their internal experts Qwest's proposal for OP-15.
- Issue 31, adopt Colorado EEL standards for PO-5, OP-3, OP-4, OP-5, OP-6, MR-5, MR-6, MR-7, and MR-8: Qwest stated its willingness to adopt the current Colorado EEL standards with the understanding that the TRO network modification requirements may impact multiple PIDs and product reporting, including the current Colorado EEL standards and these PIDs. Qwest does not yet know the full impact of these TRO requirements on its business processes and performance requirements. Qwest requested the CLECs share any information or documentation they may have on the subject. In response to a question about when these EEL standards would be reflected in the PAP reporting, Qwest stated that the April Exhibit B PID filing must first occur and become effective.
 - **Resolution:** Issue closed but the Issues Matrix should reflect that this issue may need to be re-opened as the impact of the TRO network modification requirements is better understood, especially

on the Colorado EEL standards. Qwest was invited to provide a new issue relating to the TRO network modifications.

• Pending Action Items:

0

- LTPA Web Site: Qwest reviewed the proposed LTPA web site. The test URL sent out to the participants turned out to be inaccessible to parties external to Qwest. Qwest provided screen shots of each of the proposed 7 screens. Qwest reviewed each screen with the parties, requesting feedback if the web site included what was desired or whether it included too much. Feedback was especially requested about when individual PIDs and the 14-State PID documents should appear on the Draft PID screen versus the Agreed Upon PID screen. The web site will have a URL that the parties will have to access directly and will be unavailable through navigation or browsing on the Web.
 - **Resolution:** The parties will review the screen shots and provide their input on next week's call. The parties should contact Duane Cooke directly with any technical questions.
- **Issue 3, changing formula language in BI-3A:** MCI agrees with the proposed language change.
 - **Resolution:** Issue closed.
- **Issue 32 action item, reconciliation of x-DSL-I volumes:** When Qwest and Eschelon examined their respective x-DSL-I volumes for the same time periods, their numbers were essentially the same.
- Other Items:
 - **Face-to-Face Meeting:** Qwest stated that it had conflicts with the mid-February dates. John Kern recommended that the parties continue going through the issues on the weekly conference calls. Then in a two-day face-to-face meeting in March the parties will address any outstanding open issues and determine which issues, if any, will be going to impasse. John Kern asked the parties to submit their availability for such a meeting in the first two weeks of March excluding March 3rd and the weekends. Qwest will provide an audio bridge for those parties who cannot attend the meeting in person.
 - **Contract Extension:** Because the first three months of billings by John Kern have totaled well under half of the 6-month \$50,000 cap, if the State Commissions want to, his contract can be extended into April 2004. That would allow extra time after the March inperson meeting to complete any impasse issues as well as complete the all-inclusive SGAT Exhibit B filings.

New Action Items:

- John Kern will distribute the next agenda and an updated Master Issues Matrix by noon on Monday, January 19. If parties do not receive the agenda and matrix by then, please notify John Kern.
- Qwest will provide a new issue relating to the TRO network modification requirements impacting the PIDs and the product reporting.
- The CLECs will:
 - Review the Call Center information presented above by Qwest in Issue 10a.
 - Review the PO-19 information presented above by Qwest in Issue 22 for further discussion on January 22.
 - Review internally Qwest's proposal for the line sharing OP-15 standard presented above in Issue 27.
- The parties will:
 - Review the proposed LTPA Web Site screen shots for further discussion on January 22.
 - Provide to John Kern their availability within the first two weeks of March excluding March 3rd to attend a two-day face-to-face meeting in Denver.

Next Meeting:

- January 22, 2004, at 1 p.m. M.S.T.
- Conference bridge: 1-877-552-8688 pass code 3381262#

Minutes

Long Term PID Administration Conference Call (Minutes Provided by Qwest)

Date & Time: Thursday, March 25, 2004, 1 p.m. M.S.T.

Purpose:

if Y

- To address the following issues:
 - Issue 8, line loss notifications, continued discussions on line loss notices
 - Issues 13, 33, 26, 32, and 16: volume threshold/new product reporting process, reporting for loop splitting and xDSL-i, and standards for UNE-P and line sharing in PO-2
 - Issues 29 and 30, lines splitting standards
 - Issues 4 and 6, BI-5

| Organization | Name | a contractor | Organization | Name |
|------------------|-----------------|--------------|--------------|----------------|
| LTPA Facilitator | John Kern | | WY PUC | Mike Korber |
| ID PUC | Wayne Hart | | Qwest | Cherie Axelrod |
| AT&T | Joe Bloss | | Qwest | Dean Buhler |
| Covad | Megan Doberneck | | Qwest | Kathy Haile |
| Eschelon | Ray Smith | | Qwest | Duane Cooke |
| Eschelon | Bonnie Johnson | | Qwest | Pat Emigh |
| MCI | Chad Warner | | Qwest | Barb Brohl |
| USLink | Rod Cox | | Qwest | Char Mahs |
| USLink | Jennifer Arnold | | Qwest | Barry Orrel |
| IA UB | Penny Baker | | Qwest | Laurel Burke |
| IA UB | Cecil Wright | | Qwest | Nancy Tangeman |
| MN DOC | Sue Peirce | | Qwest | Todd Staebell |
| MN PUC | Ganesh Krishnan | 1999 | Qwest | Dave Phillips |
| UT PUC | Joni Zenger | | Qwest | Paul Diamond |

Issues:

• Issue 8, line loss notifications, continued discussions on line loss notices: The discussion focused on a number of areas. First, John Kern stated that the CLECs were to validate their own line loss data. One CLEC stated that it was fairly close to Qwest's timeliness figures which dipped into the 80% range for notifications provided within 1 business day. Qwest clarified that it had provided results for a timeliness study that showed for the IMA system 93% of the notifications in the study were provided in 80 minutes or less and 100% were provided in less than 3 hours. Qwest continued that it also conducted an accuracy study of line

1

loss notifications in the January and February time frames where the overall accuracy rate was 99.25%.

Another CLEC stated that it had provided Qwest its timeliness data but found that it had pulled data from both the IMA-EDI near-real time system and the batch report system for the same transactions, thereby doublecounting the notifications. It was attempting to re-run the data to separately identify the notifications sent via IMA-EDI. It expressed concern about those notifications that appeared to be sent in the longer notification intervals. Qwest recommended that Qwest and the CLEC examine the data after it has been re-run and research areas of interest. Qwest pointed out that even the existing data shows that over 95% of the notifications were sent within one transmission day, which was the CLECs' proposed standard.

Secondly, at least one CLEC raised the issue that to convert to IMA Release 14.0 to obtain line loss notifications on a near-real time basis was too expensive. Qwest clarified that a CLEC does not have to be an IMA EDI 14.0 user but if it has GUI access, it can receive line loss notices via e-mail, fax or both or it can query for line loss notices. The CLEC continued that accessing the line losses via the Service Delivery Gateway via the older batch process provided the notices all together in one place and was easier to access. Qwest also stated that, while it provides a number of methods for the CLECs to obtain line loss notices, the discussions until now had totally focused on the IMA 14.0 near real-time capability. Qwest continued that the CLECs need to each evaluate and select which method best complements their business plans.

Thirdly, a CLEC stated that the accuracy data Qwest provided from its recently-implemented IMA 14.0 system is not representative of the accuracy rate that the CLECs have experienced over the last 2½ years. The CLEC continued that errors result from incorrect DCR codes being placed on those service orders that drop out for manual handling and that during the study time frame Qwest was focusing on improving the error rate in its centers. It expressed that over time the focus on minimizing the errors would decrease and the accuracy rate would drop. The CLEC continued that Qwest in CMP had agreed to send a notice to the centers periodically reminding them of the importance to use the proper DCR code. However, it stated that the PID is still needed.

Qwest stated that it has been responsive to the CLECs over time. Through CMP it has enhanced the system with both new SOP edits and later on implementing the IMA 14.0 near real-time capabilities. It has implemented in its centers quality steps to improve the errors on the manually-handled orders and has agreed to periodic reminders to the centers. Now in LTPA, the CLECs have expressed concern over the timeliness of the notifications and Qwest's study showed that its timeliness is excellent with 93% of the notifications via IMA 14.0 are sent within 80 minutes of the service order being completed in the SOP and 100% in less than 3 hours. Then the CLECs focused on accuracy. Qwest responded showing a 99.25% accuracy rate for the sample and, when requested, it removed unbundled loops from the study with results of 99.24% accuracy. Qwest stated that now the CLECs are raising issues about the older batch process while it has been clear from the start of the LTPA discussions that Qwest is focusing and providing data on the enhanced near real-time version. Qwest stated that in light of the excellent study results it has provided and in the absence of any verifiable data by the CLECs, it does not agree to adopt a line loss PID.

Fourth, the parties declared an impasse. The CLECs agreed to withdraw their proposed sub-measures C and D of the CLEC-proposed PID which addressed missing notifications and only go to impasse on sub-measures A and B.

• **Resolution:** The parties declared an impasse.

Issues 13, 33, 26, 32, and 16: volume threshold/new product reporting process, reporting for loop splitting and xDSL-i, and standards for UNE-P and line sharing in PO-2: Qwest first addressed the volume threshold/new product reporting process issue and then specifically addressed the reporting of loop splitting and xDSL-i capable loops.

Qwest stated that it has continued to have discussions with its executive management about these issues. In reviewing the proposed process with them, PAP-related concerns arose about any new products automatically flowing into the PAPs. Qwest stated that they have been meeting their nondiscrimination obligations and the existing PAPs are in place to demonstrate that Qwest is not backsliding, and that continuing to add obligations was not appropriate as a matter of principle.

Qwest proposed that its current volume threshold proposal be left in tact through Step 5 and the subsequent steps be deleted. For those products that the parties reach agreement to have reported, Qwest would do so in a similar manner to how it reports the "*" measures (e.g., MR-7* and MR-8*) which it voluntarily reports but are not in Exhibits B and K. Such measurements would be included in Qwest's publicly-available monthly performance reports and be footnoted indicating that the measurement is being voluntarily reported on an informational basis only. Star measurements are not included in the official PID and therefore not included in the PAP. Qwest stated that the proposed "*" reporting would meet the CLECs' data needs. Regarding the reporting of loop splitting, Qwest stated that the time was not ripe to report this product because there are no volumes in service and no other factors or changes in the regulatory environment indicate such reporting should yet occur.

In examining xDSL-i capable loops, Qwest stated that since the volumes are approaching the 1,000 threshold, Qwest has done the developmental work and is willing to begin reporting April 2004 results in the May report and do so as a "*" measure.

The CLECs responded with a number of points. First, one CLEC confirmed with Qwest that if Qwest's proposed thresholds were not met and therefore Qwest would not report the product, the product reporting may become an impasse issue or be taken to some other forum for resolution. Second, a CLEC stated that it preferred addressing a product reporting request on an individual case basis because of the differences in the importance of different products to a CLEC. Third, the CLECs stated that they could not agree to the "*" measure reporting. They continued that Owest has not been willing to address PAP issues but is now using PAP issues as justification for not including the new product in the official PID. Qwest responded that the LTPA had been established to address PID issues and the intent was not to have PID agreements automatically flow into the PAP without being properly addressed. Fourth, the CLECs stated that, with Qwest's modifications to the volume threshold process, they could not agree with this revised proposal. Therefore, the CLECs disagreed with Qwest's positions on the reporting of loop splitting and xDSL-i loops.

After considerable discussion, the CLECs and Qwest agreed to withdraw Issues 13 and 33 (volume threshold/new product reporting) and to declare as impasse issues the reporting of loop splitting and xDSL-i loops.

Relative to Issue 16, the inclusion of UNE-P Centrex 21 and Line Sharing in PO-2, Qwest continued to propose a diagnostic standard for the first six months of reporting and the CLECs continued to propose a 95% benchmark. The parties declared an impasse on the standard. Covad and MCI agreed to determine their position for a standard on line sharing and provide that to Qwest on March 26, 2004.

 Resolution: Qwest and the CLECs withdrew Issues 13 and 33. They declared an impasse on Issues 26 (reporting of loop splitting) and 32 (reporting of xDSL-I loops). They declared an impasse on the portion of Issue 16 pertaining to the standard for UNE-P Centrex 21 in PO-2. Covad and MCI are to provide their proposal for the line sharing standard in PO-2 on March 26, 2004.

4

Issues 29 and 30, lines splitting standards: At the March 11th-12th LTPA meeting in Denver, the parties discussed the appropriate line splitting parity standard for OP-5A, MR-3, MR-4, MR-6, and MR-8. Qwest proposed "Parity with retail Qwest DSL" because of the similarities in the processes used between line splitting and Qwest DSL. The CLECs proposed "Parity with RES and BUS POTS" because it is the same standard being used for line sharing in those PIDs. The CLECs also had pointed out that the performance for RES and BUS POTS has been higher than that for Qwest's DSL. The CLECs had asked if this difference could be attributed to ISP service issues being included in the Owest DSL results. After researching this issue since the March 12th meeting, Qwest stated that these ISP issues are coded to IEC and therefore excluded from the DSL results. Qwest acknowledged that some Qwest DSL performance changes had occurred but were temporary. In October 2003, Qwest had made process changes to handle the increased DSL volumes in its centers. Owest stated that it has a lot at stake with its DSL product and continues to focus on process improvements. Qwest reiterated that Qwest DSL is still the appropriate standard for these PIDs because of the similarity in the products' network elements and in the provisioning and repair processes.

A CLEC raised the issue that for these PIDs the ROC PID performance results for line sharing uses the RES and BUS POTS parity standard and the Colorado PAP uses Qwest DSL. The CLEC felt that the ROC PID should also use the Qwest DSL standard for Colorado results. It stated that by using the RES and BUS POTS parity standard instead of Qwest DSL for Colorado in the ROC PID performance results that Qwest's appears to be performing better than it actually is. Qwest explained that the ROC PID is the standard 14-state offering and generally reports using the same standard for each state.

Qwest stated that it is inappropriate for the CLECs to propose a parity standard based on a product with the highest performance standard. The retail standard should be the product having the greatest product, provisioning and repair similarities, which for line splitting is Qwest DSL.

A CLEC commented that, when the retail analog for line sharing which is similar to line splitting was established, the parties including Qwest thought the RES and BUS POTS analog was appropriate and asked what has changed. Qwest responded that Qwest has migrated to different processes such as from designed provisioning to non-designed provisioning for Qwest DSL. In reply to a CLEC's question, Qwest explained that the substantial change in the provisioning process for Qwest DSL caused large changes for the repair process which makes Qwest DSL the appropriate retail analog for use with line splitting in the MR PIDs. In response to a question about why Qwest did not propose in this LTPA session that Qwest DSL be the parity standard for line sharing, Qwest stated that it had simply tried to be judicious in the total number of changes proposed.. However, Qwest stated that it would be willing to change the parity standards for line sharing from RES and BUS POTS to retail Qwest DSL.

The CLECs next raised the issue of the benchmark standards for OP-3 and OP-4. The parties reached agreement on the 95% standard for OP-3 and 3.3 days for OP-4. The discussion focused on Qwest's proposal to include a "one free miss" as part of the standard for low volume situations. The CLECs replied that the notion of "one free miss" is more appropriately a PAP issue and that the PID should measure what it is intended to measure. Quest pointed out that (1) not all PAPs have the "one free miss" concept and (2) the PID performance report is used to determine if Qwest is providing good service and in the case of low volumes a reasonable standard should apply so as not to provide an improper view of Qwest's performance. The CLECs countered that (1) they felt those who reviewed the performance results would not generally gain a negative impression for a miss on a low volume product and (2) to the extent this is an issue, it is an issue for all measurements and products. Qwest responded that the reader should not have to figure out that a poor performance result pertains to a low volume situation. The parties declared an impasse on the "one free miss" issue.

Relative to OP-5A,Qwest's position was that the time was not ripe to set a standard with only two months of data being available. One CLEC asked whether Qwest would be willing to set a standard based on 3 months of data. Qwest replied that it needed to consider this internally before responding.

- **Resolution:** The parties declared an impasse on (1) the parity standard for MR-3, MR-4, MR-6, and MR-8, (2) the establishment of a standard for OP-5A, and (3) the "one free miss" low volume issue.
- Issues 4 and 6, BI-5: Qwest stated that Eschelon's proposal that it provided on March 17th provided only one month to implement business rules that are not defined pertaining to the content of responses denying or denying in part a billing claim and to the identification and handling of status responses. Qwest continued that it has met internally to evaluate Eschelon's proposal. Qwest has determined that the addition of the proposed business rules which have not been specifically defined and agreed to by the parties could be a substantial change to the implementation effort Qwest was undertaking. Given that Eschelon's proposal was made only a week ago, Qwest has not had enough time to identify all the issues, determine the programming impacts or even

determine whether it will eventually reject or accept the proposal. Qwest stated that it needed more time to do so and proposed working with Eschelon to resolve the outstanding issues via bi-weekly meetings. Qwest stated its willingness to continue these meetings even though this LTPA session may end before all issues are resolved. Otherwise, Qwest stated that it stands ready to adopt its currently-proposed BI-5 PID provided at the Denver meeting on March 12th with a possible implementation of July 2004 results in August. When asked by Eschelon whether the remaining issues could be resolved within the next two weeks prior to the end of this LTPA session, Qwest replied that the first discussion could be held but it was unclear whether all issues would be resolved.

The parties continued to discuss how much longer it would likely take to resolve the outstanding issues and what would happen if the issues did not get resolved within this LTPA session. To the extent the issues were not resolved within this session, the parties felt that the issue would then likely go to impasse. Qwest reiterated that, until it has more time to evaluate Eschelon's recent proposal, it is unknown whether there is sufficient time to resolve the issues and/or implement a solution before the end of this LTPA session even with a one-month extension. Qwest could not commit to the CLECs' proposal but offered to give it further consideration, and to move forward with its current proposal. The CLECs did not agree.

• **Resolution:** The parties declared an impasse.

Impasse Schedule:

۱

- March 30, 2004: John Kern to provide issue statements for BI-3A and PO-20
- April 1, 2004: John Kern to provide issues statements for Line Loss, reporting of loop splitting and xDSL-i capable loops, the standard for UNE-P Centrex 21 (and possibly Line Sharing) in PO-2, line splitting standards, and BI-5
- April 9, 2004: CLECs and Qwest submit separate position papers for Line Loss, reporting of loop splitting and xDSL-i capable loops, the standard for UNE-P Centrex 21 (and possibly Line Sharing) in PO-2, line splitting standards, and BI-5
- April 19, 2004: John Kern's recommendations due for Line Loss, reporting of loop splitting and xDSL-I capable loops, the standard for UNE-P Centrex 21 (and possibly Line Sharing) in PO-2, line splitting standards, and BI-5
- April 27, 2004: State staffs' vote due for Line Loss, reporting of loop splitting and xDSL-i capable loops, the standard for UNE-P Centrex 21 (and possibly Line Sharing) in PO-2, line splitting standards, and BI-5

Minutes

Long Term PID Administration Denver Meeting (Minutes Provided by Qwest)

Date & Time: Thursday, March 11, 2004, 9 a.m. M.S.T Friday, March 12, 2004, 8:30 a.m. M.S.T.

Purpose:

- To address the following issues:
 - o Issue 8, Line Loss
 - o Issue 5, BI-3A Proposals
 - o Issues 4 and 6, BI-5 Proposals
 - Issue 17, PO-2 Diagnostic if Standard Met for OP-3 and OP-8
 - Issues 13, 33, 16, 26, 32, Volume Threshold and related PIDs concerning reporting
 - o Issues 23, 24 and 34, PO-20 and Tier Designations
 - Issues 27, 28, 29, and 30, standards for line splitting and loop splitting
 - Issue 11, benchmark for OP-4 DS-1 Capable Loops
 - o Next steps

| Organization | Name | | Organization | Name | |
|----------------------|-----------------|------------|----------------------------|-----------------|--|
| Attendees in Denver: | | | Attendees on Audio Bridge: | | |
| LTPA Facilitator | John Kern | | AZ CC | Richard Boyles | |
| CO PUC | John Epley | | IA UB | Penny Baker | |
| NM PRC | Mike Ripperger | | ID PUC | Wayne Hart | |
| UT Div. of Public | Jonathon Lee | | MN DOC | Susan Peirce | |
| Utilities | | | | | |
| WA UTC | Tom Spinks | 影花 | MT PSC | Kate Whitney | |
| Covad | Megan Doberneck | | OR PUC | Irv Emmons | |
| Eschelon | Ray Smith | 104 104 | SD PUC | Harlan Best | |
| MCI | Chad Warner | | WA UTC | Rebecca Beaton | |
| Qwest | Cherie Axelrod | 維約 | WY PUC | Mike Korber | |
| Qwest | Dean Buhler | | McLeod USA | Julia Redman- | |
| | | | | Carter | |
| Qwest | Barb Brohl | | USLink | Rod Cox | |
| Qwest | Char Mahs | | USLink | Jennifer Arnold | |
| Qwest | Kathy Haile | | | | |
| Qwest | Duane Cooke | | | | |
| Qwest | Pat Emigh | | | | |
| Qwest | Barry Orrel | | | | |
| Qwest | Dave Phillips | | | · · | |

Issues:

Issue 8, Line Loss: Qwest reviewed the description of the process it used to perform the Line Loss Accuracy study, which it had distributed earlier in the week. Although it showed that Qwest achieved a 99.25% accuracy rate in reporting line losses, Qwest further examined the misses that resulted in the 0.75% error rate, stating that only 0.11% of the error rate was for notices that were not sent and 0.64% were for internal loss notices that should not have been sent. Qwest stated that overall the results are excellent, supporting Qwest's position that a Line Loss PID is not needed.

During the discussion, Qwest stated a number of points. First, just because a performance area can be measured does not mean that it should be measured. Qwest stated that the CLECs have not provided any data to indicate a problem exists. Qwest continued that the PIDs arose in the various workshops for areas that were important to the CLECs where Qwest had demonstrable performance problems and needed to meet its nondiscrimination obligations. Second, Qwest stated that with the implementation of the line loss system enhancements and process improvements, most of which arose out of the CMP, the CLECs should evaluate these changes and if ongoing problems arise, bring them forward for further discussion; however, based on the current evidence, the need for a line loss PID is not supported. Third, line loss notices are only provided for those products for which the CLEC subscribed via the IT Help Desk. Fourth, not all RBOCs have a line loss PID in place and none have one as onerous as the one the CLECs have proposed.

The CLECs made a number of statements. First, the CLECs stated that to avoid the over-billing of end users who have switched to another CLEC, they need the line loss notice for UNE-P and resale products because the CLEC has no other reliable way of knowing about the customer loss. Second, they stated that a new PID is appropriate for a performance area that has material impact to CLECs' businesses and does not require evidence that a problem exists. Third, inaccurate line loss notification is a problem throughout the industry and involves considerable research to resolve a customer's double-billing complaint. Fourth, with partnership arrangements, the partner (usually the DLEC), which is not the partner of record, is especially vulnerable to the double-billing of an end user without a line loss notification first going to its partner. Fifth, line loss notification is more of a problem now with customers changing their carrier more often. Sixth, the CLECs are unable to fully evaluate Qwest's study data because it is too soon to know the extent of the missing line loss notices for the study's time frame. Lastly, one CLEC requested the study data be recalculated excluding the unbundled loop category because line loss notices are only critical for UNE-P and Resale. It had calculated its individual accuracy rates excluding unbundled loops to be for each week: 72.1%, 87.9%, 75.3%, 82.4%, 81.9%, and 93.8%.

On March 12, Qwest presented its recalculated study data excluding unbundled loops. For the studied entities, the overall line loss accuracy rate decreased minimally, from 99.25% to 99.24%.

• Status: CLECs are to provide data to Qwest on their line loss problems by March 19, 2004. Qwest requested that the CLECs include with their data, the time frame covered, the products impacted, and the system and products to which the CLECs subscribed for line loss notification via the IT Help Desk. The issue will be discussed further on the March 25th call.

Issues 4 and 6, BI-5 Proposal: In response to the CLECs' proposal to add subpart BI-5C (CLEC-challenged resolutions) and BI-5R (repeated billing claims), Qwest stated that the sub-measures are unnecessary. Owest recommended that the parties finish defining BI-5A and BI-5B, proceed with the system and process changes, begin performance reporting, and allow the results to speak for themselves. Under the CLECs' proposal. Qwest stated that it would be held accountable for the sub-measure performance but the CLECs determine the results. It also stated that PIDs are not meant to address operational problems. Qwest stated it will bring to CMP the billing dispute process including the use of a standard form for submitting the claim and the transmission of more complete, accurate, and clearer resolutions. Through CMP, the CLECs and Qwest can agree to the necessary process changes to support the proposed PID and address the process issues that underlie the CLECs' proposal for the 5C and 5R subparts. Qwest stated it is uncertain how long it will take CMP to address the billing claims issues but it expected that it will require a level 4 notice which takes the longest. If changes arise in CMP that are inconsistent with the proposed PID, the PID will need to be re-addressed. However, Qwest emphasized that CMP addresses the business processes and the LTPA addresses the performance measurements and representatives of the two forums will need to communicate with each other.

The CLECs, in supporting their proposed sub-measures, stated that BI-5B is little more than a stroke tally of resolutions that Qwest provides within the 28 days and does not address the clarity, completeness, or accuracy of the resolution. They stated that 5C goes more towards the quality of the resolution. They stated that the current resolutions are often unclear as to whether they are statuses or final resolutions, are incomplete in providing the reason for denying or denying in part a claim, and occasionally are changed after further consideration by Qwest. For resolutions that are denying a claim because of a cost docket, one CLEC highlighted the need for better information such as the docket number and the implementation date. The CLECs also stated that, even though Qwest might grant the billing dispute, it does not necessarily fix the problem in the billing system which causes the CLECs to submit the same type of claim in succeeding

months, which is the performance area 5R would address. While the CLECs agreed that CMP needs to address the billing dispute process, they expressed concern that the efforts of CMP and the proposed PID could get out of synchronization.

When the meeting reconvened on March 12th, Qwest reviewed proposed PID language changes that addressed improving the quality of the dispute resolutions, the details of which CMP will address.

Qwest also proposed that the proposed PID be reported at a CLECaggregate and not at a CLEC-specific level. Qwest stated that the existing BI-5 is reported only at the CLEC-aggregate level and that no CLEC has requested that it be reported at a CLEC-specific level. The CLECs stated a willingness to consider the PID being reported at the CLEC-aggregate only if they had access to their ad hoc data with the PID-defined numerator and denominator also being available with the data.

- Status: The issues will be addressed further on the March 18th call. Qwest will confirm with its CMP reps that they will be addressing in detail the business processes needed to implement BI-5A and BI-5B including improved dispute resolutions. Qwest will research its capability to provide the numerator and denominator figures with a CLEC's ad hoc data. The CLECs will (1) review the revised PID language to determine if it is sufficient and (2) consider CLEC-aggregate reporting if they can obtain their ad hoc data with the numerator and denominator figures.
- **Issue 5, CLECs' BI-3A Proposal:** Qwest stated that its BI-3A results are good but occasional dips in performance occur and Qwest has not yet been able to identify a trend in the data or any underlying performance problem. It stated that when high volumes are being measured as with this PID, a deviation can be considered statistically significant but not impact the CLECs' ability to compete. Qwest stated that the FCC concurs with this statement. Qwest proposed redoubling its efforts in analyzing the BI-3A data and would be looking at additional product granularity. It stated that the results from this analysis should assist the CLECs and Qwest to determine (1) what factors are at play, (2) whether they relate to performance, data, process or measurement issues, and (3) what modifications should be made to the PID.

Qwest stated that until the analysis was completed, it is premature to adopt the CLECs' proposed PID modifications because no data yet exists to confirm that these modifications would address any existing factors.

In response to the CLECs, Qwest stated that it was unwilling to report the data on an informal basis at the disaggregated level of the CLECs' proposal because (1) it would divert resources from its analysis of the
existing PID and (2) it would be using reporting resources on modifications that are not yet shown to be needed.

Also in response to the CLECs, Qwest stated that it would research collocation examples that the CLECs provide and share its findings. Qwest also stated that it would be willing to look at collocation data but was not willing to agree that collocation would be added to BI-3.

The CLECs stated that problems exist with BI-3A considering that over \$100 million has been credited back on CLEC bills. The CLECs maintained that their proposal with the diagnostic standards is meant to identify problems, which may result in the need for CMP to address process changes. They also expressed a concern that the study would not address their specific concerns with a number of products including collocation.

With respect to the CLECs' proposal to use a 6-month rolling average in the denominator of the calculation, Qwest stated that this modification to the PID should await the results of its proposed in-depth analysis to determine what the issues are. Qwest stated that the reasons for any lumpiness in the data may result from the "bunching" of disputes by CLECs or the implementation of cost dockets.

The CLECs stated that using the 6-month rolling average would address the "lumpiness" issue regardless of whether the underlying factors result from Qwest or CLEC actions and would avoid any "gaming" of PAP payments. They recommended implementing it now and modifying later, if indicated by the study results. The CLECs stated a concern that this issue was raised in a Colorado Commission proceeding where Qwest said that it would address the issue but so far it appears that nothing has been done. The CLECs continued that the study could continue on, resulting in no definitive action occurring to resolve this issue in a reasonable time frame.

- Status: Qwest will undertake an analysis that will include additional product granularity. Qwest will determine the availability of additional product-specific data that can be shared with the CLECs. The parties declared an impasse on the use of the 6-month rolling average issue.
- Issue 17, PO-2B Diagnostic if Standard Met for OP-3 and OP-8: In support of its proposal, Qwest stated that no evidence exists that links the flow-through level with a negative impact on the CLECs' ability to compete. In FCC proceedings no direct causal link has been shown between flow-through rates and customer impact and, therefore, flow-through rates have dropped in importance with the FCC. Qwest stated that when PO-2B was established, there was a lack of accountability for

service order accuracy but since then OP-5B captures some manual service order errors and the proposed PO-20 addresses this issue. Qwest stated that regardless of this proposal Qwest will continue to improve its flow-through rate because of a number of benefits including the significant cost reductions from the decrease in handling manual service orders.

Qwest stated that having one PID's standard dependent on another PID's results is not unique in that the standard for MR-11 is diagnostic when OP-17 meets its standard.

The CLECs stated their concerns. First, changing the standard for PO-2 to diagnostic effectively removes it from the PAP. The CLECs stated that this issue should first be addressed with the state commissions. Second, the CLECs are harmed as long as they need to continue with their quality control steps to review manual service orders prior to the due date, which they state will probably continue through implementation of Phase 4 of PO-20 because 2/3 of the service order errors pertain to blocking and due dates. Third, adopting this proposal removes the incentive for Qwest to increase its flow-through rate. The CLECs stated that their position is that this proposal is premature since the proposed PO-20 has not yet been implemented. The CLECs had varying opinions about which phase of PO-20 needed to be implemented before considering this proposal again.

• **Resolution:** Qwest withdrew its proposal. Qwest may reintroduce the proposal after PO-20 – Phase 2 implementation.

Issues 13, 33, 16, 26, 32, Volume Threshold and related PIDs concerning reporting: Qwest stated that, as a result of some reorganization changes, its executive management was reviewing the volume threshold process and discussing issues related to it. It stated that it needs to continue the internal dialogue and is not in a position to resolve these issues in this 2-day meeting.

The CLECs expressed their disappointment on not being able to resolve these issues in this meeting. Considering they wanted to discuss each new product request on an individual basis, they stated that it had been a major concession on their part to discuss a process and now they feel that the LTPA session may conclude without any agreement on these issues. The CLECs continued that they needed the reporting of loop splitting and xDSL-I to be addressed in this LTPA session.

- **Status:** Qwest will address on the March 25th conference call what it is willing to do with respect to reporting loop splitting and xDSL-I capable unbundled loops.
- Issues 23, 24 and 34, PO-20 and Tier Designations: Qwest stated its concern about Eschelon's Minnesota filing that addressed PO-20 and

recommended the 99% benchmark in the absence of letting the LTPA process reach completion.

John Kern put forth for consideration an alternate sliding scale benchmark proposal tied to the implementation schedule of the phases: 97% for Phase 1, 95% for Phase 2, and 93% for Phase 3. Qwest expressed its willingness to go forward but with a caveat of a diagnostic burn-in period for each phase of 3 months.

The CLECs were opposed to the declining sliding scale proposal stating that a 7% error rate is too high. They continued that as each phase is implemented, the error rate should significantly decrease and their proposed 99% benchmark should be easily attainable.

Upon reconvening on March 12th a number of sliding scale options were discussed, none of which allowed the parties to reach agreement.

• **Resolution:** The parties declared an impasse on the benchmark issue.

Issues 27, 28, 29, and 30, standards for line splitting and loop splitting: The CLECs had distributed their proposed line splitting standards earlier in the week. Qwest responded that for PO-5 the parties had previously agreed on that standard. Qwest also agreed to the CLECs' proposed standards for OP-6 (Parity with retail Qwest DSL) and OP-15 (Diagnostic (Expectation: Parity with retail Qwest DSL)). For the line splitting standard in the other measures, Qwest expressed concern about the extremely low volumes which result in Qwest not meeting the standard with only 1 miss. Qwest proposed a low volume caveat that permitted "one free miss" for volumes less than or equal to 20, similar to what is stated in MR-11.

In response to a question from a CLEC, Tom Spinks from the Washington Commission staff stated that the "Low Volume, Emerging Markets" provision in some of the PAPs only apply to certain services.

For OP-4, Qwest clarified that the 3.15 days standard is not effective in Colorado but is under formal reconsideration. After stating its disagreement with the 3.15 standard, Qwest countered with different standards for the three OP-4 sub-measures to reflect the significant volume differences. The CLECs did not support this proposal stating that it is unprecedented and because potential discrimination among CLECs might exist due to the different focus on urban and rural areas that a CLEC can have.

For OP-5A and the MR PIDs, Qwest countered that the proper parity measure is Qwest DSL and not Res and Bus POTs, reciting the similarities

in the processes used. One CLEC questioned why the line splitting standard should be parity with Qwest DSL when the line sharing standard is parity with Res and Bus POTs for all the MR PIDs except MR-7 (which has a line sharing parity standard with retail Qwest DSL). Qwest responded that initially these services were processed through the designed services process but that they have now migrated to the non-designed services process. Therefore, retail Qwest DSL is the better parity standard.

In response to the CLECs' statement that switching to a parity standard with Qwest DSL is of concern since generally Qwest DSL performance is lower than the Res and Bus POTs performance, Qwest stated that the parity standard should be with that product which best aligns with line splitting, not the product that establishes the higher performance standard. The CLECs asked Qwest if the performance difference between Qwest DSL and Res and Bus POTs could be attributed to ISP service issues being included in the Qwest DSL results. The CLECs stated that to the extent ISP service issues are included in Qwest DSL results and are not included in the CLECs' line splitting results, the more comparable standard may be Res and Bus POTs. Qwest countered that the appropriate retail analogue is the one that uses processes similar to those used for line splitting, which would be Qwest DSL. The POTs processes differ considerable from those used for line splitting.

- Resolution: The parties will discuss this issue further on the March 25th call. The parties agree on the CLECs' proposed standards for PO-5, OP-6, OP-15, and MR-7. For OP-3 Qwest will agree to a 95% standard if the CLECs agree to the low volume caveat of "one free miss" for volumes less than or equal to 20. For OP-4, the CLECs will consider a 3.3 days standard with the low volume caveat. For OP-5A and the other MR PIDs, the CLECs will consider using Qwest DSL as the parity standard after reviewing Qwest DSL results with the ISP issues removed. The CLECs are also considering the low volume caveat for OP-5A.
- Issue 11, benchmarks for OP-3 and OP-4 DS-1 Capable Loops: Prior to the meeting, the CLECs agreed to Qwest's proposal for OP-4 and withdrew their proposal for OP-3.

Schedules:

- Impasse Issues:
 - April 2, 2004: CLECs and Qwest submit separate position papers on BI-3A and PO-20
 - o April 12, 2004: John Kern's recommendations due
 - o April 20, 2004: State staff recommendations due
 - The state commission staffs will discuss whether a reply cycle should be inserted within the schedule

8

• Redlined PID:

- April 2, 2004: Qwest to circulate the PID document with all the agreed-upon revisions redlined
- April 9, 2004: CLECs to respond with any issues on an "exception only basis" via e-mail with silence being concurrence
- May 1, 2004: Date by which Qwest will make its Exhibit B filing with each state commission absent any open issues arising from CLEC feedback

• LTPA Change Recommendations:

• May 1, 2004: Parties to distribute to the LTPA list their comments and recommendations about changes to the LTPA process

• Benchmark/Parity White Papers:

• May 15, 2004: White papers due on the appropriate criteria for setting a benchmark versus a parity standard

New Action Items:

- John Kern will distribute the next agenda and an updated Master Issues Matrix by noon on March 15th.
- Qwest will:
 - o Address the BI-5 items addressed in Issues 4 and 6 above
 - Undertake an analysis for BI-3A that will include additional product granularity and will determine the availability of additional product-specific data that can be shared with the CLECs (Issue 5)
 - Address on the March 25th conference call what it is willing to do about reporting loop splitting and xDSL-I (Issues 26 and 32)
 - Will consider the line splitting items in Issues 27-30 above
- The CLECs:
 - May provide data to Qwest on their line loss problems by March 19, 2004 (Issue 8)
 - Will address the BI-5 items addressed in Issues 4 and 6 above
 - Will consider the line splitting items in Issues 27-30 above

Next Meeting:

- March 18, 2004, at 1 p.m. M.S.T.
- Conference bridge: 1-877-552-8688 pass code 3381262#

Minutes

Long Term PID Administration Conference Call (Minutes Provided by Qwest)

Date & Time: Thursday, February 19, 2004, 1 p.m. M.S.T.

Purpose:

- To address the following issues:
 - Issue 14a, status of USLink's request to establish sub-loop standards
 - Issue 34, Qwest's response to Eschelon's proposal to discuss Tier Designations
 - Issue 36, Qwest's response to Eschelon's proposal to modify PIDs for batch hot cuts
 - Issues 16, status by Qwest of data availability for UNE-P Centrex
 21 and Line Sharing
- To address the following pending action items from the February 12, 2004, call:
 - o Issue 9, Qwest's update on coding issues for MR-7
 - Issue 12, Qwest's report on providing exclusion data for OP-4, OP-6, and OP-15
 - Issues 13 and 33, CLECs' response to Qwest's counterproposal on Volume Thresholds
 - Issue 23, Qwest's response to CLEC's counterproposal regarding the PO-20 proposed benchmark

| Organization | Name | は認識な | Organization | Name |
|------------------|-----------------|------|-------------------|----------------|
| LTPA Facilitator | John Kern | | SD PUC | Harlan Best |
| ID PUC | Wayne Hart | 和公 | UT Div. of Public | Joni Zenger |
| | · | | Utilities | |
| AT&T | Joe Bloss | 覹 | WA UTC | Tom Spinks |
| Covad | Megan Doberneck | 調整 | WY PUC | Mike Korber |
| Eschelon | Ray Smith | | Qwest | Nancy |
| | | | | Lubamersky |
| McLeod USA | Julia Redman- | | Qwest | Dean Buhler |
| | Carter | 源 | | |
| MCI | Chad Warner | 影 | Qwest | Kathy Haile |
| USLink | Rod Cox | | Qwest | Patricia Emigh |
| USLink | Jennifer Arnold | 淵 | Qwest | Duane Cooke |
| CO PUC | John Epley | | Qwest | Barb Brohl |
| IA UB | Dennis Rosauer | | Qwest | Char Mahs |
| MN PUC | Ganesh Krishnan | 躙 | Qwest | Barry Orrel |
| MT PSC | Kate Whitney | | Qwest | Dave Phillips |

Issues:

Issue 14a, status of USLink's request to establish sub-loop standards: USLink contacted Qwest about this issue and they agreed to defer this issue to the next LTPA cycle.

• **Resolution:** The issue is closed for this LTPA cycle and will be addressed in the next one.

Issue 34, Qwest's response to Eschelon's proposal to discuss Tier Designations: Eschelon provided its proposal on establishing Tier Designations earlier in the week. Qwest commented that the proposal only addressed PO-20. Eschelon stated the parties should discuss PAP tier designations in this forum to avoid the need to address them with each of the 14 state commissions. Since the BI-5 and Line Loss proposed PIDs are not ready for PAP tier discussions, Eschelon's proposal specifically addressed tier designations for PO-20. Qwest stated that only PIDs should be addressed in the LTPA. Qwest expressed that, since tier designations vary among the 14 states, it would like to finish this LTPA cycle, make the required Exhibit B and Exhibit K filings, and revisit PAP tier designations after all the state commissions finish their review of these filings.

Eschelon stated that it recognizes that variances exist among the 14-state PAPs and its proposal is intended to not accentuate the variances. It stated that when discussing new PIDs, it believes there is enough "common ground" among the parties to minimize the differences among the states. MCI and several state commission staffs also stated that it would be more efficient to discuss the PAP issues in the LTPA than dealing with them separately with the 14 state commissions. Tom Spinks from the Washington PUC staff stated that it was Washington's understanding, when it decided to support the LTPA, that PAP issues would be discussed in the LTPA forum. Qwest stated a concern with this approach since some of the local or state-specific CLECs that have been quite vocal on PAP issues in the state commission proceedings do not participate in the LTPA. One of the CLECs stated that addressing PAP issues in a collaborative forum works quite well in the SBC-Midwest region. Qwest stated that it would review this issue with its Public Policy people.

John Kern stated that when PAP issues are being addressed it will be important to invite those state commissions that are not active in the LTPA to attend. He also stated that it will be important that each state provide a notice to the CLECs. Qwest requested that the state commission staff people on the call discuss this issue with their colleagues.

John Kern pointed out that the LTPA web site would be a good resource to provide information on a specific issue with PAP implications for those CLECs that are not very active in the LTPA forum.

Qwest stated that it would be convening an ad hoc meeting to address PAP issues for PO-20, a PID which was unique in its development from other PIDs.

• **Resolution:** This issue remains open and will be addressed on the February 26th call. Qwest will review the noticing of regional CLECs with Public Policy. State commission staffs will discuss this issue with their colleagues.

Issue 36, Qwest's response to Eschelon's proposal to modify PIDs for batch hot cuts: Qwest discussed with its internal experts the status of the development of the batch hot cut process. Qwest stated that a couple of activities are still under way: (1) in the states, hearings will address disputed issues arising out of the collaborative forum, which could result in substantial changes to the batch hot cut process and (2) CMP is continuing to address issues associated with important areas of the system functionality which will likely be finalized no earlier than April. Qwest recommended that this issue be addressed when the process is sufficiently defined.

The CLECs concurred with Qwest that the batch hot cut process area is still in a state of flux and recommended that batch hot cuts be addressed with a high priority in the next LTPA or sooner if the process definition is completed in advance.

John Kern stated that, based on the parties' input, this issue should be deferred to the next 6-month LTPA cycle or addressed in ad hoc meetings if the batch hot cut process is defined earlier.

• **Resolution:** The issue is closed for this LTPA cycle.

Issues 16, status by Qwest of data availability for UNE-P Centrex 21 and Line Sharing: Qwest stated that it does not have PID quality historical flow-through-eligible data for its UNE-P (Centrex 21) or Line Sharing products. In November 2003, when Qwest submitted this issue for LTPA consideration, it had not undertaken the development work required to begin reporting. Qwest does not do the coding for a PID issue until the parties reach agreement. The historical flow-through-related data cannot distinguish between line sharing and line splitting because, although line sharing is flow-through-eligible, line splitting is not. Qwest stated that it is inappropriate to look at the historical data until the full PID development has occurred, and importantly has been validated to be accurate. Qwest continued that it should go forward with full development, assuming the LTPA's agreement on Qwest's proposal, with June 2004 results being reported in July. Qwest stated that the parties should then use this data to set a standard. Qwest also stated that the establishment of a standard is partially dependent on the resolution of Issues 13 and 33, Volume Thresholds/New Product Reporting.

One CLEC asked if Qwest could look at the historical data for the line sharing/line splitting category prior to when line splitting was included in the category. Qwest reiterated its concern that the data has not been validated to ensure that the performance results are accurate and errorfree.

One CLEC stated that, in the CMP process, Qwest told the CLECs that it had an internal benchmark for flow-through-eligibility for Centrex 21 that was in the 90% range (see September 2003 CMP meeting minutes). The CLEC stated that the benchmark should be the same as for UNE-P POTs and that Qwest's current proposal adds a lot of delay to when the parties could discuss setting a standard.

• **Resolution:** The issue remains open. Qwest will investigate the material from the CMP meeting. The issue will be readdressed on the February 26th call.

Pending Action Items:

• **Issue 9, Qwest's update on coding issues for MR-7:** Qwest requested LTPA agreement to proceed with its forward-looking proposal for MR-7. Qwest stated that because of the specialization required to code MR measures versus PO measures, there are different development teams addressing changes to MR measures and PO measures; therefore, there is no resource contention between these two areas.

Based on the discussion from the February 12th call, one CLEC asked what the relationship is between MR-7 and MR-8. Qwest replied that having MR-7 be forward-looking would assist its network experts to identify and fix problems concerning the health of the overall network, thereby improving MR-8.

One CLEC stated that, while Qwest can go forward quickly with implementing its MR-7 proposal, it expressed concern regarding the development time related to other PIDs that the CLECs want. Qwest responded that, while resources are scarce across the industry, including with Qwest, its development cycles are typically shorter than other RBOCs, which take at least 4 months to implement PID changes, with 3-4 months for disaggregations and 4-9 months for new PIDs.

In response to John Kern's prioritization question, Qwest stated that it does not prioritize its own PID change work over that of the CLECs'.

One CLEC stated that it could agree to close this issue if Qwest could respond to its specific concerns about the implementation of Phase 3 of PO-20. The parties discussed the CLEC's concerns, reaching agreement

on that item. (See PO-20 discussion below.) The CLECs then agreed with Qwest's MR-7 forward-looking proposal.

• **Resolution:** The issue is closed.

Issue 12, Qwest's report on providing exclusion data for OP-4, OP-6, and OP-15: Qwest is proposing to take its OP-3 exclusion and update the language in OP-4, OP-6 and OP-15. In response to the CLECs' request for some data, Qwest sent out its data yesterday.

Qwest reviewed the data it had provided relating to the subtraction of time due to non-Qwest reasons. Since the data represented completed orders, the data pertains to OP-4 and OP-6. The data does not address OP-15 since that PID addresses pending orders. Qwest provided 10 examples region-wide: 2 for wholesale and 8 for retail. All of the examples address service order delays that had an association to severe weather. Qwest stated that it is unable to provide a comparison of PID results with and without the exclusions because (1) the 10 instances were a sampling of January data, (2) the January performance results are not yet available and (3) to do so requires a significant use of resources. For low volume products the parity could change but the exclusions would likely not impact the results of higher-volume products. Regardless of the quantitative impact, Qwest stated that the PIDs are focusing on Qwest performance and, therefore, subtractions of time for non-Qwest reasons are valid.

One CLEC stated that for PAP purposes provisions exist to deal with these kinds of events. It continued that the PID is supposed to show actual performance, regardless of these kinds of events. It provided an example where Qwest took an additional 27 days to complete an order that was delayed for a severe winter weather event. It felt the delay was too long and Qwest should have the burden to show that a delay is appropriate. Qwest responded that only the weather-related time would be excluded. That time associated with items under its control would be captured in a PID.

John Kern asked whether weather events come under the Force Majeure provisions. Qwest replied that a number of events do not rise to that level. It gave the example where the road was closed in Montana, preventing the installer from reaching the premises.

When a CLEC stated that the PIDs are not impacted by these performance anomalies, Qwest stated that with low volume product categories the results could be affected. The CLEC stated that Qwest could potentially abuse the use of the exclusion. It continued that Qwest should report what it actually did. Qwest responded that performance results are intended to reflect Qwest's performance and that including delays outside of Qwest's control renders the results inaccurate.

One CLEC stated that it was not prepared to approve this proposal. It stated that since OP-4 and OP-6 primarily use parity standards, these events should impact both wholesale and retail equally, thereby not needing the exclusion. Qwest stated that if these events generally affected a large area, that might be the case; however, many of these events are very localized. Qwest stated that these exclusions are no different in principle from customer-initiated delays which are excluded from the PIDs.

John Kern recommended that Qwest collect data going forward and bring the issue back to the LTPA in the next session.

• **Resolution:** The issue is closed for this LTPA cycle, leaving the existing PIDs language as is. Qwest may collect data for February through April 2004 to support it position in the next LTPA cycle.

Issues 13 and 33, CLECs' response to Qwest's counterproposal on Volume Thresholds: From the February 12th call, the CLECs were to review Qwest's counterproposal and contact Qwest if they were interested in pursuing it further.

Covad stated that it has some questions that it would like to discuss with Qwest prior to the next call. The other CLECs had no input at this time and would prefer to discuss this issue after Qwest and Covad have their discussions.

- **Resolution:** The issue remains open. Covad and Qwest will discuss Covad's questions off-line.
- **Issues 23, Qwest's response to CLEC's counterproposal regarding the PO-20 proposed benchmark:** In response to a CLEC asking for specific dates for implementation of Phase 3 which contain a majority of the blocking requirements, Qwest responded that it has a firm commitment to fund that phase. It has defined the requirements and is now determining the amount of coding hours required. Once it identifies the extent of the resources required, it will address where the project will fit into the prioritization schedule. In response to Qwest's question on what it would take for Eschelon to close this concern, Eschelon requested that (1) Qwest provide a monthly status on the progress of implementing its blocking requirements by end of first quarter 2005 with a target date of December 2004 and (2) the proposed PID be amended to reflect that time frame. Qwest agreed to provide both items.

In response to the CLECs' proposal on tier designations for the proposed PO-20, Qwest proposed a separate call to discuss PO-20 and discuss PAP

issues. While Qwest stated that it reserves the right not to discuss PAP issues in the LTPA, it is willing to address PO-20 PAP process issues in a multi-state collaborative forum separate from the LTPA because of the unique history associated with PO-20. Qwest recounted it voluntarily developed the existing PO-20 after discussions with the FCC during the §271 approval process. It is a region-wide measurement and is included in the PAP of some states. Under the proposed PO-20, each state will require changes in the Exhibit K of its SGAT.

All the CLECs agreed to such a meeting. One CLEC recommended that a notice be sent about the meeting to all the CLECs operating in the region. In response to the suggestion that the LTPA distribution list be used for such a notice, Qwest stated that it would investigate that possibility.

At the parties' request, Qwest agreed to provide information on the PAP issue and a notice of the meeting prior to the meeting date.

• **Resolution:** The issue remains open. Qwest will provide (1) a monthly status on Qwest's progress on addressing the CLECs' blocking requirements by end of first quarter 2005 with a target date of December 2004 and (2) the proposed PID amended to reflect these time frames. The ad hoc call is scheduled for March 1st at 11 a.m. MST. Qwest will provide information and notice no later than the morning of February 26th.

New Action Items:

- John Kern will distribute the next agenda and an updated Master Issues Matrix by noon on Monday, February 23rd.
- Qwest will:
 - Review the noticing of regional CLECs. (Issue 34)
 - Investigate the material from the CMP meeting. (Issue 16)
 - Provide (1) a monthly status on Qwest's progress on addressing the CLECs' blocking requirements by end of first quarter 2005 with a target date of December 2004 and (2) the proposed PID amended to reflect these time frames. (Issue 23)
 - Explore the possibility of using the LTPA list to notice CLECs about the ad hoc PO-20 meeting. (Issue 23)
 - Provide information and notice of the PO-20 PAP issues no later than the morning of February 26th. (Issue 23)
- Covad and Qwest will discuss Covad's questions about Qwest's counterproposal on volume thresholds/new product reporting off-line prior to the February 26th LTPA call. (Issues 13 and 33)
- State commission staffs will discuss noticing regional CLECs with their colleagues. (Issue 34)

Next Meeting:

• February 26, 2004, at 1 p.m. M.S.T.

Conference bridge: 1-877-552-8688 pass code 3381262#

Minutes

Long Term PID Administration Conference Call (Minutes Provided by Qwest)

Date & Time: Thursday, December 18, 2003, 1 p.m. M.S.T.

Purpose:

- To review two sample PIDs with a hyperlink
- To address Proposal Numbers 13 and 33 on Volume Thresholds
- To address Proposal Numbers 25-30 pertaining to Data Services, time permitting
- To review pending Action Items

| Organization | Name | | Organization | Name |
|--------------------|-----------------|-------|--------------|----------------|
| LTPA Facilitator | John Kern | | Qwest | Nancy |
| | | | | Lubamersky |
| Eschelon | Ray Smith | 奫 | Qwest | Dean Buhler |
| Covad | Megan Doberneck | | Qwest | Kathy Haile |
| MCI | Chad Warner | 1999 | Qwest | Patricia Emigh |
| US Link | Jennifer Arnold | いた | Qwest | Duane Cooke |
| John Epley | CO PUC | 16.23 | Qwest | Barb Brohl |
| IA Utilities Board | Penny Baker | | Qwest | Tom Kowal |
| ID PUC | Wayne Hart | 驪 | Qwest | Char Mahs |
| MT Consumer | Mary Wright | 調 | Qwest | Todd Staebell |
| Council | | | | |
| MN PUC | Ganesh Krishnan | | Qwest | Dave Phillips |
| ND PSC | Pat Fahn | 臟 | Qwest | John Hayat |
| NM PRC | Mike Ripperger | | Qwest | Nancy Tangeman |
| SD PUC | Harlan Best | 影 | Qwest | Tim Francis |
| UT Div. of Public | Joni Zenger | | Qwest | Paul Diamond |
| Utilities | | | | |
| WY PUC | Mike Korber | 麣 | | |

- Sample PIDs with a Hyperlink: On the adhoc call on December 11 that addressed the Action Item concerning the proposed deletion of the parenthetic reference to the "I" and "T" action coded line USOCs in several PIDs, AT&T proposed using a hyperlink for the Inward Activity definition. Qwest reviewed two sample PIDs (OP-3 and PO-15) with such a hyperlink. Parties agreed to the use of hyperlinks to Definition of Terms in the PID. The question arose whether all defined terms in the Definition of Terms should be hyperlinked.
 - **Resolution:** Qwest will propose a list of terms which are generally more Qwest-specific to be hyperlinked and will distribute the list in the first week in January.

1

Issues 13 and 33: Qwest clarified its proposal that it distributed on 12/12/03 by restating the two thresholds that it is proposing: (1) when new installations of a product grow to 500 at a CLEC-aggregate level, 14-statewide basis within 6 months or (2) when the embedded base for a product reaches 1000 at a CLEC-aggregate level, 14-statewide basis, over any period of time, whichever occurs first. In response to Qwest's proposal, some of the CLECs summarized their position, which was distributed on 12/17/03, stating that Qwest should disaggregate all products that are offered to CLECs and, as a result, that Qwest should provide a list of all products not already disaggregated in the monthly performance results along with their associated volumes. Qwest requested a list of products that the CLECs would like to have reported. After much discussion, the parties focused on x-DSL-I capable loops.

.

- Resolution: These issues remain open. Qwest will identify whether x-DSL-I capable loops are included in the PO, OP, and MR PIDs and will provide the volumes in service. This information will be provided to help resolve Issue 32 where inclusion of these loops in various PIDs is requested. Qwest will also provide a "reference aid" identifying information such as which PIDs include all LSRs, which ones include electronic LSRs by interface or which PIDs include only products specified in the Disaggregation Reporting section of the definition.
- In response to a CLEC's question about whether some historical data could be reported once a volume threshold is reached and reporting has begun, Qwest agreed to research the capability of its data warehouse to support this request, focusing specifically on line splitting.
- Issue 25, including line splitting as a separate product in the PIDs where line sharing is separately reported (PO-5, OP-3, OP-4, OP-5, OP-6, OP-15, MR-3, MR-4, MR-6, MR-7, and MR-8): Qwest stated its willingness to report line splitting in these PIDs because it met Qwest's Volume Threshold proposal. It was noted that line splitting is already a separate category in the new OP-5 where reporting will start in January 2004 with November 2003 results.
 - Resolution: Qwest will separately report line splitting in OP-3, 4, 5, 6, 15, MR-3, 4, 6, 7, and 8. Line Splitting will be reported in the (b) product group of Unbundled Loops and specified UNEs for PO-5. [After the call Qwest identified that line splitting is already included in PO-5 (b) as is line sharing.] It was agreed that line splitting will be placed just prior to the line sharing in the Product Reporting section of the appropriate PIDs.
 - Qwest will determine how quickly the reporting of line splitting performance can begin and whether prior months' results can also be included.
 - 2

Issue 26, including loop splitting as a separate product in PO-5, OP-3, OP-4, OP-5, OP-6, OP-15, MR-3, MR-4, MR-6, MR-7, and MR-8 PIDs: Qwest declined to separately report loop splitting at this time since no CLEC has ordered loop splitting; consequently, no loop splitting line is in service.

• **Resolution:** The issue remains open. MCI and Covad will discuss this issue offline and may offer an alternative proposal.

Issue 27, set a standard for line sharing and line splitting where diagnostic is listed for the OP-5, OP-6, and OP-15 PIDs:

For OP-6, the CLECs requested that a parity standard with either Qwest DSL or retail Residence and Business POTs be established for line sharing. Qwest agreed to take this proposal back for consideration. The same request was made for line splitting and Qwest stated per prior PID negotiations that a diagnostic standard should be used for the first 6 months when reporting a new product to allow time to fine tune operational and reporting processes and to build a performance record on which a standard may then be set.

For OP-15, the CLECs requested that a parity standard with Qwest DSL be established for line sharing and line splitting. Qwest replied that the standard for OP-15 is diagnostic for all products and should remain so, including line sharing and line splitting.

For OP-5A, the CLECs requested the same parity standard be set for line splitting as was established for line sharing. As with the other requests, Qwest stated that the standard for line splitting should be diagnostic for the first 6 months. With the reporting of the new OP-5 to start in January 2004 with November 2003 results, the parties agreed that OP-5B for line sharing will remain diagnostic for the first 6 months of reporting. OP-5R is to be diagnostic for all products for the first six months after which a standard, yet to be determined, may be possible. OP-5T is to remain diagnostic for all products.

• **Resolution:** The issue remains open. Qwest will return with its position on specific line sharing and line splitting standards and its implementation schedule for reporting the line splitting results.

• Clarification of the Scope of LTPA:

• To clarify the scope of the LTPA discussions, John Kern clarified that Qwest's compliance with the PIDs was not within scope.

• Status of Pending Action Items:

• <u>The Inclusion of the Revised OP-5 in the Minnesota Wholesale</u> <u>Service Quality Plan</u>: The revised OP-5 is in effect in the Minnesota SGAT. Qwest is in the process of requesting the Commission to take notice of the revised OP-5 in the Wholesale Service Quality Plan.

- Filing of the Redlined Adminstrative Clean-up of the PID with Qwest's SGAT Filing in Early January to Put into Effect the Administrative Changes, Correct PO-16 and Deal with the GA-1 Issues: The parties agreed to the filing and agreed to include the deletion of shared loop from the PID in the redlined changes. The proposed deletion of the parenthetic reference to the "T" and "T" action coded line USOCs in several PIDs was approved subject to Ray Smith's concurrence. He will provide approval to Nancy Lubamersky.
- <u>Eschelon's Proposal for Issue14b Distributed 12/17/03</u>: John Kern will add the consideration of Eschelon's proposed redlined PIDs for MR-3, MR-4, MR-5, MR-6, MR-7, MR-8, MR-9 and the Definition of Terms to the Issues Matrix.
- <u>Reporting of Trouble Tickets to the Call Center within 72 Hours of</u> <u>Order Completion</u>: Qwest has begun the analysis of this process and underlying documentation. This will be considered again when the other changes to the M&R measurements are discussed.
- Inclusion of PAP Reference on Introduction Page i of PID document: Qwest proposed the following sentence be used: "Individual state performance assurance plans may specify and apply state specific variations from the Performance Measurement Definitions and/or standards contained herein." The parties tentatively agreed to the use of this sentence; however, if a party objects after considering the above sentence, they will contact Qwest by January 5th.
- **Potential Face-to-Face Meeting:** Since the LTPA will not meet the next two weeks and a number of issues still remain to be addressed, John Kern asked the parties to consider a one or two day face-to-face meeting in a location to be determined between late January and mid-February. This issue will be revisited in early January.

New Action Items:

- John Kern will distribute the next agenda and an updated Master Issues Matrix.
- Qwest will:

0

- Propose a list of terms from the Definition of Terms which are generally more Qwest-specific to be hyperlinked in the first week in January.
- Identify which PIDs include x-DSL-I capable loops and provide the volumes in service. Provide a "reference aid" identifying information such as which PIDs include all LSRs, which ones include electronic LSRs by interface or which PIDs include only

products specified in the Disaggregation Reporting section of the definition.

Provide its position on the specific line sharing and line splitting parity standards and its implementation schedule for reporting line splitting results, and its ability to report prior months' results when beginning to report a new disaggregation.

• Covad and MCI may offer an alternative proposal for Issue 26, the inclusion of loop splitting as a separately reported product in various PIDs.

Next Meeting:

о

- January 8, 2004, at 1 p.m. M.S.T.
- Conference bridge: 1-877-552-8688 pass code 3381262#

Ewing, Rita A

From: Sent: To: Subject: Maiser@puclist.state.id.us on behalf of Haile, Kathleen Tuesday, June 08, 2004 4:42 PM LT271@puclist.state.id.us Update on PO-20 Definition to be included in Exhibit B filings



DraftPO-20 panded) Manual

In preparing the documents for the upcoming Exhibit B filings which will add the expanded PO-20 definition, Qwest noticed that in the last version distributed for concurrence on April 30, Qwest failed to delete the parenthetical addressing the need for possible PID revisions during the implementation process. Rather than include this language, which was intended to be part of the drafts circulated during the negotiation stage, Qwest will remove it in the final version to be included in the revised Exhibit B. In addition this version includes one other clean up item on page 4. In the remarks section for the LTY field the font color was changed from blue to black. For your information a redline copy of the PID with the parenthetical removed and the font color changed is attached. If comments are not received on or before June 16, 2004, the attached version will be included in Qwest's anticipated Exhibit B filings as the agreed upon PO-20.

Thanks, Kathy Haile Qwest

PO-20 (Expanded) – Manual Service Order Accuracy

(The following proposed language is subject to final refinements identified during the implementation process. Such refinements will be cleared with the parties in Long-Term PID Administration before finalizing implementation.)

Purpose:

Evaluates the degree to which Qwest accurately processes CLECs' Local Service Requests (LSRs), which are electronically-submitted and manually processed by Qwest, into Qwest Service Orders, based on mechanized comparisons of specified LSR-Service Order fields and focusing on the percentage of manuallyprocessed Service Orders that are accurate/error-free.

Description:

Measures the percentage of manually-processed Qwest Service Orders that are populated correctly, in specified data fields, with information obtained from CLEC LSRs.

- Includes only Service Orders created from CLEC LSRs that Qwest receives NOTE 1 electronically (via IMA-. GUI or IMA-EDI) and manually processes in the creation of Service Orders, regardless of flow through eligibility, subject to exclusions specified below.
- Includes only Service Orders, from the product reporting categories specified below, that request inward line or feature activity (Change, New, and Transfer order types), are assigned a due date by Qwest, and are completed/closed in the reporting period. Change Service Order types included in this measurement consist of all C orders with "I" and "T" action-coded line or feature USOCs.
- All Service Orders satisfying the above criteria and as specified in the Availability section below are evaluated in this measurement.
- An inward line Service Order will be classified as "accurate" and thus counted in the numerator in the formula below when the mechanized comparisons of this measurement determine that the fields specified in the Service Order Fields Evaluated section below (when the source fields have been properly populated on the LSR) are all accurate on the Service Order. An inward feature Service Order will be classified as "accurate" if the fields specified in the Service Order Fields Evaluated section below (when the source fields have been properly populated on the LSR) are all accurate on the Service Order and if no CLEC notifications to the call center have generated call center tickets coded to LSR/SO mismatch for that order.
 - Service Orders will be counted as being accurate if the contents of the relevant fields, as recorded in the completed Service Orders involved in provisioning the service, properly match or correspond to the information from the specified fields as provided in the latest version of associated LSRs.
 - Service orders generated from LSRs receiving a PIA (Provider Initiated Activity value will be counted as being accurate if each and every mismatch has a correct and corresponding PIA value.
 - Service Orders, including those otherwise considered accurate under the above-described mechanized field comparison, will not be counted as accurate if Qwest corrects errors in its Service Order(s) as a result of contacts received from CLECs no earlier than one business day prior to the original due date.

| Reporting Period: One month, reported in arrears (i.e., results first appear in reports one month later than results for measurements that are not reported in arrears), in order to exclude Service Orders that are the subject of call center tickets counted in OP-5B and OP-5T, as having new service problems attributed to Service Order errors. | Unit of Measure: Percent |
|---|--|
| Reporting Comparisons: CLEC Aggregate and individual CLEC | Disaggregation Reporting: Statewide Level |
| Formula: | I |

[(Number of accurate, evaluated Service Orders) + (Number of evaluated Service Orders completed in the reporting period)] x 100

PO-20 (Expanded) – Manual Service Order Accuracy

| Γ | Exclusions: | | | | | | |
|---|---|---|----------------------------------|-------------------|--|--|--|
| | Service Orders that are the subject of call center tickets counted in OP-5B and OP-5T as having new | | | | | | |
| | service problems attributed to Service Order errors. | | | | | | |
| | Cancelled Service Orders. | | | | | | |
| | Service Orders that cannot be matched to a correl | esponding l | _SR | | | | |
| ļ | Records missing data essential to the calculation | of the mea | surement per the PID. | | | | |
| | Product Reporting: | | Standard: | | | | |
| ł | Resale and UNE-P (POTS and Centrex 21) | | Benchmarks, as follo | WS: | | | |
| ļ | | | | | | | |
| | Unbundled Loops (Analog and Non-Loaded 2/4-w Copoble, DS2 and higher Capable, ADSI, Compa | tiblo | | | | | |
| | XDSI -I Canable, ISDN-BBI Canable) | Capable, DOS and higher Capable, ADOL Compatible, | | | | | |
| l | | | Phase 1 | 97% | | | |
| | | Phase 2 | 96% | | | | |
| | | Phase 3 & beyond | 95% | | | | |
| ţ | Availability: | Notes: | I | L | | | |
| | Phase 0 – PO-20 (Old) (the first version using | 1. To be | included in the measu | rement, Service | | | |
| | sampling of limited fields). (Available now) | Orde | s created from CLEC LSRs must be | | | | |
| | Phase 1^{NOTE 2} – PO-20 (Expanded) Mechanized | recei | ved and completed in th | e same version of | | | |
| | version (as defined herein). All qualifying orders | IMA-0 | SUI OF IMA-EDI. | ····· | | | |
| | associated with initial LSRs received via IMA | 2. Filas | ving Service Orders per | ually-processed, | | | |
| | data reported in Jul 04 | ory specified above, fro | m throughout | | | | |
| | Phase 2 – Additional fields added. No later than | Qwes | t's 14-state local servic | e region. | | | |
| | Sep 04 results reported in Nov 04 | | | Ť | | | |
| | Phase 3– Additional fields added. Targeted for | | | | | | |
| | 1 st Quarter 05 | | | | | | |
| | Phase 4 – Additional fields added. (Date TBD). | | | | | | |

| | | LSR-Servic | e Order Fields Evaluated | |
|-----------|---|--|---|--|
| Phase 1 | Phase 1 – (Effective with LSRs received beginning May 2004) | | | |
| Mechanize | ed compariso | on of the fields from | the Service Order to the LSR: | |
| | LSR Field | | | |
| Form | Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: | |
| LSR | CCNA | Customer Carrier Name Abbreviation | CCNA field of LSR form compared to the RSID/ZCID field identifier in the Extended ID section of the Service Order. | |
| | PON | Purchase Order Number | PON field of LSR form compared to the PON field in Bill Section of the Service Order. | |
| | D/TSENT | Date and time sent | The D/TSENT field of LSR form from the Firm Order Manager, using applied business day cut-off rules and business typing rules, and compare to the APP (Application Date) used on the Service Order. | |
| | CHC | Coordinated Hot Cut Requested | Applies only to Unbundled Loop. Validate that the installation USOC used on the Service Order matches the Coordinated Cut request. (Evaluated in conjunction with the TEST field to determine correct USOC.) | |
| | TEST | Testing required | Applies only to Unbundled Loop. Validate that the installation USOC used on the Service Order matches the TEST request. (Evaluated in conjunction with the CHC field to determine correct USOC.) | |
| | NC | Network Channel Code | Applies only to Unbundled Loop. NC field on the LSR form compared to provisioning USOC for CKL1 on the Service Order. | |

| | LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | | |
|-------------------------|------------------------------------|--|--|--|
| Phase 1 - | - (Effective | with LSRs rece | eived beginning May 2004) | |
| Mechanize | d compariso | n of the fields from | the Service Order to the LSR: | |
| Form | LSR Field Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: | |
| | NCI | Network Channel Interface Code | Applies only to Unbundled Loop NCI field on the LSR form compared to provisioning USOC for CKL1 on the Service Order. | |
| | SECNCI | Secondary Network Channel Interface Code | Applies only to Unbundled Loop orders. SECNCI field on the LSR form compared to the provisioning USOC for CKL2 on the Service Order. | |
| | PIC | InterLATA Pre- subscription Indicator Code | PIC field on Resale or Centrex form compared to PIC populated on the "I" or "T" action lines in the Service and Equipment section of the Service Order. <i>Note:</i> LSR PIC = None; S.O. PIC = None | |
| Resale or Centrex | LPIC | IntraLATA Pre- subscription Indicator Code | LPIC field on Resale or Centrex form compared to LPIC populated on the "I" or "T" action lines in the Service and Equipment section of the Service Order. <i>Note:</i> LSR LPIC = None; S.O. LPIC = 9199 LSR LPIC = DFLT; S.O. LPIC = 5123 | |
| | TNS | Telephone Numbers | Validate that all telephone numbers in the TNS fields in the Service Details section on the Resale or Centrex form requiring inward activity are addressed on the Service Order. | |
| Resale or Centrex | FA/ FEATURE | Feature Activity/Feature Codes | When the FA = N, T, V Validate line and feature USOCs provided in the FEATURE field on the Resale or Centrex form are addressed with "I" and/or "T" action lines on the Service Order. Note: Comparison will be based on the USOCs associated with line and feature activity listed in the PO-20 USOC List posted on Qwest's public website, on the web page containing the current PID www.qwest.com/wholesale/results). Qwest may add USOCs to the list, delete grand-fathered/ discontinued or obsolete USOCs, or update USOCs assigned to listed descriptions by providing notice in the monthly Summary of Notes and updating the list. | |
| LS | ECCKT | Exchange Company Circuit ID | Applies to LSRs with $ACT = C$ (only when NC code has not changed, M, or T. ECCKT field on the LS form compared to the CLS field in the Service and Equipment section of the Service Order. | |

| | LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | |
|---|---|--------------------------------------|--|
| Phase 1 - | Phase 1 – (Effective with LSRs received beginning May 2004) | | |
| Mechanize | d compariso | n of the fields from | the Service Order to the LSR: |
| | LSR Field | | Durante (Durate Contra Fight) |
| Form | Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: |
| LS/ LSNP | CFA | Connecting Facility Assignment | CFA field on the LS or LSNP forms compared to the CFA field used in CKL1 of the Service Order. (Verbal acceptance of CFA changes will be FOC'd and PIA'd, which will account for the mismatch and eliminate it as an error in the PO-20 calculation. |
| ings) | LTY | Listing Type | LTY = 1 (Listed – appears in DA and the directory.) Validate that there is a LN in the List section of the Service Order. LTY = 2 (Non Listed – appears only in DA.) Validate that there is non listing instructions in the LN field in the List section of the Service Order. Central/Western Region: Validate that the left handed field is NLST and (NON-LIST) is contained in the NLST data field in the List section of the Service order. Eastern Region: Validate that the left handed field is NL and (NON LIST) is contained in the NL data field in the List section of the Service order. Eastern Region: Validate that the left handed field is NL and (NON LIST) is contained in the NL data field in the List section of the Service Order. LTY = 3 (Non Pub - does not appear in DA.) Validate that there is non published instructions in the LN field in the List section of the Service Order. Central/Western Regions: Validate that the left handed field is NP and (NON-PUB) is contained in the NP data field in the List section of the Service Order. Eastern Region: Validate that the left handed field is NP and (NON-PUB) is contained in the NP data field in the List section of the Service Order. |
| L – Directory Listings form ted only for Local Main List | ΤΟΑ | Type of Account | Validate TOA entries (only reviewed when BRO field on DL form is not populated): TOA valid entries are B or RP Validate that there is a semi colon (;) within the LN in the List section of the Service Order. TOA valid entries are R or BP Validate that there is a comma (,) within the LN in the List section of the Service Order. TOA valid entries are R or BP Validate that there is a comma (,) within the LN in the List section of the Service Order. Exception: When LSR-TOS = 3, TOA review is Not Applicable. Handled by Complex Listing Group. Requires separate Service Order. |
| Valua | DML | Direct Mail List | DML field = O on DL form; Service Order LN contains (OCLS). |
| <u> </u> | NOSL | No Solicitation Indicator | Arizona Only NOSL field = Y on DL form; Service Order LN contains (NSOL) (OCLS). |
| | TMKT | Telemarketing | Colorado Only TMKT field = O on DL form; Service Order LN contains (OATD). When both the DML and the TMKT fields are populated, DML validation applies. |
| | LNLN and LNFN | Listed Name | LNLN and LNFN fields on DL form compared to the LN field in the List section of the Service Order. |
| | ADI | Address Indicator | ADI = O on DL form; Service Order LA contains (OAD). |
| | LAPR | Listed Address Number Prefix | LAPR field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. |

| | LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | | |
|-----------|---|--|--|--|
| Phase 1 | Phase 1 – (Effective with LSRs received beginning May 2004) | | | |
| Mechanize | ed compariso | on of the fields from | the Service Order to the LSR: | |
| | LSR Field | | | |
| Form | Code | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: | |
| | LANO | Listed Address Number | LANO field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. | |
| • • | LASF | Listed Address Number Suffix | LASF field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. | |
| | LASD | Listed Address Street Directional | LASD field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. | |
| | LASN | Listed Address Street Name | LASN field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. | |
| | LATH | Listed Address Street Type | LATH field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. | |
| | LASS | Listed Address Street Directional Suffix | LASS field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. | |
| | LALOC | Listed Address Locality | LALOC field of the Listing form compared to LA in the List section of the Service Order. | |

| Phase 2 | Phase 2 - No later than Sep 04 results | | | |
|-------------------------|--|--------------------------------------|--|--|
| LSR-Serv | ice Order Fie | elds Evaluated | | |
| Mechaniz | ed comparis | on of the fields from | m the Service Order to the LSR: | |
| Form | LSR Field | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: | |
| | Code | | | |
| LSR | DSPTCH | Dispatch | Limited to Unbundled Loops where $ACT = Z$ or V only. If DSPTCH field on the LSR form = Y, validate dispatch USOC in the Service and Equipment section of the Service Order. | |
| Centrex | LTC | Line Treatment Code | Applies only to Centrex 21 LTC field numeric value on the Centrex form compared to the data following the CAT field for the Line USOC on the Service Order. | |
| | COS | Class of Service – Qwest Specific | Applies only to Centrex 21. COS field of the Centrex form compared to the CS field in the ID section of the Service Order. | |
| Resale or Centrex | FEATURE DETAILS | Feature Details | As specified in Appendix A of the 14 State Working PID. Comparison would be based on the fields associated with the USOC list referenced under Feature Activity in Phase 1 above. | |

| Page | 6 |
|------|---|
|------|---|

| Phase 2 | Phase 2 – No later than Sep 04 results | | |
|----------|--|-------------------------------|---|
| LSR-Serv | LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | |
| Mechaniz | techanized comparison of the fields from the Service Order to the LSR: | | |
| Form | LSR Field | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: |
| | Code | | |
| Phase 3 | - Targete | d for 1 st Quarter | 05 |
| LSR-Serv | ice Order Fie | elds Evaluated | |
| Mechaniz | ed comparis | on of the fields from | m the Service Order to the LSR: |
| Form | LSR Field | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: |
| | Code | | |
| Resale | BLOCK | Blocking Type | For each LNUM provided in the Service Detail section of the |
| or | (Stage 1) | | Resale or Centrex form when BA = E: |
| Centrex | | | Note: The BLOCK field may have one or more alpha and/or |
| | | | numeric values per LNUM. This review will only validate |
| | | | based on BAVBLOCK fields and will not address blocking |
| | l I | | the Feature Detail section of the LSR of the LSR of |
| · | | | below will be considered as follows: |
| | | | |
| | | | If BLOCK contains A, validate FID TBE A is present on the |
| | | | service order floated behind line USOC associated with the |
| | | | TNS for that LNUM. |
| | | | |
| | | | If BLOCK contains B, validate FID TBE B is present on the |
| | | | service order floated behind line USOC associated with the |
| | | | TNS for that LNUM. |
| | | | If PLOCK postoins C. validate FID TRE C is present as the |
| | | | If BLOCK contains C, validate FID TBE C is present on the |
| | | | This for that I NI IM |
| | | | |
| | | | If BLOCK contains H, validate FID BLKD is present on the |
| | | | service order floated behind line USOC associated with the |
| | | | TNS for that LNUM. |

| Phase 4 | Phase 4 – Date TBD | | | |
|---|--------------------|----------------------------|---|--|
| LSR-Serv | ice Order Fie | elds Evaluated | | |
| Mechaniz | ed comparis | on of the fields from | n the Service Order to the LSR: | |
| Form | LSR Field | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: | |
| | Code | | | |
| LSR | DFDT | Desired Frame Due Time | Applicable only to orders for Resale and UNE-P (POTS and Centrex 21) DFDT field on the LSR form compared to the FDT field in the Extended ID section of the Service Order. | |
| | DDD | Desired Due Date | DDD field from the last FOC'd LSR compared to the original or last subsequent due date in the Extended ID section on the Service Order when no CFLAG/PIA is present on the FOC. (i.e. Evaluation includes recognition of valid differences between DDD and Service Order based on population of the CFLAG/PIA field on the LSRC (FOC)) | |
| DL – Directory Listings form (Evaluated only for I ocal Main | LTN | Listed Telephone Number | For Resale and UNE-P (POTS and Centrex 21): LTN field on the Listing form compared to the Main Account Number of the Service Order. For Unbundled Loop: LTN field on the Listing form compared to the TN floated after the LN in the Listing section of the Service Order. | |

PO-20 (Expanded) – Manual Service Order Accuracy

| Page | 7 |
|------|---|
|------|---|

| Phase 4 – Date TBD LSR-Service Order Fields Evaluated | | | | |
|--|-----------|-----------------|--|--|
| | | | | |
| Form | LSR Field | LSR Field Name | Remarks/Service Order Field: | |
| | Code | | | |
| | LNPL | Letter Name | LNPL field on the Listing form = L, validate that LN on the | |
| | | Placement | Service Order follows letter placement versus word placement. | |
| Resale | FEATURE | Feature Details | If CLECs propose additional FIDs for review, Qwest will | |
| or . | DETAILS | | undertake a feasibility evaluation. | |
| Centrex | | | | |
| | BLOCK | Blocking Type | If CLECs identify value in additional Blocking review, Qwest | |
| | (Stage 2) | | will undertake development. [Requirements to be developed] | |

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

IN THE MATTER OF THE FILING BY QWEST OF ITS NOTICE CORPORATION OF MODIFICATION TO THE STATEMENT OF GENERALLY AVAILABLE TERMS AND CONDITIONS (SGAT) EXHIBIT B, NOTICE OF **QWEST'S CHANGES TO ITS PERFORMANCE** ASSURANCE PLAN AND MOTION FOR TIER DESIGNATION, VOLUME DIFFERENTIATED AND MEASUREMENT BENCHMARK STABILIZATION PERIOD FOR THE REVISED PID PO-20

ORDER APPROVING REVISIONS TO QPAP, AND GRANTING TIER DESIGNATION, VOLUME-DIFFERENTIATED BENCHMARK, AND MEASUREMENT STABILIZATION PERIOD RELATED TO THE REVISED PID, PO-20 (EXPANDED) MANUAL SERVICE ORDER ENTRY TC04-110

On June 24, 2004, Qwest Corporation filed an updated Exhibit B to the Statement of Generally Available Terms and Conditions, which is the Performance Indicator Definitions, and a revised Performance Assurance Plan (QPAP) to reflect changes from the Long Term PID Administration discussions as well as request determination regarding the tier designation. volume-differentiated benchmark, and measurement stabilization period related to the revised PID. PO-20 (Expanded) Manual Service Order Entry. Qwest Corporation requests that the Commission approve the QPAP, as revised and modified, designate a tier for PO-20, establish a low-volume differentiated benchmark for PO-20, and allow PO-20 a measurement stabilization for no more than three months with the implementation of each phase, meaning that Qwest will make any required payments for PO-20 on the prior phase, but under Exhibit B-1 for Phase 1 implementation, until the expiration of the measurement stabilization period. Qwest requests that the Commission permit the amended Exhibit B to go into effect no later than 60 days after submission in accordance with 47 U.S.C. Section 252(f)(3) and, further, upon determination of the issues outlined above and upon a compliance filing by Qwest removing Exhibit B-1, supersede Exhibit B-1. In the interim, Qwest will report on the expanded PO-20 contained in Exhibit B: Qwest will also report and make payments on the existing PO-20 contained in Exhibit B-1 until such time as the Commission determines the appropriate tier designation, measurement stabilization period and whether a low volume differentiated benchmark should apply. Further, Qwest requests that, pursuant to Section 16 of QPAP, the changes shall automatically apply to all existing interconnection agreements that currently contain Exhibit B and the QPAP, Exhibit K as exhibits.

On July 1, 2004, the Commission electronically transmitted notice of the filing and the intervention deadline of July 16, 2004, to interested individuals and entities. No comments or petitions to intervene were filed.

The Commission has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to SDCL Chapter 49-31.

At its duly noticed October 26, 2004, meeting, the Commission considered this matter. The Commission voted to approve the QPAP, as revised and modified, designate a Tier 1 medium, no Tier 2 designation for PO-20, establish a low-volume differentiated benchmark for PO-20, and allow PO-20 a measurement stabilization for no more than three months with the implementation of each phase. As the Commission's final decision in this matter, it is therefore

ORDERED, that the Commission approves the QPAP, as revised and modified, designates a Tier 1 medium, no Tier 2 designation for PO-20, establishes a low-volume differentiated benchmark for PO-20, and allows PO-20 a measurement stabilization for no more than three months.

Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this _4th day of November, 2004.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE The undersigned hereby certifies that this document has been served today upon all parties of record in this docket, as listed on the docket service list, by facsimile or by first class mail, in properly addressed envelopes, with charges prepaid thereon. By: Date (OFFICIAL SEAL)

BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:

SAHR. Chairman

Sau Hannes 2

NSON. Commissioner

Commissioner